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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS
General

KB Home is one of the largest and most recognizeddbuilding companies in the United States andbeas building homes for more
than 50 years. We construct and sell homes througloperating divisions under the name KB Home egsithe context indicates otherwise,
the terms “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” usedthis report refer to KB Home, a Delaware corpiora and its predecessors and
subsidiaries.

Beginning in 1957 and continuing until 1986, ousimess was conducted by various subsidiaries ofriam and Broad, Inc. (“KBI"and
its predecessors. In 1986, KBI transferred alt®homebuilding and mortgage banking operationsst&hortly after the transfer, we comple
an initial public offering of 8% of our common skoand began operating under the name Kaufman aoaidBiome Corporation. In 1989, we
were spun-off from KBI, which then changed its nam&road Inc., and we became an independent pobiigany, operating primarily in
California and France. In 2001, we changed our niankB Home. Today, having sold our French operstim 2007, we operate a
homebuilding and financial services business sgriimmebuyers in various markets across the UnitetS

Our homebuilding operations, which are divided ifttor geographically defined segments for reporpngposes, offer a variety of new
homes designed primarily for first-time, move-upl attive adult homebuyers, including attached atdahed singléamily residential home:
townhomes and condominiums. We offer homes in @gveént communities, at urban in-fill locations asdpart of mixed:se projects. In thi
report, we use the term “home” to refer to a sirfglaily residence, whether it is a single-familyni® or other type of residential property, and
we use the term “community” to refer to a singleelepment in which homes are constructed as pahafitegrated plan.

Through our homebuilding reporting segments, wésdegd 5,812 homes at an average selling pricd# %00 during the year ended
November 30, 2011, compared to 7,346 homes detiv&ran average selling price of $214,500 durirgytar ended November 30, 2010. ¢
homebuilding operations represent most of our ssinaccounting for 99.2% and 99.5% of our totaémees in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Our financial services reporting segment providtis and insurance services to our homebuyers. Jégsnent also provided mortgage
banking services to our homebuyers indirectly tgtoKBA Mortgage, LLC (“KBA Mortgage”), a former unasolidated joint venture of a
subsidiary of ours and a subsidiary of Bank of AiggerN.A., from the venture’s formation in 2005 ilidtine 30, 2011, when it ceased offering
mortgage banking services. Effective June 27, 2@&lentered into a marketing services agreemehtM#tLife Home Loans, a division of
MetLife Bank, N.A. Under the agreement, MetLife Heinoans’ personnel, located on site at severaliphew home communities, can offer
financing options and residential consumer mortdage products to our homebuyers, and originateleesial consumer mortgage loans for
homebuyers who elect to use MetLife Home Loans.l@unebuyers may also elect to use other providarsostgage banking services. Our
financial services operations accounted for .8%.88@ of our total revenues in 2011 and 2010, respsy.

In 2011, we generated total revenues of $1.32hillind a net loss of $178.8 million, compared talteevenues of $1.59 billion and a |
loss of $69.4 million in 2010. Our financial resulor 2011 and 2010 reflect challenging operatioigditions that have persisted in the
homebuilding industry to varying degrees duringhbesing downturn that generally began in mid-2006.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1@9%iIshire Boulevard, Los Angeles, California 900Z4e telephone number of our
corporate headquarters is (310) 231-4000 and obsiteeaddress is http://kbhome.com. In additiomemnity location and information is
available at (888) KB-HOMES.
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Markets

Reflecting the geographic reach of our homebuildinginess, as of the date of this report, our fpaloperations are in the nine states
and 32 major markets presented below. For repoptimgoses, we organize our homebuilding operaiimosfour segments — West Coast,

Southwest, Central and Southeast.

Segment State(s) Major Market(s)
West Coast  California Fresno, Los Angeles, Madera, Oakland, Orange Co®itgrside, Sacramento,
San Bernardino, San Diego, San Jose, Santa RoskHRat Stockton, Ventura and Yuba
City
Southwes Arizona Phoenix and Tucsc
Nevada Las Vegas and Rer
Central Coloradao Denver
Texas Austin, Dallas/Fort Worth, Houston and San Antc
Southeas Florida Daytona Beach, Fort Myers, Jacksonville, Lakelddando, Sarasota and Tarr
Maryland Washington, D.C
North Caroling Raleigh
Virginia Washington, D.C

Segment Operating Information. The following table presents certain operatingtinfation for our homebuilding reporting segments fo
the years ended November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

West Coast

Homes delivere:

Percentage of total homes delive

Average selling pric

Total revenues (in millions) (e
Southwest

Homes delivere:

Percentage of total homes delive

Average selling pric

Total revenues (in millions) (
Central:

Homes delivere:

Percentage of total homes delive

Average selling pric

Total revenues (in millions) (
Southeast

Homes delivere:

Percentage of total homes delive

Average selling pric

Total revenues (in millions) (
Total:

Homes delivere:

Average selling pric

Total revenues (in millions) (

Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
1,757 2,02¢ 2,45¢
30% 27% 28%
$335,50( $346,30( $315,10(
$ 589. $ 700.5 $ 8127
848 1,15( 1,20z
15% 16% 14%
$165,80( $158,20( $172,00(
$ 139.¢ $ 187.7 $ 218.1
2,15¢ 2,66 2,771
37% 36% 33%
$171,50( $163,70( $155,50(
$ 369.7 $ 436.¢ $ 434«
1,057 1,51( 2,062
18% 21% 24%
$195,50( $170,20( $168,60(
$ 206.¢ $ 257.( $ 351.7
5,81z 7,34¢€ 8,48¢
$224,60( $214,50( $207,10(
$1,305.¢ $1,581.¢ $1,816.

(@) Total revenues include revenues from housing amdl $ales

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures. The above table does not include homes delivered finconsolidated joint ventures in which we
participate. These unconsolidated joint venturegiie and develop land and, in some cases, buddiafliver homes on developed land. Our
unconsolidated joint ventures delivered one hon0ihl, 102 homes in 2010, and 141 homes in 2009.

2
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Strategy

To varying degrees since mid-2006, housing markertsss the United States, including those we sépage experienced a prolonged
downturn compared to the period from 2000 throu@d52due to a persistent oversupply of homes aueifab sale and weak consumer
demand for housing. Since 2008, a generally poorettic economic and employment environment asageflirbulence in financial and credit
markets worldwide have worsened these conditi@silting in declining home sales activity and fajlhome prices in many areas. Although
housing affordability has been at historically highels in the past few years due to lower selpriges and relatively low residential consumer
mortgage interest rates, the negative supply anthdd dynamics during the housing downturn haversgveonstrained our net orders,
revenues and our ability to generate profits.

We believe housing markets will likely remain vikagnd generally weak in 2012, and that our bussirend the homebuilding industry
will experience uneven results before a sustairedvery takes hold. At this time, we cannot predicen such a recovery might occur. Based
on this view, we intend to continue to executeloeé primary and integrated strategic goals:

» achieving and maintaining profitability at the saf prevailing market condition
* generating cash and maintaining a strong balareet;sanc
* positioning our business to capitalize on futurewgh opportunities

In pursuing these goals during the period from 2086 through 2009, we reduced our overhead, invgatad community count levels
better align our operations with diminished homlesactivity compared to the peak levels reachabémeriod from 2000 through 2005. (In
this report, we use the term “community count”aéer to the number of new home communities thabpen for sales.) Consequently, we
exited or reduced our investments in underperfogniarkets, disposed of land and interests in land/ound our participation in certain
unconsolidated joint ventures, and experiencedagpsttecline in our backlog and homes delivered @etbto our peak period performance
primarily due to decreased demand and because avietvar communities from which we sold homes. Dgitinis period, we also focused on
improving our operating efficiencies, shifting resces and investing selectively in preferred markéth perceived strong growth prospects,
and redesigning and emgineering our product offerings to meet consuteenand for more affordable and energy efficient ésind to lowe
our direct construction costs compared to our peviproduct.

In late 2009 and continuing through 2011, buildamgour financial position and the earlier operagiae-positioning we had
implemented, and seeing a number of attractive dppities becoming available, we launched a tadykted acquisition initiative. Under this
initiative, we concentrated on acquiring ownergfigontrol of well-priced developed land parcelsttimet our investment and marketing
standards in preferred locations in or near owsteyg markets, particularly in California and Tex@his tactical shift was designed to help us
achieve and maintain profitability — currently, dnighest priority — by increasing our future reveadhrough a larger inventory base in
healthier markets from which to sell our higher-giamew product. It was also designed to help umtama a three-to-five year supply of
developed or developable land. While the inventorgt community count reductions and other land plotind operational adjustments we
made between 2006 and 2009 resulted in fewer hdelagred in 2011 on a year-over-year basis, wiigate that our land investment
activities in 2010 and 2011 and recent and plamsd home community openings will improve such corgoas in 2012. As a result, we
believe that our land acquisition initiative in cbimation with the other actions we have taken irsping our primary strategic goals during the
housing downturn have established a solid founddtio us to eventually achieve sustainable growh grofitability as and to the extent
housing markets improve.

While market conditions in 2012 will determine tegree to which we acquire or dispose of land assehanaging our inventory, the
pace with which we open new home communities flassand the manner in which we pursue and refimeegecution on our primary
integrated strategic goals, we intend to contimueperate in accordance with the principles ofaare operational business model, KBnxt.

3
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KBnxt Operational Business Model. Our KBnxt operational business model, first impésted in 1997, seeks to generate greater ope
efficiencies and return on investment through aidied, fact-based and process-driven approatioteebuilding that is founded on a
constant and systematic assessment of consumergmeés and market opportunities. We believe ounKBperational business model set
apart from other homebuilders. The key principlesw KBnxt operational business model include:

 gaining a detailed understanding of consumer lonaind product preferences through regular suramgigesearct

* managing our working capital and reducing our otegerisks by acquiring primarily developed andiged land at reasonable pric
in preferred markets with perceived high growthemtial, and disposing of land and interests in ldoad no longer meet our
investment or marketing standar

» using our knowledge of consumer preferences tgdesbnstruct and deliver the products homebuyess e

» in general, commencing construction of a home aftigr a purchase contract has been sig

 building a backlog of net orders and minimizing timee from initial construction to delivery of hos&o customers
 establishing an even flow of production of F-quality homes at the lowest possible cost;

« offering customers affordable base prices and gp@dunity to customize their homes through chaitcation, floor plans an
interior design options

Through its disciplines and standards, our KBnxrafional business model provides a framework undéch we seek to build and
maintain a leading position in our existing markeggportunistically expand our business into attvacnew areas or preferred markets within
or near our existing operations; exit investmeh# ho longer meet our return or marketing stargjaralibrate our product designs to const
preferences; and achieve lower costs and econarhgesale in acquiring and developing land, purahg$iuilding materials, subcontracting
trade labor, and providing home design and prodptibns to customers. Due to market conditionsniuthhe housing downturn, however, t
have been instances in which we have found it macgdo temporarily deviate in certain respectaftbe principles of our KBnxt operational
business model, and such instances may arise i 201

Our expansion into a new area or market and ourdratval from an existing market depend on our assest of the area’s or market’s
viability and our ability to develop and/or sustaiperations at a level that meets our investmamidsirds. Similar considerations apply to
potential asset acquisitions or dispositions inexisting markets.

Operational Objectives. Guided by the principles of our KBnxt operatiobakiness model, our main operational objectiveseatiy
include:

» Positioning our operations to maintain ownershipantrol over a forecasted th-to-five year supply of developed or develops
land and concentrating on healthier locations inear our existing markets. We believe this apgra@aables us to capitalize on the
different rates at which we expect housing mart@tabilize and recover from the housing downtumraddition, keeping our land
inventory at what we believe is a prudent and maabb level and in line with our future sales exgiéans maximizes the use of our
working capital, enhances our liquidity and helpanaintain a balance sheet that supports strategistments for future growt

» Providing the best value and choice in homes atidropfor our core customers — first-time, moveaual active adult homebuyers.
By promoting value and choice through an afforddfalse price and product customization through aptimcluding many
environmentally conscious options, we believe vemdtout from other homebuilders and sellers oftexjshomes (including lender-
owned homes acquired through foreclosures or siadet), and can generate higher rever

» Enhancing the affordability of our homes by designand engineering our homes with flexible layorggucing cycle timesi(e. , the
time between the sale of a home and its deliveeyltomebuyer), and lowering our direct constructiosts. By making our homes
more affordable for our value-conscious core horgelsiwhile lowering our production costs, we bedisve can compete effectively
with sellers of existing home
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(including lende-owned homes acquired through foreclosures or siabet), which we see as our primary competitionegge
revenues and drive sustainable earnings over tigetirm.

» Generating high levels of customer satisfaction puediucing high-quality homes as a complement éwiging the best value and
choice for homebuyers. We believe achieving higst@mer satisfaction levels is key to our long-tgenformance, and delivering
quality homes is critical to achieving high custemsatisfaction

» Achieving and maintaining profitability by contimg to align our operational cost structure (inchgdoverhead) with the expected ¢
and growth of our business, generating and prasgoash, and maximizing the performance of ourstaa: capital

Marketing Srategy. During 2011, we continued to focus our promotianakketing efforts on first-time, move-up and aetadult
homebuyers. These homebuyers historically have beenore customers and it is among these growgiswh see the greatest potential for
future home sales. Also, beginning in 2010, we haaee a regional shift in our overall market positig and operational platform to
emphasize healthier markets in California and Tefasa result, we have focused our recent commuitynt growth efforts in preferred
locations within key strategic markets in thoseestaln this report, depending on the context, escdbe the positioning and structure of our
operations in housing markets across the countouamarketing strategy.

Our promotional marketing efforts are directediffedentiating the KB Home brand from resale horaad from homes sold through
foreclosures, short sales and by other homebuiliféesbelieve that our Built to Ord&f message and approach generate a high perceivex
for our products and our company among consumet@enunique among large-production homebuildendt B Order emphasizes that we
partner with our homebuyers to create a home twtheir individual preferences in design, layaguare footage and homesite location, ar
personalize their home with features and amertitigsmeet their needs and interests. Built to Osdeves as the consumer face of core
elements of our KBnxt operational business moddliamlesigned to ensure that our promotional marfesttrategy and advertising campaigns
are closely aligned with our overall operationalus. For greater consistency with our promotionatkating messages and in the execution of
our Built to Order approach, sales of our homescardged out by in-house teams of sales repregeasaaind other personnel who work
personally with each homebuyer to create a hontatieats the homebuyer’s preferences and budget.

Our KB Home Studios are an integral component efhilt to Order experience we offer to homebuyerd help increase the revenues
we generate from home sales. These showrooms, ahécgenerally located close to our new home conitieanpallow our homebuyers to
select from thousands of product and design optmasamenities, including several environmentatlyscious options, that are available for
purchase as part of the original construction efrthomes. The coordinated efforts of our salesasmtatives and KB Home Studio
consultants are intended to provide high levelsustomer satisfaction and lead to enhanced custatention and referrals.

My Home. My Earth. ™ We have made a dedicated effort to further diffeede ourselves from other homebuilders and setiéexisting
homes through our ongoing commitment to becomeaditg national company in environmental sustaiitgbilhis commitment, organized
under ouMy Home. My Earth. initiative, stems from growing sensitivities andjuéatory attention to the potential impact that tbestruction
and use of our homes can have on the environnrexhtiding on global average temperatures and adedaitimate change, and from our
homebuyers’ interest in reducing this impact inrinest cost-effective way possible. This commitrredab stems from our strategic goal to
maintain a strong balance sheet by minimizing egpsnwaste and inefficiencies in our operationslddmurMy Home. My Earth. programs:

» we became the first national homebuilder to contmibstalling exclusively ENERGY STA® appliances in all of our homes built
2008 and beyon(

» we engineer and continually refine our productsetiuce the amount of building materials necessacphstruct them, and have
developed or adopted production methods that haipmize our use of materials and the generatiocooistructior-related debris

» we became the first national homebuilder to conienfiuilding homes that are designed to meet the En8ironmental Protection
Agency's (“EPA") ENERGY STAR guidelines in all of our new home conmities opened in 2009 and beyol

5
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* in 2010, we became the first homebuilder in thentiguto construct homes to meet the F's WaterSens® specifications. Th
ENERGY STAR and WaterSense programs require thalb@mes meet high standards for energy and wdieresicy and
performance, respectively, compared to standardardwpical existing home:

* in 2010, we became a partner in the EPA’s WasteWjsegram and have voluntarily undertaken to redheeamount of solid
construction waste sent to landfil

* in 2011, we made solar power systems a standataréeaf homes in nearly all of our communities asr8outhern Californii

* in 2011, we introduced our EF™, or Energy Performance Gui™, which is provided with every new home we deligad informs
prospective buyers about the relative energy efficy of our new homes compared to a typical neresale home

* in 2011, we announced our planned nationwide rolbddwur nex-generation of energy efficient home designs, -zero energy hom
we have named ZeroHouse ™, and began offering these home designs as ogtiselect communities; ar

» since 2007, we have published an annual sustaityatgiport on our website. The report outlines accomplishments and objective:
we work towards our goal of minimizing the impaar @perations and homes can have on the environnviiié continuing to make
the dream of homeownership attainable for our hayets.

In many instances, we have been able to implemari¥lg Home. My Earth. programs at minimal or no additional cost to usooour
homebuyers, while giving our homebuyers the opmityuo lower their home ownership costs over threglterm. Along with the standard
home designs and amenities we offer pursuant td/gutiome. My Earth . programs, we also offer our homebuyers sevet@mpthrough our
KB Home Studios that can help them to further lotheir consumption of energy and water resourcdg@meduce their utility bills. As we s
environmental issues related to housing becomiagasingly important to consumers and governmethipaities at all levels, we intend to
continue to research, evaluate and utilize newngroved products and construction and businessigeaconsistent with the goals of ddy
Home. My Earth. programs. In addition to making good business semsédelieve ouMy Home. My Earth. programs can help put us in a be
position, compared to homebuilders with less-dgwetioprograms, to comply with evolving local, statel federal rules and regulations
intended to protect natural resources and to adalgaate change and similar environmental concerns

Customer Service and Quality Control

Customer satisfaction is a high priority for us.r@oal is for our customers to be 100% satisfiethwieir new homes. Our on-site
construction supervisors perform regular pre-clgsjnality checks and our sales representativestaiairegular contact with our homebuyers
during the construction process in an effort touea®ur homes meet our standards and our homebeypectations. We believe our prompt
and courteous responses to homebuyers’ needs tloouthe homebuying process help reduce post-gjosipair costs, enhance our reputation
for quality and service, and help encourage repedtreferral business from homebuyers and theegtate community. We also have
employees who are responsible for responding todhoryers’ post-closing needs, including warrantynea

We provide a limited warranty on all of our hom&ke specific terms and conditions vary dependinghemmarket where we do busine
We generally provide a structural warranty of 1@rngea warranty on electrical, heating, coolingnmbing and other building systems each
varying from two to five years based on geographicket and state law, and a warranty of one yeastfeer components of a home.

Local Expertise

To maximize our KBnxt operational business modeffsctiveness and help ensure its consistent eecwdur employees are
continuously trained on KBnxt principles and araleated based on their achievement of relevant KBpgrational objectives. We also
believe that our business requires in-depth knogédeaf local markets in order to acquire land irfgmed locations and on favorable terms, to
engage subcontractors, to plan communities that lne@ demand, to anticipate consumer tastesecip markets, and to assess local
regulatory environments. Accordingly, we operate lmusiness through divisions with trained persomvied have local market expertise. We
have experienced
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management teams in each of our divisions. Thougemtralize certain functions (such as promotiomaiketing, legal, materials purchasing,
purchasing administration, product developmentjiggcture and accounting) to benefit from econorofescale, our local management
exercises considerable autonomy in identifying laoguisition opportunities, developing and impletivenproduct and sales strategies, and
controlling costs.

Community Development and Land Inventory Management

Our community development process generally cansistour phases: land acquisition, land develogmeme construction and sale.
Historically, the completion time of our communigvelopment process has ranged from six to 24 rsontbur West Coast segment to a
somewhat shorter duration in our other homebuildiegments. The duration of the community developgmertess varies based on, among
other things, the extent of government approvajsired, the overall size of a particular communitgcessary site preparation activities,
weather conditions, promotional marketing resutsisumer demand and local and general economib@uing market conditions.

Although they vary significantly, our communitiggpically consist of 50 to 250 lots ranging in sfeem 1,000 to 13,000 square feet. In
our communities, we typically offer from three t6 Aome designs for homebuyers to choose from. dtegenerally build one to four model
homes at each community so that prospective bugerpreview various home designs. Depending oedh@emunity, we may offer premium
lots containing more square footage, better viewsda location benefits.

Land Acquisition and Land Development. We continuously evaluate land acquisition oppdties as they arise against our investment
and marketing standards, balancing competing nfieedmancial strength, liquidity and land invenydior future growth. When we acquire
land, we generally focus on land parcels contaiféwger than 250 lots that are fully entitled fosidkential construction and are either physic
developed to start home construction (referrecsttfinished lots”) or partially finished. Acquirinfinished or partially finished lots enables us
to construct and deliver homes with minimal addisibdevelopment work or expenditures. We believgitha more efficient way to use our
working capital and reduces the operating riske@aged with having to develop and/or entitle lasuich as unforeseen improvement costs
and/or changes in market conditions. However, deipgnon market conditions and available opportesitive may acquire undeveloped an
unentitled land. We expect that the overall balasfaendeveloped, unentitled, entitled and finishad in our inventory will vary over time.

Consistent with our KBnxt operational business nhode target geographic areas for potential largliegitions and community
development and assess the viability of our curirer@ntory, based on the results of periodic susvafboth new and resale homebuyers in
particular markets, prevailing local economic cdiodis, the supply and type of homes available &&,sand other research activities. Local, in-
house land acquisition specialists conduct sitectiein analysis in targeted geographic areas tatifgedesirable land acquisition targets or to
evaluate whether to dispose of an existing lanet@st. We also use studies performed by third-pgrégialists. Using this internal and external
data, some of the factors we consider in evaludting acquisition targets and assessing the vigloifiour current inventory are consumer
preferences; general economic conditions; locatimyumarket conditions, with an emphasis on theggrand pricing trends of comparable
and resale homes in the market; expected sales pateimity to metropolitan areas and employmamtters; population, household formation
and commercial growth patterns; estimated cost®oipleting land development; and environmental d@npe matters.

We generally structure our land purchases and dpu@nt activities to minimize or to defer the tigiof expenditures, which enhances
returns associated with new land investments. Windleuse a variety of techniques to accomplish théstypically use agreements that give us
an option right to purchase land at a future dageally at a predetermined price and for a smélblrdeposit payment. These agreements may
also permit us to partially develop the land pt@mour purchase. We refer to land subject to syntiow rights as being “controlled.” Our
decision to exercise a particular land option righitased on the results of due diligence and rwoatl market viability analyses we conduct
after entering into an agreement. In some casesjamision to exercise a land option may be cooid on the land seller obtaining necessary
entitlements, such as zoning rights and environademd development approvals, and/or physicallyeliging the land by a pre-determined
date. Depending on the circumstances, our inigalogdit payment for a land option right may or may e refundable to us if we abandon the
land option contract and do not purchase the uyidgrland.
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In addition to acquiring land under option agreetagwe may acquire land under contracts that cmmddur purchase obligation on our
satisfaction with the feasibility of developing tlaad and selling homes on the land by a certauréudate, consistent with our investment and
marketing standards. Our land option contractsahdr similar contracts may also allow us to plageland purchases and/or land
development over a period of time and/or upon #isfaction of certain conditions. We may also aagland with seller financing that is non-
recourse to us, or by working in conjunction wilrd-party land developers. Our land option cortg@and other similar contracts generally do
not contain provisions requiring our specific penfiance.

Before we commit to any land purchase or disposengfland interest, our senior corporate and redioranagement evaluates the asset
based on the results of our local specialists’diligence, third-party data and a set of definagicial measures, including, but not limited to,
gross margin analyses and specific discounted:-takecash flow internal rate of return requirensefithe criteria guiding our land acquisition
and disposition decisions have resulted in our taaiing inventory in areas that we believe gengmafifer better returns for lower risk and
lower investment in inventory.

In recent years, in light of difficult market cotidns, we have sold some of our land and inteiiedemnd and have abandoned a portion of
our rights to acquire land under land option castg@nd other similar contracts. We determinedttiege properties no longer met our
investment or marketing standards. Although wetatiibur strategic focus in late 2009 to acquirenggl assets in preferred locations in which
to open new home communities and increase our ue@giif market conditions remain challenging, weysall more of our land and interests
in land, and we may abandon or try to sell morewfrights to acquire land under land option castg@r other similar contracts.

Our inventories include land we are holding foufietdevelopment, which is comprised of land wheeehave suspended development
activity for a period of time due to building petmioratorium or regulatory restrictions that hinder ability to move forward with the
development of the community. It also includes ¢aland parcels that we plan to build out over sswsars and/or parcels that have not yet
been entitled and, therefore, have an extendedajewent timeline. Land we are holding for futureselepment also includes land where we
have deferred development activity based on ouetttlat we can generate greater returns and/oimize the economic performance of a
community by delaying improvements for a periodife to allow earlier phases of a long-term, mphiase community or a neighboring
community to generate sales momentum or for mareditions to improve. We resume development agtivhen we believe our investment
in this inventory will be optimized.

The following table presents the number of inveptots we owned, in various stages of developmantpntrolled under land option
contracts and other similar contracts in our honiding reporting segments as of November 30, 201d. 2010. The table does not include
approximately 326 acres owned as of November 30] 20id approximately 316 acres owned and 64 aos wption as of November 30,
2010 that is not expected to be approved for sudidivinto lots.

Homes Under Total Land
Construction and Land Land Held for Future Land Under Owned or
Under Development Development Option Under Option
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

West Coast 3,42 4,46 4,10 3,86 1,49 1,39 9,01 9,72
Southwes 1,01z 1,90¢ 8,21¢ 3,29 33 3,86¢ 9,26t 9,06(
Central 7,681 7,64¢ 1,831 1,091 3,21¢ 2,221 12,73: 10,97:
Southeas 1,127 1,542 5,567 6,41¢ 2,46t 1,82¢ 9,15¢ 9,782
Total 13,24: 15,56: 19,72¢ 14,66¢ 7,20¢ 9,31: 40,17( 39,54(

Reflecting our geographic diversity and relativegtanced operational footprint, as of November28d,1, 22% of the inventory lots we
owned or controlled were located in our West Cbashebuilding reporting segment, 23% were in ourt®east homebuilding reporting
segment, 32% were in our Central homebuilding reppisegment and 23% were in our Southeast honuhgiteporting segment.
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The following table presents the carrying valuénetntory we owned, in various stages of develoggr@mcontrolled under land option
contracts and other similar contracts in our honiding reporting segments as of November 30, 201d 2010 (in thousands):

Homes Under Land Held for Total Land
Construction and Land Future Land Under Owned or
Under Development Development Option Under Option
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

West Coast $ 508,73: $ 509,34¢ $344,70:. $289,04: $62,37( $30,76¢ $ 915,80: $ 829,15:
Southwes 66,77( 86,10! 163,41: 142,56t 307 3,71¢ 230,49( 232,38!
Central 265,94¢ 259,49:. 23,08¢ 14,63¢ 2,83¢ 10,46¢ 291,86¢ 284,59
Southeas 87,144 155,10: 195,54. 185,12 10,78¢ 10,36: 293,47( 350,58t
Total $ 928,59: $ 1,010,04. $726,74: $631,36° $76,29¢ $55,31: $1,731,62 $1,696,72

Home Construction and Sale. Following the purchase of land and, if necessdag development of land into finished lots, we tyflic
begin marketing homes for sale and constructingehlodmes. The time required for construction of lmames depends on the weather, time of
year, local labor supply, availability of materialsd supplies and other factors. To minimize thescand risks of unsold completed or parti
completed homes in production (which we refer tésé@nding inventory”), we generally begin constioi of a home only when we have a
signed purchase contract with a homebuyer. Howeaerellations of home purchase contracts pritheadelivery of the underlying homes,
specific strategic considerations, may cause bate standing inventory.

During the housing downturn, we have experiencetenolatility in our cancellation rates than in ty@ars immediately before the
downturn began. Also, in the first half of 2010, steategically deviated from our KBnxt operatiobakiness model and, in some communities,
built or partially built homes before they weredstd help meet increased demand motivated by thié 2@ 2010 expiration of a federal
homebuyer tax credit (the “Tax Credit”). As a reésat times during 2010, we had slightly more stagdnventory than we have had
historically. In 2011, we made a dedicated effontedduce the amount of standing inventory frompitevious year. Market conditions and
strategic considerations will determine our stagditventory levels in 2012.

We act as the general contractor for the majofityus communities and hire experienced subcontradty all production activities. Our
contracts with our subcontractors require that t@yply with all laws applicable to their work, lading labor laws, meet performance
standards, and follow local building codes and pistriiVe have developed programs for national agiral purchasing of certain building
materials, appliances and other items to take adgarof economies of scale and to reduce costaghrimmproved pricing and, where availa
participate in manufacturers’ or suppliers’ rebategrams. At all stages of production, our admiatste and on-site supervisory personnel
coordinate the activities of subcontractors andsee that the work subcontractors perform meethtgaad cost standards.

Backlog

We sell our homes under standard purchase contrelsitsh generally require a homebuyer to pay a digjgd the time of signing. The
amount of the deposit required varies among makedscommunities. Homebuyers also may be requirgay additional deposits when they
select options or upgrades for their homes. Mostuothome purchase contracts stipulate that ifradimiyer cancels a contract with us, we |
the right to retain the homebuyer’s deposits. Havewe generally permit our homebuyers to canaat thbligations and obtain refunds of all
or a portion of their deposits in the event mortgéigancing cannot be obtained within a certaingekof time, as specified in their contract.
Since 2008, tightened residential consumer mort¢mmging standards have led to higher cancellattes than those experienced before then,
and we expect these standards to continue to haegative impact on our cancellation rates andstarrding inventory levels in 2012.

“Backlog” consists of homes that are under contbatthave not yet been delivered. Ending backlpgegents the number of homes in
backlog from the previous period plus the numbareiforders (new orders for homes less cancelktigenerated during the current period
minus the number of homes delivered during theerinperiod. The backlog at any given time will fieeted by cancellations. The number of
homes delivered has historically increased fronfitiseto the fourth quarter in any year.
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Establishing an adequate backlog to optimize tlee@ton of our KBnxt operational business modeltesn challenging during the
housing downturn. In 2011, we opened 123 new hamnentunities for sales and took strategic and preadieps to increase our backlog,
which helped us to establish a sales pace thatded close the year with the highest year-endlbgake have had since 2008.

Our backlog at November 30, 2011 consisted of 2[ifies, an increase of 61% from the 1,336 hombadklog at November 30, 201
The higher backlog level at November 30, 2011 otdle a 39% increase in net orders in the lattdrdi&gl011 compared to the year-earlier
period. Our backlog at November 30, 2011 represigpi¢ential future housing revenues of approxinya$d59.0 million, a 74% increase from
potential future housing revenues of approxima$2§3.8 million at November 30, 2010, resulting frira higher number of homes in back
and a higher overall average selling price. Ouklmgcratio, defined as homes delivered in the aqraas a percentage of backlog at the
beginning of the quarter, was 75% for the quanteleel November 30, 2011 and 88% for the quarterceNdeember 30, 2010. The year-over-
year decline in this ratio was partly due to tigleté residential consumer mortgage lending standardslower processing and closing
residential consumer mortgage loans for our hometsuly the providers of such loans.

Our net orders for the year ended November 30, 2¥éased to 6,632 from 6,556 in 2010, represgritie first increase in full year net
orders in two years. Our average cancellationtraged on gross orders was 29% in 2011, compaieu doerage cancellation rate of 28% in
2010. Our cancellation rate based on gross ordass3#% in the fourth quarter of 2011, compared/és & the fourth quarter of 2010.

The following tables present homes delivered, neééis and cancellation rates (based on gross Qraetrsomebuilding reporting segm:e
and with respect to our unconsolidated joint vegguor each quarter during the years ended NoveBhe2011 and 2010, and our ending
backlog at the end of each quarter within thosesyea

Unconsolidated

West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total Joint Ventures
Homes delivered
2011
First 224 15¢€ 363 204 94¢ 1
Seconc 358 182 47E 254 1,26¢ —
Third 524 232 611 23€ 1,60¢ —
Fourth 65€ 27C 70€ 368 1,99¢ —
Total 1,757 842 2,15k 1,057 5,817 1
2010
First 34C 21€ 52¢ 241 1,32¢ 21
Seconc 50C 35¢ 55C 378 1,782 34
Third 60C 337 85¢ 52¢ 2,32( 24
Fourth 58¢ 23€ 72¢ 36€ 1,91¢ 23
Total 2,02: 1,15(C 2,66: 1,51(C 7,34¢ 102
Net orders
2011
First 404 20€ 44¢ 244 1,30z —
Seconc 542 27C 83¢ 34¢€ 1,99¢ —
Third 581 25¢ 677 321 1,83¢ —
Fourth 49C 172 517 31E 1,49¢ —
Total 2,017 907 2,48( 1,22¢ 6,632 —
2010
First 42¢ 31¢& 71E 45€ 1,91: 19
Seconc 60¢ 351 79€ 48¢ 2,24¢ 27
Third 33t 18¢€ 55€ 237 1,31¢ 16
Fourth 331 157 37C 227 1,08t 4
Total 1,70¢ 1,007 2,43 1,40¢ 6,55¢ 66

10



Table of Contents

Unconsolidatec

West Coas Southwesl Central Southeast Total Joint Ventures
Cancellation rates
2011
First 15% 18% 3%9% 33% 2%9% —%
Seconc 22 18 29 24 25 —
Third 27 20 34 30 29 —
Fourth 28 27 41 33 34 —
Total 2% 21% 3% 3% 2% %
2010
First 17% 14% 2%% 21% 22% 21%
Seconc 15 16 31 26 24 —
Third 23 26 37 40 33 —
Fourth 23 26 49 35 37 33
Total 1% _ 19% 3% 2% _ 2&% R 1%
Ending backlog— homes
2011
First 383 187 77€ 341 1,68¢ —
Seconc 572 274 1,141 43E 2,42 —
Third 62¢ 301 1,207 52C 2,657 —
Fourth __ 46c 20z __101¢ _ 4rz _2,15¢ - =
2010
First 612 37¢ 1,10t 617 2,71¢ 35
Seconc 72C 371 1,351 733 3,17¢ 28
Third 45E 22C 1,052 447 2,16¢ 20
Fourth 203 13¢ 69:< 301 1,33¢ 1
Ending backlog— value, in thousands
2011
First $126,25¢ $27,97( $132,16: $ 67,24 $353,63: $ —
Seconc 172,14 43,57 199, 35( 86,47¢ 501,54 —
Third 211,36( 51,26: 199,50 97,20t 559,33( —
Fourth 161,98 37,07 168,51 91,38( 458,95( —
2010
First $193,93¢ $59,43¢ $172,06¢ $ 98,30¢ $523,75( $ 13,82¢
Seconc 241,38 60,27¢ 224,21 122,36 648,23t 11,76(
Third 165,54¢ 34,49( 171,57 83,70: 455,31¢ 7,48(
Fourth 74,81¢ 21,30¢ 113,15! 54,517 263,79 511

Land and Raw Materials

We currently own or control enough land to meetfovecasted production goals for the next threferoyears. Depending on market
conditions and our marketing strategy, we may ib2€ontinue to acquire land assets and/or sebiceldnd or land interests. In 2011, we
invested approximately $478 million in land anddatevelopment, and our land sales generated $li®mif revenues and $.1 million of
income, including $.1 million of pretax, noncastp@mrment charges. In 2010, we invested approxip&e60 million in land and land
development, and our land sales generated $6.®mdf revenues and $.3 million of losses, inclgd$3 million of pretax, noncash
impairment charges. Our land option contract abandmts resulted in pretax, noncash charges ofrlibn in 2011 and $10.1 million in
2010.

The principal raw materials used in the constructbour homes are concrete and forest productddition, we use a variety of other
construction materials in the homebuilding procesduding drywall and plumbing and electrical itenWe attempt to enhance the efficiency
of our operations by using, where practical, prelepatandardized materials that are commerciabylave on competitive terms from a
variety of sources. In addition, our centralized/an regionalized purchasing of certain buildingtenzls, appliances and fixtures allows us to
benefit from large quantity purchase discounts artkre available, manufacturer or supplier rebatésen possible, we arrange for bulk
purchases of these products at favorable prices franufacturers and suppliers.

11
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Customer Financing

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing fronfovider of their choice. From its formation2805 until June 30, 2011, KBA
Mortgage had representatives on site at our newehmmmunities who provided mortgage banking sesvioeour homebuyers through the
former unconsolidated joint venture. KBA Mortgagemsed offering mortgage banking services after 30n2011. KBA Mortgage originated
residential consumer mortgage loans for 67% ofcostomers who obtained mortgage financing duriegpériod the unconsolidated joint
venture operated in 2011. In 2010, KBA Mortgaggioated such loans for 82% of our customers whainbt mortgage financing during that
year.

Under our marketing services agreement, which becaffiective on June 27, 2011, MetLife Home Loare’spnnel, located on site at
several of our new home communities, can offefirfgncing options and mortgage loan products tohmmebuyers, (ii) to prequalify
homebuyers for residential consumer mortgage laamgs (i) to commence the loan origination processhomebuyers who elect to use
MetLife Home Loans. MetLife Home Loans and its pareompany, MetLife Bank, N.A., are not affiliatesours or any of our subsidiaries.
We do not have any ownership, joint venture or othi@rests in or with MetLife Home Loans or MetkiBank, N.A. or with respect to the
revenues or income that may be generated from ¥geHome Loans providing mortgage banking serviogst originating residential
consumer mortgage loans for, our homebuyers.

MetLife Bank, N.A. recently announced that it witase offering forward mortgage banking servicgsaatsof its business. While we are
evaluating various options, our strategic intent®to reestablish a mortgage banking joint venturearketing relationship with a financial
institution or other mortgage banking services fter, but we can offer no assurance that we wikhbke to do so.

Employees

We employ a trained staff of land acquisition sphsis, architects, planners, engineers, constmaiipervisors, marketing and sales
personnel, and finance and accounting personngplemented as necessary by outside consultantsguitle the development of our
communities from their conception through the préomal marketing and delivery of completed homes.

At December 31, 2011, we had approximately 1,20&ifoe employees, compared to approximately 1,80December 31, 2010. None
of our employees are represented by a collectivgdiing agreement.

Competition and Other Factors

We believe our KBnxt operational business modatii@aarly the aspects that involve gaining a deepelerstanding of customer
interests and needs and offering a wide range @teb to homebuyers, provides us with long-termmetitive advantages. The homebuilding
industry and housing market are highly competitargd we compete with numerous homebuilders ranfgimg regional and national firms to
small local builders primarily on the basis of gritocation, financing, design, reputation, quadihd amenities. In addition, we compete with
housing alternatives other than new homes, inctudasale homes, foreclosed and short sale homagagnts and rental housing. In certain
markets and at times when housing demand is highalgo compete with other builders to hire subemtdrs.

During 2011, operating conditions in most housireykats across the United States remained difficefiiecting the impact of the hous
downturn and the weak economy. We believe the heigdd competition for homebuyers stemming fromehmditions will continue and
may intensify in 2012.

Financing

We do not generally finance the development ofcaummunities with project financing. By “project éincing,” we mean proceeds of
loans from parties other than land sellers thaspeeifically obtained for, or secured by, par@udommunities or other inventory assets.
Instead, our operations have historically been éanloly results of operations, public debt and edirnigncing, and borrowings under an
unsecured revolving credit facility with variousdincial institutions (the “Credit Facility”). In 20, however, anticipating that we would not
need to borrow any funds under the Credit Fadi&fore its scheduled maturity in November 2010 yvalentarily terminated the Credit
Facility effective March 31, 2010 to eliminate ttwsts of maintaining it. Depending on market cdondi in 2012, we may obtain project
financing, or secure external financing with comityior other inventory assets that we own or cdnie may also undertake to enter into a
new credit facility.
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Environmental Compliance Matters

As part of our due diligence process for land asitjohs, we often use third-party environmentalsdtants to investigate potential
environmental risks, and we require disclosuresrapdesentations and warranties from land selegganding environmental risks. Despite
these efforts, there can be no assurance that iawsid material liabilities relating to the ex@stce or removal of toxic wastes, site restoration,
monitoring or other environmental matters affectimgperties currently or previously owned or coliéb by us. No estimate of any potential
liabilities can be made although we may, from timéime, purchase property that requires us toriecrironmental clean-up costs after
conducting appropriate due diligence, including, ot limited to, using detailed investigationsfpemed by environmental consultants. In
such instances, we take steps prior to acquisitidhe land to gain reasonable assurance as forétoise scope of work required and the costs
associated with removal, site restoration and/onitodng. To the extent contamination or other eonimental issues have occurred in the past,
we will attempt to recover restoration costs frdmind parties, such as the generators of hazardastewiand sellers or others in the prior chain
of title and/or their insurers. Based on thesetas, we anticipate that it is unlikely that elmvimental clean-up costs will have a material
effect on our future consolidated financial statateeWe have not been notified by any governmeageahcy of any claim that any of the
properties owned or formerly owned by us are idietiby the EPA as being a “Superfund” clean-up s#quiring remediation, which could
have a material effect on our future consolidatedrfcial statements. Costs associated with th@iusevironmental consultants are not mat
to our consolidated financial statements.

Access to Our Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, pretatements and other information with the Selasriand Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). We make our public SEC filings availabé,no cost, through our website http://kbhome.casrsoon as reasonably practicable after
the report is electronically filed with, or furnisth to, the SEC. We will also provide these reporedectronic or paper format free of charge
upon request made to our investor relations deant@t investorrelations@kbhome.com or at our jpaiexecutive offices. Our SEC filings
are also available to the public over the Inteetghe SEC’s website at http://sec.gov. The pubky also read and copy any document we file
at the SEC’s public reference room located at 1@@r€et N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please kalSEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the operation of the public referemaom.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following important factors could adversely Bepour business. These factors could cause oualaesults to differ materially from
the forward-looking and other statements (i) thatmake in registration statements, periodic re@ortsother filings with the SEC and from
time to time in our news releases, annual repordsagher written reports or communications, (igttkve post on or make available through our
website, and (iii) that our personnel and repredergs make orally from time to time.

The homebuilding industry is experiencing a proload and severe downturn that may continue for an éfichite period and materially and
adversely affect our business and consolidated fioml statements.

Since mid-2006, many of our served markets andJthieed States homebuilding industry as a whole teggerienced low demand for
new homes and an oversupply of new and existingescamailable for sale. As a result, compared tg#red from 2000 through 2005, we
other homebuilders have generally experienced fémpre sales and greater volatility in the candelst of home purchase contracts by
homebuyers, higher inventories of unsold homesth@&dhcreased use of discounts, incentives, pooeessions and other marketing efforts by
sellers of new and existing homes to close salgting downward pressure on home selling priceggmaes and profitability. These negative
supply and demand trends have been exacerbatedZ38 by a number of factors, including (a) a s=ead persistent downturn in general
economic and employment conditions that, amongrdttiegs, has further tempered consumer demandaniitdence for buying new homes;
(b) sustained elevated levels of residential corsumnortigage loan foreclosures and short salesitgctind sales of lender-owned homes;

(c) volatility and uncertainty in financial, credihd consumer lending markets worldwide, includiagn voluntary and involuntary delays by
financial institutions in finalizing residential ssumer mortgage loan foreclosures and increasingwdds from investors for lenders and other
mortgage banking services providers, residentiatamer mortgage loan brokers and other institutiontheir agents, to repurchase the
residential consumer mortgage loans or securitiekdd by residential consumer mortgage loans liegt @riginated, issued or administer;

(d) generally tighter lending standards
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for residential consumer mortgage loans, includiiggner credit score requirements, credit risk/magggloan insurance premiums and required
down payment amounts, and more stringent standardppraisals, loan-to-value ratios and buyermeand asset documentation; and (e) the
termination, expiration or scaling back of govermingrograms and incentives supportive of homeownernd/or home purchases. It is
uncertain when, and to what extent, these housidgsiry trends and factors might reverse or improve

Reflecting this difficult operating environment, wike many other homebuilders, have experiencedhtging degrees since the housing
downturn began, declines in net orders, decreaste iaverage selling price of new homes we hakkasal delivered, and reduced revenues
and margins relative to the period from 2000 thto@05, and we have generated operating lossesighhge increased both our net orders
and overall average selling price in the seconfidfadur 2011 fiscal year compared to the sameoplar 2010, and housing affordability is
currently at historically high levels overall, warcprovide no assurances that the homebuildingstmnglor our business will improve
substantially or at all in 2012. If economic coratis, employment, personal income growth and coeswonfidence were to remain weak and
residential consumer mortgage loan foreclosurdsgleencies, short sales and sales of lender-ownetks rise in future periods, there would
likely be a corresponding adverse effect on ouirtass and our consolidated financial statementtyding, but not limited to, the number of
homes we deliver, the amount of revenues we genarat our ability to achieve or maintain profitéiil

Further tightening of residential consumer mortgadending or mortgage financing requirements or furér volatility in credit and
consumer lending markets could adversely affect thailability of residential consumer mortgage logifior some potential purchasers of
our homes and thereby reduce our sales.

Since 2008, the residential consumer mortgage enaind mortgage finance industries have experiesiggdficant instability due to,
among other things, relatively high rates of daliewcies, defaults and foreclosures on residerdi@wner mortgage loans and a resulting
decline in their market value and the market valugecurities backed by such loans. The delingesndefaults and foreclosures have been
driven in part by persistent poor economic and eypkent conditions, which have negatively affectedrdwers’ incomes, and by a decline in
the values of many existing homes in various marketow the principal balance of the residentiastoner mortgage loans secured by such
homes. A number of providers, purchasers and insoferesidential consumer mortgage loans and eatiml consumer mortgage-backed
securities have gone out of business or exitedniduet, and lenders, investors, regulators andtheve questioned the oversight and the
adequacy of lending standards for several resiglettinsumer mortgage loan programs made availalilerrowers in recent years, including
programs offered or supported by the Federal Hgu&iministration (“FHA”), the Veterans Administrati (“VA”) and the federal
government sponsored enterprises — the FederadbmatMortgage Association (also known as “FannieNland the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (also known as “Freddie Ma€9mpared to prior periods, this has led to reduseestor demand for residential
consumer mortgage loans and residential consumegage-backed securities, tightened credit requeregs) reduced the liquidity and
availability of residential consumer mortgage Igparaducts (particularly subprime and nonconformioaris), heightened income and asset
documentation requirements, and increased down @atyraquirements and credit risk/mortgage loanrarste premiums related to home
purchases. Further, in 2011, the maximum limitscfamforming Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac residentasumer mortgage loans dropped
when temporary increases that were enacted in 290i8ed, reducing the availability to homebuyer$afnie Mae- and Freddie Mac-backed
financing in relatively high cost areas, includsmme of our served markets in California. In additinew increases in Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac lender fees were mandated by Congress to @&fsahporary reduction in federal payroll taxeserEhhave also been enhanced regulatory
and legislative actions, and a few government @ogrfocused on modifying the principal balance®rést rates and/or payment terms of
existing residential consumer mortgage loans aadgmting residential consumer mortgage loan fosegks, which have achieved mixed
results and may have hindered the resumption dabre stable residential consumer mortgage lending@mment.

The reduction in the availability of residentiahsoimer mortgage loan products and providers, theedee in 2011 in Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac conforming residential consumer morégagn limits, and the tightening residential coneu mortgage loan qualifications and
down payment requirements have made it more difffou some categories of borrowers to financephechase of our homes or the purchase
of existing homes from potential move-up buyers wiay wish to purchase our homes. Overall, thederfabave slowed any general
improvement in the housing market, and they hasgalted in volatile home purchase cancellation ratesreduced demand for our
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homes. These reductions in demand had a matea@dgrse effect on our business and our consolidetadcial statements in 2011 that is
expected to continue in 2012.

Potentially exacerbating the foregoing trends,0&@, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consupnetection Act (the “Dodd-
Frank Act”) was signed into law and establishedesalnew standards and requirements (includingragintion obligations) relating to the
origination, securitizing and servicing of, and somer disclosures for, residential consumer mogdeans. In addition, United States and
international banking regulators have proposechaced higher capital standards and requiremenfifincial institutions. These standards
and requirements, as and when implemented, are®d® further reduce the availability of andfucriease the costs to borrowers to obtain
such loans. Federal regulators and legislatoralatediscussing steps that may significantly redbeeability or authority of the FHA, Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac to purchase or insure resaesdhsumer mortgage loans (with the decreaseid #0Fannie Mae- and Freddie Mac-
conforming residential consumer mortgage loan 8rhaving been one such step). In the last few ydard-HA, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
have purchased or insured substantially all newleasial consumer mortgage loans originated byden@nd other mortgage banking services
providers. Also since 2010, and as noted abovesitovs in residential consumer mortgage-backedisiesy as well as the FHA, Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac, have increasingly demanded thdels and other mortgage banking services provideskers and other institutions, or tt
agents, repurchase the loans underlying the siexsubiised on alleged breaches of underwriting atasdr of representations and warranties
made in connection with transferring the loans.sEhgput-back” demands are expected to continueZ@i® and, to the extent successful,
could cause lenders and other mortgage bankingcesrproviders and brokers to further curtail tmegidential consumer mortgage loan
origination activities due to reduced liquidity. i@e@rns about the soundness of the residential cwgrsmortgage lending and mortgage finance
industries have also been heightened due to allegedespread errors by lenders and other mortdmamking services providers or brokers, or
their agents, in the processing of residential sores mortgage loan foreclosures and sales of fased homes, leading to voluntary or
involuntary delays and higher costs to finalizeefidosures and foreclosed home sales, and greateraral regulatory scrutiny. In addition to
having a potential negative impact on the origmatf new residential consumer mortgage loansgetdesuptions in residential consumer
mortgage loan foreclosures and lender-owned hotes san make it more difficult for us to accuratesgsess the supply of and prevailing
prices for unsold homes and/or the overall hedifhasticular housing markets.

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing feirthome purchases from any provider of their choif; due to credit market
conditions, reduced liquidity, increased risk réiamor minimum capital level obligations and/omneperating restrictions or regulatory
reforms related to or arising from compliance wite Dodd-Frank Act or other regulations, residémitmsumer mortgage loan put-back
demands or internal or external reviews of the stiis residential consumer mortgage loan forealsuocesses, or other factors or business
decisions, these lenders refuse or are unable ke foan products available to our homebuyers, threber of homes we deliver and our
consolidated financial statements may be materaily adversely affected. For instance, stricteditenstandards have in recent periods led to
significant delays in closing home sales and/oehzaused some potential homebuyers to canceltbeie purchase contracts with us. We can
provide no assurance that the trend of tightedesgial consumer mortgage lending standards vallsir reverse in the foreseeable future. In
addition, compared to prior periods, these risksuobusiness associated with such tighter resalesdtnsumer mortgage lending standards
have been heightened somewhat by the unwindin@14 ®f our former unconsolidated mortgage bankingt jventure with a subsidiary of
Bank of America, N.A., which had provided residahtionsumer mortgage loans to a significant prapof our homebuyers from its
formation in 2005. In June 2011, we entered intoaaketing services agreement with MetLife Home Lgandivision of MetLife Bank, N.A.,
under which MetLife Home Loans can offer residdrdi@sumer mortgage loans and other mortgage barsi@rvices to our homebuyers.
Although we believe our agreement with MetLife Hohwans has helped provide our homebuyers with adoeeliable mortgage banking
services to purchase a home, MetLife Home Loanstglosely integrated with our operations as eumier unconsolidated mortgage banking
joint venture had been, and a lower percentageiohomebuyers have obtained a residential consumegage loan from MetLife Horr
Loans as compared to the percentage that obtaimeucfng from our former unconsolidated mortgagekiogg joint venture before its business
operations were unwound. As a result, we haveivelgtless visibility with respect to the progresih which our homebuyers obtain financi
for home purchases. This may continue in 2012, ed.¥¢ Bank, N.A. recently announced that it widlase offering forward mortgage banking
services as part of its business. While we areuatialg various options, our strategic intentiotoiseestablish a mortgage banking joint venture
or marketing
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relationship with a financial institution or oth@iortgage banking services provider, but we canigeomo assurance that we will be able to do
Sso.

Our strategies in responding to the adverse coratis in the homebuilding industry have had limitedecess, and the continued
implementation of these and other strategies may be successful.

Many of our strategic initiatives to generate cast improve our operating efficiency during the $ing downturn have involved
lowering overhead through workforce reductions Miich we incurred significant costs, and redu@nog community count through strategic
wind downs, reduced or reallocated investmentsarket exits, curbs in development and sales of iatedlests. These strategic steps have
resulted in our generating to varying degrees fave¢iorders, homes delivered and revenues compagetiods before the housing downturn
began, and have contributed to the net losses wereaognized in recent years.

In an effort to generate higher revenues and aetaed maintain profitability, beginning in late B0@nd continuing through 2011, we
rolled out new, value-engineered product desiggdiiced our selling, general and administrative Bgeg, and redeployed and invested capital
and other resources into land acquisitions andldprueent in preferred locations within key strategiarkets with perceived higher future
growth prospects, largely in California and Texasaddition, in 2011, we opened 123 new home conitiegrfor sales, expanding the number
of locations from which we can sell homes.

We believe these integrated strategic steps helpéucrease our net orders in the latter half df120y 39% compared to the prior-year
period, and increase the number of homes in olbgat November 30, 2011 by 61% compared to ouklog at November 30, 2010.
However, there can be no assurance that thesestrahdontinue in 2012 or at all, that we will sigssfully increase our sales from our new
home communities at satisfactory margins, expaadtimber of our new home communities open for sataginue to attract homebuyers
with our current or new product designs and/or hewie community locations, improve our operatiofffitiency through effective overhead
reductions and/or other measures, invest our dapithother resources productively and/or furtlremgour inventory base with desirable land
assets at a reasonable cost, or that we will aetoewnaintain profitability in 2012. A lack of swe=s in one or more of the foregoing areas
would have an adverse effect both on our abilitgrtmw our business and on our consolidated findsté@ements, including on our overall
liquidity and earnings results, and the effect ddag material.

In addition, notwithstanding our sales strategieshave experienced volatility in our net orderd amcancellations of home purchase
contracts by buyers throughout the housing downiaciuding in 2011. We believe that our volatilet order and cancellation levels have
largely reflected weak homebuyer confidence dugistained home selling price declines, increasklingis of sales incentives by other
parties in the marketplace for both new and exgstiomes, tightened residential consumer mortgag#ing standards, a greater interest in
housing alternatives such as apartments and feosing among certain consumers, and generally gomromic and employment conditions,
all of which have prompted homebuyers to forgoarag home purchases. Additional volatility aros¢éhwthe expiration of the Tax Credit,
which likely pulled demand forward to the first twoarters of 2010 and led to a drop in net ordedscustomer traffic in the periods that
followed, including the first half of 2011. The atively tight consumer mortgage lending environreerd the inability of some homebuyers to
sell their existing homes have also led to lowanaed for new homes and to volatility in home pusgheontract cancellations for us and the
homebuilding industry. Many of these factors angdmel our control. It is uncertain how long and thatvdegree these factors, and the volal
in net orders and home purchase contract cancgifatve have experienced, will continue. To theretigese factors continue, and to the e
that they depress our average selling prices, weahxthat they will have a negative effect on ausibess and our consolidated financial
statements, and the effect could be material.

Our business is cyclical and is significantly affesxl by changes in general and local economic coiuais.

Our operations and consolidated financial statemesh be substantially affected by adverse changgeneral economic or business
conditions that are outside of our control, inchglchanges in:

» shor- and lon¢-term interest rate:
* employment levels and job and personal income drc
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» housing demand from population growth, householth&dion and other demographic changes, among tabtars;
« the availability and pricing of financing for homefers;

» consumer confidence generally and the confideng®tantial homebuyers in particuli

» United States and global financial system and trediket stability

» private party and government residential consunatgage loan programs (including changes in FHAM@Mae- and Freddie Mac-
conforming residential consumer mortgage loan mdbwn payment requirements and underwriting staty), and federal and state
regulation, oversight and legal action regardingllag, appraisal, foreclosure and short sale pres

» federal and state personal income tax rates andspros, including provisions for the deductionre$idential consumer mortgage I
interest payments and other expen

» the supply of and prices for available new or éxgshomes (including lender-owned homes acquireabifh foreclosures or short
sales) and other housing alternatives, such asnaats and rental housin

» homebuyer interest in our current or new produstgtesand new home community locations, and general coesinterest ir
purchasing a home compared to choosing other hpadiernatives; an

* real estate taxe

Adverse changes in these conditions may affecbasiness nationally or may be more prevalent oceotrated in particular regions or
localities in which we operate. In recent yearsauarable changes in many of these factors nedgtaféected all of our served markets, and
although some housing markets are showing sigstabflity, we expect the widespread nature of tnesing downturn to continue to varying
degrees into 2012. Continued weakness in the ecpnemmployment levels and consumer confidence whkidly exacerbate the unfavorable
trends the housing market has experienced since&608.

Inclement weather, natural disasters, such asqakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, droughés &ind other environmental conditions
can delay the delivery of our homes and/or increasecosts. Civil unrest or acts of terrorism clodave a negative effect on our business.

The potential difficulties described above can eadsmand and prices for our homes to fall or casde take longer and incur more
costs to build our homes. We may not be able touercthese increased costs by raising prices bea#usarket conditions and because the
price of each home we sell is usually set seveaaiths before the home is delivered, as our custeiypically sign their home purchase
contracts before construction begins. The potediffitulties could also lead some homebuyers tacehor refuse to honor their home purct
contracts altogether. Reflecting the difficult c@rmhs in our served markets and the impact ofténmination, expiration or scaling back of
homebuyer tax credits, including the Tax Credit ather government programs and incentives supeoofi homeownership and/or home
purchases, we have experienced volatility in otitongers and in home purchase contract cancelmtiorecent years, and we may experience
similar or increased volatility in 2012.

Supply shortages and other risks related to demémdbuilding materials and/or skilled labor couldhicrease costs and delay deliveri

There is a high level of competition in the homddting industry for skilled labor and building matds. Increased costs or shortages or
other disruptions in the supply of building matksier skilled labor such as carpenters, roofees;tetians and plumbers, could cause increases
in construction costs and construction delays. lges or price fluctuations in lumber and other cmdities can also have an adverse effe:
our business. We generally are unable to passavedses in construction costs to homebuyers whe alsgady entered into home purchase
contracts, as the purchase contracts generalthdixrice of the home at the time the contracigised, and may be signed well in advance of
when construction commences. Further, we may nableeto pass on increases in construction cosguse of market conditions. Sustained
increases in construction costs due to competfiomaterials and skilled labor and higher commpgitices (including prices for metals and
other building material inputs), among other thingsly decrease our margins.
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Changes in global or regional environmental conditis and governmental actions in response to suchrypes may adversely affect us by
increasing the costs of or restricting our plannexd future residential development activities.

There is growing concern from members of the sfieommunity and the general public that an i@ in global average temperatt
due to emissions of greenhouse gases and othemhactigities have or will cause significant changeweather patterns and increase the
frequency and severity of natural disasters. Andased frequency or duration of extreme weatheditions and environmental events could
limit, delay and/or increase the costs to build temes and reduce the value of our land and housiggtory in locations that become less
desirable to consumers or blocked to developmenje&ted climate change, if it occurs, may exadertize scarcity of water and other natural
resources in affected regions, which could limigyent or increase the costs of residential devedoy in certain areas. In addition,
government mandates, standards or regulationsdateto mitigate or reduce greenhouse gas emiseign®jected climate change impacts
could result in prohibitions or severe restricti@msland development in certain areas, increasechgntransportation and raw material costs
that make building materials less available or neoqgensive, or cause us to incur compliance exgearse other financial obligations to meet
permitting or development- or construction-relatequirements that we will be unable to fully recofaue to market conditions or other
factors), and reduce our margins. As a result,atinthange impacts, and laws and construction atdsdand/or the manner in which they are
interpreted or implemented, to address potentialate change impacts, could increase our costhawnel a long-term adverse impact on our
business and our consolidated financial statem&his.is a particular concern with respect to oey KVest Coast homebuilding reporting
segment, as California has instituted some of thstrextensive and stringent environmental lawsrasilential building construction stande
in the country.

Inflation may adversely affect us by increasing ¢eshat we may not be able to recover, particulaflgelling prices decreast

Inflation can have an adverse impact on our codat#d financial statements because increasing favdend, building materials or
skilled labor could require us to increase our haeléng prices in an effort to maintain satisfagtmargins. In 2010 and 2011, worldwide
demand for certain commodities and monetary paitjons led to price increases and price volatibtyraw materials that are used in
construction, including lumber and metals. Theseiny trends are expected to continue into 2012 andombination with United States and
international central bank and governmental pdieied programs designed to boost economic growdly,lead to a general increase in
inflation. However, if the current challenging amidhly competitive conditions in the housing margetsist, we may not be able to increase,
and may need to decrease, our home selling padesip stimulate sales. If determined necessanylooeering of home selling prices, in
addition to impacting our margins, may also redineevalue of our land inventory, including the assee purchased in 2010 and 2011 purs
to our strategic land acquisition initiative, andka it more difficult for us to recover the fullstmf previously purchased land with our home
selling prices or, if we choose, in disposing efdassets. In addition, depressed land values m#seaus to abandon and forfeit deposits on
land option contracts and other similar contrafcteel cannot satisfactorily renegotiate the purctagee of the subject land. We may incur
noncash charges against our earnings for invemtgugirments if the value of our owned inventoryaduced or for land option contract
abandonments if we choose not to exercise landmgtintracts or other similar contracts, and tlseges may be substantial as has occurrec
in certain periods during the housing downturnlaiidn may also increase interest rates for residieconsumer mortgage loans and thereby
reduce demand for our homes and lead to lower t@gras well as increase the interest rates foexternal financing and thereby increase
interest expense.

Reduced home sales may impair our ability to recalgvelopment costs or force us to absorb additiorts.

We incur many costs even before we begin to bultids in a community. Depending on the stage ofldpweent a land parcel is in
when acquired, such costs may include costs ofgpiregp land; finishing and entitling lots; installjmoads, sewers, water systems and other
utilities; taxes and other costs related to owriprehthe land on which we plan to build homes; anamotional marketing and overhead
expenses to prepare for the opening of a new hamentinity for sales. In addition, local municipagimay impose requirements resulting in
additional costs. If the rate at which we sell detlver homes slows or falls, or if we delay thenimg of new home communities for sales due
to adjustments in our marketing strategy or oteasons, each of which has occurred
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throughout the housing downturn, we may incur additl costs and it will take a longer period of ¢ifior us to recover our costs, including the
costs we incurred in 2010 and 2011 to purchasdsagaesuant to our strategic land acquisition aitie. Furthermore, due to market conditions
during the housing downturn, we have abandoned danaeoption contracts and other similar contréetgurchase land, resulting in the
forfeiture of deposits and unrecoverable pre-actijpiscosts.

The value of the land and housing inventory we owncontrol may fall significantly.

The value of the inventory we currently own or cohtlepends on market conditions, including estésaif future demand for, and the
revenues that can be generated from, this inventdry market value of our inventory can vary coesathly because there is often a significant
amount of time between our acquiring control oirigkownership of land and the delivery of homeghat land. The housing downturn, which
has generally depressed home sales and sellinesptias caused the fair value of certain of ourealnor controlled inventory to fall, in some
cases well below the estimated fair value at tine tive acquired ownership or control. As a resutiofperiodic assessments of fair value, we
have written down the carrying value of certairoof inventory, including inventory that we haveeoeisly written down, and recorded
corresponding noncash charges against our eartuinrgflect the impaired value. We have also takemcash charges in connection with
abandoning our interests in certain land contralieder land option contracts and other similar i@mt$ that no longer met our investment or
marketing standards. If the housing downturn camin we may need to take additional charges agaimsarnings for inventory impairments
or land option contract abandonments, or both. gugh noncash charges would have an adverse effextraconsolidated financial stateme
including our ability to achieve or maintain prafiility, and the effect may be material.

Some homebuyers may cancel their home purchasesise the required deposits are small and sometinefsndable.

Our backlog information reflects the number of herfar which we have entered into a purchase canivitlc a homebuyer, but not yet
delivered the home. Our home purchase contracisajyprequire only a small deposit, and in sontewnstances, the deposit is refundable
prior to closing. If the prices for new homes deelicompetitors increase their use of sales inoesitienders and others increase their effor
sell homes they have acquired through foreclosamesshort sales, interest rates increase, theabildil of residential consumer mortgage
financing diminishes or there is continued weakrmess further downturn in local or regional econemor the national economy and in
consumer confidence, customers may terminate éxéting home purchase contracts with us becawsetthve been unable to finalize their
mortgage financing for the purchase, or in ordeattempt to negotiate for a lower price, exploteeotoptions or for other reasons they are
unable or unwilling to complete the purchase. erd years, we have experienced volatile home pisehbontract cancellations, in part due to
these reasons and, as discussed above, in pau theeexpiration of the Tax Credit. To the extévgy continue, volatile home purchase
contract cancellations resulting from these coodgj or otherwise, could have an adverse effedupibusiness and our consolidated financial
statements.

Our long-term success depends on the availabilitioished lots and undeveloped land that meet dand investment criteria.

The availability of finished and partially finishéats and undeveloped land assets that meet oasiment and marketing standards
depends on a number of factors outside of our obritricluding land availability in general, climatenditions, competition with other
homebuilders and land buyers for desirable propergdit market conditions, legal or governmentregeprocesses (particularly for land as:
that are part of bankruptcy estates or are heliinlaycial institutions taken over by governmentrages), inflation in land prices, zoning,
allowable housing density, our ability and the sdstobtain building permits, the amount of envinemtal impact fees, property tax rates and
other regulatory requirements. Should suitabledotand become less available, the number of hdhrssve may be able to build and sell
could be reduced, and the cost of attractive landdcincrease, perhaps substantially, which codiceesely impact our consolidated financial
statements including, but not limited to, our masgiand our ability to maintain ownership or cohtrfoa sufficient supply of developed or
developable land inventory. The availability oftable land assets could also affect the successrddtrategic land acquisition initiative,
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and if we decide to reduce our acquisition of namdlin 2012 due to a lack of available assetsmigggt our standards, our ability to increase
number of our new home communities open for sédegrow our revenues and margins, and to achieweadmtain profitability would likely b
constrained.

Home prices and sales activity in the particular nkats and regions in which we do business affect cansolidated financial statemen
because our business is concentrated in these marke

Home selling prices and sales activity in someuwfley served markets have declined from timente tfior market-specific reasons,
including adverse weather, high levels of forectesushort sales and sales of lender-owned homddaek of affordability or economic
contraction due to, among other things, the depadudecline of key industries and employers olfile selling prices or sales activity decline
in one or more of our key served markets, includdadjfornia, Florida, Nevada or Texas, our costy mat decline at all or at the same rate
and, as a result, our consolidated financial statésnmay be materially and adversely affected. Goetpto prior periods, adverse condition
California and Texas would have a particularly gigant effect on our consolidated financial stats as the majority of our investments in
land acquisition and development in 2010 and 20&fewnade in California and Texas, and we expecvmdinue to target most of our
inventory-related investments and new home commumiéenings in those two states in 2012.

Interest rate increases or changes in federal lemgliprograms or regulations could lower demand fanrchomes.

Nearly all of our customers finance the purchasieif homes. Before the housing downturn begastotically low interest rates and the
increased availability of specialized residenti@msumer mortgage loan products, including prodremsiring no or low down payments, and
interest-only and adjustable-rate residential coresumortgage loans, made purchasing a home maredafile for a number of customers and
more available to customers with lower credit ssohecreases in interest rates or decreases ewvtiikability of residential consumer mortgage
loan financing or of certain residential consumertgage loan products or programs may, as disclasaek, lead to fewer residential
consumer mortgage loans being provided, higher dmayment and documentation requirements or borroasts, loan origination processil
or a combination of the foregoing, and, as a resedtuce demand for our homes and increase our pansbase contract cancellation rates.

As a result of the volatility and uncertainty iretbredit markets and in the residential consumetgage lending and mortgage finance
industries since 2008, the federal governmentdeanton a significant role in supporting residdrd@sumer mortgage lending through its
conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, bbthich purchase or insure residential consumentgage loans and residential
consumer mortgage-backed securities, and its insaraf residential consumer mortgage loans thraligh-HA and the VA. FHA backing of
residential consumer mortgage loans has been plarti important to the residential consumer moggéinance industry and to our business.
The availability and affordability of residentiadmsumer mortgage loans, including interest ratesdoh loans, could be adversely affected
scaling back or termination of the federal governtisemortgage-related programs or policies. Fomgpia, in October 2010, the FHA
instituted higher credit risk/mortgage loan inswapremiums to help address its low cash resengdgposed new minimum credit scores
and higher down payment requirements for borrowwtts lower credit scores for the residential consummortgage loans it insures. In Octo
2011, the maximum limit for conforming Fannie Masd Freddie Macesidential consumer mortgage loans dropped whapdeary increas¢
that were enacted in 2008 expired, reducing thdadibty to homebuyers of Fannie Mae- and Freddic-backed financing in relatively high
cost areas, including some of our served marke@alifornia. In addition, due to growing federaldyet deficits, the United States Treasury
may not be able to continue supporting the residieconsumer mortgageslated activities of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac,RhA and the VA a
present levels.

Because Fannie Mae-, Freddie Mac-, FHA- and VA-bddlesidential consumer mortgage loan financingleas an important factor in
marketing and selling many of our homes, any litiotes or restrictions in the availability of sucvgrnment-backed financing could reduce
our home sales and adversely affect our consotidatancial statements.

Tax law changes could make home ownership more exgdee or less attractive.

Under current tax law and policy, significant expes of owning a home, including residential consumertgage loan interest costs and
real estate taxes, generally are deductible exgdns¢he purpose of calculating an
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individual's federal, and in some cases state ki@ximcome, subject to various limitations. If flieeleral government or a state government
changes its income tax laws, as some policy mdiere proposed, by eliminating or substantially oédg these income tax benefits, the after-
tax cost of owning a home could increase substgntighis could adversely impact demand for andd@lting prices of new homes, including
our homes, as could increases in personal incomnates.

Moreover, in early 2010, our home sales increasgriit because of the Tax Credit. The expiratiothefTax Credit adversely affected
our net orders, home purchase contract cancelledites, customer traffic levels and revenues issgbent periods of 2010 and the first half of
2011, as weak consumer confidence and unfavorablgoenic and employment conditions caused many patdromebuyers to delay or for
the purchase of a home without the support of #ne Gredit. It is uncertain whether and to what deghe higher demand might return, if at
all.

We are subject to substantial legal and regulateeguirements regarding the development of land, th@mebuilding process and protection
of the environment, which can cause us to suffelaes and incur costs associated with compliance avitich can prohibit or restrict
homebuilding activity in some regions or areas.

Our homebuilding business is heavily regulated argject to a significant amount of local, state fettkral regulation concerning zoni
natural and other resource protection, buildinggies construction methods and similar matters séhregulations often provide broad
discretion to government authorities that overbesd matters, which can result in unanticipatedysebr increases in the cost of a specified
development project or a number of projects inipaldr markets. We may also experience periodiaydetiue to building permit moratorium
regulatory restrictions in any of the locationsihich we operate.

In addition, we are subject to a variety of losthte and federal statutes, ordinances, ruleseandations concerning the environment,
and in 2008 we entered into a consent decree hWatlEPA and certain states concerning our stormrypaléution prevention practices. As
noted above with respect to potential climate cleangpacts, these laws and regulations, and/or exglnterpretations thereof, and the EPA
consent decree may cause delays in our construmtidrdelivery of new homes, may cause us to ingostantial compliance and other costs,
and can prohibit or restrict homebuilding activiitycertain regions or areas.

As discussed above under “Environmental Complidiatters,” environmental laws may also impose liapfor the costs of removal or
remediation of hazardous or toxic substances whetheot the developer or owner of the propertywkred, or was responsible for, the prese
of those substances. The presence of those substan®ur properties may prevent us from sellinghames and we may also be liable, under
applicable laws and regulations or lawsuits broumyhprivate parties, for hazardous or toxic substaron properties and lots that we have sold
in the past.

Further, a significant portion of our businessdaducted in California, one of the most highly reded and litigious states in the coun
Therefore, our potential exposure to losses andresgs due to new laws, regulations or litigatioly egreater than other homebuilders wi
less significant California presence.

The homebuilding industry and housing market areryecompetitive, and competitive conditions couldvadsely affect our business or our
consolidated financial statements.

The homebuilding industry is highly competitive. idebuilders compete not only for homebuyers, but fdsland assets, financing,
building materials, and skilled management talewt ade labor. We compete in each of our servettetawith other local, regional and
national homebuilders, including within larger siviglons containing sections designed, planneddewloped by such homebuilders. Other
homebuilders may also have long-standing relatisshith local labor, materials suppliers or lamtlexs in certain areas, which may provide
an advantage in their respective regions or loaakets. We also compete with other housing alteresitsuch as existing home sales
(including lender-owned homes acquired throughdimsure or short sales), apartments and rentalifgpuBhe competitive conditions in the
homebuilding industry can result in:

» our delivering fewer home
» our selling homes at lower price
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» our offering or increasing sales incentives, distswr price concessions for our honr

» our experiencing lower margin

» our selling fewer homes or experiencing a higheniner of home purchase contract cancellations bty
» impairments in the value of our inventory and othgsets

« difficulty in acquiring desirable land assets thraet our investment return criteria, and in selbig interests in land assets that no
longer meet such criteria on favorable ter

« difficulty in our acquiring raw materials and skifl management and trade labor at acceptable p
» delays in the construction of our homes; an
« difficulty in securing external financing, performze bonds or letters of credit facilities on favmeaterms

These competitive conditions may adversely affectbusiness and consolidated financial statemgntiebreasing our revenues,
impairing our ability to successfully execute camd acquisition and land asset management stratégéeeasing our costs and/or diminishing
growth in our local or regional homebuilding busises. In the housing downturn, actions taken byneurhome and housing alternative
competitors are reducing the effectiveness of fforts to achieve stability or increases in homiérsg prices, to generate higher home sales,
revenues and margins, and to achieve and maintafitgbility.

Our ability to attract and retain talent is critidato the success of our business and a failure togb may materially adversely affect our
performance.

Our officers and employees are an important regguned we see attracting and retaining a dedicatddalented team to execute our
KBnxt operational business model as crucial toahility to achieve and maintain an advantage ottleerchomebuilders. We face intense
competition for qualified personnel, particulartysgnior management levels, from other homebuildesen other companies in the housing
real estate industries, and from companies in uaraher industries with respect to certain rokeinctions. Moreover, the prolonged housing
downturn and the decline in the market value ofammmon stock during the housing downturn have nitagdatively more difficult for us to
attract and retain talent compared to the 200@@52eriod. If we are unable to continue to retaid attract qualified employees, or if we are
required or believe it is appropriate to reduceawerhead expenses through significant persondekt®ns, our performance, our ability to
achieve and maintain a competitive advantage andansolidated financial statements could be matgrand adversely affected.

Homebuilding is subject to warranty and liabilityaims in the ordinary course of business that caa bignificant.

In the ordinary course of our homebuilding businessare subject to home warranty and construatéiact claims. We record warranty
and other liabilities for the homes we deliver lwhgamarily on historical experience in our servedrkets and our judgment of the risks
associated with the types of homes we build. Wesharnd require the majority of our subcontractomatintain, general liability insurance
(including construction defect and bodily injurywesage) and workers’ compensation insurance. Timsseance policies protect us against a
portion of our risk of loss from claims relatedaor homebuilding activities, subject to certaifse$ured retentions, deductibles and other
coverage limits. Through our captive insurance glidy, we record expenses and liabilities basetherestimated costs required to cover our
self-insured retention and deductible amounts undeinsurance policies, and on the estimated adgistential claims and claim adjustment
expenses above our coverage limits or that areowared by our policies. These estimated costbased on an analysis of our historical
claims and include an estimate of constructionaeflaims incurred but not yet reported. Becausth@funcertainties inherent to these matters,
we cannot provide assurance that our insurancer@geeour subcontractor arrangements and ouritiabilvill be adequate to address all our
warranty and construction defect claims in thefeitor that any potential inadequacies will notdhan adverse effect on our consolidated
financial statements. Additionally, the coveragied by and the availability of general liabilihsurance for construction defects are curre
limited and costly. There can be no assurancectiharage will not be further restricted, increasig risks, and/or become more costly.
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Because of the seasonal nature of our business, quarterly operating results fluctuate

We have experienced seasonal fluctuations in oarteply operating results. We typically do not coemoe construction on a home
before a home purchase contract has been signedwmidbmebuyer. Historically, a significant percgetaf our home purchase contracts are
entered into in the spring and summer months, andeliver a corresponding significant percentageuwfhomes in the fall and winter mont
Construction of our homes typically requires apprately three to four months and weather delaysdftan occur in late winter and early
spring may extend this period. As a result of theabined factors, we historically have experiengeeven quarterly results, with lower
revenues and operating income generally durinditsteand second quarters of the year. During thesing downturn, however, our sales have
not consistently followed such a seasonal pattdoreover, our normal selling patterns were disrdtea significant extent in 2011 and 2010
by the Tax Credit. The increased demand motivayetthéd Tax Credit in early 2010 resulted in our d&ling more homes in the third quarter of
2010 and experiencing lower net orders and higberehpurchase contract cancellations in our 20balffihird and fourth quarters and our
2011 fiscal first and second quarters, in each casgared to a more typical seasonal pattern. YWéfrcurrent difficult market conditions
expected to continue into 2012, we can make naasses that our historical seasonal patterns efillrn in the near future, if at all.

Failure to comply with the covenants and conditiomaposed by the agreements governing our indebtessneould restrict future borrowing
or cause our debt to become immediately due ancapésy.

The indenture governing our outstanding seniorsimtgoses restrictions on our business operatindsetivities. Though it does not
contain any financial maintenance covenants, ttleriture contains certain restrictive covenants #rabng other things, limit our ability to
incur secured indebtedness, to engage in salebaelséransactions involving property or assets atmspecified value, and, as in the case of
one of our outstanding senior notes, to engageeirgers, consolidations, and sales of assets. Diiatacial and credit market conditions, we
may also need to include additional covenantsgalibns or restrictions in our indenture or witspect to a specific issuance of securities or to
our currently outstanding securities. If we failcmmply with these covenants, obligations or regtms, the holders of our senior notes could
cause our debt to become due and payable prioatority or could demand that we compensate therwé&ving instances of noncompliance.
In addition, a default under any series of our@enotes could cause a default with respect tather senior notes and result in the
acceleration of the maturity of all such defaultedebtedness and other debt obligations, as weleaalties or additional fees.

The housing downturn and the continuation of thestuptions in the credit markets could limit our dliy to access capital and increase our
costs of capital or stockholder dilution.

We have historically funded our homebuilding andficial services operations with internally gerestatash flows and external sources
of debt and equity financing. However, during tleeising downturn, we have relied primarily on theipee operating cash flow we have
generated to meet our working capital needs analyreptstanding indebtedness. While we generateitiygosperating cash flow to varying
degrees in recent years, principally through tleeip of federal income tax refunds, and from h@mne land sales and our efforts to reduce our
overhead and operating expenses, the persistekhegsin the housing markets and the disruptidhercredit markets worldwide since 2008
have reduced the availability and increased thesdosus of other sources of liquidity.

Market conditions may significantly limit our altilito replace or refinance indebtedness, partibutsiven the ratings of our senior notes
by the three principal nationally recognized regyist credit rating agencies, as discussed furédemb The terms of potential future issuances
of indebtedness by us may be more restrictive thaterms governing our current indebtedness, lamissuance, interest and debt service
expenses are likely to be higher. Moreover, dubéadeterioration and volatility in the financialdacredit markets and the uncertainties that
exist in the general economy and for homebuildesairticular, we cannot be certain that we wouldlble to replace existing financing or
secure additional sources of financing, if necgssar terms satisfactory to us or at all. In aduditithe significant decline in our stock price
since 2006, the ongoing volatility in the stock k&ts, the reduction in our stockholders’ equityatieke to our debt, and our unrestricted cash
balance could also impede our access to the enpatiets or increase the amount of dilution ourldtotders would experience should we s
or need to raise capital through the issuance wityeq
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While we believe we can meet our forecasted camtglirements from our cash resources, expectedefgash flow and the sources of
financing that we anticipate will be available ® we can provide no assurance that we will be bt so, or do so without incurring
substantially higher costs, particularly if curréifficult housing or credit market or economic ditions continue or deteriorate further. The
effects of these conditions on our business, ligpi@hd consolidated financial statements couldnag¢erial and adverse to us.

We may not realize our deferred income tax assktsaddition, our net operating loss carryforwardald be substantially limited if we
experience an ownership change as defined in théehnal Revenue Code.

Since the end of our 2007 fiscal year, we have ig¢ee significant net operating losses (“NOLs")dare may generate additional NOLs
in 2012. Under federal tax laws, we can use our Bl@Ind certain related tax credits) to reduce ouré taxable income for up to 20 years,
after which they expire for such purposes. Unélytlexpire, we can carry forward our NOLs (and ¢entalated tax credits) that we do not use
in any particular year to reduce our taxable incamfaiture years, and we have recorded a valuatilowvance against net deferred tax assets
representing the NOLs (and certain related taxitsethat we have generated but have not yet ieliat November 30, 2011, we had net
deferred tax assets totaling $848.9 million agaivtith we have provided a valuation allowance of %8 million. Our ability to realize our n
deferred tax assets is based on the extent to wieolenerate sustained profits and we cannot peaiy assurances as to when and to what
extent we will generate sufficient future taxalledme to realize our net deferred tax assets, whéthwhole or in part.

In addition, the benefits of our NOLs, built-in &&s and tax credits would be reduced or eliminéted experience an “ownership
change,” as determined under Internal Revenue Sed@on 382 (“Section 382”). A Section 382 ownepsttiange occurs if a stockholder or a
group of stockholders who are deemed to own at #4sof our common stock increase their ownerskimbre than 50 percentage points ¢
their lowest ownership percentage within a rollihgeeyear period. If an ownership change were to ocsaction 382 would impose an ann
limit on the amount of NOLs we could use to redauetaxable income equal to the product of thel tathue of our outstanding equity
immediately prior to the ownership change (redumgdertain items specified in Section 382) andféiteral long-term tax-exempt interest rate
in effect for the month of the ownership changenulnber of complex rules apply in calculating thigaal limit.

While the complexity of Section 382’s provisiongdahe limited knowledge any public company has altlwei ownership of its publicly-
traded stock make it difficult to determine whetharownership change has occurred, we currentigusethat an ownership change has not
occurred. However, if an ownership change werectug the annual limit Section 382 may impose coekllt in a material amount of our
NOLs expiring unused. This would significantly inipthe value of our NOLs and, as a result, havegative impact on our consolidat
financial statements.

In 2009, our stockholders approved an amendmemiitoestated certificate of incorporation thatésigned to block transfers of our
common stock that could result in an ownership geaand a rights agreement pursuant to which we Issued certain stock purchase rights
with terms designed to deter transfers of our comstock that could result in an ownership changevéber, these measures cannot guare
complete protection against an ownership changeataachains possible that one may occur.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness iratiein to our tangible net worth and unrestricted sl balance, which may restrict our
ability to meet our operational and strategic goals

As of November 30, 2011, we had total outstandielgt @f $1.58 billion, total stockholders’ equity $442.7 million, and an unrestricted
cash balance of $415.1 million. The amount of abtdverall and relative to our total stockholdexguity and unrestricted cash balance could
have important consequences. For example, it could:

« limit our ability to obtain future financing for wking capital, capital expenditures, acquisitiohsbt service requirements or other
business need

« limit our ability to renew or, if necessary or deile, expand the capacity of any letter of créditlities, to obtain a new credit facilit
and to obtain performance bonds in the ordinarysmof our busines:

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaash flow from operations to the collateralizattwrpayment of our debt and redt
our ability to use our cash flow for other purpgs
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» impact our flexibility in planning for, or reactirtg, changes in our busine:
» place us at a competitive disadvantage becausawerhore debt or de-related restrictions than some of our competitanst

» make us more vulnerable in the event of continuedkmess or a further downturn in our business geireral economic or housil
market conditions

Our ability to meet our debt service and othergdtlons will depend on our future performance. Business is substantially affected by
changes in economic cycles. Our revenues, earaingi€ash flows vary with the level of general ecoimoactivity and competition in the
markets in which we operate. Our business couldl ladsaffected by financial, political, regulatoeyyvironmental and other factors, many of
which are beyond our control. A higher interese¢rah our debt could adversely affect our consatiddinancial statements.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash ftom operations and external financing at reasanabst may not be available to us in
an amount sufficient to meet our debt service alians, fulfill the financial or operational oblians we may have under certain
unconsolidated joint venture transactions, supportetter of credit facilities (including our casbllateralized letter of credit facilities with
various financial institutions (the “LOC Facilitigy or to fund our other liquidity or operationaéeds. Further, if a change of control were to
occur as defined in the instrument governing o@552 million of 9.1% senior notes due 2017 (the6%Million Senior Notes”), we would be
required to offer to purchase these notes (bubapbther outstanding senior notes) at 101% of fhrémcipal amount, together with all accrued
and unpaid interest, if any. If we are unable toggate sufficient cash flow from operations or haxgernal financing available to us, we may,
given our unrestricted cash balance, need to refmall or a portion of our debt obligations orbefore maturity, which we may not be able to
do on favorable terms or at all, or raise caphabtigh equity issuances that would dilute exisstagkholders’ interests.

Our ability to obtain external financing could bedversely affected by a negative change in our ctediing by a third-party rating agency.

Our ability to access external sources of finana@indavorable terms is a key factor in our abit@yfund our operations and to grow our
business. As of the date of this report, our credihg by Fitch Ratings is B+, with a negativeloak, our credit rating by Moody’s Investor
Services is B2, with a stable outlook, and our itneding by Standard and Poor’s Financial Servise3+, with a negative outlook.
Downgrades of our credit rating by any of thesagpal nationally recognized registered creditmgtagencies may make it more difficult and
costly for us to access external financing.

We may have difficulty in continuing to obtain thadditional financing required to operate and develour business.

Our homebuilding operations require significant amts of cash and/or the availability of externabficing. While we terminated the
Credit Facility in 2010, we established the LOCil&es in order to support certain aspects of operations in the ordinary course of our
business, including our acquisition of land asaeats our development of communities. We anticipla# e will need to maintain these
facilities in 2012, and, if necessary or desirable,may in the future seek to expand their capeitr enter into additional such facilities, or
enter into a new credit facility. It is not possitib predict the future terms or availability ofiggbnal external capital or for maintaining or, if
necessary or desirable, expanding the capacityeof ©C Facilities or entering into additional sdahilities, or entering into a new credit
facility. Moreover, our outstanding senior notestedn provisions that may restrict the amount aatlire of debt we may incur in the future.
the financial and credit markets worldwide haverbegperiencing and may continue to experience mdreolatility and disruption, there can
be no assurance that we can at reasonable coatlpdtorrow additional funds, raise additional dapthrough other means, or successfully
maintain or, if necessary or desirable, expand:#pacity of the LOC Facilities or enter into adafithl such facilities or enter into a new credit
facility, each of which depends, among other fasston conditions in the capital markets and oucgiged credit worthiness, as discussed
above. If conditions in the capital markets congino be volatile or worsen, it could reduce oulighio generate sales and may hinder our
future growth and consolidated financial statementdgential federal and state regulations limitiing investment activities of financial
institutions, including regulations that have beemay be issued under the Dodd-Frank Act, coudd ahpact our ability to obtain additional
financing and to maintain or, if necessary or ddse, expand the LOC Facilities or enter into adddal such facilities or enter into a new cre
facility, in each case on acceptable terms orlat al

25



Table of Contents

Our consolidated financial statements could be acbedy affected if we are unable to obtain performanbonds.

In the course of developing our communities, weddiren required to provide to various municipa$itend other government agencies
performance bonds and/or letters of credit to setue completion of our projects and/or in suppbubligations to build community
improvements such as roads, sewers, water systainstiaer utilities, and to support similar devel@mnactivities by certain of our
unconsolidated joint ventures. Our ability to obtaiich bonds and the cost to do so depend on edit cating, overall market capitalization,
available capital, past operational and financaf@mance, management expertise and other fadtatading prevailing surety market
conditions, which tightened in 2010 and remaingtttin 2011 with certain providers exiting the metrkar substantially reducing their issuar
of performance bonds, and the underwriting prastared resources of performance bond issuers. #rev@nable to obtain performance bonds
when required or the cost or operational restmaior conditions imposed by issuers to obtain thremreases significantly in 2012 or later, we
may not be able to develop or we may be signifigadetlayed in developing a community or communiti@sl/or we may incur significant
additional expenses, and, as a result, our coradelidinancial statements, cash flows and/or liggicbuld be materially and adversely
affected.

Information technology failures and data securityrdaches could harm our busines

We use information technology, digital telecommaticns and other computer resources to carry opoitant operational and market
activities and to maintain our business recordsayvat these resources are provided to us and/antaiaed on our behalf by thindarty servic
providers pursuant to agreements that specify tgirmg degrees certain security and service leaiddrds. Although we and our service
providers employ what we believe are adequate ggcdisaster recovery and other preventative adective measures, our ability to conduct
our business may be impaired if these resourcelsidimg our website, are compromised, degradedadeaunhor fail, whether due to a virus or
other harmful circumstance, intentional penetratiodisruption of our information technology resces by a third party, natural disaster,
hardware or software corruption or failure or effiocluding a failure of security controls incorpted into or applied to such hardware or
software), telecommunications system failure, sergrovider error or failure, intentional or unimtienal personnel actions (including the
failure to follow our security protocols), or lasbnnectivity to our networked resources. A sigmifitand extended disruption in the functior
of these resources, including our website, coutdatge our reputation and cause us to lose custosaes, and revenue, result in the
unintended and/or unauthorized public disclosurthemisappropriation of proprietary, personal tifgimg and confidential information
(including information about our homebuyers anditess partners), and require us to incur signifiespense to address and remediate or
otherwise resolve these kinds of issues. The relebsonfidential information may also lead todétion or other proceedings against us by
affected individuals and/or business partners ara/aegulators, and the outcome of such proceeadingich could include penalties or fines,
could have a material and adverse effect on ousaatated financial statements. In addition, thete@f maintaining adequate protection
against such threats, depending on their evolufienjasiveness and frequency and/or government-atethdtandards or obligations regarding
protective efforts, could be material to our coidated financial statements in a particular pedodver various periods.

ltem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

We lease our corporate headquarters in Los Ang€lagprnia. Our homebuilding division offices (eqt for our San Antonio, Texas
office) and our KB Home Studios are located in égbspace in the markets where we conduct busisswn the premises for our San
Antonio office.

We believe that such properties, including the popent located therein, are suitable and adequate&t the needs of our businesses.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Nevada Development Contract Litigation

On November 4, 2011, the Eighth Judicial Distriou@, Clark County, Nevada set for trial a consatiédi action against KB HOME
Nevada Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of ol“KB Nevada”), in a case entitlddas Vegas Development Associates, LLC, Essex Real Estate
Partners, LLC, et. al. v. KB HOME Nevada Inc . In 2007, Las Vegas Development Associates, LUG/DA”) agreed to purchase from KB
Nevada approximately 83 acres of land located baaVegas, Nevada. LVDA subsequently assignedglas to Essex Real Estate Partn
LLC (“Essex”). KB Nevada and Essex entered integedopment agreement relating to certain majoastfucture improvements. LVDA's
and Essex’s complaint, initially filed in 2008, egdles that KB Nevada breached the development agréeand also alleges that KB Nevada
fraudulently induced them to enter into the purehasd development agreements. LVDA's and Esserteles subsequently filed related
actions that were consolidated into the LVDA/Essmatter. The consolidated plaintiffs seek rescissibtihe agreements or a rescissory
measure of damages or, in the alternative, companysdamages of $55 million plus unspecified pweitdamages and other damages (the
“Claimed Damages”). KB Nevada denies the allegati@amd believes it has meritorious defenses tadhsolidated plaintiffs’ claims. While
the ultimate outcome is uncertain — we believs iteiasonably possible that the loss in this matiald range from zero to the amount of the
Claimed Damages and could be material to our categeld financial statements — KB Nevada believedlitbe successful in defending
against the plaintiffs’ claims and that the pldifstivill not be awarded recission or damages. Tiais currently set for September 2012.

In addition to the specific proceeding describedvah we are involved in other litigation and regoig proceedings incidental to our
business that are in various procedural stageshéleve that the accruals we have recorded forghigband reasonably estimable losses with
respect to these proceedings are adequate andstatNovember 30, 2011, it was not reasonablgiptesthat an additional material loss had
been incurred in an amount in excess of the estdnatounts already recognized on our consolidataddial statements. We evaluate our
accruals for litigation and regulatory proceediageast quarterly and, as appropriate, adjust tiweraflect (i) the facts and circumstances
known to us at the time, including information redjag negotiations, settlements, rulings and otekvant events and developments; (ii) the
advice and analyses of counsel; and (iii) the apsioms and judgment of management. Similar facaoi considerations are used in
establishing new accruals for proceedings as talmosses have become probable and reasonablyabstiat the time an evaluation is made.
Based on our experience, we believe that the amdhat may be claimed or alleged against us irethesceedings are not a meaningful
indicator of our potential liability. The outcoméany of these proceedings, including the defemskeaher litigationrelated costs and expen
we may incur, however, is inherently uncertain aadld differ significantly from the estimate refted in a related accrual, if made. Therefore,
it is possible that the ultimate outcome of anycpexing, if in excess of a related accrual or iinorual had been made, could be material to
our consolidated financial statements.

Item 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
The following table presents certain informatioga®ling our executive officers as of December 81,12

Year Years
Assumec
at Other Positions and Other
Present KB Business Experience within the
Name Age Present Position Position Home Last Five Years (a) From - To
Jeffrey T. Mezger 56 President and Chief 200¢€ 18
Executive Officer (b
Jeff J. Kaminski 50 Executive Vice President and 201¢ 1 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &tdategy Board 2008-
Chief Financial Officer member, Federal-Mogul Corporation (a global supmfecomponent 2010
parts and systems to the automotive, heavy-dudysimial and
transport markets
Senior Vice President, Global Purchasing and SjyaBoard Member, 2005-
Federe-Mogul Corporatior 2008
Albert Z. Praw 63 Executive Vice President, 2011 15(c) Chief Executive Officer, Landstone Communities, LLC 2006-
Real Estate and Business (a real estate development company) 2011
Developmen
Brian J. Woram 51 Executive Vice President, General 201C 1 Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Officer, HBRcK, Inc. (a 2009-
Counsel and Secreta provider of tax, banking and business and consukarvices 2010
Senior Vice President, Chief Legal Officer and Glgempliance Officer, 2005-
Centex Corporation (a homebuilder and provider oftgage banking 2009
services'
William R. Hollingel 53 Senior Vice President and 2007 24
Chief Accounting Office
Thomas F. Norton 41 Senior Vice President, Human 200¢ 3 Chief Human Resources Officer, BJ's Restaurants,(Bn owner and 2006-
Resource: operator of national full service restaurar 2009
Tom Silk 43 Senior Vice President, 2011 — Vice President of Marketing for Hydration and Juice 2009-
Marketing and Communicatio Brands, PepsiCo Beverages Americas (a beveragestmayland 2011
distribution company
Senior Director, Global Brand Management, ActivisBlizzard, Inc. (a 2006-
game publisher of interactive entertainment soféy 2009

(&) All positions described were with us, unless othsesndicated
(b) Mr. Mezger has served as a director since 2

(c) Mr. Praw was employed by us from 1-1992 and from 19¢-2006. He was elected to his present position immt2011
There is no family relationship between any of executive officers or between any of our executifficers and any of our directors.

PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As of December 31, 2011, there were 726 holdersadrd of our common stock. Our common stock idedaon the New York Stock
Exchange under the ticker symbol “KBH.” The followgitable presents, for the periods indicated, tieepanges of our common stock, and
cash dividends declared and paid per share:

Year Ended November 30, 2011 Year Ended November 30, 2010
Dividends Dividends Dividends Dividends
High Low Declared Paid High Low Declared Paid
First Quartel $16.11 $11.41 $ .0628 $ .062t $17.3( $12.5¢ $.062t $ .062°F
Second Quarte 13.67 10.8¢ .062¢ .062¢ 20.1: 14.07 .062¢ .062¢
Third Quartel 12.27 5.0¢ .062¢ .062¢ 14.41 9.43 .062¢ .062¢
Fourth Quarte 8.0C 5.0z .062¢ .062¢ 13.1¢ 10.2¢ .062¢ .062¢
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The declaration and payment of cash dividends areshof our common stock, whether at current levelt all, are at the discretion of
our board of directors, and depend upon, among thimegs, our expected future earnings, cash flmapjtal requirements, debt structure and
adjustments thereto, operational and financialstment strategy and general financial conditionyel as general business conditions.

The description of our equity compensation plagiired by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is incorpi@d herein by reference to
“Part [l — Item 12. Security Ownership of Certdeneficial Owners and Management and Related Stdd&hMatters” of this report.

We did not repurchase any of our equity securdiging the fourth quarter of 2011.
Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total nedfilKB Home common stock, the S&P 500 Index, t&& $Homebuilding Index and
the Dow Jones Home Construction Index for thefigstyear-end periods ended November 30.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
Among KB Home, S&P 500 Index, S&P Homebuilding
Index and Dow Jones Home Construction Index
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The above graph is based on the KB Home commoik stod index prices calculated as of the last tigudisy before December 1 of the
yea-end periods presented. As of November 30, 20El¢libsing price of KB Home common stock on the Néwk Stock Exchange was
$7.35 per share. The performance of our commork stepicted in the graphs above represents pagirpehce only and is not indicative of
future performance. Total return assumes $100 tadest market close on November 30, 2006 in KB Hopramon stock, the S&P 500 Ind:
the S&P Homebuilding Index and the Dow Jones Homes@uction Index including reinvestment of dividen
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The data in this table should be read in conjunctith Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Riial Condition and Results of
Operations and our Consolidated Financial Statesreemd the Notes thereto. Both are included latérigreport.

KB HOME
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Homebuilding:
Revenue: $1,305,56: $1,581,76: $1,816,41' $3,023,16! $6,400,59.
Operating los! (103,079 (16,04%) (236,52() (860,649  (1,358,33)
Total asset 2,480,36! 3,080,301 3,402,56! 3,992,14: 5,661,56.
Mortgages and notes payal 1,583,57. 1,775,52! 1,820,37! 1,941,53 2,161,79
Financial services
Revenue: $ 10,30« $ 8,23t $ 843t $ 10,761 $ 1593t
Operating incom: 6,79z 5,11« 5,18¢ 6,27¢ 11,13¢
Total asset 32,17: 29,44 33,424 52,15: 44,39
Consolidated
Revenue: $1,315,86! $1,589,991  $1,824,85(  $3,033,93( $6,416,52
Operating los! (96,28)) (10,93) (231,330 (854,36)) (1,347,19)
Loss from continuing operatiol (178,769 (69,36¢) (101,789 (976,13) (1,414,771
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaaxes (a — — — — 485,35t
Net loss (178,76%) (69,36¢) (101,78 (976,13) (929,41)
Total asset 2,512,54. 3,109,74 3,435,98! 4,044,30I 5,705,95!
Mortgages and notes payal 1,583,57: 1,775,52! 1,820,37! 1,941,53 2,161,79.
Stockholder’ equity 442,65’ 631,87¢ 707,22 830,60! 1,850,68
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per sh
Continuing operation $ (237 % (90 ¢ (1.3) $ (1259 $ (18.39)
Discontinued operatior — — — — 6.2¢
Basic loss per sha $ (2.32) % (90) % (1.359) $ (1259 $ (12.09
Cash dividends declared per common s $ 25 28 $ 28§  .812f § 1.0C

(a) Discontinued operations consist only of ounfer French operations, which were sold in 2007ohme from discontinued operations, net
of income taxes, in 2007 includes a gain of $438illion realized on the sal:
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview. Revenues are generated from our homebuilding awaehdial services operations. The following tablespnts a summary of
our consolidated results of operations for the yemded November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 (in timolss@xcept per share amounts):

Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
Revenues

Homebuilding $1,305,56. $1,581,76. $1,816,41!

Financial service 10,30¢ 8,23: 8,43t

Total $1,315,861  $1,589,991  $1,824,85

Pretax income (loss

Homebuilding $ (207,249 $ (88,51) $ (330,38)

Financial service 26,07¢ 12,14 19,19¢
Total pretax los: (181,169 (76,36%) (311,189
Income tax benef 2,40( 7,00( 209,40(
Net loss $ (178,76 $ (69,36¢) $ (101,78
Basic and diluted loss per sh: $ (237 % (90) $ (1.39

Despite historically high housing affordability alwv interest rates for residential consumer mayégwans, housing market conditions
remained challenging in 2011, largely due to aiptst oversupply of homes available for sale agdificantly restrained consumer demand
for housing. The oversupply of homes availablesfe, which has persisted since the housing dowtteigan in mid-2006, was amplified by
an increase in the already sizeable inventoryrudde-owned homes acquired through foreclosureban sales — a trend that is expected to
continue, and possibly accelerate, in 2012. Mealewbdonsumer demand was tempered by several fagtohgding turbulent macroeconomic
conditions, the reduction in or unwinding of govaent programs and incentives supportive of homeaostiye and/or home purchases,
generally poor and uncertain employment condititos,consumer confidence levels, tight residerd@sumer mortgage lending standards
and reduced credit availability for residential somer mortgage loans. These negative market consditvere compounded by intense
competition for home sales among homebuilders altérs of resale homes, including lender-owned roagguired through foreclosures or
short sales. Although we have seen signs of stghilicertain markets for new home sales, we bel@Wwll housing recovery can occur only if
there is broad, sustainable employment growth ammtaved consumer confidence.

Over the past five years, we have used the priesipf our KBnxt operational business model asradraork for adapting our operations
to the conditions created by the housing downtia.have focused our efforts on three primary atebirmted strategic goals: achieve and
maintain profitability at the scale of prevailingarket conditions; generate cash and maintain agtbalance sheet; and position our busine
capitalize on future growth opportunities. Undes ttrategic framework, we have improved and refioer product offerings to compete with
resale homes and to meet the affordability demandsenergy efficiency concerns of our core custsmeffirst-time, movedp and active adt
homebuyers; aligned our overhead to relevant madtgtity levels through a dedicated effort to gohtosts while maintaining a solid growth
platform; improved our operating efficiencies; shif resources from underperforming areas and mgplertunistic investments in our
business; and acquired new land interests meetingneestment and marketing standards in prefdoeations within key markets with
perceived strong growth prospects. We expect ttirnom to refine these initiatives during 2012.

For the year ended November 30, 2011, we deliviEenedr homes, experienced decreases in our revemaesur housing gross margin
on a year-over-year basis, and posted a net loksgely reflecting prevailing market conditions. Mever, we believe we made meaningful
progress toward our primary strategic goals andyred improvements during the year in certain ksgrational and financial metrics. For
instance, in each of the last three
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quarters of 2011, we generated sequential impromemehe number of homes we delivered, our revenaed our selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of houswegues. We also substantially reduced our seljjageral and administrative expenses and
increased our net orders compared to the previeas gnding 2011 with the highest year-end bacttiagwe have had since 2008. In addition,
we invested in land and land development, mainlyréferred markets within California and Texassupport future growth in our new home
communities, deliveries and revenues. While th@ps@nd timing of a sustained housing market regor@mains uncertain, we believe that
efforts throughout 2011 to expand the number of heme communities open for sales in relatively thyahousing markets and to execute on
our three strategic goals have positioned us dpedly and financially to advance our busines2012 and to capitalize on opportunities in
housing markets as they arise.

Our total revenues of $1.32 billion for the yeaded November 30, 2011 decreased 17% from $1.56rbih 2010, which had declined
13% from $1.82 billion in 2009. Revenues decreaseét®11 and 2010 primarily due to lower housing ki sale revenues. The year-over-
year decreases in housing revenues in 2011 andr2fi2bted fewer homes delivered, partly offsegllyigher overall average selling price. '
delivered 21% fewer homes in 2011 compared to 2pdMarily due to a relatively low number of homesacklog at the beginning of 2011.
Our backlog entering 2011 reflected softness irongérs in the third and fourth quarters of 2018 thugenerally weak housing market
conditions and depressed demand and sales adtlliyving a temporary surge in demand in the firgd quarters of 2010 that was motivated
by the expiration of the Tax Credit. To a lessderk the number of homes in our backlog at thenmégg of 2011 was also negatively affec
by strategic community count reductions we had madmderperforming markets in prior years to alagym operations with prevailing housing
market activity. However, in light of our more reténvestments in land and land development andhmawe community openings to support
future growth, we ended 2011 with an overall comityurpunt that was 12% higher than the prior yémmes delivered decreased 13% in
2010 from 2009 mainly due to our strategically loweerall community count compared to the previgear.

Our overall average selling price increased 5%0ih12and 4% in 2010 compared to the correspondiiog pears, primarily due to
changes in community and product mix, as we dedidenore homes from markets that supported largeietgizes and higher selling prices.
The year-over-year increase in our 2011 overaltaye selling price reflected increases of 5% imlmotr Southwest and Central homebuilding
reporting segments and 15% in our Southeast hordétyireporting segment, partially offset by a 3&gkase in our West Coast
homebuilding reporting segment.

Land sale revenues totaled $.3 million in 2011 carag to $6.3 million in 2010 and $58.3 million i@, reflecting a reduced volume of
land sales activity.

Included in our total revenues were financial ssgsirevenues of $10.3 million in 2011, $8.2 millior2010 and $8.4 million in 2009.
The year-overear increase in financial services revenues irl2@ds largely due to revenues associated with @uketing services agreem
with MetLife Home Loans and higher title servicesenues. The revenues associated with our markegivices agreement represent the fair
market value of the services we provided in 201doinnection with the agreement. Financial serviegenues decreased in 2010 from 2009,
reflecting fewer homes delivered by our homebugdiperations.

We generated a net loss of $178.8 million, or $282diluted share, in 2011, compared to $69.4ianillor $.90 per diluted share, in
2010. Our 2011 net loss included pretax, noncaalgels of $25.8 million for inventory impairmentsddand option contract abandonments,
mainly in our Southwest homebuilding reporting segimand a pretax, noncash joint venture impairrobatge of $53.7 million and a loss on
loan guaranty of $30.8 million, both related to ewestment in South Edge, LLC (“South Edge”). $obtige was a residential development
joint venture located near Las Vegas, Nevada ircivKiB Nevada participated along with other unreldtemebuilders and a th-party
property development firm. South Edge underwerdrekbuptcy reorganization in 2011. Our net loss2@t1 also included a gain of $19.8
million associated with the wind down of KBA Morigg, which ceased offering mortgage banking seniicéste June 2011, an after-tax
valuation allowance charge of $76.7 million agaimst deferred tax assets to fully reserve the &ebts from our net loss for the year, and an
income tax benefit of $2.4 million.

We posted a net loss of $69.4 million, or $.90¢tikrited share, in 2010, which narrowed from ourloss of $101.8 million, or $1.33 per
diluted share, in 2009. In 2010, our net loss idetlipretax, noncash charges of
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$19.9 million for inventory impairments and landiop contract abandonments, an at@x-valuation allowance charge of $26.6 millioniagt
net deferred tax assets to fully reserve the taefiis generated from our net loss for the yead, amincome tax benefit of $7.0 million,
primarily associated with an increase in the caackbof our 2009 NOLs to offset earnings we gendrate2004 and 2005. The majority of the
inventory impairments and land option contract almenments in 2010 were recognized in our Central@maheast homebuilding reporting
segments.

In 2009, our net loss of $101.8 million, or $1.38 diluted share, was largely due to pretax, ndnchsarges of $206.7 million for
inventory and joint venture impairments and lantdapcontract abandonments. These charges reflfutedngoing weakness in housing
market conditions, which depressed asset valuesnidjority of these charges were associated with\eest Coast and Southeast
homebuilding reporting segments. The net loss B92ilso included an income tax benefit of $209.Hiani which primarily resulted from
federal tax legislation enacted in the fourth geraof 2009 that allowed us to carry back our 20@LKl to offset earnings we generated in 2004
and 2005. As a result, we received a federal tmdeof $190.7 million in the first quarter of 2010

Our housing gross margin was 13.4% in 2011, 1742910 and 6.5% in 2009. The year-over-year deerge2011 reflected reduced
operating leverage from the lower volume of homalssdred; comparatively fewer homes delivered floigher-margin communities, largely
as a result of higher-margin communities that vatmeed out in the prior year; and a shift in prddae. The improvement in our housing
gross margin in 2010 compared to 2009 primarilje#&d improved operating efficiencies; an incréagbe number of homes delivered from
our new, value-engineered products, which are desigo be built with lower direct construction st decrease in inventory impairment and
land option contract abandonment charges; andipadt of inventory impairment charges incurredriompyears, which lowered our land cost
basis with respect to the relevant communities. I@@wsing gross margin, excluding inventory impaintrend land option contract
abandonment charges (a calculation that is desthbw under “Non-GAAP Financial Measurestigs 15.4% in 2011, compared to 18.6¢
2010 and 15.5% in 2009.

Our backlog at November 30, 2011 was comprisedid&homes, representing potential future housingmues of approximately
$459.0 million, compared to a backlog at Novemh®r2®10 of 1,336 homes, representing potentiakéuiwusing revenues of approximately
$263.8 million. The number of homes in backlog r6$&o year over year, primarily due to a 39% incedamet orders in the latter half of
2011, compared to the year-earlier period. Thertzve year-over-year net order comparison in ttterdalf of 2011 partly reflected activity
from recently opened new home communities as veallegpressed net orders in the corresponding pefidd10 stemming in part from reduc
demand and sales activity following the expiratidrthe Tax Credit. The potential future housingemrewes in backlog at November 30, 2011
increased 74% year over year, reflecting the higlwenber of homes in backlog and a higher overatage selling price. Our backlog levels
were up year over year in each of our homebuildapprting segments at November 30, 2011. Net offdens our homebuilding operations
rose to 6,632 in 2011 from 6,556 in 2010, reprasgrihe first increase in full year net ordersvirotyears. Leveraging the land and land
development investments we have made under ouraleapaisition initiative, we opened 123 new home gamities for sales in 2011. We
anticipate delivering homes and realizing reverftm®s the net orders generated in these newly opeosumunities in the coming quarters.
cancellation rate as a percentage of gross ordes2@% in 2011 and 28% in 2010.

Our cash, cash equivalents and restricted casledo$d79.5 million at November 30, 2011, down fr§in02 billion at November 30,
2010, mainly due to $251.9 million in payments madthe 2011 fourth quarter in connection with Baakruptcy reorganization and the
resolution of other matters surrounding South Etlyerepayment of the remaining $100.0 million ggregate principal amount of our $350.0
million of 6 3/8% senior notes due 2011 (the “$350 Million Seniatés”) at their August 15, 2011 maturity, and tpayment of $89.5
million of mortgages and land contracts due to Isgliers and other loans. Of the cash, cash equitsabind restricted cash totals reported at
November 30, 2011 and 2010, $415.1 million and $9@4illion, respectively, were unrestricted. Oubtlealance at November 30, 2011 v
$1.58 billion, down from $1.78 billion at Novemb&®, 2010, reflecting the debt repayments made ir1 28t November 30, 2011, our ratio of
debt to total capital was 78.2%, compared to 73a8%ovember 30, 2010. Our ratio of net debt tol teapital (a calculation that is described
below under “Non-GAAP Financial Measures”) was ?4.dt November 30, 2011 and 54.5% at November 300.20

Our inventory balance of $1.73 hillion at NovemB8&r 2011 was 2% higher than the $1.70 billion bedaait November 30, 2010. This
increase primarily reflected our investments irdlamd land development and new home
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community openings in 2011. Reflecting these innesits, we ended our 2011 fiscal year with a lanéntory portfolio comprised of 40,170
lots owned or controlled, compared to 39,540 letsed or controlled at November 30, 2010.

HOMEBUILDING

We have grouped our homebuilding activities intorfeeportable segments, which we refer to as Wesast; Southwest, Central and
Southeast. As of November 30, 2011, our homebuldéporting segments consisted of ongoing operatimeated in the following states: W
Coast — California; Southwest — Arizona and Neva@ientral — Colorado and Texas; and Southeast —d@pMaryland, North Carolina,
and Virginia.

The following table presents a summary of certaiarfcial and operational data for our homebuildipgrations (dollars in thousands,
except average selling price):

Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
Revenues
Housing $ 1,305,29 $1,575,48 $ 1,758,15
Land 263 6,27¢ 58,25¢
Total 1,305,56: 1,581,76. 1,816,41!
Costs and expense
Construction and land cos
Housing (1,129,78) (1,301,67) (1,643,75)
Land (200 (6,61 (106,159
Total (2,129,98) (1,308,28) (1,749,91)
Selling, general and administrative exper (247,88¢) (289,52() (303,029
Loss on loan guaran (30,769 — —
Total (1,408,63) (1,597,80) (2,052,93)
Operating los: $ (103,079 $ (16,049 $ (236,52()
Homes delivere: 5,812 7,34¢ 8,48¢
Average selling prici $ 224,60( $ 214,50( $ 207,10(
Housing gross margi 13.4% 17.2% 6.5%
Selling, general and administrative expenses & @ptage o
housing revenue 19.(% 18.2% 17.2%
Operating loss as a percentage of homebuildingweas (7.9% (1.0% (13.0%

Revenues. Homebuilding revenues totaled $1.31 billior201.1, decreasing 17% from $1.58 billion in 2010jokthad decreased 13%
from $1.82 billion in 2009. The year-over-year dsxges in 2011 and 2010 reflected lower housindanttisale revenues.

Housing revenues decreased to $1.31 billion in 26dfpared to $1.58 billion in 2010 and $1.76 dillin 2009. Housing revenues
declined 17% in 2011 from the previous year dua 2% decrease in the number of homes deliveretly péfset by a 5% increase in the
overall average selling price. In 2010, housingereies fell 10% from 2009 due to a 13% decreaserimel delivered, partly offset by a 4%
increase in the overall average selling price.

In 2011, we delivered 5,812 homes, down from 7 8d®es delivered in 2010. The decrease in the nuofdesmes delivered was partly
due to our relatively low backlog level at the reang of 2011, which was down 37% on a year-overymsis. The lower beginning backlog
reflected softness in net orders in the third andth quarters of 2010 due to generally weak hausiarket conditions, depressed demand and
sales activity following a temporary surge in dechémthe first two quarters of 2010 that was mdtaaby the expiration of the Tax Credit,
and, to a lesser extent, the strategic communityceductions we made in select underperformingketa in prior periods to align our
operations with prevailing housing market activiBach of our homebuilding reporting segments
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delivered fewer homes in 2011 compared to 2010y détcreases ranging from 13% in our West Coast hoitaing reporting segment to 30%
in our Southeast homebuilding reporting segment.

In 2010, we delivered 7,346 homes, down from 8 4&®8es in 2009. The year-oveear decline in the total number of homes deliven
2010 was principally due to strategic communityrdaeductions we made in 2010 and in prior perid weak demand for new homes.

The overall average selling price of our homeseaased to $224,600 in 2011, as average sellingsprase in three of our four
homebuilding reporting segments. Year over yeagrage selling prices increased 5% in both our Seeghand Central homebuilding
reporting segments and 15% in our Southeast hotdémgireporting segment. In our West Coast homelingl reporting segment, the average
selling price decreased 3% in 2011 from the preary The increase in our overall average sellimgepras mainly due to changes in the
proportion of homes delivered from communities witgher-priced homes, and a shift in product milatger homes.

Our 2010 overall average selling price rose to $1@ from $207,100 in 2009, reflecting higher ageraelling prices in three of our fc
homebuilding reporting segments. Year over yeagrage selling prices increased 10%, 5% and 1%rWast Coast, Central and Southeast
homebuilding reporting segments, respectively.un®outhwest homebuilding reporting segment, thezaye selling price in 2010 decreased
8% from 2009. The increase in our overall averaging price in 2010 was primarily due to changesur community and product mix, as we
delivered more homes from markets that supportegttehomes and higher selling prices.

Land sale revenues totaled $.3 million in 20113$6illion in 2010 and $58.3 million in 2009. Gengraland sale revenues fluctuate
with our decisions to maintain or decrease our kamdership position in certain markets based upenvblume of our holdings, our marketing
strategy, the strength and number of competingldpees entering particular markets at given paimtsme, the availability of land at
reasonable prices, and prevailing market conditibaad sale revenues were less significant in 201dL.2010 compared to 2009 because we
sold a greater volume of land in 2009, rather thald it for future development, as the prolongedding downturn persisted and the land no
longer fit our marketing strategy.

Operating Loss. Our homebuilding business generated operating$ost$103.1 million in 2011, $16.0 million in 20&48d
$236.5 million in 2009. Our homebuilding operatings as a percentage of homebuilding revenues W& in 2011, 1.0% in 2010, and 13.!
in 2009.

The year-over-year increase in our operating log0il1 reflected lower gross profits compared tb®2and a $30.8 million loss on loan
guaranty, partly offset by reduced selling, genaral administrative expenses. The decrease in grofits in 2011 resulted from fewer homes
delivered and a lower housing gross margin.

Our housing gross margin was 13.4% in 2011, contp@rd 7.4% in 2010. In 2011, our housing gross margluded $25.8 million of
inventory impairment and land option contract atmammdent charges, which were partly offset by $7.4ioni of favorable warranty adjustmel
that were made based on downward trends in ouabiwearranty claims experience on homes previodslivered. Our housing gross margin,
excluding inventory impairment and land option caot abandonment charges, was 15.4% in 2011, ceuparl8.6% in 2010. This year-
over-year decrease reflected reduced operatingdgedrom the lower volume of homes delivered; carafively fewer homes delivered from
higher-margin communities, largely as a resultighbr-margin communities that were closed out eafghior year; and a shift in product mix.

In 2010, the year-overear decrease in our operating loss was primatig/td higher gross profits compared to 2009, réfigahe impac
of a higher gross margin, partly offset by fewemes delivered. Our housing gross margin improvet/td% in 2010 from 6.5% in 2009. In
2010, our housing gross margin included $19.9 amlbbf inventory impairment and land option contralsandonment charges, compared to
$157.6 million of similar charges in 2009. Our hiogsgross margin, excluding inventory impairmend éand option contract abandonment
charges, increased to 18.6% in 2010 from 15.59%0092The year-over-year improvement in our housgirags margin, excluding inventory
impairment and land option contract abandonmentgesa reflected an increase in homes delivered formew, value-engineered products,
which are designed to be built with lower direchstuction costs, and improved operating efficieacValue-engineering encompasses
measures such as simplifying the location and liasitan of internal plumbing and electrical systemsing prefabricated wall panels, flooring
systems, roof trusses and other building componants generally employing construction technigies minimize costs and maximize
efficiencies. It also
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includes working continuously with our trade parthend materials suppliers to reduce direct coostnu costs and construction cycle times.
Our housing gross margin in 2010 was also favorabpacted by an increase in homes delivered fromneonities newly opened during the
year that had a lower land cost basis comparedatoyrof our older communities, an increase in hod#divered from markets that suppor
higher selling prices, and the impact of inventompairment charges incurred in prior years, whimldred our land cost basis with respect to
the relevant communities.

Our land sales generated income of $.1 milliond@1Z2 compared to losses of $.3 million in 2010 &4d.9 million in 2009. The land sale
results in 2011, 2010 and 2009 included impairncbiarges of $.1 million, $.3 million and $10.5 nauhi, respectively, related to planned future
land sales.

We evaluate our land and housing inventory for vecability in accordance with Accounting Standa@aslification Topic No. 360,
“Property, Plant, and Equipment” (“ASC 360"), wheeeindicators of potential impairment exist. Basgdour evaluations, we recognized
pretax, noncash charges for inventory impairmeh$2a.7 million in 2011, $9.8 million in 2010 and#0.8 million in 2009. In 2011, the
inventory impairment charges included an $18.lianladjustment to the fair value of real estatdatetal that we recorded upon the
foreclosure of a note receivable. The inventoryampent charges in all three years reflected dexjiasset values in certain markets due ti
challenging economic and housing market conditibisther deterioration in housing market supply dachand factors may lead to additional
impairment charges or cause us to reevaluate orkatirag strategy concerning certain assets thdtlo@sult in future charges associated with
land sales or the abandonment of land option cotstra

When we decide not to exercise certain land optamtracts or other similar contracts due to mackeditions and/or changes in our
marketing strategy, we write off the related inweptcosts, including non-refundable deposits amdguquisition costs. We recognized
abandonment charges associated with land optiomamis and other similar contracts of $3.1 millior2011, $10.1 million in 2010 and
$47.3 million in 2009. Inventory impairment and daoption contract abandonment charges are inclidednstruction and land costs in our
consolidated statements of operations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses thtdB7.9 million in 2011, down from $289.5 milliaom2010, which had decreased from
$303.0 million in 2009. The year-over-year decrdassach period reflected ongoing actions we haken to streamline our organizational
structure and reduce overhead costs. Such actawesihcluded consolidating certain homebuildingrapens, strategically exiting or winding
down activity in underperforming markets, and rédg®ur workforce in order to adjust the size of operations in line with market
conditions. A portion of these cost reductions wetated to lower salary and other payroll-relaggdenses stemming from year-over-year
decreases in our personnel count. Our selling,rgéaad administrative expenses also decrease@lih 2nd 2010 due to the lower volume of
homes delivered. As a percentage of housing rewemoievhich these expenses are most closely ctetklaelling, general and administrative
expenses were 19.0% in 2011, 18.4% in 2010 an@dih2009. The percentages increased in 2011 abd 28 the year-overear decreases
our housing revenues were larger than the correpgmeductions in our expenses.

The loss on loan guaranty of $30.8 million in 20&thted to South Edge and reflected the consummafia consensual plan of
reorganization of South Edge that was confirmed bynkruptcy court in November 2011 (the “Southé&=B{an”) and included, among other
things, the elimination of a limited several repahguaranty (the “Springing Guaranty”) that we paavided to the administrative agent for
the lenders to South Edge (the “Administrative Aferin connection with the South Edge Plan andrésolution of other matters surrounding
South Edge, we made payments of $251.9 millioménfourth quarter.

Interest Income.  Interest income, which is generated from skema investments and mortgages receivable, toaRdillion in 2011,
$2.1 million in 2010 and $7.5 million in 2009. Geally, increases and decreases in interest incamattibutable to changes in the interest-
bearing average balances of short-term investnemtsnortgages receivable, as well as fluctuationisterest rates. Mortgages receivable are
primarily related to land sales. In 2011, the yeaeryear decline in interest income reflected a deeréashe average balance of cash and
equivalents we maintained and lower interest rathe.year-over-year decrease in interest incon20i® was mainly due to lower interest
rates.

Interest Expense.  Interest expense results principally from bairgs to finance land purchases, housing inveraoiy other operating
and capital needs. Our interest expense, net ofiata@apitalized, totaled $49.2 million in 20118%5million in 2010 and $51.8 million in
20009. Interest expense for 2011 included a $3.Bamigain on the early extinguishment of secureltde 2010, interest expense included
$1.8 million of
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debt issuance costs written off in connection witin voluntary reduction of the aggregate commitmerder the Credit Facility and our
subsequent voluntary termination of the Credit Rgicin 2009, interest expense included a losgarly redemption of debt of $1.0 million.
This amount represented a $3.7 million loss assetiaith our early redemption of $250.0 millionaggregate principal amount of the

$350 Million Senior Notes, partly offset by a gain$2.7 million associated with our early extinduigent of mortgages and land contracts due
to land sellers and other loans. The percentaggeriest capitalized was 54% in 2011, 45% in 201® %7% in 2009. The percentage of inte
capitalized in 2011 rose from 2010 due to an irseeéa the amount of inventory qualifying for intstreapitalization. The percentage for 2010
decreased from 2009 due to a decrease in the arobimventory qualifying for interest capitalizatioGross interest incurred during 2011
decreased by $10.2 million to $112.0 million, fr§d22.2 million in 2010 as a result of a lower agerdebt level in 2011 and the $3.6 million
gain on the early extinguishment of secured detitided in 2011, compared to the write off of $1.8liom of debt issuance costs included in
2010. Gross interest incurred during 2010 incredse$?.6 million from $119.6 million in 2009, primily due to the write-off of debt issuance
costs and a higher overall average interest ratedioowings in 2010.

Equity in Loss of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures.  Our unconsolidated joint ventures operate ifows markets, typically where our
homebuilding operations are located. These uncum@et joint ventures posted combined revenuesiilion in 2011, $122.2 million in
2010 and $60.8 million in 2009. The marked yearrapear decrease in unconsolidated joint venturemaes in 2011 primarily reflected
substantially fewer homes delivered and no lanéssttbm our unconsolidated joint ventures during220n 2010, combined revenues from
unconsolidated joint ventures increased from 2@0§dly due to the sale of land from an unconsaidgint venture in our Southeast
homebuilding reporting segment. Activities perfochi®/ our unconsolidated joint ventures generalghide acquiring, developing and selling
land, and, in some cases, constructing and deligégromes. Our unconsolidated joint ventures dedideme home in 2011, 102 homes in 2010
and 141 homes in 2009, reflecting in part the lomenber of unconsolidated joint venture investmémas delivered homes in each year. Our
unconsolidated joint ventures generated combingskl® of $4.3 million in 2011, $17.2 million in 20408d $102.9 million in 2009. Our equity
in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures totaled.85million in 2011, $6.3 million in 2010 and $4%llion in 2009. In 2011, our equity in loss
of unconsolidated joint ventures included a charfg®53.7 million to write off our remaining invesémt in South Edge, as discussed below
under “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.” In 2009, equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventunesliuded a charge of $38.5 million to
recognize the impairment of certain unconsolidgdé@tt ventures primarily in our West Coast, Soutbtv@nd Southeast homebuilding reporting
segments. There were no such charges in 2010.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This report contains information about our housingss margin, excluding inventory impairment anttlaption contract abandonment
charges, and our ratio of net debt to total capitath of which are not calculated in accordandé wenerally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”). We believe these noAAP financial measures are relevant and usefivtestors in understanding our operations andeherhag:
employed in our operations, and may be helpfubimgaring us with other companies in the homebujjdirdustry to the extent they provide
similar information. However, because the housirgsg margin, excluding inventory impairment anddlaption contract abandonment
charges, and the ratio of net debt to total capitalnot calculated in accordance with GAAP, tHawmmcial measures may not be completely
comparable to other companies in the homebuildidgstry and thus, should not be considered intisplar as an alternative to operating
performance and/or financial measures prescribe@A%P. Rather, these non-GAAP financial measuresilshbe used to supplement their
respective most directly comparable GAAP finanoiglasures in order to provide a greater understgrafithe factors and trends affecting our
operations.
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Housing Gross Margin, Excluding Inventory Impairment and Land Option Contract Abandonment Charges. The following table
reconciles our housing gross margin calculatec@oadance with GAAP to the non-GAAP financial maasof our housing gross margin,
excluding inventory impairment and land option caot abandonment charges (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
Housing revenue $ 1,305,29! $1,575,48 $ 1,758,15
Housing construction and land co (1,129,78) (1,301,67) (1,643,75)
Housing gross margi 175,51 273,81( 114,40(
Add: Inventory impairment and land option contr

abandonment charg 25,74( 19,57; 157,64
Housing gross margin, excluding inventory impairireemd

land option contract abandonment chai $ 201,25 $ 293,38 $ 272,04
Housing gross margin as a percentage of housirences 13.2% 17.2% 6.5%
Housing gross margin, excluding inventory impairiremd

land option contract abandonment charges, as amage

of housing revenue 15.2% 18.€% 15.5%

Housing gross margin, excluding inventory impairtremd land option contract abandonment chargesnn-GAAP financial measure,
which we calculate by dividing housing revenues lesusing construction and land costs before pretmxcash inventory impairment and land
option contract abandonment charges associatechaithing operations recorded during a given petigcousing revenues. The most dire
comparable GAAP financial measure is housing gnoaggin. We believe housing gross margin, excludingntory impairment and land
option contract abandonment charges, is a relevahtiseful financial measure to investors in evalgaour performance as it measures the
gross profit we generated specifically on the hodedivered during a given period and enhances ¢hegparability of housing gross margin
between periods. This financial measure assisits nking strategic decisions regarding product, mpeduct pricing and construction pace.
We also believe investors will find housing grossrgin, excluding inventory impairment and land opttontract abandonment charges,
relevant and useful because it represents a piitijameasure that may be compared to a priorgaewithout regard to variability of pretax,
noncash charges for inventory impairments or lgstiba contract abandonments.

Ratio of Net Debt to Total Capital.  The following table reconciles our ratio of tié&btotal capital calculated in accordance withAFA
to the non-GAAP financial measure of our ratio ef debt to total capital (dollars in thousands):

November 30,

2011 2010
Mortgages and notes payable $1,583,57. $1,775,52!
Stockholder equity 442,65’ 631,87¢
Total capital $2,026,22 $ 2,407,40
Ratio of debt to capitz 78.2% 73.8%
Mortgages and notes payal $1,583,57. $1,775,52!
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and restrictec 479,53)) (1,019,87)
Net debt 1,104,041 755,65
Stockholder equity 442,65’ 631,87¢
Total capital $1,546,69 $ 1,387,522
Ratio of net debt to total capit 71.2% 54.5%
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The ratio of net debt to total capital is a non-GAMnancial measure, which we calculate by dividingrtgages and notes payable, net of
homebuilding cash and cash equivalents and resdricash, by total capital (mortgages and notesly@yaet of homebuilding cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash, plus stockholagysity). The most directly comparable GAAP finaieheasure is the ratio of debt to capital.
We believe the ratio of net debt to total capiadirelevant and useful financial measure to ivesh understanding the leverage employed in
our operations.

HOMEBUILDING SEGMENTS
The following table presents financial informati@tated to our homebuilding reporting segmentgHeryears indicated (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
West Coast
Revenue: $ 589,38 $ 700,64 $ 812,20
Construction and land cos (488,88)) (545,98) (792,18)
Selling, general and administrative exper (56,616 (64,459 (79,659
Operating income (los: 43,88¢ 90,20: (59,639
Other, ne (24,249 (29,95 (28,809
Pretax income (los $ 19,63¢ $ 60,25( $ (88,44)
Southwest
Revenue! $ 139,87. $ 187,73t $ 218,09¢
Construction and land cos (129,46%) (141,88) (210,26%)
Selling, general and administrative exper (29,402 (45,469 (35,48%)
Loss on loan guaran (30,769 — —
Operating income (los! (49,769 39C (27,65")
Other, ne (58,509 (16,199 (20,919
Pretax los: $ (108,269 $ (15,807 $ (48,57
Central:
Revenue! $ 369,70 $ 436,40 $ 434,40
Construction and land cos (316,409 (364,73 (391,279
Selling, general and administrative exper (59,709 (62,55() (62,645
Operating income (los! (6,412) 9,11¢ (19,519
Other, ne (6,512 (10,890() (9,869)
Pretax los: $ (12,929 $ (4,779 $ (29,38)
Southeast
Revenue: $ 206,59t $ 256,97¢ $ 351,71
Construction and land cos (189,22) (245,416 (346,729
Selling, general and administrative exper (39,34) (36,059 (40,097
Operating los: (21,970 (24,49 (35,109
Other, ne (16,019 (18,309 (43,306
Pretax los: $ (37,98) $ (42,80) $ (78,419

39




Table of Contents

The following table presents information concerning housing revenues, homes delivered and avesdlijeg price by homebuilding
reporting segment:

Percentagt Percentagt
of of
Total Total Average
Housing Housing Homes Homes Selling
Years Ended November 30 Revenues Revenues Delivered Delivered Price
(in thousands
2011
West Coas $ 589,38 45% 1,757 3C% $335,50(
Southwes 139,76: 11 8423 15 165,80(
Central 369,55: 28 2,15¢ 37 171,50(
Southeas 206,59¢ 16 1,057 18 195,50(
Total $1,305,29! 10(% 5,81 10C% $224,60(
2010
West Coas $ 700,64! 44% 2,02: 27% $346,30(
Southwes 181,91 12 1,15(C 16 158,20(
Central 435,94° 28 2,662 36 163,70(
Southeas 256,97¢ 16 1,51(C 21 170,20(
Total $1,575,48 10(% 7,34¢€ 10(% $214,50(
2009
West Coas $ 772,88t 44% 2,452 2% $315,10(
Southwes 206,74 12 1,20z 14 172,00(
Central 430,79¢ 24 2,771 33 155,50(
Southeas 347,72¢ 20 2,062 24 168,60(
Total $1,758,15 10C% 8,48¢ 10(% $207,10(

West Coast .  Our West Coast homebuilding reporting segnpentiuced total revenues of $589.4 million in 20hd &700.7 million in
2010, all of which were generated entirely from $iag operations. Housing revenues in 2011 declirfé®d from 2010 due to a 13% decrease
in the number of homes delivered and a 3% declirthé average selling price. Homes delivered dsegtto 1,757 in 2011 from 2,023 homes
in 2010, largely due to the lower backlog levetret beginning of 2011, compared to the prior yesftecting the after effects of the expiration
of the Tax Credit and generally weak housing macketitions. The average selling price declinefi385,500 in 2011 from $346,300 in 20

This segment posted pretax income of $19.6 miliio2011 and $60.3 million in 2010. The year-oveatydecrease in pretax income was
primarily due to lower gross profits, partly offdst a decrease in selling, general and adminigga&kpenses. The gross margin decreased to
17.1% in 2011 from 22.1% in 2010. This decreasepviasarily due to comparatively fewer homes delacgefrom higher-margin communities,
largely as a result of higher-margin communitiest there closed out in the prior year, and redueedrbge from the lower volume of homes
delivered, partially offset by favorable warrantjjustments. Pretax, noncash charges for inventopairments and land option contract
abandonments totaled $3.3 million in 2011 and $4ilBon in 2010. These charges represented less 1B& of segment total revenues in both
2011 and 2010. Selling, general and administragikmgenses decreased by $7.9 million, or 12%, toah8flion in 2011 from $64.5 million in
2010, due to a gain on the sale of a mielel residential building we had operated as &teroperty, partly offset by increased legal enqe=
in 2011.

In 2010, revenues from this segment decreased @49600.7 million from $812.2 million in 2009 dueltawer housing and land sale
revenues. Housing revenues decreased by 9% infR@h05772.9 million in 2009 as a result of an 18&tmase in homes delivered, partially
offset by a 10% increase in the average sellingepiivVe delivered 2,023 homes at an average s@lling of $346,300 in 2010 and 2,453 ho
at an average selling price of $315,100 in 200® iflerease in the average selling price in 2010maisly due to a shift in product mix to
larger homes, somewhat improved operating conditiand an increase in homes delivered from centairkets within this segment that
supported higher selling prices. There were no kald revenues from this segment in 2010. Landrsabnues totaled $39.3 million in 2009.
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This segment generated pretax income of $60.3anillh 2010, compared to a pretax loss of $88.4ianilin 2009. Pretax results
improved in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily dua teduction in pretax, noncash charges for invgritopairments and land option contract
abandonments and lower selling, general and adirédtiiee expenses. Pretax, noncash charges for iomeimpairments and land option
contract abandonments decreased to $4.6 milli@d4® from $77.6 million in 2009, and were less thé&h of segment total revenues in 2010,
compared to 10% of segment total revenues in ZDBO.gross margin improved to 22.1% in 2010 fron®2iB 2009, reflecting an increase in
the average selling price, a decrease in directoaction costs and lower inventory-related impa&intnand abandonment charges in 2010.
Selling, general and administrative expenses of36dllion in 2010 decreased by $15.2 million, 824, from $79.7 million in 2009, primarily
due to cost reduction initiatives and the lower bamof homes delivered. Other, net expenses indlandgoint venture impairment charges in
2010 and $7.2 million of such charges in 2009.

Southwest . Total revenues from our Southwest homebuildeqprting segment decreased 26% to $139.9 milli&011 from
$187.7 million in 2010, reflecting lower housingddand sale revenues. Housing revenues declinedt@ ¥439.8 million in 2011 from
$181.9 million in 2010 due to a 27% decrease imimaber of homes delivered, partially offset bya iBicrease in the average selling price.
We delivered 843 homes in 2011 compared to 1,150esalelivered in 2010, reflecting lower backlogelevat the beginning of 2011 due to
generally weak housing market demand and the efflects of the expiration of the Tax Credit. Themage selling price of $165,800 in 2011
increased from $158,200 in 2010 mainly due to & shcommunity and product mix. This segment gatedt land sale revenues of $.1 million
in 2011 and $5.8 million in 2010.

Pretax losses from this segment increased to $108i8n in 2011 from $15.8 million in 2010, largetiue to the $53.7 million noncash
joint venture impairment charge we incurred in imgtoff our remaining investment in South Edge ar#B0.8 million loss on loan guarar
also related to South Edge. The gross margin deede® 7.4% in 2011 from 24.4% in 2010, primaréflecting pretax, noncash inventory
impairment and land option contract abandonmentgelsa and reduced operating leverage from the lowieime of homes delivered, partially
offset by favorable warranty adjustments. Theseggstotaled $19.0 million in 2011 compared to $tillion of such charges in the year-
earlier period, primarily due to an $18.1 milliodjastment to the fair value of real estate colkiténat we recorded upon the foreclosure of a
note receivable in 2011. Inventory impairment aarttl option contract abandonment charges represgatédf segment total revenues in
2011 and less than 1% of segment total revenu281ifi. Selling, general and administrative expedseseased by $16.1 million, or 35%, to
$29.4 million in 2011 from $45.5 million in 20105 a result of ongoing overhead cost reductionsetdegal expenses and the lower volume of
homes delivered. Other, net expenses in 2011 inditide $53.7 million joint venture impairment charghere were no such charges in 2010.

In 2010, total revenues from this segment decre24@ato $187.7 million from $218.1 million in 200®ainly due to lower housing
revenues. Housing revenues decreased 12% to $i#lich in 2010 from $206.7 million in 2009, refliieg a 4% decrease in the number of
homes delivered and an 8% decline in the averdtegprice. We delivered 1,150 homes in 2010, careg to 1,202 homes delivered in 2C
principally due to our operating strategically feveemmunities in this segment year over year. Nerage selling price decreased to
$158,200 in 2010 from $172,000 in 2009 due to doanwpricing pressures from intense competition @andcontinued rollout of new product
at lower price points compared to our previous pobdLand sale revenues totaled $5.8 million in@6a@mpared to $11.4 million in 2009.

Pretax losses from this segment narrowed to $18l@®min 2010 from $48.6 million in 2009, largetue to a decrease in pretax, nonc
charges for inventory impairments. These chargesedsed to $1.0 million in 2010 and representesitlean 1% of segment total revenues. In
2009, pretax, noncash inventory impairment chatotded $28.8 million and represented 13% of sednwal revenues. The gross margin
improved to 24.4% in 2010 from 3.6% in 2009, refileg a decrease in direct construction costs aadeHuction in inventory impairment
charges. Selling, general and administrative exgeimereased by $10.0 million, or 28%, to $45.8iamlin 2010 from $35.5 million in 2009,
mainly due to a charge associated with the writedofa note receivable, and higher legal and atbiegtexpenses. Other, net expenses
included no joint venture impairment charges in@@hd $5.4 million of such charges in 2009.

Central . Total revenues from our Central homebuildiegarting segment decreased 15% to $369.7 milli@0iil from $436.4 millio
in 2010, due to a decline in housing revenues. gugvenues decreased 15% to
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$369.5 million in 2011 from $435.9 million in 2058 a result of a 19% decrease in the number of boielevered, partly offset by a 5%
increase in the average selling price. Homes deli/decreased to 2,155 in 2011 from 2,663 in 26 cting the lower backlog level at the
start of 2011 due largely to the generally weaksmy market conditions, the after effects of thpigation of the Tax Credit, and the strategic
community count reductions we made in prior peritdalign our operations in this segment with pivg housing market activity. The
average selling price rose to $171,500 in 2011 f$d®3,700 in 2010, primarily due to a shift in coomity and product mix to larger homes.
This segment generated land sale revenues of #idmin 2011 and $.5 million in 2010.

Pretax losses from this segment totaled $12.9aniiln 2011 and $1.8 million in 2010. The pretaslés 2011 included $1.4 million of
pretax, noncash inventory impairment and land optiontract abandonment charges, compared to $#i®muf pretax, noncash land option
contract abandonment charges in 2010. As a pegenfasegment total revenues, these charges wsx¢hlen 1% in 2011 and 2% in 2010."
gross margin decreased to 14.4% in 2011 from 1642010, primarily reflecting reduced operatingdeage from the lower volume of homes
delivered. Selling, general and administrative eges of $59.7 million in 2011 decreased by $2.%ionil or 5%, from $62.6 million in 2010.

In 2010, this segment generated total revenued38.8 million, up slightly from $434.4 million in0B9, reflecting higher housing
revenues. Housing revenues rose 1% to $435.9 miti@010 from $430.8 million in 2009, mainly duea 5% increase in the average selling
price, partly offset by a 4% decline in the numbkhomes delivered. Homes delivered decreased&B4n 2010 from 2,771 in 2009. The
average selling price rose to $163,700 in 2010 f§d%5,500 in 2009, primarily due to favorable chesiijn community and product mix, with
greater number of homes delivered from locatioqpstting higher selling prices, and somewhat imprbeperating conditions in certain
markets within this segment. Land sale revenueset$.5 million in 2010 and $3.6 million in 2009.

This segment posted pretax losses of $1.8 millio2010 and $29.4 million in 2009. These pretaxItesmproved in 2010 compared to
2009 largely due to lower pretax, noncash inventefsited charges. The pretax loss in 2010 incldef million of pretax, noncash land
option contract abandonment charges, compared3® $gillion of pretax, noncash inventory impairmeharges in 2009. As a percentage of
segment total revenues, these pretax, noncasheshargye 2% in 2010 and 5% in 2009. The gross margimved to 16.4% in 2010 from
9.9% in 2009, mainly due to an increase in theayeselling price, a decrease in direct constrnaasts and lower inventory-related charges.
Selling, general and administrative expenses wtd&2.6 million in both 2010 and 2009.

Southeast.  Our Southeast homebuilding reporting segmenégeed total revenues of $206.6 million in 201dvd 20% from $257.0
million in 2010. Revenues in each year were gerdraplely from housing operations. In 2011, houségnues decreased from the previous
year due to a 30% decrease in the number of hoale®ikd, partly offset by a 15% increase in therage selling price. We delivered 1,
homes in 2011 compared to 1,510 homes in 201G lladpe to the lower backlog levels at the begigroh2011, mainly due to depressed net
order activity following the expiration of the T&cedit, and the strategic community count reductime made in prior periods to align our
operations in this segment with prevailing housimarket activity. The average selling price ros§165,500 in 2011 from $170,200 in 2010,
reflecting a change in product mix to larger horaed a higher number of homes delivered from maittketissupported higher selling prices in
2011.

This segment posted pretax losses of $38.0 miitic2011 and $42.8 million in 2010. The pretax lnasrowed on a year-over-year basis
due to an increase in the gross margin, and a ageia selling, general and administrative expenges gross margin improved to 8.4% in
2011 from 4.5% in 2010, largely due to the reduttiopretax, noncash charges for inventory impant®@nd land option contract
abandonments and the increase in the averagegspiite. In 2011, pretax, noncash charges for itorgrimpairments and land option contract
abandonments totaled $2.1 million, compared to $illon in 2010. As a percentage of segment tegaenues, these charges were 1% in .
and 3% in 2010. Selling, general and administragxeenses increased by $3.3 million, or 9%, to48dllion in 2011 from $36.1 million in
2010.

In 2010, this segment generated total revenue2sf.H million, down 27% from $351.7 million in 20Q®imarily due to lower housing
revenues. Housing revenues declined 26% to $25illidnmn 2010 from $347.7 million in 2009 due td2&% decrease in homes delivered,
partly offset by a 1% increase in the averagersgfiirice. We delivered 1,510 homes in 2010 compar@j062 homes in 2009, reflecting our
operating a strategically lower
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number of communities in this segment. The avesafleng price rose to $170,200 in 2010 from $168,802009, principally due to a change
in community and product mix. There were no land savenues in 2010. Land sale revenues totalédiridlion in 2009.

This segment posted pretax losses of $42.8 miitic2010 and $78.4 million in 2009. The pretax Inasrowed on a year-over-year basis,
primarily due to the decline in total pretax, nosttaharges for inventory impairments and land optiontract abandonments, which decreased
to $7.5 million in 2010 from $37.8 million in 2008s a percentage of segment total revenues, thesges were 3% in 2010 and 11% in 2009.
The gross margin improved to 4.5% in 2010 from 1id%009, largely due to the reduction in preteoneash charges for inventory
impairments and land option contract abandonmentdfze slight increase in the average selling p&edling, general and administrative
expenses decreased by $4.0 million, or 10%, tol$3@lion in 2010 from $40.1 million in 2009 as esult of our efforts to reduce overhead in
this segment in line with prevailing market conafiis. Other, net expenses included no joint ventopairment charges in 2010 and $25.9
million of such charges in 2009.

FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

Our financial services reporting segment provids and insurance services to our homebuyers.| @t June 2011, this segment also
provided mortgage banking services to a signifigaaportion of our homebuyers indirectly through XRlortgage, a former unconsolidated
joint venture of a subsidiary of ours and a sulasidof Bank of America, N.A., with each partner imgvhad a 50% ownership interest in
venture. The Bank of America, N.A. subsidiary partaperated KBA Mortgage. We accounted for KBA Mage as an unconsolidated joint
venture in the financial services reporting segnoématur consolidated financial statements. Ourrigial services reporting segment conducts
operations in the same markets as our homebuitéipgrting segments.

During the first quarter of 2011, the Bank of AntariN.A. subsidiary partner in KBA Mortgage apptoed us about exiting the
unconsolidated joint venture due to the desireaikBof America, N.A. to cease participating in jorenture structures in its business. As a
result, KBA Mortgage ceased offering mortgage bagldervices after June 30, 2011, and the uncorgetidoint ventures business operatio
were subsequently unwound. After June 30, 2011kB&America, N.A. processed and closed only tlsédential consumer mortgage loans
that KBA Mortgage had originated for our homebuyansor before June 26, 2011. KBA Mortgage origidatsidential consumer mortgage
loans for 67% of our customers who obtained moedgatancing during the period the former unconsaikd joint venture operated in 2011. In
2010, KBA Mortgage originated such loans for 82%wof customers who obtained mortgage financingnduttiat year; in 2009, the percent
was 84%.

We entered into a marketing services agreementM#thife Home Loans, a division of MetLife Bank, A, effective June 27, 2011.
Under the agreement, MetLife Home Loans’ persorlnefted on site at several of our new home comtiasnican offer (i) financing options
and mortgage loan products to our homebuyergo(jrequalify homebuyers for residential consumertgage loans, and (iii) to commence
the loan origination process for homebuyers whoteteuse MetLife Home Loans. We make marketingemials and other information
regarding MetLife Home Loans’ financing options andrtgage loan products available to our homebugedsare compensated solely for the
fair market value of these services. MetLife Honoahs and its parent company, MetLife Bank, N.Ag, raot affiliates of ours or any of our
subsidiaries. Our homebuyers are under no obligatiaise MetLife Home Loans and may select anyiges\of their choice to obtain
mortgage financing for the purchase of a home. Waat have any ownership, joint venture or othériests in or with MetLife Home Loans
or MetLife Bank, N.A. or with respect to the reveswr income that may be generated from MetLife Bldumans providing mortgage banking
services to, or originating residential consumertgage loans for, our homebuyers.

MetLife Bank, N.A. recently announced that it witase offering forward mortgage banking servicgsaatsof its business. While we are
evaluating various options, our strategic inteni®to reestablish a mortgage banking joint venturearketing relationship with a financial
institution or other mortgage banking services fter; but we can provide no assurance that webwitble to do so.
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The following table presents a summary of selefitethcial and operational data for our financiaveges segment (dollars in thousan

Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009

Revenues $ 10,30« $ 8,23¢ $ 843t
Expense: (3,512 (3,119 (3,25))
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture 19,28¢ 7,02¢ 14,01¢

Pretax incomt $ 26,07¢ $ 12,14 $ 19,19¢
Total originations (a)

Loans 1,63: 5,70¢ 7,17(

Principal $315,89¢ $1,092,50i $1,317,90

Percentage of homebuyers using KBA Mortg 67% 82% 84%
Loans sold to third parties (e

Loans 1,862 5,85( 6,967

Principal $370,59¢ $1,092,73! $1,275,68!

(&) Loan originations and sales occurred within KBA R@ige, which ceased offering mortgage banking sesvafter June 30, 201

Revenues.  Our financial services operations generatemegs primarily from insurance commissions, titlevezes, marketing services
fees and interest income. Financial services rex@mtaled $10.3 million in 2011, $8.2 million i8I0 and $8.4 million in 2009. The year-
over-year increase in financial services revenn&9il1 resulted mainly from the revenues associatttdour marketing services agreement
with MetLife Home Loans, and higher revenues frdie services.

Financial services revenues included revenues fitterservices and insurance commissions totali@ $nillion in 2011, $8.2 million in
2010 and $8.4 million in 2009, and a nominal amainhterest income in each year, which was eapredarily from money market deposits.
In 2011, financial services revenues also incluted million of revenues from marketing servicessfeThese fees are associated with the
marketing services agreement and represent thediie of the services we provided in connectiotihthie agreement.

Expenses.  General and administrative expenses totalesl ig8lion in 2011, $3.1 million in 2010 and $3.2llein in 2009.

Equity in Income/Gain on Wind Down of Unconsolidated Joint Venture.  The equity in income/gain on wind down of unsolidated
joint venture of $19.3 million in 2011, $7.0 miliidn 2010 and $14.0 million in 2009 related to 606 interest in KBA Mortgage. The amol
for 2011 included a gain of $19.8 million recordedhe fourth quarter in connection with the wirmath of KBA Mortgage. We received the
cash associated with the gain in early Decembet 2Bcluding the gain on the wind down of KBA Maatge in 2011, our equity in the loss of
the former unconsolidated mortgage banking joimtwee (i.e., KBA Mortgage) was $.5 million in 20khmpared to equity in income of the
former unconsolidated mortgage banking joint vemfr$7.0 million in 2010 as a result of KBA Mortgaceasing operations in late June 2
KBA Mortgage originated 1,633 loans in 2011, 5,T@ns in 2010 and 7,170 loans in 2009. The year-gear decrease in unconsolidated
joint venture income in 2010 was mainly due to elide in the number of loans originated by KBA Myage, reflecting in large part the low
volume of homes we delivered.

Our marketing services agreement with MetLife Hdmans did not result in any income for us basedmequity interest, as we are
compensated solely for the fair market value of¢beices we provide.
INCOME TAXES

We recognized income tax benefits of $2.4 millior2011, $7.0 million in 2010, and $209.4 millionZ809. The income tax benefit in
2011 reflected the reversal of a $2.6 million ligpifor unrecognized tax benefits due to the staififederal and state tax audits. The income
tax benefit in 2010 reflected the recognition &%a4 million federal
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income tax benefit from an additional carrybacloof 2009 NOLs to offset earnings we generated 0¥26hd 2005, and the reversal of a
$1.6 million liability for unrecognized tax benefitlue to the status of federal and state tax auditsincome tax benefit in 2009 resulted
primarily from the recognition of a $190.7 millidaderal income tax benefit based on the carryb&cun2009 NOLs to offset earnings we
generated in 2004 and 2005, and the reversal #6a3$nillion liability for unrecognized federal asthte tax benefits due to the status of
federal and state tax audits. Due to the effectsuofleferred tax asset valuation allowance, caclitof our NOLs, and changes in our
unrecognized tax benefits, our effective tax rate&011, 2010 and 2009 are not meaningful itemsuasncome tax amounts are not directly
correlated to the amount of our pretax lossesHose periods.

Due to the prolonged housing downturn, the assphirment and land option contract abandonment esang have incurred and the
NOLs we have posted, we have generated substdefired tax assets and established a correspowdlingtion allowance against certain
those deferred tax assets. In accordance with AtsauStandards Codification Topic No. 740, “Incoirexes” (“ASC 740"), we evaluate our
deferred tax assets quarterly to determine if dufjests to the valuation allowances are requiredC A80 requires that companies assess
whether valuation allowances should be establifiaséd on the consideration of all available evidamsing a “more likely than not” standard
with respect to whether deferred tax assets wilidadized. During 2011, we recorded a valuatioavedince of $76.7 million against net
deferred tax assets generated from the loss forgae During 2010, we recorded a net increas@dfi$million to the valuation allowance
against net deferred tax assets, reflecting a $2élieon valuation allowance recorded against teé deferred tax assets generated from the los:
for the year that was partially offset by the $illion federal income tax benefit from the additéd carryback of our 2009 NOLs.

During 2009, we recognized a net decrease of $128li®n in the valuation allowance, reflecting thet impact of a $67.5 million
increase in the valuation allowance recorded duttiledfirst nine months of 2009 that was more thiéseb by a decrease in the valuation
allowance of $196.3 million, primarily due to therefit derived from the carryback of our 2009 NOLke decrease in the valuation allowa
was reflected as a noncash income tax benefit 8 F1million and a noncash charge of $1.9 milliora¢cumulated other comprehensive loss.
The majority of the tax benefits associated with et deferred tax assets can be carried forward@gears and applied to offset future
taxable income.

Our net deferred tax assets totaled $1.1 milliomodlh November 30, 2011 and 2010. The deferredgart valuation allowance increased
to $847.8 million at November 30, 2011 from $77hillion at November 30, 2010, reflecting the nepamt of the $76.7 million valuation
allowance recorded in 2011.

The benefits of our NOLs, built-in losses and teedits would be reduced or potentially eliminateaé experienced an “ownership
change” under Section 382. Based on our analysierpged as of November 30, 2011, we do not belteat we have experienced an
ownership change as defined by Section 382, ardefibre, the NOLSs, built-in losses and tax credigshave generated should not be subject to
a Section 382 limitation as of this reporting date.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview. We historically have funded our homebuildingl éimancial services activities with internally ggated cash flows and
external sources of debt and equity financing.

During the period from mid-2006 through 2009, amhiel housing downturn, we focused on generating bygs#xiting or reducing our
investments in certain underperforming marketdingeland positions and interests, and improving fihancial performance of our
homebuilding operations. The cash generated frawsetiefforts improved our liquidity, enabled usdduce our debt levels and strengthened
our consolidated financial position. We continuertanage our use of cash in the operation of ounkss. In addition, in order to position our
operations to capitalize on future growth oppottiesi from late 2009 through 2011, we have alsoersicitegic acquisitions of attractive land
assets that met our investment and marketing stdsdand invested in land and land developmentdimtain a solid growth platform in our
targeted markets. We invested approximately $478omin land and land development in 2011, andrapimately $560 million in 2010. We
ended our 2011 fiscal year with $479.5 million etk and cash equivalents and restricted cash, cethfia$1.02 billion at November 30,
2010. The year-over-year decrease in our total, @@t equivalents and restricted cash was mairdyta payments of $251.9 million made in
the fourth quarter of 2011 in connection with theut Edge Plan and the resolution of other mattenounding South Edge, the repayment of
the remaining $100.0 million in aggregate princigadount of the $350 Million Senior Notes at their
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August 15, 2011 maturity, and the repayment of $88illion of mortgages and land contracts due tallsellers and other loans. The majority
of our cash and cash equivalents at November 30, 8Ad 2010 were invested in money market accandJ).S. government securities.

Capital Resources. At November 30, 2011, we had $1.58 billion afrtgages and notes payable outstanding compai®t 78 billion
outstanding at November 30, 2010, reflecting thmayenent of the remaining $100.0 million in aggregaincipal amount of the $350 Million
Senior Notes at their August 15, 2011 maturity, tredrepayment of $89.5 million of mortgages amutllaontracts due to land sellers and other
loans during 2011.

Our financial leverage, as measured by the ratitebt to total capital, was 78.2% at November 80,12 compared to 73.8% at
November 30, 2010. The increase in our financiadage primarily reflected the decrease in ourkdtolder¢ equity as a result of net losses
and asset impairment and land option contract alrandnt charges we incurred in 2011. Our ratio ofeét to total capital at November 30,
2011 was 71.4%, compared to 54.5% at November(®).2

At November 30, 2009, we maintained the Credit [Rgavith a syndicate of lenders that was schedttechature in November 2010.
Anticipating that we would not need to borrow untlex Credit Facility before its scheduled matuaity to trim the costs associated with
maintaining it, effective December 28, 2009, weuvtdrily reduced the aggregate commitment undeCtieglit Facility from $650.0 million to
$200.0 million, and effective March 31, 2010, wéwnarily terminated the Credit Facility.

Following our voluntary termination of the Credadility, we entered into the LOC Facilities withriaus financial institutions to obtain
letters of credit in the ordinary course of opergtbur business. As of November 30, 2011 and 20&thad $63.8 million and $87.5 million,
respectively, of letters of credit outstanding unithe LOC Facilities. The LOC Facilities requiretasdeposit and maintain cash with the
issuing financial institutions as collateral forrdetters of credit outstanding. The amount of aastintained for the LOC Facilities totaled $€
million at November 30, 2011 and $88.7 million atvémber 30, 2010, and these amounts were includessiricted cash on our consolidated
balance sheets as of those dates. We may mairggise or, if necessary or desirable, enter intlitamhal or expanded letter of credit facilities
or other similar facility arrangements or a newddréacility with the same or other financial irtstiions.

Under the terms of the Credit Facility, we wereuiegd, among other things, to maintain a minimumsmidated tangible net worth and
certain financial statement ratios, and were subgelmitations on acquisitions, inventories andébtedness. As a result of the Credit
Facility’s termination, these restrictions and riegmnents are no longer in effect.

In addition to the cash deposits maintained forll®€ Facilities, restricted cash on our consoliddialance sheet at November 30, 2010
included $26.8 million of cash in an escrow accaequired as collateral for a surety bond. As of'&taber 30, 2011, the surety provider no
longer required cash collateral on this bond.

The indenture governing our senior notes does omtiain any financial maintenance covenants. Sulbjespecified exceptions, the
indenture contains certain restrictive covenarnds, #@among other things, limit our ability to inaecured indebtedness, or engage in sale-
leaseback transactions involving property or assetse a certain specified value. Unlike our osearior notes, the terms governing our
$265 Million Senior Notes contain certain limitat®related to mergers, consolidations, and salass#ts. Under the terms of the indenture
must cause any subsidiary of ours that is or besanisignificant subsidiary,” as defined under RIH@2(w) of Regulation S-X, to provide a
guarantee with respect to our senior notes (theat@uor Subsidiaries”). In addition, we may caudeosubsidiaries of ours to provide such a
guarantee if we believe it to be in our or thevate subsidiary’s best interests. Condensed cateolg financial information for our
subsidiaries considered to be Guarantor Subsidigiprovided in Note 21. Supplemental Guarantforination in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in this report.

As of November 30, 2011, we were in compliance whthapplicable terms of all of our covenants urwersenior notes, the indenture,
and mortgages and land contracts due to land satet other loans. Our ability to secure futuret ieancing may depend in part on our ab
to remain in such compliance.

As discussed further below under “Off-Balance SWaetngements,” during the fourth quarter of 204/, made payments of
$251.9 million in connection with the South EdgarPand the resolution of other matters surroun&imgth Edge, which included, among o
things, the elimination of a Springing Guaranty lveel provided to the Administrative Agent.
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By maintaining a disciplined approach to land aatll development investments, we ended our 2014l figar with a balance of cash
and cash equivalents and restricted cash of $4#Mibn after making the South Edge-related payragpaying down debt and funding our
2011 operating needs. We will continue to evaloatefuture cash requirements and financing oppdiasavailable in the capital and bank
loan markets. Depending on economic, housing apidatanarket conditions and resource allocatioonities, we plan to use a portion of our
unrestricteccash and cash equivalents in 2012 to acquire additiand assets and open new home communitiegpfmst our primary stratec
goal of achieving and maintaining profitability. €land acquisition and new home community openilaggfor 2012 are further discussed
below under “Outlook.”

Depending on available terms, we finance certaid Ecquisitions with purchageeney financing from land sellers or with othemf@rof
financing from third parties. At November 30, 20&k had outstanding mortgages and land contraetsaliand sellers and other loans pay
in connection with such financing of $25.0 millisecured primarily by the underlying property, whiiad a carrying value of $62.3 million.

Consolidated Cash Flows.  Operating, investing and financing activities usetlcash of $490.4 million in 2011 and $269.5 wiillin
2010. These activities provided net cash of $36lHomin 2009.

Operating Activities.  Operating activities used net cash of $34716aniin 2011 and $133.9 million in 2010, and prded net cash of
$349.9 million in 2009. The year-over-year changaét operating cash flows in 2011 largely reflddtee $190.7 million federal income tax
refund we received during 2010 as there was no sfahd received in 2011. In 2010, the year-ovexryghange in net operating cash was
primarily due to an increase in inventories, refleg our land acquisition initiative.

Our uses of cash for operating activities in 20iduded a net loss of $178.8 million, a net de@éasccounts payable, accrued expe
and other liabilities of $253.5 million, a net iease in inventories of $12.3 million (excluding tkeal estate collateral in our Southwest
homebuilding reporting segment that we recordedupe foreclosure of a $40.0 million note receieglmventory impairment and land option
contract abandonment charges, and an increasedffiffion in consolidated inventories not owneahet increase in receivables of
$2.2 million and other operating uses of $2.3 williThe net decrease in accounts payable, accrpethges and other liabilities was largely
due to payments we made in connection with thetSBdge Plan and in resolving other matters surrimgn8outh Edge.

In 2010, our uses of operating cash included @leetease in accounts payable, accrued expensedterdiabilities of $199.2 million, a
net increase in inventories of $129.3 million (extihg inventory impairments and land option corttedzandonments, $55.2 million of
inventories acquired through seller financing antterease of $41.6 million in consolidated inveie®not owned) in conjunction with our le
acquisition initiative, a net loss of $69.4 millicend other operating uses of $1.7 million. Pdytiaffsetting the cash used was a decrease in
receivables of $211.3 million, mainly due to thé@8X million federal income tax refund we receideting the first quarter as a result of the
carryback of our 2009 NOLs to offset earnings weegated in 2004 and 2005.

Operating cash in 2009 was provided by a net dsergminventories of $433.1 million (excluding iméery impairments and land option
contract abandonments, $16.2 million of inventodeguired through seller financing, a decreasets6t3million in consolidated inventories
not owned, and an increase of $97.6 million in mweies in connection with the consolidation oftaér previously unconsolidated joint
ventures), other operating sources of $8.3 milliad various noncash items added to the net loghdoyear. The cash provided in 2009 was
partly offset by a decrease in accounts payabtruad expenses and other liabilities of $252.6ioniland a net loss of $101.8 million.

Investing Activities.  Investing activities provided net cash of $1®illion in 2011, and used net cash of $16.1 millio 2010 and $21
million in 2009. The year-over-year change in meeisting cash flows in 2011 was primarily due togaeds of $80.6 million received in 2011
from the sale of a multi-level residential building had operated as a rental property in our Weasthomebuilding reporting segment. The
cash provided was partly offset by $67.2 milliordi$or investments in unconsolidated joint ventwaed $.3 million used for net purchases of
property and equipment. In 2010, cash of $15.7ianilas used for investments in unconsolidated jpémtures and $.4 million was used for
net purchases of property and equipment. The yearyear decrease in cash used for investing &etvin 2010 was primarily due to a
reduction in our investments and participationicansolidated joint ventures compared to the pré@r. In 2009, $19.9 million of cash was
used for investments in unconsolidated joint vezgand $1.4 million of cash was used for net puebaf property and equipment.
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Financing Activities.  Net cash used for financing activities toted®5.9 million in 2011, $119.5 million in 2010 a$#92.2 million in
2009. The year-over-year increase in 2011 was l\adyee to the repayment of debt, partly offset learease in restricted cash. We used a
larger amount of cash for financing activities D02 than in 2010 primarily due to our repaymer20.0 million in aggregate principal
amount of 85 8% senior subordinated notes at their schedulednhaia December 2008.

In 2011, cash was used for the repayment of thairéng $100.0 million in aggregate principal amoahthe $350 Million Senior Notes
at their August 15, 2011 maturity, and for net papbs on mortgages and land contracts due to ldiedssand other loans of $89.5 million,
primarily related to the repayment of debt secumngthe multi-level residential building we sold thg the year. Uses of cash in 2011 also
included dividend payments on our common stockl®. % million. The cash used was partially offsetat§51.0 million decrease in our
restricted cash balance, of which $26.8 milliomred to cash collateral no longer required on atgurond, and $1.8 million of cash provided
from the issuance of common stock under employaek gilans.

In 2010, cash was used for net payments on morsgage land contracts due to land sellers and ¢dhes of $101.2 million, dividend
payments on our common stock of $19.2 million,raaréase in the restricted cash balance of $1.2omjland repurchases of common stock of
$.4 million in connection with the satisfactionerhployee withholding taxes on vested restrictedkst®he cash used was partially offset by
$1.9 million provided from the issuance of commtatk under employee stock plans and $.6 milliomfrexcess tax benefits associated with
the exercise of stock options.

Our board of directors declared four quarterly cdisidends of $.0625 per share of common stockmdpioioth 2011 and 2010. The
declaration and payment of future cash dividendewrcommon stock are at the discretion of our #d@ddirectors, and depend upon, among
other things, our expected future earnings, cashsf| capital requirements, debt structure and diysaments thereto, operational and financial
investment strategy and general financial condjteanwell as general business conditions.

In 2009, cash was used for the repayment of $28@l®n in aggregate principal amount of the $350liBh Senior Notes and the
$200.0 million in aggregate principal amount of & % senior subordinated notes due December 15, 200@&iamaturity, payments of
$79.0 million on mortgages and land contracts duertd sellers and other loans, dividend paymemtsus common stock of $19.1 million,
payment of senior notes issuance costs of $4.3omjland repurchases of common stock of $.6 milliooonnection with the satisfaction of
employee withholding taxes on vested restrictedkstbhese uses of cash were partly offset by $28#8llibn of cash provided from the
issuance of the $265 Million Senior Notes, $3.1lionl of cash provided from the issuance of commoglsunder employee stock plans and
$1.1 million of cash provided from a reduction lire tbalance of cash deposited in an interest resec@unt we established in connection with
the Credit Facility (which was restricted cash).

Shelf Registration Satement. We have an automatically effective universal shegfistration statement on file with the SEC, whieds
filed on September 20, 2011 (the “2011 Shelf Regfisin”). The 2011 Shelf Registration registersafffering of debt and equity securities that
we may issue from time to time in amounts to beeined.

Share Repurchase Program. As of November 30, 2011, we were authorized to repase four million shares of our common stock ura
board-approved share repurchase program. We dicepotchase any shares of our common stock unidepitbgram in 2011. We have not
repurchased common shares pursuant to a commdarsfmerchase plan for the past several years apndesnmption of such stock
repurchases will be at the discretion of our badrdirectors.

In the present environment, we are managing oupfisash for investments to maintain and grow augifiess. Based on our current
capital position, we believe we will have adequatources and sufficient access to external fimgnsources to satisfy our current and
reasonably anticipated long-term requirementsdod$ to acquire capital assets and land, to caridtnmes, to finance our financial services
operations, and to meet any other needs in th@anglcourse of our business. Our intent is to marmag business to a cash neutral position for
2012, as further described below under “OutlooKthéugh our land acquisition and land developmetiviies in 2012 will remain subject to
market conditions, we are analyzing potential agsqtisitions and are likely to use a portion af eurestricted cash resources to purchase
assets that meet our investment and marketing atdsdin 2012, we may also use or redeploy ourstiiceed cash and cash equivalents or
engage in other financial transactions, includiagit@al markets, bank loan or credit facility or jet or other financing transactions. These
transactions may include repurchases from timare of our outstanding senior notes or other detatugh tender offers, exchange offers,
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open market purchases or other means, and may&plotential new issuances of senior notes or atbler through public offerings, private
placements or other arrangements. Our ability gmge in such financial transactions, however, megdnstrained by economic or capital
markets or bank lending conditions, and/or ourenfrieverage ratios and we can provide no assukdrtbe success of any such financial
transactions.

On January 19, 2012, we announced the commencerheash tender offers for up to $250 million in eggate principal amount of ou
3/ 4% senior notes due 2014 and of out 3% senior notes due 2015 and 64 % senior notes due 2015. The tender offers arggbuade
pursuant to an Offer to Purchase dated JanuargQl2 and a related Letter of Transmittal, whichfegh a more detailed description of the
tender offers. Upon the terms and subject to timelitions described in the Offer to Purchase, thigek®f Transmittal and any amendments or
supplements to the foregoing, we are offering tcpase for cash up to $100 million in aggregategypial amount (the “Maximum 2014
Amount”) of the 53 4% senior notes due 2014 (the “2014 Note TenderrQffand up to $250 million in aggregate principahount, less any
amount accepted in the 2014 Note Tender Offer,“ftheximum 2015 Amount” and together with the Maxim2014 Amount, the “Maximum
Tender Amounts”) of the B g% senior notes due 2015 and 64 % senior notes due 2015 (the “2015 Note Tenderr®ffeWe reserve the
right to increase or waive either or both of thexMaum Tender Amounts subject to compliance withligaple law. These tender offers will
expire at 11:59 p.m., New York City time, on Febgua5, 2012, unless extended or earlier terming®ed.obligation to accept for purchase
and to pay for each series validly tendered irey@icable tender offer is subject to the satisfecbr waiver of a number of conditions,
including our completion of a proposed offer anke d unsecured senior debt securities on termsoresbly satisfactory to us. We intend to
offer the unsecured senior debt securities unde20oll Shelf Registration.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have investments in unconsolidated joint versttinat conduct land acquisition, development anolteer homebuilding activities in
various markets where our homebuilding operatisadacated. Our partners in these unconsolidatied yentures are unrelated homebuilders,
and/or land developers and other real estate &htitr commercial enterprises. We enter into thesensolidated joint ventures primarily to
reduce or share market and development risks aimtitease the number of our owned and controlleddsites. In some instances,
participating in unconsolidated joint ventures baabled us to acquire and develop land that we tmigthotherwise have had access to due
project’s size, financing needs, duration of depeient or other circumstances. While we considempauticipation in unconsolidated joint
ventures as potentially beneficial to our homebnddactivities, we do not view such participatiacnessential and have unwound our
participation in a number of these unconsolidatéet jventures in the past few years.

We typically have obtained rights to purchase paodiof the land held by the unconsolidated joimtwees in which we participate. When
an unconsolidated joint venture sells land to @mmaébuilding operations, we defer recognition of sliare of such unconsolidated joint ven
earnings until a home sale is closed and titlegmtsa homebuyer, at which time we account foselgarnings as a reduction of the cost of
purchasing the land from the unconsolidated joértture.

We and our unconsolidated joint venture partnersamitial and/or ongoing capital contributionsti@se unconsolidated joint ventures,
typically on a pro rata basis equal to our respeatiquity interests. The obligations to make cépitatributions are governed by each
unconsolidated joint venture’s respective operagiggeement and related documents. We also shére profits and losses of these
unconsolidated joint ventures generally in accocdamith our respective equity interests. These nsolidated joint ventures had total asse
$396.9 million at November 30, 2011 and $789.4iorilat November 30, 2010. The decrease primariftes to South Edge. Due to a
bankruptcyeourt approved disposition of the land previouskned by South Edge, pursuant to the South Edge ®ldnspirada Builders, LL
in the fourth quarter of 2011, South Edge had rsetssor liabilities at November 30, 2011. InspirBddders, LLC is an unconsolidated joint
venture formed in connection with the South EdgsPh which a wholly owned subsidiary of ours im@mber. Our investment in
unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $127.9 mill&a November 30, 2011 and $105.6 million at Noveng®, 2010.

Our unconsolidated joint ventures finance land iamdntory investments for a project through a ugreff arrangements. To finance their
respective land acquisition and development a@#itcertain of our unconsolidated
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joint ventures have obtained loans from t-party lenders that are secured by the underlyingerty and related project assets. None of our
unconsolidated joint ventures had outstanding debtovember 30, 2011. Of our unconsolidated joerttures at November 30, 2010, only
South Edge had outstanding debt, which was sedyredien on South Edge’s assets, with a prindidnce of $327.9 million.

In certain instances, we and/or our partner(shinrzconsolidated joint venture have provided comigrieand/or carve-out guarantees to
the unconsolidated joint venture’s lenders. A cagtiph guaranty refers to the physical completiomgfrovements for a project and/or the
obligation to contribute equity to an unconsolidij@nt venture to enable it to fund its completmlsligations. Our potential responsibility
under our completion guarantees, if triggeredjgdlly dependent on the facts of a particular cAsearve-out guaranty generally refers to the
payment of losses a lender suffers due to certaindots or omissions by an unconsolidated jointureror its partners, such as fraud or
misappropriation, or due to environmental liak@itiarising with respect to the relevant project.dé/eot believe that we currently have
exposure with respect to any of our completionaswe-out guarantees.

In addition to completion and carve-out guaranteesprovided the Springing Guaranty to the Admmaitite Agent in connection with
secured loans made to South Edge. On Februaryl3, 2bankruptcy court entered an order for relied Chapter 11 involuntary bankruptcy
petition (the “Petition”) filed against South Edged appointed a Chapter 11 trustee for South Eg®ugh we believed that there were
potential offsets or defenses to prevent or minitiie enforcement of the Springing Guaranty, a&saltr of the February 3, 2011 order for
relief on the Petition, we considered it probabkesed on the terms of the Springing Guaranty vtleabecame responsible to pay certain
amounts to the Administrative Agent related to $ipeinging Guaranty. Therefore, beginning in thstfgquarter of 2011, our consolidated
financial statements reflected a net payment otiigarepresenting our estimate of the probablewrhthat we would pay to the
Administrative Agent (on behalf of the South Edgeders) related to the Springing Guaranty and ydf@acertain fees, expenses and charges
and for certain allowed general unsecured claimibénSouth Edge bankruptcy case. This estimateewasiated at the end of each subsequent
quarterly period and updated to reflect our badfedur probable net payment obligation at the timeconnection with the South Edge Plan and
the resolution of other matters surrounding SowtheE we made payments of $251.9 million in the thoguarter of 2011, including a payment
to the Administrative Agent, which satisfied thepective liens of the Administrative Agent and mafsthe South Edge lenders on the land
South Edge owned. As a result of consummating thehSEdge Plan and (a) taking into account accmualsad previously established throi
inventory impairments with respect to our estimdtases related to our share of the land previomsiyed by South Edge anticipated to be
acquired in connection with the South Edge Plan(ahdactoring in an offset for the estimated featue of such South Edge land (as discussed
below), we recognized a loss on loan guaranty eéhaf@30.8 million in our consolidated statemeritsperations for the year ended
November 30, 2011. This charge was in additiomégjoint venture impairment charge of $53.7 milltbat we recognized in 2011 to write «
our remaining investment in South Edge.

Based on the terms of the South Edge Plan, thedendously owned by South Edge, including our shthat consists of approximately
600 developable acres, was acquired by Inspiradldds, LLC. We estimated the fair value of ourrghaf the land to be $75.2 million at
November 30, 2011. We calculated this estimatedvtdiie using a present value methodology and asduhat we would develop the lar
build and sell homes on most of the land, andtbelfemainder of the developed land. This fair gaatimate at November 30, 2011 reflected
our expectations of the price we would receivediar share of the land in the land’s then-curreaitesin an orderly (not a forced) transaction
under then-prevailing market conditions. Our failue estimate was corroborated by a third-partyaipal conducted in the fourth quarter of
2011.

Our fair value estimate reflected judgments anddesumptions concerning (a) housing market suppdydgmand conditions, including
estimates of average selling prices; (b) estimatt@®tential future home sales and cancellatioes;afc) anticipated entitlements and
development plans for the land; (d) anticipatedldavelopment, construction and overhead coste indurred; and (e) a risk-free rate of
return and an expected risk premium, in each casalation to an expected 15-year life for the pcbj These key assumptions and other factors
applied to our fair value estimation are discusaddote 9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Viezd in the Notes to Consolidated Finar
Statements in this report. Due to the judgmentassdimptions applied in the fair value estimatiacpss at November 30, 2011, it is possible
that actual results could differ substantially frémse estimated.
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We believe that we will realize the value of ouashof the land previously owned by South Edgeariitipate that we will acquire our
share of the land from Inspirada Builders, LLC tigh a future distribution of the land.

Our investments in joint ventures may create aaldeiinterest in a variable interest entity (“VIEdepending on the contractual terms of
the arrangement. We analyze our joint ventures@om@ance with Accounting Standards Codification 810, “Consolidation” (“ASC 810™)o
determine whether they are VIEs and, if so, whetveeare the primary beneficiary. All of our joiréntures at November 30, 2011 and 2010
were determined under the provisions of ASC 81lifeteinconsolidated joint ventures and were accouoteghder the equity method, either
because they were not VIEs or, if they were VIEs,were not the primary beneficiary of the VIEs.

In the ordinary course of our business, we enterland option contracts and other similar consactprocure rights to land parcels for
the construction of homes. The use of such lano@obntracts and other similar contracts geneiallyws us to reduce the market risks
associated with direct land ownership and developnaand to reduce our capital and financial comraiits, including interest and other
carrying costs. Under such contracts, we typigadly a specified option deposit or earnest monegslem consideration for the right to
purchase land in the future, usually at a predetexdhprice. Under the requirements of ASC 810 aterf these contracts may create a
variable interest for us, with the land seller lpgiglentified as a VIE.

In compliance with ASC 810, we analyze our land@ptontracts and other similar contracts to detteerwvhether the corresponding
land sellers are VIEs and, if so, whether we ageptfimary beneficiary. Although we do not have legk to the underlying land, ASC 810
requires us to consolidate a VIE if we are deteeiito be the primary beneficiary. In determiningetiier we are the primary beneficiary, we
consider, among other things, whether we have thvepto direct the activities of the VIE that megjnificantly impact the VIE’s economic
performance. Such activities would include, amotiggothings, determining or limiting the scope argose of the VIE, selling or transferring
property owned or controlled by the VIE, or arrarggfinancing for the VIE. We also consider whetiverhave the obligation to absorb losses
of the VIE or the right to receive benefits frone tfIE. As a result of our analyses, we determitned &s of November 30, 2011 and 2010 we
were not the primary beneficiary of any VIEs frorhish we are purchasing land under land option eatdgrand other similar contracts.

As of November 30, 2011, we had cash depositsingt®B8.1 million associated with land option contsaand other similar contracts that
we determined to be unconsolidated VIEs, havingggregate purchase price of $122.1 million, anddzesth deposits totaling $12.8 million
associated with land option contracts and otheilairoontracts that we determined were not VIEsjigan aggregate purchase price of
$223.0 million. As of November 30, 2010, we hadhcdsposits totaling $2.6 million associated withdaption contracts and other similar
contracts that we determined to be unconsolidai&s Mhaving an aggregate purchase price of $8dlibbmiand had cash deposits totaling
$12.2 million associated with land option contraatsl other similar contracts that we determinedcevmet VIEs having an aggregate purchase
price of $274.3 million.

We also evaluate our land option contracts andradinglar contracts for financing arrangementséoadance with Accounting
Standards Codification Topic No. 470, “Debt” (“AR120"), and, as a result of our evaluations, inaddnventories, with a corresponding
increase to accrued expenses and other liabilitiesyr consolidated balance sheets by $23.9 milioNovember 30, 2011 and $15.5 milliol
November 30, 201(
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS
The following table presents our future cash regrants under contractual obligations as of Noveribef011 (in millions):

Payments due by Period

Total 2012 20132014 20152016 Thereafter

Contractual obligation:
Long-term debt $1,583.¢ $ 25.C $ 249.¢ $ 749.1 $ 559.¢
Interest 467.¢ 106.( 200.( 109.: 52.¢
Operating lease obligatiol 20.2 7.C 10.7 2.t —
Inventory-related obligations (e 33.¢ 18.¢ 6.6 1.1 7.4
Total (b) $2,105.¢ $ 156.¢ $ 466.¢ $ 861.¢ $ 619.C

(&) Represents liabilities related to inventory not edand liabilities for fixed or determinable amaiassociated with debt of a t
increment financing entity (TIFE). As homes areidgled, the obligation to pay the remaining TIFBessments associated with each lot
is transferred to the homebuyer. As such, the Td&E will be paid by us only to the extent we do aeliver the applicable homes before
the debt mature:

(b) Total contractual obligations exclude our accrealincertain tax positions recorded for financégdarting purposes as of November
2011 because we are unable to make a reasonabbatesbf cash settlements with the respective tpainthorities for all periods
presented. We anticipate these potential casleswitit requirements for 2012 to range from $1.0anilto $1.5 million.

We are often required to provide to various murdbkijes and other government agencies performanod$and/or letters of credit to
secure the completion of our projects and/or imsuipof obligations to build community improvemestsh as roads, sewers, water systems
and other utilities, and to support similar devetemt activities by certain of our unconsolidatedt@entures. At November 30, 2011, we had
$361.6 million of performance bonds and $63.8 wnillof letters of credit outstanding. At November 2010, we had $414.3 million of
performance bonds and $87.5 million of lettersrefi¢ outstanding. If any such performance bondstbers of credit are called, we would be
obligated to reimburse the issuer of the perforredyand or letter of credit. We do not believe thataterial amount of any currently
outstanding performance bonds or letters of crgilibe called. Performance bonds do not have dtatgiration dates. Rather, we are released
from the performance bonds as the underlying peréoice is completed. The expiration dates of sotter$eof credit issued in connection w
community improvements coincide with the expectechgletion dates of the related projects or oblayati Most letters of credit, however, are
issued with an initial term of one year and arddgly extended on a year-to-year basis until #lated performance obligation is completed.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Discussed below are accounting policies that wiebelare critical because of the significance efdhtivity to which they relate or
because they require the use of significant juddrmetineir application.

Homebuilding Revenue Recognition. As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant@atting Policies in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in this report, revenues fnonmsing and other real estate sales are recogimztordance with ASC 360 when sales are
closed and title passes to the buyer. Sales asedMhen all of the following conditions are mesate is consummated, a sufficient down
payment is received, the earnings process is caenglel the collection of any remaining receivaldegasonably assured.

Inventories and Cost of Sales. As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant@wutting Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Faalt
Statements in this report, housing and land invégga@re stated at cost, unless the carrying amsutgtermined not to be recoverable, in
which case the inventories are written down to¥alue in accordance with ASC 360. Fair value iederined based on estimated future cash
flows discounted for inherent risks associated withreal estate assets, or other valuation teaksidPue to uncertainties in the estimation
process and other factors beyond our control,gbissible that actual results could differ froms@stimated. Our inventories typically
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do not consist of completed unsold homes. Howexreler cancellations or strategic considerations reaylt in our having a relatively small
amount of inventory of unsold completed or panialbmpleted homes.

Our inventories include land we are holding foufetdevelopment, which is comprised of land wheeehave suspended development
activity for a period of time due to building petmioratorium or regulatory restrictions that hinder ability to move forward with the
development of the community. It also includes ¢aland parcels that we plan to build out over sgiwggars and/or parcels that have not yet
been entitled and, therefore, have an extendedajewent timeline. Land we are holding for futureselepment also includes land where we
have deferred development activity based on ouettdlat we can generate greater returns and/ormize the economic performance of a
community by delaying improvements for a periodife to allow earlier phases of a long-term, mphiase community or a neighboring
community to generate sales momentum or for mareditions to improve. We resume development agtivhen we believe our investment
in this inventory will be optimized. Interest istraapitalized on land held for future developméig.discussed in Note 5. Inventories in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements inréhpert, for those communities for which developmesttvity has been suspended, applici
interest is expensed as incurred.

We rely on certain estimates to determine our cangbn and land costs and resulting gross mamgssciated with revenues recogni:
Construction and land costs are comprised of daadtallocated costs, including estimated futusgsctor warranties and amenities. Land, |
improvements and other common costs are genelllyased on a relative fair value basis to homethiwia parcel or community. Land and
land development costs include related interestraadestate taxes.

In determining a portion of the construction amta&osts recognized for each period, we rely ofeptdudgets that are based on a
variety of assumptions, including future constroctschedules and costs to be incurred. It is plesgiat actual results could differ from
budgeted amounts for various reasons, includingtcoction delays, labor or materials shortagesemses in costs that have not yet been
committed, changes in governmental requirementereseen environmental hazard discoveries or athanticipated issues encountered
during construction and other factors beyond owmtrd. While the actual results for a particulanstruction project are accurately reported
over time, variances between the budgeted andlamists of a project could result in the understetiet or overstatement of construction and
land costs and homebuilding gross margins in aquéat reporting period. To reduce the potentialdoch distortion, we have set forth
procedures that collectively comprise a “criticet@aunting policy.” These procedures, which we hawglied on a consistent basis, include
assessing, updating and revising project budgetsrannthly basis, obtaining commitments from sulb@mtors and vendors for future costs to
be incurred, reviewing the adequacy of warrantywals and historical warranty claims experiencel, @tilizing the most current information
available to estimate construction and land castetcharged to expense. The variances betweeretaadgnd actual costs have historically
had a material impact on our consolidated finarstaiements. We believe that our policies provatadéasonably dependable estimates to be
used in the calculation and reporting of constarctind land costs.

Inventory Impairments and Land Option Contract Abandonments. As discussed in Note 6. Inventory Impairments bad Option
Contract Abandonments in the Notes to Consolidatedncial Statements in this report, each landgdanccommunity in our owned inventory
is assessed to determine if indicators of poteitipeirment exist. Impairment indicators are assg@separately for each land parcel or
community on a quarterly basis and include, butnatdimited to: significant decreases in salessaaverage selling prices, volume of homes
delivered, gross margins on homes delivered oepte@d margins on homes in backlog or future housatgs; significant increases in budgeted
land development and construction costs or cart@laates; or projected losses on expected future sales. If indicators of potential
impairment exist for a land parcel or community ttlentified asset is evaluated for recoverabititgccordance with ASC 360. We evaluated
138, 118 and 281 land parcels or communities fooverability during the years ended November 3Q,12@010 and 2009, respectively. Some
of the land parcels or communities evaluated duttiegyears ended November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2@9%ave been evaluated in more than
one quarterly period.

When an indicator of potential impairment is id&etl for a land parcel or community, we test theea$or recoverability by comparing
the carrying value of the asset to the undiscoufuteate net cash flows expected to be generatatidopsset. The undiscounted future net cash
flows are impacted by then-current conditions aadds in the market in which an asset is locatesledisas factors known to us at the time the
cash flows are calculated. The undiscounted futetecash flows consider recent trends in our shksklog and cancellation rates. Also taken
into account are our future expectations relatatiedfollowing: market supply and demand, includesgimates
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concerning average selling prices; sales and datioal rates; and anticipated land developmentstantion and overhead costs to be incul
With respect to the year ended November 30, 20ELet expectations reflected our experience thadtehaonditions for our assets in invent
where impairment indicators were identified haverbgenerally stable in 2010 and 2011, with no fiicanit deterioration or improvement
identified as to revenue and cost drivers, exclgdire temporary, though significant impact of thpigation of the Tax Credit. In our inventory
assessments during 2011 and 2010, we determinethéhdeclines in our sales and backlog levelswaexperienced in the latter half of 2010
and in the first half of 2011 did not reflect atsised change in market conditions preventing recatvility. Rather, we considered that they
reflected the after effects of the Tax Credit. &g&c community count reductions we made in satemtkets in prior periods to align our
operations with market activity levels also conitdxl to the declines in sales and backlog levedseB on this experience, and taking into
account the year-over-year increase in net ordettsei latter half of 2011 and the number of new d@mmmunities open for sales, and signs of
stability in certain markets for new home sales,iouentory assessments as of November 30, 201didened an expected overall improved
sales pace for 2012.

Given the inherent challenges and uncertaintidsrgcasting future results, our inventory assesssnarthe time they are made generally
assume the continuation of then-current market itiong, subject to identifying information suggestia sustained deterioration or
improvement in such conditions or other significelmanges. Therefore, our inventory assessmerttse éime made, anticipate sales rates,
average selling prices and costs to generally coatat or near then-current levels through thectdtkasset’s estimated remaining life. For our
land held for future development, our inventoryeassnents also incorporate highly subjective fotsdas future performance, including the
timing of development, the product to be offeréu, sales rates and selling prices of the produetvthe community is anticipated to open for
sales, and the projected costs to develop andraohsie community. We evaluate various factordaweelop our forecasts, including the
availability of and demand for homes and finishats Wwithin the marketplace; historical, current &mire sales trends; and third-party data, if
available. Based on these factors, we formulateorble assumptions for future performance basedipjudgment. These estimates, trends
and expectations used in our inventory assessmentpecific to each land parcel or community aag ary among land parcels or
communities.

A real estate asset is considered impaired wheaitying value is greater than the undiscountéaréunet cash flows the asset is
expected to generate. Impaired real estate agsetgisten down to fair value, which is primarilased on the estimated future cash flows
discounted for inherent risk associated with easeia The discount rates used in our estimatedutised cash flows ranged from 17% to 20%
during 2011 and 2010 and ranged from 12% to 21%d®009. These discount rates and related disedwdsh flows are impacted by the
following: the risk-free rate of return; expectéskrpremium based on estimated land developmenstaaction and delivery timelines; market
risk from potential future price erosion; cost utiaity due to development or construction costéases; and other risks specific to the as:
conditions in the market in which the asset is tedat the time the assessment is made. Thesedactospecific to each land parcel or
community and may vary among land parcels or conitiesn

Based on the results of our evaluations, we rezeghpretax, noncash inventory impairment chargé&2af7 million in 2011 associated
with 12 land parcels or communities with a post@&nment fair value of $34.0 million. These chargeduded an $18.1 million adjustment to
the fair value of real estate collateral in our Bawest homebuilding reporting segment that we @@dmupon the foreclosure of a note
receivable in 2011. In 2010, we recognized $9.8ionilof pretax, noncash inventory impairment chargssociated with eight land parcels or
communities with a post-impairment fair value ofL$ million. In 2009, we recognized pretax, noncastentory impairment charges of
$120.8 million associated with 61 land parcelsanmunities with a post-impairment fair value of $1®@million. The inventory impairments
we recorded during 2011, 2010 and 2009 reflectetirdeg asset values in certain markets due tovorible economic and competitive
conditions. In some cases, we have recognized impat charges for particular land parcels or comitiasin multiple years.

As of November 30, 2011, the aggregate carryingevaf our inventory that had been impacted by pretancash inventory impairment
charges was $338.5 million, representing 53 larrdgds.or communities. As of November 30, 2010,abgregate carrying value of our
inventory that had been impacted by pretax, nongagntory impairment charges was $418.5 milli@presenting 72 land parcels or
communities.

Our inventory controlled under land option contsaatd other similar contracts is assessed to digtenvhether it continues to meet our
internal investment and marketing standards. Assests are made separately for each optioned lamelpzn a quarterly basis and are affe
by the following, among other factors: current amd/
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anticipated sales rates, average selling pricehant delivery volume; estimated land developmadt@nstruction costs; and projected
profitability on expected future housing or landesaWhen a decision is made not to exercise celdad option contracts and other similar
contracts due to market conditions and/or changesii marketing strategy, we write off the relail@eentory costs, including non-refundable
deposits and pre-acquisition costs. Based on thdtseof our assessments, we recognized pretaxasbrand option contract abandonment
charges of $3.1 million corresponding to 830 lot2011, $10.1 million corresponding to 1,007 lot2010, and $47.3 million corresponding to
1,362 lots in 2009. Inventory impairment and laptian contract abandonment charges are includednstruction and land costs in our
consolidated statements of operations.

The estimated remaining life of each land parcelammunity in our inventory depends on variousdesitsuch as the total number of
lots remaining; the expected timeline to acquire entitle land and develop lots to build homes;ahtcipated future sales and cancellation
rates; and the expected timeline to build and delhomes sold. While it is difficult to determing@eecise timeframe for any particular
inventory asset, we estimate our inventory assetsaining operating lives under current and expueftijire market conditions to range
generally from one year to in excess of 10 yeaase on current market conditions and expectedealgltimelines, we expect to realize, on
overall basis, the majority of our current invegtbalance in three to five years. The followingléapresents our inventory balance as of
November 30, 2011, based on our current estimateeframe as to the delivery of the last home witlinapplicable land parcel or commur
(in millions):

Greater than
0-2 years 3-5 years 6-10 years 10 years Total
Inventories as of November 30, 2011 $ 643.7 $ 533.¢ $ 330. $ 224. $1,731.¢

The inventory in the six to 10 years category vegsaied throughout all of our homebuilding segmenith) the majority in our West
Coast and Southwest homebuilding reporting segme&hisinventory in the greater than 10 years categas located in our West Coast,
Southwest, and Southeast homebuilding reportingisets. The inventory balances in the six to 10yaead greater than 10 years categories,
which collectively represented 32% of our totaléntory at November 30, 2011, were primarily comgatisf inventory located in various
submarkets where conditions do not justify furtimmestment at this time; inventory subject to bimgdpermit moratorium or regulatory
restrictions; large land parcels that we plan tildbaut over several years and/or parcels that mte/et been entitled and therefore, have an
extended development timeline; and inventory thatart of a long-term, multi-phase community.

Due to the judgment and assumptions applied irstienation process with respect to inventory intpaints, land option contract
abandonments, the remaining operating lives ofrowentory assets and the realization of our invenb@lances, it is possible that actual re:
could differ substantially from those estimated.

As of this reporting date, we believe that the wiag value of our inventory balance is recoveralllar considerations in making this
determination include the factors and trends inoafed into our impairment analyses, and as apgpéc#he prevailing regulatory environme
competition from other homebuilders, inventory levend sales activity of resale homes (includimglé¥-owned homes), and the local
economic conditions where an asset is located. Mewd conditions in the overall housing marketiospecific markets worsen in the future
beyond our current expectations, if future changesir marketing strategy significantly affect gy assumptions used in our fair value
calculations, or if there are material changesyn @f the other items we consider in assessingvezedility, we may recognize pretax, noncash
charges in future periods for inventory impairmesitéand option contract abandonments, or botlatedlto our current inventory assets. Any
such pretax, noncash charges could be materialrtoansolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements. As discussed in Note 7. Fair Value Disclosureth@Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsif t
report, Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurements and DisclosureASC 820") defines fair value,
provides a framework for measuring the fair valtiassets and liabilities under GAAP, and estab#shéir value hierarchy that requires an
entity to maximize the use of observable inputs mimmize the use of unobservable inputs when maastair value. The fair value hierarc
can be summarized as follows:

Level 1 Fair value determined based on quoted prices ineastarkets for identical assets or liabiliti
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Level 2 Fair value determined using significant observatgbeits, such as quoted prices for similar asseligiifities or quotec
prices for identical or similar assets or liabd#iin markets that are not active, inputs other theoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, or inputattare derived principally from or corroborateddiservable market data, by
correlation or other mean

Level 3 Fair value determined using significant unobsergétybuts, such as pricing models, discounted das¥sf or similar
techniques

Fair value measurements are used for inventoriesrmmnrecurring basis when events and circumstandesate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. The fair values for ougiived assets held and used that were determisiag level 2 inputs were based on an
executed contract. The fair values for our longdivassets held and used that were determined lusirgd 3 inputs were primarily based on the
estimated future cash flows discounted for inherisitassociated with each asset. These discotes amd related discounted cash flows were
impacted by the following: the risk-free rate ofurm; expected risk premium based on estimated dewvelopment, construction and delivery
timelines; market risk from potential future prieesion; cost uncertainty due to development ostrantion cost increases; and other risks
specific to the asset or conditions in the marketlich the asset is located at the time the assr#ss made. These factors were specific to
each land parcel or community and may have vameadng land parcels or communities. Due to unceitgih the estimation process, it is
possible that actual results could differ from #hestimates.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eglivalents, restricted cash, mortgages and netesvable, senior notes, and
mortgages and land contracts due to land sellefotrer loans. Fair value measurements of finamesaituments are determined by various
market data and other valuation techniques as pppte. When available, we use quoted market piitastive markets to determine fair
value.

Warranty Costs. As discussed in Note 13. Commitments and Conticigsrin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemia this
report, we provide a limited warranty on all of duormes. The specific terms and conditions of thiested warranties vary depending upon
market in which we do business. We generally pewdtructural warranty of 10 years, a warrantglestrical, heating, cooling, plumbing &
other building systems each varying from two tefixears based on geographic market and state halng warranty of one year for other
components of the home. We estimate the costsrthpatbe incurred under each limited warranty andneke liability in the amount of such
costs at the time the revenue associated withaleeo each home is recognized. Our expense assoeidth the issuance of these warranties
totaled $4.9 million in 2011, $5.2 million in 208®d $6.8 million in 2009.

Factors that affect our warranty liability incluthee number of homes delivered, historical and grdted rates of warranty claims, and
cost per claim. Our primary assumption in estingatie amounts we accrue for warranty costs ishistdrical claims experience is a strong
indicator of future claims experience. We periotljcassess the adequacy of our recorded warraapylities, which are included in accrued
expenses and other liabilities in the consolidét@dnce sheets, and adjust the amounts as necessag on our assessment. Our assessment
includes the review of our actual warranty costsiined to identify trends and changes in our wayrataims experience, and considers our
construction quality and customer service initiativand outside events. Based on the trends inctualavarranty costs incurred, our
assessments in 2011 resulted in the recording obwy adjustments of $7.4 million as reductionsdastruction and land costs. In 2009, we
incurred a charge of $5.7 million associated whih tepair of allegedly defective drywall. While Welieve the warranty liability reflected in
our consolidated balance sheets to be adequateticipated changes in the legal environment, legzdther, land or environmental conditions,
quality of materials or methods used in the comsibn of homes, or customer service practices chalte a significant impact on our actual
warranty costs in the future and such amounts cdiffler from our estimates. A 10% change in thedrisal warranty rates used to estimate
warranty accrual would not result in a materialrad@in our accrual.

Insurance. As discussed in Note 13. Commitments and Conticigerin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemia this report, we
have, and require the majority of our subcontractormaintain, general liability insurance (inclugliconstruction defect and bodily injury
coverage) and workers’ compensation insurance.€limssirance policies protect us against a portiauorisk of loss from claims related to
our homebuilding activities, subject to certainf$esured retentions, deductibles and other cowetigits. In Arizona, California, Colorado
and
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Nevada, our general liability insurance takes trenfof a wra-up policy, where eligible subcontractors are eebhs insureds on each proj
We self-insure a portion of our overall risk thrbougpe use of a captive insurance subsidiary. Werdeexpenses and liabilities based on the
estimated costs required to cover our self-insuegehtion and deductible amounts under our insergodicies, and on the estimated costs of
potential claims and claim adjustment expensesaiteabove our coverage limits or that are not @y our policies. These estimated costs
are based on an analysis of our historical claintsiaclude an estimate of construction defect ctaiimeurred but not yet reported. Our
estimated liabilities for such items were $94.9liomil at November 30, 2011 and $95.7 million at Nober 30, 2010. These amounts are
included in accrued expenses and other liabilitiesur consolidated balance sheets. Our expensesiated with self-insurance totaled $7.2
million in 2011, $7.4 million in 2010 and $9.8 niolh in 2009. These expenses were largely offsetdogributions from subcontractors
participating in the wrap-up policy.

We engage a third-party actuary that uses ourrgsicclaim and expense data, as well as industtg,do estimate our unpaid claims,
claim adjustment expenses and incurred but notrreghalaims liabilities for the risks that we assaming under the self-insured portion of our
general liability insurance. Projection of losselated to these liabilities requires actuarial egsions that are subject to variability due to
uncertainties regarding construction defect claiatative to our markets and the types of producbuiéd, claim settlement patterns, insurance
industry practices and legal or regulatory intet@tiens, among other factors. Because of the degfreelgment required and the potential for
variability in the underlying assumptions used @teiimining these estimated liability amounts, ddwtarre costs could differ from our
estimated amounts and have a material impact oocansgolidated financial statements.

Sock-Based Compensation. As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant@wtting Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Faiain
Statements in this report, we measure and recogoingensation expense associated with our graequfy-based awards in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 718pfipensation—Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718"), whiehuires that companies
measure and recognize compensation expense atmamaegual to the fair value of share-based paysngmainted under compensation
arrangements over the vesting period. We have geoviome compensation benefits to certain of oyla@maes in the form of stock options,
restricted stock, phantom shares and stock appictidghts (“SARs”). Determining the fair value siare-based awards requires judgment to
identify the appropriate valuation model and depdlte assumptions, including the expected terrh@&tock options or SARs, expected stock-
price volatility and dividend yield, to be usedtire calculation. Judgment is also required in esfiimy the percentage of share-based awards
that are expected to be forfeited. We estimatedaineralue of stock options and SARs granted usiregBlack-Scholes option-pricing model
with assumptions based primarily on historical datze expected volatility factor was based on alwiaation of the historical volatility of our
common stock and the implied volatility of publighaded options on our common stock. If actual ltegliffer significantly from these
estimates, stock-based compensation expense amdmsolidated financial statements could be mdkgifapacted.

Income Taxes. As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant@uatting Policies in the Notes to Consolidated FaianStatements in
this report, we account for income taxes in acoocdavith ASC 740. The provision for, or benefitrfroincome taxes is calculated using the
asset and liability method, under which deferredassets and liabilities are recorded based odiffexence between the financial statement
and tax basis of assets and liabilities using ekiax rates in effect for the year in which thiéedlences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax
assets are evaluated on a quarterly basis to deifrmadjustments to the valuation allowance aguired. In accordance with ASC 740, we
assess whether a valuation allowance should bblissiiad based on the consideration of all availabidence using a “more likely than not”
standard with respect to whether deferred tax asgitbe realized. The ultimate realization of eleéd tax assets depends primarily on the
generation of future taxable income during thequgiin which the differences become deductiblegtheht is required in determining the
future tax consequences of events that have beegmized in our consolidated financial statement§@r tax returns. Differences between
anticipated and actual outcomes of these futuredasequences could have a material impact onangotidated financial statements.

As discussed in Note 15. Income Taxes in the Nmt€onsolidated Financial Statements in this repegtrecognize accrued interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitaiimconsolidated financial statements as a comparfethe provision for income taxes. Our
liability for unrecognized tax benefits, combinedtwaccrued
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interest and penalties, is reflected as a comparfeatcrued expenses and other liabilities in ansolidated balance sheets. Judgment is
required in evaluating uncertain tax positions. &/aluate our uncertain tax positions quarterly dasevarious factors, including changes in
facts or circumstances, tax laws or the statusidits by tax authorities. Changes in the recogniiomeasurement of uncertain tax positions
could have a material impact on our consolidatedIte of operations in the period in which we m#iechange.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Stateldipdate No. 2010-06, “Improving Disclosures AbBair Value
Measurements” (“ASU 2010-06"), which provides ammedits to Accounting Standards Codification Subtdfnc 820-10, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures — Overall.” ASU 2080e@juires additional disclosures and clarificagiofi existing disclosures for recurring
and nonrecurring fair value measurements. The edvjslidance was effective for us in the secondtgquaf 2010, except for the Level 3
activity disclosures, which are effective for fisgaars beginning after December 15, 2010. The #alopf this guidance concerns disclosure
only and will not have an impact on our consoliddiaancial position or results of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standarpgddtie No. 2011-04, “Amendments to Achieve Commadn Value Measurement
and Disclosure Requirements in GAAP and IFRS” (“A3011-04"),which changes the wording used to describe theinagents in GAAP fc
measuring fair value and for disclosing informatabout fair value measurements in order to imparesistency in the application and
description of fair value between GAAP and IFRSUAZD11-04 clarifies how the concepts of highest bast use and valuation premise in a
fair value measurement are relevant only when nmregggsthe fair value of nonfinancial assets andrarerelevant when measuring the fair ve
of financial assets or liabilities. In additionetguidance expanded the disclosures for the uneddsderinputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements, requiring quantitative informatiobealisclosed related to (1) the valuation processed, (2) the sensitivity of the fair value
measurement to changes in unobservable inputshandterrelationships between those unobservaplesnand (3) use of a nonfinancial asset
in a way that differs from the asset’s highest best use. The revised guidance is effective farimt and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011 and early application by pubiigies is prohibited. We are currently evaluatihg potential impact of adopting this
guidance on our consolidated financial position egglilts of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standdptiate No. 2011-05, “Presentation of Comprehenisigeme” (“ASU 2011-05").
The amendments in ASU 2011-05 allow an entity thtioa to present the total of comprehensive incaitme components of net income, and
the components of other comprehensive income eitheesingle continuous statement of compreherisis@me or in two separate but
consecutive statements. In both instances, aryéatiequired to present each component of netnigcalong with total net income, each
component of other comprehensive income along avithtal for other comprehensive income, and a totaunt for comprehensive income.
ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present themanents of other comprehensive income as pahteo$tatement of changes in
stockholders’ equity. The amendments in ASU 201Hd@&% ot change the items that must be reportethier@omprehensive income or when
an item of other comprehensive income must be ssiflad to net income. However, in December 20té& RASB issued Accounting Stande
Update No. 2011-12, “Deferral of the Effective D&ie Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifina of Items Out of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standdii$ate No. 2011-05" (*ASU 2011-12"), which deferrd@ guidance on whether to
require entities to present reclassification adpgstts out of accumulated other comprehensive indpm@mmponent in both the statement
where net income is presented and the statememewltiger comprehensive income is presented foribtehim and annual financial
statements. ASU 2011-12 reinstated the requirenientie presentation of reclassifications thatenerplace prior to the issuance of ASU
2011-05 and did not change the effective date 8U/&2011-05. For public entities, the amendmen&Sk) 2011-05 and ASU 2011-12 are
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiiitthose years, beginning after December 15, 28id should be applied retrospectively. The
adoption of this guidance concerns disclosure anly will not have an impact on our consolidatedtiicial position or results of operations.

OUTLOOK

At November 30, 2011, our backlog totaled 2,156 ésmepresenting potential future housing revenfi@approximately $459.0 million.
By comparison, at November 30, 2010, our backlégiéd 1,336 homes, representing
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potential future housing revenues of approxima$2§3.8 million. The 61% year-ovgear increase in the number of homes in our backiag
primarily due to a 39% increase in our net orderhe latter half of 2011. The 74% year-oyear increase in potential future housing revel
in our backlog at November 30, 2011 reflected tighdr number of homes in backlog, which occurredss all our homebuilding reporting
segments, and a higher overall average selling pficese substantial improvements reflected siastgps we took throughout 2011 to
increase our backlog. By offering innovative prodires, opening new home communities for salefghtening our emphasis on our Built to
Order process, and implementing industry-leadireygynefficiency initiatives, we established a sgase that led us to the highest year-end
backlog we have achieved since 2008. Part of oategly was to open new communities for sales ifemed locations within key markets that
support higher price points and sales, with less awed resale inventory and less competition. This strategy we will continue to pursue in
2012.

We believe our higher backlog will facilitate eviawd production, improve the predictability of oueltveries and increase our housing
gross margin going forward, largely through realigoverhead and cost-to-build efficiencies.

Our homebuilding operations generated 1,494 nedrerith the fourth quarter of 2011, up 38% from 5,68t orders generated in the
corresponding quarter of 2010. Net orders rosadah @f our four homebuilding reporting segmentshwicreases ranging from 10% in our
Southwest homebuilding reporting segment to 48#uinWest Coast homebuilding reporting segment. ydzg-over-year improvement in net
orders partly resulted from our recently opened heme communities as well as the depressed net lendd in the year-earlier quarter
stemming in part from the expiration of the Tax diteAs a percentage of gross orders, our fourthrtgu cancellation rate was 34% in 2011
and 37% in 2010.

During 2011, we and the homebuilding industry cmmgid to face difficult market conditions that hgezsisted to varying degrees since
the housing downturn began in 2006. We believe likely that market conditions will remain chaligng in 2012. Although turbulent
macroeconomic conditions, weak growth in employnaard low consumer confidence are currently hindeaitoroader housing market
recovery, we are seeing some signs of stabilityhéw home sales in markets that are located ctoaetive employment centers, that feature a
relative balance of housing supply and demand tlaaidoffer historically high affordability levelparticularly in parts of California and Texas.
In the short term, we are managing our businetisetee market realities, while positioning our ofierss to capitalize on potential future
growth in demand and to establish a foundationdng-term business success.

Moving into 2012, we will continue to focus on tiegrated strategic actions we have taken in 8w few years to adapt our busines
changing housing market dynamics. These includeviimg the strategic framework provided by the piifes of our KBnxt operational
business model; increasing the number of our nawehcommunities open for sales; making targetednitorg investments in preferred
markets; driving additional operational efficierscnd overhead cost reductions; maintaining a gtbatance sheet; and remaining attentive to
market conditions and the needs of our core custariiée believe that our year-over-year growth inarders and backlog in the latter half of
2011, and the sequential improvement we posteldeimtost recent three consecutive quarters in thebauof homes delivered, revenues, and
in selling, general and administrative expenses @arcentage of housing revenues, demonstrateuhatrategic actions are working and that
we are making tangible progress towards our togripyiof achieving and maintaining profitability.

Presently, we are focused on owning or controNiredi-priced finished or partially finished lots select locations that meet our
investment and marketing standards and on levegamin geographically diverse operational platfohmotigh opening new home communities
for sales. We invested approximately $478 milliohand and land development in 2011, and expetoilnatotal land and land development
investment for our 2012 fiscal year will be in tlamge of $400 million to $600 million, dependingange part on market conditions and our
financial condition as the year progresses. We epdr23 new home communities in 2011, bringing otal ttommunity count, net of
communities closed out, at the end of the yeaBth 2 12% increase from 2010. We expect to operoappately 25 new home communities
for sales in the first half of 2012. During 201le tmajority of our land and land development innestts and many of our new home
community openings were in California and Texasicilwe see as having relatively stronger growtlspeets than other areas of the country.
We expect this regional concentration of our retersiness investments to continue, if not increiss2012.
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Substantially all of the new home communities werggd for sales in 2011 and the communities we éxpeaxpen for sales in 2012
feature our valuengineered product. With the improved operatingiefficies we have implemented and our anticipatesiadl improved sale
and evenflow production pace, we expect these carities to generate revenues at a lower cost blaasisdur older communities, helping us
reach our top strategic priority of achieving angimtaining profitability. In addition, we have seetr homebuyer profile at several of the new
home communities we have opened for sales thissfeirto higher income first-time and move-up aamers who demand and can afford
larger home sizes and more options and upgraddshwihs resulted in our generating increased reag@from homes delivered from these 1
home communities relative to our older communities.

Despite the progress we have made over the pastadeuarters and some signs of stability in cemaarkets for new homes, our ability
to generate positive results from our strategitdtives, including achieving and maintaining ptaffiility and increasing the number of homes
delivered, remains constrained by several facidtese include, among other things, the currentlanbad supply and demand conditions in
many housing markets, which are unlikely to abatsnggiven the present economic and employment @mvient; by low levels of consumer
confidence; by the cautiousness of qualified horgelsiin making home purchase decisions, which Vieveeis, among other things,
moderating the pace of sales at our new home coritiegjrby tight residential consumer mortgage legditandards; and by the reduction ii
unwinding of government programs and incentivegstp/e of homeownership and/or home purchasegjdirgy as to applicable limits, fees
and standards for government-insured residentiadwmer mortgage loans. The pace and the extertithhvwe acquire new land interests,
invest in land development and open new home coritiesifior sales will depend in large part on hogsimarket and business conditions,
including actual and expected sales rates, andvhigability of desirable land assets at reasonphites. It will also depend on how we use or
redeploy our unrestricted cash and cash equivalentsour ability to engage in capital markets Kiaan or credit facility or project or other
financing transactions, which can be affected hyfimancial condition as well as several econormaicy and/or political factors outside of ¢
control.

We had a balance of cash and cash equivalentsanitted cash of $479.5 million at November 3@ 2G&fter making the South Edge-
related payments, paying down debt and funding26dtl operating needs. We will continue to evaloatefuture cash requirements and
financing opportunities available in the capitatld@nding markets, as discussed in this report.

We continue to believe that a meaningful improvenieimousing market conditions will require a sirstéal decrease in unsold homes,
selling price stabilization, reduced mortgage dliency and foreclosure rates, and a significamiyroved economic climate, particularly with
respect to job growth and consumer and credit madkefidence that support a decision to buy a haWe cannot predict when or the extent to
which these events may occur. Moreover, if condim our served markets decline further, we magdne take additional pretax, noncash
charges for inventory and joint venture impairmeartd land option contract abandonments, and wedweeigle that we need to reduce, slow or
even abandon our present strategic growth planthése markets. Our results could also be adveedtdgted if general economic conditions
do not notably improve or actually decline, if jmisses increase or weak employment levels peifsissidential consumer mortgage
delinquencies, short sales and foreclosures, ded stlender-owned homes increase, if residentiakumer mortgage lending becomes less
available or more expensive for our homebuyerspifpetition for home sales intensifies, or if cansu confidence weakens, any one or all of
which could further delay a recovery in housing ke#s or result in further deterioration in opergtaonditions. Despite these difficulties and
risks, we believe that we are favorably positiofiedncially and operationally to succeed in advagaur primary strategic goals, particularly
in view of longer-term demographic and populatigovgth trends that we expect will once again drivieife demand for homeownership.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Investors are cautioned that certain statementsicad in this document, as well as some statentgnts in periodic press releases and
other public disclosures and some oral statemantsito securities analysts and stockholders diypirgentations, are “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of the Private SéesrLitigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”). 8&tements that are predictive in nature, that
depend upon or refer to future events or conditionshat include words such as “expects,” “antitgs,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“estimates,” “hopes,” and similar expressions cibuigt forward-looking statements. In addition, atgtements concerning future financial or
operating performance (including future revenuesnés delivered, net orders, selling
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prices, expenses, expense ratios, margins, earoiregrnings per share, or growth or growth rafes)ye market conditions, future interest
rates, and other economic conditions, ongoing lessistrategies or prospects, future dividends hadges in dividend levels, the value of
backlog (including amounts that we expect to realipon delivery of homes included in backlog aredtitming of those deliveries), potential
future acquisitions and the impact of completedu&itions, future share repurchases and possiblegactions, which may be provided by us,
are also forward-looking statements as definechbyAct. Forward-looking statements are based orentiexpectations and projections about
future events and are subject to risks, unceresinind assumptions about our operations, ecoramdienarket factors, and the homebuilding
industry, among other things. These statementa@rguarantees of future performance, and we hawpacific policy or intention to update
these statements.

Actual events and results may differ materiallynfrthose expressed or forecasted in forward-loo&tagements due to a number of
factors. The most important risk factors that catddse our actual performance and future eventaetimhs to differ materially from such
forward-looking statements include, but are noitkeh to: general economic, employment and businesditions; adverse market conditions
that could result in additional impairments or laygtion contract abandonment charges and operatisgs, including an oversupply of unsold
homes, declining home prices and increased foreasnd short sale activity, among other thingagd@mns in the capital and credit markets
(including residential consumer mortgage lendirggndards, the availability of residential consumertgage financing and mortgage
foreclosure rates); material prices and availahildbor costs and availability; changes in interages; inflation; our debt level, including our
ratio of debt to total capital, and our abilityadjust our debt level and structure and to acdessredit, capital or other financial markets or
other external financing sources; weak or declimagsumer confidence, either generally or spedf§iagith respect to purchasing homes;
competition for home sales from other sellers affa@d existing homes, including sellers of homesiolkd through foreclosures or short s:
weather conditions, significant natural disasters ether environmental factors; government actiposicies, programs and regulations dire:
at or affecting the housing market (including, bat limited to, the Dodd-Frank Act, tax creditsg tacentives and/or subsidies for home
purchases, tax deductions for residential consummetgage interest payments and property taxesxasptions for profits on home sales, and
programs intended to modify existing mortgage lcams to prevent mortgage foreclosures), the honfdibgiindustry, or construction
activities; the availability and cost of land insitable areas; our warranty claims experience weispect to homes previously delivered and
actual warranty costs incurred; legal or regulafmgceedings or claims; our ability to access edjpitur ability to use/realize the net deferred
tax assets we have generated; our ability to ssfidgsimplement our current and planned produetaraphic and market positioning
(including, but not limited to, our efforts to exphour inventory base/pipeline with desirable laoditions or interests at reasonable cost a
expand our community count and open new communied our increasing operational and investment@oaination in markets in California
and Texas), revenue growth and overhead and otiséreduction strategies; consumer traffic to a@w mome communities and consumer
interest in our product designs; the impact offoumer unconsolidated mortgage banking joint vemttgasing to offer mortgage banking
services after June 30, 2011; the manner in whichhomebuyers are offered and obtain residentiad@mer mortgage loans and mortgage
banking services; our ability to establish a jai@hture or marketing relationship with a finandgrtitution or other mortgage banking services
provider; information technology failures and ds¢gurity breaches; the possibility that the profdasféer and sale of unsecured senior debt
securities to fund the purchase of thé & % senior notes due 2014,’58 % senior notes due 2015 and 64 % senior notes due 2015 in the
applicable tender offers will not timely close; thessibility that any or all of the tender offerglwe undersubscribed; and other events outside
of our control.
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Item 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We enter into debt obligations primarily to suppgeheral corporate purposes, including the operaitid our subsidiaries. We are subj
to interest rate risk on our senior notes. Fordirxate debt, changes in interest rates generdigtahe fair value of the debt instrument, but not
our earnings or cash flows. Under our current jedicwe do not use interest rate derivative insémit:i1to manage our exposure to changes in

interest rates.

The following tables present principal cash flowssbheduled maturity, weighted average interessrand the estimated fair value of
long-term fixed rate debt obligations as of Noven®@ 2011 and November 30, 2010 (dollars in thndsa

Fair Value at
As of November 30, 2011 for the Years Ended Novembg0, November 30
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total 2011
Long-term debt
Fixed Rate $ — $ — $249,64 $749,06¢ $ — $ 559,87: $1,558,58' $ 1,391,26
Weighted Average Interest R¢ —% —% 5.8% 6.1% —% 8.1% 6.8%
Fair Value at
As of November 30, 2010 for the Years Ended Novembg0, November 30
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total 2010
Long-term debt
Fixed Rate $ 99,91¢ $ — $ — $ 249,49 $748,81: $ 559,24! $1,657,47. $ 1,638,70

Weighted Average Interest R 6.4% —% —% 5.6% 6.1% 8.1% 6.7%
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

KB HOME
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

Number

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2 64
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 20d 201( 65
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the Years Ended November 30, 2011, 281 200¢ 66
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2 67
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 68
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm 107

Separate combined financial statements of our wsulmated joint venture activities have been ordittecause, if considered in the
aggregate, they would not constitute a significartsidiary as defined by Rule 3-09 of Regulatio. S-
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
Total revenues $ 1,315,86! $1,589,99 $ 1,824,85!
Homebuilding:

Revenue! $ 1,305,56: $1,581,76. $1,816,41!
Construction and land cos (1,129,98) (1,308,28) (1,749,91)
Selling, general and administrative exper (247,88¢) (289,52() (303,029

Loss on loan guaran (30,769 — —
Operating los: (203,079 (16,045 (236,52()
Interest incomt 871 2,09¢ 7,51¢
Interest expens (49,209 (68,307 (51,769
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu (55,839 (6,257) (49,615
Homebuilding pretax los (207,249) (88,51)) (330,387

Financial services

Revenue! 10,30¢ 8,23¢ 8,43t
Expense! (3,519 (3,119 (3,25)
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture 19,28¢ 7,02¢ 14,01¢
Financial services pretax incor 26,07¢ 12,14 19,19¢

Total pretax loss (181,169 (76,36%) (311,18
Income tax benef 2,40( 7,00( 209,40(
Net loss $ (178,769 $ (69,36¢) $ (101,789
Basic and diluted loss per shar $ (2.32) $ (.90 $ (1.3%)
Basic and diluted average shares outstandir 77,04: 76,88¢ 76,66(

See accompanying notes.
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Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Receivable!
Inventories
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Other asset

Financial service
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Mortgages and notes payal

Financial service
Stockholder’ equity:

KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Shares)

Preferred stoc— $1.00 par value; authorized, 10,000,000 shares; is3nec

Common stock — $1.00 par value; authorized, 290 shares at November 30, 2011 and 2010;
115,170,693 and 115,148,586 shares issued at Na&re36b2011 and 2010, respectiv

Paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive i

Grantor stock ownership trust, at cost: 10,884 415d 11,082,723 shares at November 30, 2011 and 2!

respectively

Treasury stock, at cost: 27,214,174 and 27,095H6é7es at November 30, 2011 and 2010, respec

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholders equity

See accompanying notes.
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November 30,

2011

2010

$ 415,05( $ 904,40:
64,48: 115,47
66,17¢ 108,04¢

1,731,62! 1,696,72.
127,92¢ 105,58
75,10 150,07¢

2,480,36! 3,080,30!
32,17: 29,44:

$2,512,54. $3,109,74!

$ 104,41 $ 23321
374,40¢ 466,50!

1,583,57. 1,775,52!

2,062,39: 2,475,25.
7,494 2,62(
115,17: 115,14¢
884,19( 873,51¢
519,84« 717,85:
(26,157 (22,657

(118,05¢) (120,44:)
(932,33) (931,54
442,65 631,87¢
$2,512,54. $3,109,74
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at November 30, 2008
Comprehensive los

Net loss

Postretirement benefits adjustm:

Total comprehensive lo:
Dividends on common stoc
Employee stock options and ott
Restricted stock awart
Restricted stock amortizatic
Stocl-based compensatic
Grantor stock ownership tru
Treasury stocl
Balance at November 30, 20
Comprehensive los

Net loss

Postretirement benefits adjustm:

Total comprehensive lo:
Dividends on common stoc
Employee stock options and ott
Restricted stock awart
Restricted stock amortizatic
Stocl-based compensatic
Casl-settled stock appreciation rights excha
Grantor stock ownership tru
Treasury stocl
Balance at November 30, 20
Comprehensive los

Net loss

Postretirement benefits adjustm:

Total comprehensive lo:
Dividends on common stoc
Employee stock options and ott
Restricted stock amortizatic
Forfeited restricted stoc
Stoclk-based compensatic
Grantor stock ownership tru

Balance at November 30, 20

See accompanying notes.

KB HOME

(In Thousands)

Years Ended November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Number of Shares

Grantor Grantor
Stock Stock Total
Common Ownership Treasury Common Comprehensive Ownership Treasury Stockholders’
Paid-in  Retained
Stock Trust Stock Stock Capital  Earnings Trust Stock Equity
115,12( (11,907 (25,517 $115,12( $865,12! $927,32: (17,4079 $ (129,32¢) $(930,23) $ 830,60!
— — — — — (101,789 — — (101,789
— — — — — — — — (4,847)
— — — — — — — — (106,62()
— — — — — (19,097 — — (19,097
— — — — (4,099 — — — (4,099
— — — — (4,84¢) — 4,84¢ — —
— — — — 1,39( — — — 1,39(
— — — — 2,581 — — — 2,581
— 672 — — 611 — 2,46: — 3,07¢
— — (1,53 — — — — (61€) (61€)
115,12( (11,229 (27,047 115,12( 860,77. 806,44: (122,017) (930,85() 707,22
— — — — — (69,36¢) — — (69,36¢)
— — — — — — — — (419
— — — — — — — — (69,787)
— — — — — (19,229 — — (19,229
29 — — 29 2,07 — — — 2,10
— — — — (307) — 307 — —
— — — — 2,291 — — — 2,291
— — — — 5,771 — — — 5,771
— — — — 2,34¢ — — — 2,34¢
— 14¢€ — — 21¢ — 1,26¢ — 1,48:
— — (48) — 34: — — (699) (350
115,14¢ (11,089 (27,099 115,14¢ 873,51¢ 717,85: (120,447 (931,54) 631,87¢
— — — — — (178,769 — — (178,76%)
— — — — — — — — (3,499
— — — — — — — — (182,26
— — — — — (19,24() — — (29,24()
22 — — 22 2,41( — — — 2,43:
— — — — 2,15¢ — — — 2,15¢
— — (119) — 794 — — (799 —
— — — — 5,90( — — — 5,90(
— 19¢ — — (587) — 2,38:% — 1,79¢
115,17: (10,889 (27,214 $115,17: $884,19( $ 519,84« (26,157 $ (118,059 $(932,33) $ 442,65
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KB HOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexvilused) by operating activitie
Equity in (income) loss/(gain) on wind down of unsolidated joint venture

Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joiehtures
Loss on loan guaran

Gain on sale of operating prope

Amortization of discounts and issuance ct

Depreciation and amortizatic

Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of debt/losyvoluntary termination of revolvin

credit facility
Tax benefits from sto-based compensatic
Stoclk-based compensatic
Inventory impairments and land option contract aloeaments
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable:
Inventories
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritied
Other, ne
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Proceeds from sale of operating propt
Purchases of property and equipment,
Net cash provided (used) by investing activi
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted ca
Proceeds from issuance of senior n
Payment of senior notes issuance ¢
Repayment of senior and senior subordinated r
Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedcskllers and other loal
Issuance of common stock under employee stock |
Excess tax benefit associated with exercise okstptions
Payments of cash dividen
Repurchases of common stc
Net cash used by financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
$(178,769 $ (69,369  $ (101,789
36,55¢ (772) 35,60(
8,703 20,41 7,662
30,76t — —
(8,825) — —
2,15( 2,14¢ 1,58¢
2,031 3,28¢ 5,23¢
(3,617) 1,80z 97€
— (582) 4,09z
8,05¢ 8,07¢ 3,977
25,791 19,92t 168,14¢
(2,220) 211,31 35,66
(12,34%) (129,33 433,07
(253,54) (199,209 (252,62
(2,275) (1,66¢) 8,29¢
(347 549 (133,969 349,91
(67,260) (15,66¢) (19,92:)
80,60( — —
(242) (420) (1,375)
13,00¢ (16,08¢) (21,29
50,99¢ (1,185 1,117
— — 250,73
— — (4,29¢)
(100,00() — (453,10
(89,467) (101,15 (78,987
1,79¢ 1,851 3,07¢
— 582 —
(19,240) (19,229 (19,09)
— (350) (616)
(155,909 (119,479 (292,17)
(490,35() (269,53)) 36,44:
908,43( 1,177,96 1,141,51:
$418,07 $ 908,43(  $1,177,96.
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KB HOME
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Poligs

Operations. KB Home is a builder of single-family residenti@dmes, townhomes and condominiums. The Companyihgoing
operations in Arizona, California, Colorado, Flajdaryland, Nevada, North Carolina, Texas and Miegas of November 30, 2011. The
Company offers title and insurance services tbatmebuyers through its financial services subsydieB Home Mortgage Company
(“KBHMC™). From 2005 until June 30, 2011, the Compalso offered mortgage banking services to itadtouyers indirectly through KBA
Mortgage, a former unconsolidated joint ventura stibsidiary of the Company and a subsidiary olkB#mAmerica, N.A. KBA Mortgage
ceased offering mortgage banking services aftee 30n2011. KBA Mortgage was accounted for as aomsolidated joint venture within the
Company'’s financial services reporting segment.

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements includeatteounts of the Company and all significant sulasiels and join
ventures in which a controlling interest is helgweell as certain VIEs required to be consolidgtedsuant to ASC 810. All intercompany
transactions have been eliminated. Investmentadonsolidated joint ventures in which the Compaay less than a controlling interest are
accounted for using the equity method.

Use of Estimates. The accompanying consolidated financial statemieate been prepared in conformity with GAAP andydffiore,
include amounts based on informed estimates arghjedts of management. Actual results could diffemfthese estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash. The Company considers all highly liquid short-ténwestments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to behceguivalents. The Company’s cash equivalentsedt®212.8 million at November 30, 2011
and $797.2 million at November 30, 2010. The majaf the Company’s cash and cash equivalents weested in money market accounts
and United States government securities.

Restricted cash of $64.5 million at November 30, 26onsisted of cash deposited with various fireriostitutions that was required as
collateral for the LOC Facilities. Restricted caél$115.5 million at November 30, 2010 consiste@®&8.7 million of cash collateral for the
LOC Facilities and $26.8 million of cash in an eseraccount required as collateral for a surety bond

Property and Equipment, Operating Properties and Depreciation. Property and equipment are recorded at cost andepreciated over
their estimated useful lives, which generally rafrgen two to 10 years, using the straidine method. Operating properties are recordeast
and are depreciated over their estimated usefes lof 39 years, using the straight-line method.aRemd maintenance costs are charged to
earnings as incurred. Property and equipment aathtipg properties are included in other assetheronsolidated balance sheets. Property
and equipment totaled $7.8 million, net of accurtedadepreciation of $18.0 million, at November 3011, and $9.6 million, net of
accumulated depreciation of $27.1 million, at Nobem30, 2010. Depreciation expense totaled $2.omiin 2011, $3.3 million in 2010 and
$5.2 million in 2009.

Homebuilding Operations. Revenues from housing and other real estate aeda®cognized in accordance with ASC 360 whers sake
closed and title passes to the buyer. Sales asedhhen all of the following conditions are mesate is consummated, a sufficient down
payment is received, the earnings process is caenglel the collection of any remaining receivaldegasonably assured.

Construction and land costs are comprised of daadtallocated costs, including estimated futusgsctor warranties and amenities.
Land, land improvements and other common costgemerally allocated on a relative fair value b&sisomes within a land parcel or
community. Land and land development costs inchethged interest and real estate taxes.

Housing and land inventories are stated at co#sarthe carrying amount is determined not to bewerable, in which case the
inventories are written down to fair value in actamce with ASC 360. ASC 360 requires that reatestssets be tested for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances imdibat their carrying amounts may not be recoverd®écoverability of assets is measured
by comparing the carrying amount of an asset tatitescounted future net cash flows expected tgdmerated by the asset. These evaluations
for impairment are
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significantly impacted by estimates of the amowmd timing of revenues, costs and expenses, aed fatttors. If real estate assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to begeized is measured by the amount by which the/iceyivalue of the assets exceeds the fair
value of the assets.

Fair Value Measurements. ASC 820 provides a framework for measuring thevalue of assets and liabilities under GAAP and
establishes a fair value hierarchy that requiresrdity to maximize the use of observable inputh mmimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value.

Fair value measurements are used for inventoriesrnrecurring basis when events and circumstandeste the carrying value may
not be recoverable. Fair value is determined basegstimated future cash flows discounted for iaherisks associated with real estate assets,
or other valuation techniques.

The Company'’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, restricted cash, mortgagksates receivable, senior notes,
and mortgages and land contracts due to land selfet other loans. Fair value measurements ofdiabimstruments are determined by vari
market data and other valuation techniques as pppte. When available, the Company uses quote#eharices in active markets to
determine fair value.

Financial Services Operations. Revenues from the Company’s financial servicesnggq are generated primarily from interest income,
title services, insurance commissions and, in 26idrketing services fees. Interest income is accaseearned. Title services revenues are
recognized as closing services are rendered dadnsturance policies are issued, both of whichegalty occur simultaneously at the time each
home is closed. Insurance commissions are recadjmben policies are issued, while marketing ses/fees are recognized when earned.

Warranty Costs. The Company provides a limited warranty on alt®homes. The Company estimates the costs thateaycurred
under each limited warranty and records a liabititthe amount of such costs at the time the rez@ssociated with the sale of each home is
recognized. Factors that affect the Company’s wagyrbability include the number of homes deliverédstorical and anticipated rates of
warranty claims, and cost per claim. The Compsaiyimary assumption in estimating the amountsdtwes for warranty costs is that histor
claims experience is a strong indicator of futuegnas experience. The Company periodically assatseadequacy of its recorded warranty
liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessagdan its assessment.

Insurance. The Company self-insures a portion of its oveiiak through the use of a captive insurance suésidirhe Company records
expenses and liabilities based on the estimatad ceguired to cover its self-insured retention daductible amounts under its insurance
policies, and on the estimated costs of potenighs and claim adjustment expenses that are aboeeverage limits or that are not covered
by its policies. These estimated costs are basesh@malysis of the Company’s historical claims exctlde an estimate of construction defect
claims incurred but not yet reported.

The Company engages a third-party actuary thattheeSompanys historical claim and expense data, as well assitngd data, to estime
its unpaid claims, claim adjustment expenses atoariad but not reported claims liabilities for tligks that the Company is assuming unde
selfinsured portion of its general liability insuran&ojection of losses related to these liabilitieguires actuarial assumptions that are su
to variability due to uncertainties regarding constion defect claims relative to the Company’s ke#s and the types of product it builds,
claim settlement patterns, insurance industry prestand legal or regulatory interpretations, amathgr factors. Because of the degree of
judgment required and the potential for variabilitythe underlying assumptions used in determitiiege estimated liability amounts, act
future costs could differ from the Company’s estiedsamounts.

Advertising Costs. The Company expenses advertising costs as incurtedCompany incurred advertising costs of $32lam in
2011, $25.9 million in 2010 and $16.5 million in(B0

Legal Fees. Legal fees associated with litigation and simfesceedings that are not expected to provide aftién future periods are
generally expensed as incurred. Legal fees asedardth asset acquisition and development and attigrities that are expected to provide a
benefit in future periods are capitalized as inedrin the Company’s consolidated balance sheetsChmpany expensed legal fees of $16.9
million in 2011, $33.7 million in 2010 and $25.7Iloin in 2009.
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Sock-Based Compensation. With the approval of the management developmeditteampensation committee, consisting entirely of
independent members of the Company’s board of irecthe Company has provided compensation benefitertain of its employees in the
form of stock options, restricted stock, phantorarsk and SARSs.

The Company measures and recognizes compensapenseassociated with its grant of equity-baseddsiia accordance with ASC
718, which requires that companies measure andyné&®compensation expense at an amount equa faithvalue of share-based payments
granted under compensation arrangements over gtmgeeriod. The Company estimates the fair vafustock options and SARs granted
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model wiis@amptions based primarily on historical data. A38 also requires the tax benefit
resulting from tax deductions in excess of the censation expense recognized for those options tegmated in the statement of cash flow
an operating cash outflow and a financing caslowmnf|

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for in accordance AS@ 740. The provision for, or benefit from, incotages is calculated
using the asset and liability method, under whiefedred tax assets and liabilities are recordeddas the difference between the financial
statement and tax basis of assets and liabilisegyienacted tax rates in effect for the year iictvthe differences are expected to reverse.
Deferred tax assets are evaluated on a quartesly tiadetermine if adjustments to the valuatidovednce are required. In accordance with
ASC 740, the Company assesses whether a valuditovaace should be established based on the coasiole of all available evidence using
a “more likely than not” standard with respect thether deferred tax assets will be realized. Thimate realization of deferred tax assets
depends primarily on the generation of future té@bcome during the periods in which the differestecome deductible. Judgment is
required in determining the future tax consequenéevents that have been recognized in the Conipaoysolidated financial statements
and/or tax returns. Differences between anticipatatiactual outcomes of these future tax consegsesald have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. The accumulated balances of other comprehenssgeiiathe consolidated balance sheets as of
November 30, 2011 and 2010 were comprised soleidpfstments recorded directly to accumulated atberprehensive loss in accordal
with Accounting Standards Codification Topic No571Compensation — Retirement Benefits” (“ASC 71585C 715 requires an employer
to recognize the funded status of defined posemtimt benefit plans as an asset or liability orbtdance sheet and requires any unrecognized
prior service costs and actuarial gains/lossegteebognized in accumulated other comprehensianieqloss).

Loss Per Share. Basic and diluted loss per share were calculagddlbws (in thousands, except per share amounts):
Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
Numerator:

Net loss $(178,76%) $(69,369 $(101,789)
Denominator

Basic and diluted average shares outstan 77,04: 76,88¢ 76,66(
Basic and diluted loss per shi $ (2.39) $ (90 $  (1.39)

All outstanding stock options were excluded froma tliluted loss per share calculations for the yeadeed November 30, 2011, 2010 and
2009 because the effect of their inclusion woul@bgdilutive, or would decrease the reported lpessshare.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements . In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06¢ckwprovides amendments to Accounting
Standards Codification Subtopic No. 820-10, “Fa@éie Measurements and Disclosures — Overall.” A8WU0206 requires additional
disclosures and clarifications of existing discl@sufor recurring and nonrecurring fair value measwents. The revised guidance was effective
for the Company in the second quarter of 2010, gxdme the Level 3 activity disclosures, which aféective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2010. The adoption of this guidanceems disclosure only and will not have an immacthe Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations.
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In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, whichngjes the wording used to describe the requireniet@AAP for measuring fair
value and for disclosing information about fairn@imeasurements in order to improve consistenthyeimpplication and description of fair
value between GAAP and IFRS. ASU 2011-04 clarifiess the concepts of highest and best use and V@yatemise in a fair value
measurement are relevant only when measuring thedlae of nonfinancial assets and are not relewdren measuring the fair value of
financial assets or liabilities. In addition, theidance expanded the disclosures for the unobslerugtuts for Level 3 fair value measureme
requiring quantitative information to be disclosethted to (1) the valuation processes used, &%énsitivity of the fair value measurement to
changes in unobservable inputs and the interrelstips between those unobservable inputs, andsédia nonfinancial asset in a way that
differs from the asset’highest and best use. The revised guidancesstiefé for interim and annual periods beginningraBRecember 15, 20!
and early application by public entities is prokgi The Company is currently evaluating the paéaithpact of adopting this guidance on its
consolidated financial position and results of agiens.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, whitdwed an entity the option to present the total@hprehensive income, the
components of net income, and the components ef attmprehensive income either in a single contisigtatement of comprehensive inct
or in two separate but consecutive statementsotimipstances, an entity is required to presert eamponent of net income along with total
net income, each component of other comprehenso@ie along with a total for other comprehensiw®ime, and a total amount for
comprehensive income. ASU 200%-eliminates the option to present the componeintsher comprehensive income as part of the setem
changes in stockholders’ equity. The amendmenfsSid 201165 do not change the items that must be reportethier comprehensive incol
or when an item of other comprehensive income meseclassified to net income. However, in Decen®fdrl, the FASB issued ASU 2011-
12, which deferred the guidance on whether to reqertities to present reclassification adjustmentsof accumulated other comprehensive
income by component in both the statement wher@nete is presented and the statement where otingprehensive income is presentec
both interim and annual financial statements. ABW1212 reinstated the requirements for the presentafioaclassifications that were in ple
prior to the issuance of ASU 2011-05 and did neingfe the effective date for ASU 2011-05. For puélitities, the amendments in ASU 2011-
05 and ASU 2011-12 are effective for fiscal years] interim periods within those years, beginnifigraddDecember 15, 2011, and should be
applied retrospectively. The adoption of this gaiceconcerns disclosure only and will not havenapeict on the Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the consolidated financialestegnts of prior years have been reclassified téoconto the 2011
presentation.

Note 2.  Segment Information

As of November 30, 2011, the Company had identifiiegl reporting segments, comprised of four homieling reporting segments and
one financial services reporting segment, withércitnsolidated operations in accordance with Actiogrstandards Codification Topic
No. 280,"Segment Reporting.” As of November 30, 2011, tleenPany’s homebuilding reporting segments conductegbing operations in
the following states:

West Coast: California

Southwest: Arizona and Nevada

Central: Colorado and Texas

Southeast: Florida, Maryland, North Carolinag &irginia

The Company’s homebuilding reporting segments agaged in the acquisition and development of laimiarily for residential
purposes and offer a wide variety of homes thatlasigned to appeal to first-time, move-up andvacidult homebuyers.

The Company’s homebuilding reporting segments daetified based primarily on similarities in ecanic and geographic
characteristics, product types, regulatory envirents, methods used to sell and construct homekaddcquisition characteristics. The
Company evaluates segment performance primarilgcdbes segment pretax results.

The Company’s financial services reporting segnpeoides title and insurance services to the Compgaromebuyers. Until late June
2011, this segment also provided mortgage banléngces to a significant proportion
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of the Company’s homebuyers indirectly through KBlartgage, a former unconsolidated joint ventura sfibsidiary of the Company and a
subsidiary of Bank of America, N.A., with each pemt having had a 50% ownership interest in thewrenfThe Bank of America, N.A.
subsidiary partner operated KBA Mortgage. The Camyccounted for KBA Mortgage as an unconsolid@éd venture in the financial
services reporting segment of its consolidatediirel statements. The Company’s financial serviepsrting segment conducts operations in
the same markets as the Company’s homebuildingtiegsegments.

During the first quarter of 2011, the Bank of AneariN.A. subsidiary partner in KBA Mortgage apptued the Company about exiting
the unconsolidated joint venture due to the desfii@ank of America, N.A. to cease participatingamt venture structures in its business. As a
result, KBA Mortgage ceased offering mortgage baglservices after June 30, 2011, and the uncordetijoint ventures business operatio
were subsequently unwound. After June 30, 2011kB&rmerica, N.A. processed and closed only ttsdential consumer mortgage loans
that KBA Mortgage had originated for the Company®snebuyers on or before June 26, 2011.

The Company entered into a marketing services aggeewith MetLife Home Loans, a division of MetLiBank, N.A., effective
June 27, 2011. Under the agreement, MetLife Homankbpersonnel, located on site at several of th@@any’s new home communities, can
offer (i) financing options and mortgage loan produo the Company’s homebuyers, (ii) to prequdiifynebuyers for residential consumer
mortgage loans, and (iii) to commence the loanimaitpn process for homebuyers who elect to usd.MéeHome Loans. The Company mal
marketing materials and other information regarditejLife Home Loans’ financing options and mortgaggn products available to its
homebuyers and is compensated solely for the faiket value of these services. MetLife Home Loarsits parent company, MetLife Bank,
N.A., are not affiliates of the Company or anytsfsubsidiaries. The Compés homebuyers are under no obligation to use MetHbme
Loans and may select any provider of their chaicehtain mortgage financing for the purchase obmé. The Company does not have any
ownership, joint venture or other interests in dhwietLife Home Loans or MetLife Bank, N.A. or witespect to the revenues or income that
may be generated from MetLife Home Loans providimgrtgage banking services to, or originating residé consumer mortgage loans for,
the Company’s homebuyers.

MetLife Bank, N.A. recently announced that it witase offering forward mortgage banking servicgsaatsof its business. While the
Company is evaluating various options, its stratégiention is to reestablish a mortgage bankingt jgenture or marketing relationship with a
financial institution or other mortgage bankingvegs provider, but the Company can provide norasge that it will be able to do so.

The Company'’s reporting segments follow the sancewatting policies used for the Company’s consoéiddinancial statements as
described in Note 1. Summary of Significant AccanmtPolicies. Operational results of each segmenhat necessarily indicative of the
results that would have occurred had the segment &e independent, staatbne entity during the periods presented, notlag indicative o
the results to be expected in future periods.
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The following tables present financial informati@tating to the Company’s reporting segments (ouffands):
Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
Revenues
West Coas $ 589,38 $ 700,64! $ 812,20°
Southwes 139,87. 187,73t 218,09¢
Central 369,70! 436,40: 434,40(
Southeas 206,59¢ 256,97¢ 351,71.
Total homebuilding revenu 1,305,56:; 1,581,76: 1,816,41!
Financial service 10,30¢ 8,23: 8,43t
Total revenue $1,315,86! $1,589,99 $1,824,85
Pretax income (loss
West Coas $ 19,63¢ $ 60,25( $ (88,44)
Southwes (108,269 (15,809 (48,572)
Central (12,929 1,772 (29,38)
Southeas (37,989 (42,807 (78,419
Corporate and other ( (67,719 (88,38¢) (85,579
Total homebuilding los (207,24¢) (88,51 (330,387
Financial service 26,07¢ 12,14 19,19¢
Total pretax los: $ (181,16%) $ (76,369 $ (311,189
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ges:
West Coas $ 68 $ 1,47¢ $ (7,76
Southwes (55,90) (8,63)) (15,509
Central — — 50€
Southeas (5) 89¢ (26,85))
Total $ (55,839 $ (6,257 $ (49,61H
Inventory impairments
West Coas $ 2,59¢ $ 3,82¢ $ 44,89
Southwes 18,71¢ 962 28,83
Central 51 34¢ 23,89
Southeas 1,36¢ 4,67 23,22¢
Total $ 22,73( $ 981t $ 120,84
Land option contract abandonmer
West Coas $ 704 $ 797 $ 32,67¢
Southwes 29¢ — —
Central 1,31( 6,511 —
Southeas 751 2,802 14,62:
Total $ 3,061 $ 10,11 $ 47,30:
Joint venture impairment
West Coas $ — $ — $ 7,19(
Southwes 53,721 — 5,42¢
Southeas — — 25,91¢
Total $ 53,72 $ — $ 38,53

(&) Corporate and other includes corporate generahdministrative expense
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November 30,

2011 2010
Assets:

West Coas $ 995,88t $ 965,32
Southwes 338,58t 376,23
Central 336,55! 328,93¢
Southeas 317,30¢ 372,61
Corporate and othe 492,03¢ 1,037,20!
Total homebuilding asse 2,480,36! 3,080,30!
Financial service 32,17: 29,44:
Total asset $2,512,54, $3,109,74!

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventul
West Coas $ 38,40¢ $ 37,83
Southwes 80,19« 59,191
Southeas 9,327 8,562
Total $ 127,92¢ $ 105,58:

Note 3. Financial Services

The following tables present financial informati@tating to the Company’s financial services rejpgrsegment (in thousands):
Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
Revenue:!

Insurance commissiot $ 7,18¢ $ 7,23 $ 7,22

Title services 1,98: 992 1,18¢

Marketing services fee 1,12¢ — —

Interest incomt 8 6 31

Total 10,30¢ 8,23: 8,43t
Expense:

General and administratiy (3,5617) (3,119 (3,25))
Operating incom 6,792 5,114 5,18¢
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture 19,28¢ 7,02¢ 14,01t
Pretax incom: $ 26,07 $ 12,14 $ 19,19

November 30,
2011 2010
Assets

Cash and cash equivale! $ 3,02« $ 4,02¢

Receivable: 25,49t 1,607

Investment in unconsolidated joint vent 3,63¢ 23,775

Other asset 15 30
Total asset $ 32,17. $ 29,44
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 7,494 $ 2,62
Total liabilities $ 7,49/ $ 2,62

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company receielistribution of $13.8 million and establisherkaeivable of $23.5 million in
connection with the wind down of KBA Mortgage. TBempany recorded a gain of $19.8 million in therfowquarter of 2011 that is included
in equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsatied joint venture. The receivable was collecteDégember 2011.

Although KBHMC ceased originating and selling madg loans on September 1, 2005, it may be reqtoregburchase an individual
loan that it funded on or before August 31, 2008 swid to an investor if the representations orargies that it made in connection with the
sale of the loan are breached, in the event ofdy payment default, or if the loan does not compith the underwriting standards or other
requirements of the ultimate investor.
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Note 4. Receivables

Mortgages and notes receivable totaled $.3 miibNovember 30, 2011 and $40.5 million at Noven88r2010. Mortgages and notes
receivable are primarily related to land saleserigst rates on mortgages and notes receivable3f&i@ November 30, 2011 and ranged from
3% to 8% at November 30, 2010. Included in mortgayel notes receivable at November 30, 2010 wasearaceivable of $40.0 million on
which the Company foreclosed on the underlying es#hte collateral in the second quarter of 2011.

Other receivables of $65.9 million at November3@11 and $67.5 million at November 30, 2010 inctudeounts due from
municipalities and utility companies, federal atatesincome taxes receivable, and escrow dep@iter receivables were net of allowances
for doubtful accounts of $23.7 million in 2011 &B@iL.2 million in 2010.

Note 5. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following (in thoussnd
November 30,

2011 2010
Homes under constructic $ 417,30 $ 363,71¢
Land under developme 587,58 701,63¢
Land held for future developme 726,74 631,36°

Total $1,731,62! $1,696,72.

Homes under construction is comprised of costsciat®al with homes in various stages of constructiodh includes direct construction
and related land and land development costs. Laddndevelopment primarily consists of land, laestelopment costs, capitalized interest
and real estate taxes associated with land undeygmiprovement activity. Land held for future deomhent principally reflects land and land
development costs related to land where developaxtivity has been suspended but is expected tomedn the future. The Company may
suspend development activity due to building pemutatorium or regulatory restrictions, or on latged parcels that it plans to build out over
several years and/or parcels that have not yet &egtled. The Company may also defer developmetitity if it believes such a deferral will
result in greater returns and/or maximize the endo@erformance of a community.

Interest is capitalized to inventories while thiated communities are being actively developedartd homes are completed. Capitali
interest is amortized in construction and landsastthe related inventories are delivered to hoyesis. For those communities for which
development activity has been suspended, applidatgieest is expensed as incurred. The Companiésdst costs are as follows (in
thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
Capitalized interest at beginning of y« $ 249,96¢ $ 291,27¢ $ 361,61
Capitalized interest related to consolidation &viously unconsolidated joint

ventures — 9,91« —
Interest incurred (& 112,03 122,23( 119,60:
Interest expensed ( (49,209 (68,30 (51,769
Interest amortized to construction and land ¢ (79,339 (105,15() (138,179
Capitalized interest at end of year $ 233,46 $ 249,961 $ 291,27

(@ Amounts for the year ended November 30, 2011 ircclu®3.6 million gain on the early extinguishmeingecured debt. Amounts for t
year ended November 30, 2010 include a total & #1illion of debt issuance costs written off in oceation with the Compar's
voluntary reduction of the aggregate commitmentauride Credit Facility from $650.0 million to $200million and the voluntary
termination of the Credit Facility effective Mar8h, 2010. Amounts for the year ended November 8092nclude losses on the early
redemption of debt of $1.0 milliol
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(b) Inventory impairment charges are recognized agaihstventory costs of a community, such as ldadd improvements, cost of hor
construction and capitalized interest. Capitalirgdrest amounts presented in the table reflectjtbes amount of capitalized interest as
impairment charges recognized are not generalbgaléd to specific components of inventc

Note 6. Inventory Impairments and Land Option Cantract Abandonments

Each land parcel or community in the Company’s ahineentory is assessed to determine if indicaddsotential impairment exist.
Impairment indicators are assessed separatehafdr kand parcel or community on a quarterly basisiaclude, but are not limited to:
significant decreases in sales rates, averagegdgltices, volume of homes delivered, gross margimsomes delivered or projected margin
homes in backlog or future housing sales; signifi¢acreases in budgeted land development and reatisin costs or cancellation rates; or
projected losses on expected future land salé@sdifators of potential impairment exist for a lgmarcel or community, the identified asset is
evaluated for recoverability in accordance with AS8D. The Company evaluated 138, 118 and 281 larzk|s or communities for
recoverability during the years ended November28d,1, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Some of the famdels or communities evaluated
during the years ended November 30, 2011, 201868 may have been evaluated in more than oneaglygperiod.

When an indicator of potential impairment is id&atl for a land parcel or community, the Comparsta¢he asset for recoverability by
comparing the carrying amount of the asset to titksgounted future net cash flows expected to bemgeed by the asset. The undiscounted
future net cash flows are impacted by then-curcentlitions and trends in the market in which theetss located as well as factors known to
the Company at the time the cash flows are caledlathe undiscounted future net cash flows consgtnt trends in the Company'’s sales,
backlog and cancellation rates. Also taken intmant are the Company’s future expectations relaiete following: market supply and
demand, including estimates concerning averagmgedtices; sales and cancellation rates; andigatied land development, construction and
overhead costs to be incurred. With respect ty#ae ended November 30, 2011, these expectatifiestezl the Company’s experience that
market conditions for its assets in inventory wherpairment indicators were identified have beenagally stable in 2010 and 2011, with no
significant deterioration or improvement identifiad to revenue and cost drivers, excluding the ¢earp, though significant impact of the
expiration of the Tax Credit. In its inventory assments during 2011 and 2010, the Company detedntiiae the declines in its sales and
backlog levels that it experienced in the lattdf 662010 and in the first half of 2011 did nofleet a sustained change in market conditions
preventing recoverability. Rather, the Company aBred that they reflected the after effects oftag Credit. Strategic community count
reductions the Company made in select marketsiam periods to align its operations with marketivtt levels also contributed to the declir
in sales and backlog levels. Based on this expegieand taking into account the year-over-yeariase in net orders in the latter half of 2011
and the number of new home communities open fessaind signs of stability in certain markets fewrhome sales, the Company’s inventory
assessments as of November 30, 2011 consideregaated overall improved sales pace for 2012.

Given the inherent challenges and uncertaintidsricasting future results, the Company’s inventsgessments at the time they are
made generally assume the continuation of therentimarket conditions, subject to identifying infa@ation suggesting a sustained
deterioration or improvement in such condition®tirer significant changes. Therefore, the Compaimysntory assessments, at the time
made, anticipate sales rates, average sellingspaicd costs to generally continue at or near thereat levels through the affected asset’s
estimated remaining life. For the Company’s lantdi fier future development, its inventory assessimetgo incorporate highly subjective
forecasts for future performance, including theinignof development, the product to be offered,ghles rates and selling prices of the product
when the community is anticipated to open for sades the projected costs to develop and constneatommunity. The Company evaluates
various factors to develop its forecasts, includimg availability of and demand for homes and fiei$ lots within the marketplace; historical,
current and future sales trends; and third-partg,dhavailable. Based on these factors, the Camwpffarmulates reasonable assumptions for
future performance based on its judgment. The$matgs, trends and expectations used in the Congparmventory assessments are specific to
each land parcel or community and may vary amongd fearcels or communities.

A real estate asset is considered impaired whegaitying value is greater than the undiscountéaréunet cash flows the asset is
expected to generate. Impaired real estate agsetaitten down to fair value, which is primarilaged on the estimated future cash flows
discounted for inherent risk associated with easet The discount rates
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used in the Company’s estimated discounted caslsftanged from 17% to 20% during 2011 and 2010randed from 12% to 21% during
2009. These discount rates and related discoumtgdftows are impacted by the following: the riskef rate of return; expected risk premium
based on estimated land development, constructidrdelivery timelines; market risk from potentiatdre price erosion; cost uncertainty due
to development or construction cost increases;ofimek risks specific to the asset or conditionghamarket in which the asset is located at the
time the assessment is made. These factors ardispeeach land parcel or community and may vamong land parcels or communities.

Based on the results of its evaluations, the Comparognized pretax, noncash inventory impairméatrges of $22.7 million in 2011
associated with 12 land parcels or communities wigost-impairment fair value of $34.0 million. Beecharges included an $18.1 million
adjustment to the fair value of real estate cofidtin the Company’s Southwest homebuilding reparsegment that the Company recorded
upon the foreclosure of a note receivable in 2012010, the Company recognized $9.8 million oft@xenoncash inventory impairment
charges associated with eight land parcels or camtias with a post-impairment fair value of $11.8lion. In 2009, the Company recognized
pretax, noncash inventory impairment charges oD®Ltillion associated with 61 land parcels or camities with a post-impairment fair
value of $129.0 million. The inventory impairmetite Company recorded during 2011, 2010 and 200&ctefl declining asset values in
certain markets due to unfavorable economic andoetitive conditions. In some cases, the Companyd@msynized impairment charges for
particular land parcels or communities in multipéears.

As of November 30, 2011, the aggregate carryingevaf the Company’s inventory that had been imghbtepretax, noncash inventory
impairment charges was $338.5 million, represeriiBidand parcels or communities. As of November281,0, the aggregate carrying value
the Company’s inventory that had been impactedrbiag, noncash inventory impairment charges wa8 $4hillion, representing 72 land
parcels or communities.

The Company’s inventory controlled under land aptiontracts and other similar contracts is assesséetermine whether it continues
to meet the Company'’s internal investment and marfgestandards. Assessments are made separategdbroptioned land parcel on a
quarterly basis and are affected by the followBigpng other factors: current and/or anticipatedssedtes, average selling prices and home
delivery volume; estimated land development andtrantion costs; and projected profitability on eged future housing or land sales. When
a decision is made not to exercise certain lanmomontracts and other similar contracts due tdketeconditions and/or changes in its
marketing strategy, the Company writes off theteglanventory costs, including non-refundable dépand pre-acquisition costs. Based on
the results of its assessments, the Company remsgjpretax, noncash land option contract abandonohanges of $3.1 million corresponding
to 830 lots in 2011, $10.1 million correspondindlt607 lots in 2010, and $47.3 million correspogdim 1,362 lots in 2009. Inventory
impairment and land option contract abandonmentggisaare included in construction and land costeénCompany’s consolidated statements
of operations.

The estimated remaining life of each land parcelammunity in the Company’s inventory depends atous factors, such as the total
number of lots remaining; the expected timelinadquire and entitle land and develop lots to baddches; the anticipated future sales and
cancellation rates; and the expected timeline tlolland deliver homes sold. While it is difficuti tietermine a precise timeframe for any
particular inventory asset, the Company estimassimventory assets’ remaining operating lives uroderent and expected future market
conditions to range generally from one year toxicess of 10 years. Based on current market conditmd expected delivery timelines, the
Company expects to realize, on an overall basésntajority of its current inventory balance in tte five years.

Due to the judgment and assumptions applied iregtienation process with respect to inventory impaints, land option contract
abandonments, the remaining operating lives otbeapany’s inventory assets and the realizatiotsahiventory balances, it is possible that
actual results could differ substantially from te@stimated.

Note 7. Fair Value Disclosures

ASC 820 defines fair value, provides a frameworknm@asuring the fair value of assets and liabditieder GAAP, and establishes a fair
value hierarchy that requires an entity to maxintiEuse of observable inputs and minimize theofismobservable inputs when measuring
fair value. The fair value hierarchy can be sumeeatias follows:

Level 1 Fair value determined based on quoted prices ineantarkets for identical assets or liabiliti
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Level 2 Fair value determined using significant observatgbeits, such as quoted prices for similar asseligiifities or quotec
prices for identical or similar assets or liabd#iin markets that are not active, inputs other theoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, or inputattare derived principally from or corroborateddiservable market data, by
correlation or other mean

Level 3 Fair value determined using significant unobsergétybuts, such as pricing models, discounted das¥sf or similar
techniques

Fair value measurements are used for inventoriesrmmnrecurring basis when events and circumstandesate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. The following table preséime Company’s assets measured at fair valuenom@curring basis (in thousands):

Fair Value
November 30 November 30
Description Hierarchy 2011 (a) 2010 (a)
Long-lived assets held and us Level 2 $ 7! $ —
Long-lived assets held and us Level & 33,941 11,57(
Total $ 34,02 $ 11,57

(&) Amount represents the aggregate fair values fat p@rcels or communities for which the Company gaced noncash invento
impairment charges during the period, as of the tt the fair value measurements were made. imgireg value for these land parcels
and communities may have subsequently increasddaseased from the fair value reflected due tosiagtihat has occurred since the
measurement dat

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 360, Idingd assets held and used with a carrying valugb6f7 million were written down
their fair value of $34.0 million during the yearded November 30, 2011, resulting in noncash irorgrimpairment charges of $22.7 million.
Long-lived assets held and used with a carryingevaff $21.4 million were written down to their famlue of $11.6 million during the year
ended November 30, 2010.

The fair values for the Company’s long-lived as$etisl and used that were determined using Levepa@ts were based on an executed
contract. The fair values for the Company’s longdl assets held and used that were determined usugj 3 inputs were primarily based on
the estimated future cash flows discounted forriaherisk associated with each asset. These discates and related discounted cash flows
were impacted by the following: the risk-free rafaeturn; expected risk premium based on estimiated development, construction and
delivery timelines; market risk from potential foeuprice erosion; cost uncertainty due to develagroe construction cost increases; and other
risks specific to the asset or conditions in thekegin which the asset is located at the timeatbgessment is made. These factors were specifi
to each land parcel or community and may have damong land parcels or communities.

The Company’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, restricted cash, mortgagksaates receivable, senior notes,
and mortgages and land contracts due to land satet other loans. Fair value measurements ofdiabimstruments are determined by vari
market data and other valuation techniques as pppte. When available, the Company uses quote#tehgrices in active markets to
determine fair value.

The following table presents the carrying valued astimated fair values of the Company’s finanigciatruments, except for those for

which the carrying values approximate fair valuagtfousands):
November 30,

2011 2010
Estimated

Carrying Estimated Carrying Fair
_ Vvalue _Fair Value __Value __Value

Financial Liabilities:

Senior notes due 2011 a3/8% $ — $ — $ 99,91¢ $101,50(
Senior notes due 2014 a3/ 4% 249,64 232,50( 249,49¢ 246,25(
Senior notes due 2015 a7/ 8% 299,27: 270,00( 299,06¢ 289,50(
Senior notes due 2015 a1/ 4% 449,79! 401,62¢ 449,74! 435,37¢
Senior notes due 2017 at 9.: 260,86 235,51¢ 260,35: 279,57t
Senior notes due 2018 a1/ 4% 299,00° 251,62¢ 298,89 286,50(

78



Table of Contents

The fair values of the Company’s senior notes atienated based on quoted market prices. The Comegrayd the remaining
$100.0 million in aggregate principal amount of $850 Million Senior Notes at their August 15, 20taturity.

The carrying amounts reported for cash and casivaeuts, restricted cash, mortgages and notesvedale, and mortgages and land
contracts due to land sellers and other loans appede fair values.

Note 8. Variable Interest Entities

The Company participates in joint ventures frometita time that conduct land acquisition, developinaerl/or other homebuilding
activities. Its investments in these joint venturesy create a variable interest in a VIE, dependimghe contractual terms of the arrangement.
The Company analyzes its joint ventures in accarearith ASC 810 to determine whether they are \dEg, if so, whether the Company is
the primary beneficiary. All of the Company’s jowgntures at November 30, 2011 and 2010 were datedunder the provisions of ASC 810
to be unconsolidated joint ventures and were adealuior under the equity method, either becausgwhere not VIEs or, if they were VIEs,
Company was not the primary beneficiary of the VIEs

In the ordinary course of its business, the Comparigrs into land option contracts and other singitmtracts to procure rights to land
parcels for the construction of homes. The useiolfisand option contracts and other similar congrgenerally allows the Company to reduce
the market risks associated with direct land owmiprand development, and to reduce the Companpiatand financial commitments,
including interest and other carrying costs. Uralerh contracts, the Company typically pays a sigecdption deposit or earnest money
deposit in consideration for the right to purchiasel in the future, usually at a predeterminedeorignder the requirements of ASC 810, cel
of these contracts may create a variable inteogeshé& Company, with the land seller being ideatifas a VIE.

In compliance with ASC 810, the Company analyzetaihd option contracts and other similar contrexdetermine whether the
corresponding land sellers are VIEs and, if so,tivrethe Company is the primary beneficiary. Altgbuhe Company does not have legal title
to the underlying land, ASC 810 requires the Comparconsolidate a VIE if the Company is determitetie the primary beneficiary. In
determining whether it is the primary beneficiadhye Company considers, among other things, whéthes the power to direct the activities
the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE'sa@mmic performance. Such activities would incluai®ong other things, determining or
limiting the scope or purpose of the VIE, sellimgransferring property owned or controlled by YH&, or arranging financing for the VIE. T
Company also considers whether it has the obligatabsorb losses of the VIE or the right to reedienefits from the VIE. As a result of its
analyses, the Company determined that as of Nove&ihe011 and 2010 it was not the primary benafjcof any VIEs from which it is
purchasing land under land option contracts andratimilar contracts.

As of November 30, 2011, the Company had cash dsgotaling $8.1 million associated with land agpticontracts and other similar
contracts that the Company determined to be undidased VIES, having an aggregate purchase pricglaf.1 million, and had cash deposits
totaling $12.8 million associated with land optimontracts and other similar contracts that the Cmmletermined were not VIEs, having an
aggregate purchase price of $223.0 million. As o¥&mber 30, 2010, the Company had cash deposalintp$2.6 million associated with la
option contracts and other similar contracts that€@ompany determined to be unconsolidated VIEgngan aggregate purchase price of
$86.1 million, and had cash deposits totaling $12illon associated with land option contracts atiter similar contracts that the Company
determined were not VIEs having an aggregate psechace of $274.3 million.

The Company’s exposure to loss related to its tgstcbn contracts and other similar contracts wiitindt parties and unconsolidated
entities consisted of its cash deposits, whicHédt&20.9 million at November 30, 2011 and $14.Bioni at November 30, 2010, and are
included in inventories in the Company’s consokdibalance sheets. In addition, the Company hadamding letters of credit of $1.7 million
at November 30, 2011 and $4.2 million at Noveml@r2®10 in lieu of cash deposits under certain Igpiibn contracts or other similar
contracts.

The Company also evaluates its land option corgtraetl other similar contracts for financing arrangets in accordance with ASC 470,
and, as a result of its evaluations, increaseditovies, with a corresponding increase to accrugemrses and other liabilities, in its
consolidated balance sheets by $23.9 million ateddser 30, 2011 and $15.5 million at November 32020
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Note 9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventes

The Company has investments in unconsolidated yaintures that conduct land acquisition, develograad/or other homebuilding
activities in various markets where the Companysiabuilding operations are located. The Compangttners in these unconsolidated joint
ventures are unrelated homebuilders, and/or lamdldeers and other real estate entities, or comalexnterprises. The Company enters into
these unconsolidated joint ventures primarily tuee or share market and development risks amittease the number of its owned and
controlled homesites. In some instances, particigah unconsolidated joint ventures has enableddbmpany to acquire and develop land
it might not otherwise have had access to duepimpgect’s size, financing needs, duration of depglent or other circumstances. While the
Company considers its participation in unconsoédgoint ventures as potentially beneficial tohitsnebuilding activities, it does not view si
participation as essential and has unwound itsgiaation in a number of these unconsolidated juerttures in the past few years.

The Company typically has obtained rights to pusehgortions of the land held by the unconsolid@ed ventures in which it
participates. When an unconsolidated joint vensetes land to the Company’s homebuilding operatitims Company defers recognition of its
share of such unconsolidated joint venture earnimgis a home sale is closed and title passegimnaebuyer, at which time the Company
accounts for those earnings as a reduction ofdkeaf purchasing the land from the unconsolidéd venture.

The Company and its unconsolidated joint venturénpas make initial and/or ongoing capital conttibns to these unconsolidated joint
ventures, typically on a pro rata basis equal &ir thespective equity interests. The obligationmake capital contributions are governed by
each unconsolidated joint venture’s respective atpeg agreement and related governing documents.

Each unconsolidated joint venture is obligated #ntain financial statements in accordance with ®AAhe Company shares in profits
and losses of these unconsolidated joint ventugasmglly in accordance with its respective equitgriests. In some instances, the Company
recognizes profits and losses related to its imaest in an unconsolidated joint venture that diffem its equity interest in the unconsolidated
joint venture. This may arise from impairments ggtiaed by the Company related to its investmerttdiféer from the recognition c
impairments by the unconsolidated joint venturehwéspect to the unconsolidated joint venture’s@sslifferences between the Company’s
basis in assets it has transferred to the uncataeli joint venture and the unconsolidated joimtwes’s basis in those assets; the deferral c
unconsolidated joint venture’s profits from landesato the Company; or other items.

With respect to the Company’s investment in uncbdated joint ventures, its equity in loss of unsolidated joint ventures included
pretax, noncash impairment charges of $53.7 millio2011 and $38.5 million in 2009. There were notsimpairment charges in 2010. In
2011, the impairment charge reflected the writeobthe Company’s remaining investment in Southd=dthe Company wrote off its
remaining investment in South Edge following a tal@cision in the first quarter of 2011. Due toamkruptcy-court approved disposition of
the land previously owned by South Edge, pursuattii¢ South Edge Plan, to Inspirada Builders, Lh@e fourth quarter of 2011, South Ei
had no assets or liabilities at November 30, 2011.

The following table presents information from tlembined condensed statements of operations of ehgp@ny’s unconsolidated joint
ventures (in thousands):
Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009

Revenues $ 23I $ 122,201 $ 60,79
Construction and land cos (54) (120,010 (117,259
Other expenses, n (4,50€6) (19,367) (46,437)
Loss $ (4,330 $ (17,179 $(102,89)
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The following table presents combined condensearnioal sheet information for the Company’s unconatdid joint ventures (in

thousands):
November 30,

2011 2010
Assets
Cash $ 8,92t $ 14,947
Receivable: 19,50: 147,02¢
Inventories 368,30¢ 575,63
Other asset 151 51,75t
Total asset $396,88: $789,35¢
Liabilities and equity
Accounts payable and other liabiliti $ 96,98: $113,47¢
Mortgages and notes payal — 327,85¢
Equity 299,90:. 348,02!
Total liabilities and equit $396,88: $789,35¢

The following tables present information relatioghe Company’s investments in unconsolidated jegmtures and the outstanding debt

of unconsolidated joint ventures as of the datesifipd (dollars in thousands):
November 30,

2011 2010
Number of investments in unconsolidated joint vesst
South Edge (a — 1
Other (b) 8 9
Total 8 10
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventul
South Edge (a $ — $ 55,26¢
Other (b) 127,92t 50,31
Total $127,92¢ $105,58:
Outstanding debt of unconsolidated joint ventu
South Edge (a $ — $327,85t

(@) During the first quarter of 2011, the Compampte off its remaining investment in South Edgee Tompany also recorded an estimate
of the probable net payment obligation it would payhe Administrative Agent (on behalf of the So#dge lenders) related to the
Springing Guaranty. The Company updated its eséinmaéach subsequent quarter of 2011, and paidiigation in the fourth quarter of
2011 in connection with the South Edge Plan. Tleegfdata related to South Edge is not reflectatertable as of November 30, 20

(b) The Company’s investments in unconsolidatedtjeéntures as of November 30, 2011 includes ladgiBuilders, LLC. The Company’s
investment of $75.5 million in this unconsolidafetht venture consists of $75.2 million, the estiethfair value as of November 30, 2!
of the Compan’s share of the land the venture holds, and a $l®minitial capital contribution to fund the van€’'s operations

The Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures findaod and inventory investments for a project tigtoa variety of arrangements. To
finance their respective land acquisition and dewelent activities, certain of the Company’s uncdidated joint ventures have obtained loans
from third-party lenders that are secured by thdeulying property and related project assets. Nrtee Company’s unconsolidated joint
ventures had outstanding debt at November 30, 20flthe Company’s unconsolidated joint ventureN@tember 30, 2010, only South Edge
had outstanding debt, which was secured by a lieBauth Edge’s assets, with a principal balanck387.9 million.

In certain instances, the Company and/or its pgghé an unconsolidated joint venture have predidompletion and/or carve-out
guarantees to the unconsolidated joint ventureiddes. A completion guaranty refers to the physical
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completion of improvements for a project and/or dbégation to contribute equity to an unconsoléathjoint venture to enable it to fund its
completion obligations. The Company’s potentiapmssibility under its completion guarantees, ifgered, is highly dependent on the facts of
a particular case. A carve-out guaranty genereflgrs to the payment of losses a lender sufferdaluertain bad acts or omissions by an
unconsolidated joint venture or its partners, sagfraud or misappropriation, or due to environraklbilities arising with respect to the
relevant project. The Company does not believaritently has exposure with respect to any of itgletion or carve-out guarantees.

In addition to completion and carve-out guaranttdes Company provided the Springing Guaranty toAtiministrative Agent in
connection with secured loans made to South Edgd-eébruary 3, 2011, a bankruptcy court enteredrderdor relief on the Petition filed
against South Edge and appointed a Chapter 1eérfist South Edge. Although the Company believad tthere were potential offsets or
defenses to prevent or minimize the enforcemeth®Springing Guaranty, as a result of the Febr@aB011 order for relief on the Petition,
the Company considered it probable, based on thestef the Springing Guaranty, that it became resiide to pay certain amounts to the
Administrative Agent related to the Springing Gudya Therefore, beginning in the first quarter 6fl2, the Company’s consolidated financial
statements reflected a net payment obligationesspiting the Company’s estimate of the probableuattbat it would pay to the
Administrative Agent (on behalf of the South Edgeders) related to the Springing Guaranty and ydf@acertain fees, expenses and charges
and for certain allowed general unsecured claimibénSouth Edge bankruptcy case. This estimateewasiated at the end of each subsequent
guarterly period and updated to reflect the Comjsbglief of its probable net payment obligatiorita time. In connection with the South
Edge Plan and the resolution of other matters sadimg South Edge, the Company made payments df.$28illion in the fourth quarter of
2011, including a payment to the Administrative Agevhich satisfied the respective liens of the Amistrative Agent and most of the South
Edge lenders on the land South Edge owned. Asudt ifconsummating the South Edge Plan and (ahggikto account accruals the Comp
had previously established through inventory impaints with respect to the Company’s estimated $ossated to its share of the land
previously owned by South Edge anticipated to lipimed in connection with the South Edge Plan dnddctoring in an offset for the
estimated fair value of such South Edge land (ssudised below), the Company recognized a lossaondoaranty charge of $30.8 million in
its consolidated statements of operations for treg ¥nded November 30, 2011. This charge was iti@utb the joint venture impairment
charge of $53.7 million that the Company recognize®011 to write off its remaining investment iough Edge.

Based on the terms of the South Edge Plan, thedendously owned by South Edge, including the Canyps share that consists of
approximately 600 developable acres, was acquiydddpirada Builders, LLC. The Company estimateslftiir value of its share of the land to
be $75.2 million at November 30, 2011. The Compealgulated this estimated fair value using a pregalue methodology and assumed that
it would develop the land, build and sell homeswst of the land, and sell the remainder of theetiped land. This fair value estimate at
November 30, 2011 reflected the Comf’s expectations of the price it would receive fisrshare of the land in the land’s then-currertesta
an orderly (not a forced) transaction under thexvgiling market conditions. The Company’s fair \eakstimate was corroborated by a third-
party appraisal conducted in the fourth quarte2Qif1.

The Company’s fair value estimate reflected judgimand key assumptions concerning (a) housing rmatkaply and demand
conditions, including estimates of average selpriges; (b) estimates of potential future homesaled cancellation rates; (c) anticipated
entittements and development plans for the landadicipated land development, construction anefload costs to be incurred; and (e) a risk:
free rate of return and an expected risk premimneaich case in relation to an expected 15-yeafoliféhe project.

Among the key assumptions used in the present vaktbodology were the anticipated appreciatioreirenues and costs over the
expected life of the project. For revenues, the @amy applied an annual appreciation factor of 5¥héoaverage selling prices, based on
current market activity, for its homes to be dalegat the project to estimate the average sefliraps of homes expected to be sold during the
relevant 15-year period. This appreciation facédlected the following considerations: that averagking prices in the southern Nevada
market will increase over the period within a ragéng-term historical trends; that average sgliprices will rebound from the current
depressed levels; that negative media coveradeediankruptcy process and of other legal and dpwaat matters involving South Edge hi
depressed selling prices at the project relatidb@ocCompany’s experience at communities locatedhye that the project is a premium master
planned community in the land-constrained soutidamada market, factors that are anticipated tceimee the average selling prices of homes
at the
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project at a rate greater than other homes inribee @ver the life of the project; and that the reatf the project in the southern Nevada market
and the size of the Company’s share of the Soutfe Eghd can be leveraged to effectively manage teates and pricing strategies to
maximize revenues and profits. The following apfagcn considerations were applied to costs: aofaat 10% was applied to the cost
estimates for the development work expected toonepteted over the life of the project, representlmgpotential cost increases and other
uncertainties inherent in estimating developmests;and a factor of 1% was applied to home coastmu costs for anticipated inflation of
such costs, taking into account historical tremit$ @urrent market conditions. In addition, incretaéimcreases in overhead costs that woul
incurred in connection with the sale of each horeeanassessed as a function of the 5% appreciattorfapplied to the average selling prices.
These revenue and cost appreciation factors weeendimed using judgment and assumptions believéx tappropriate based on the
information known to the Company at the time. Du¢he judgment and assumptions applied in thevidire estimation process at

November 30, 2011, it is possible that actual teszduld differ substantially from those estimat

The Company believes that it will realize the vaddiéts share of the land previously owned by Sdtdige and anticipates that it will
acquire its share of the land from Inspirada Bu#déeLC through a future distribution of the land.
Note 10. Other Assets

Other assets consisted of the following (in thods&n
November 30,

2011 2010
Operating properties, net ( $ — $ 71,93¢
Cash surrender value of insurance contr 59,71¢ 59,10:
Property and equipment, r 7,801 9,59¢
Debt issuance cos 4,21¢ 5,25¢
Prepaid expenst 2,21¢ 3,03:
Net deferred tax asse 1,152 1,152

Total $ 75,10 $ 150,07

(@) On December 16, 2010, the Company sold a -level residential building the Company operated asntal property for net proceeds
$80.6 million and recognized a gain of $8.8 millmmthe sale, which was recorded as a componesglioig, general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of opesa

Note 11. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consistath@following (in thousands):
November 30,

2011 2010
Construction defect and other litigation liabilgie $ 101,01° $ 124,85:
Employee compensation and related ben 76,96( 76,47
Warranty liability 67,69: 93,98¢
Accrued interest payab 43,12¢ 42,96
Liabilities related to inventory not own 23,90: 15,54¢
Real estate and business ta 10,77( 8,22(
Other 50,93 104,45!

Total $ 374,401 $ 466,50
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Note 12. Mortgages and Notes Payable

Mortgages and notes payable consisted of the fallg\iin thousands, interest rates are as of Novedbe
November 30,

2011 2010
Mortgages and land contracts due to land selledso#mer loans (6% to 7% in 2011 and 3% t«

7% in 2010) $ 24,98/ $ 118,05
Senior notes due 2011 a3/8% — 99,91¢
Senior notes due 2014 a3/ 4% 249,64" 249,49¢
Senior notes due 2015 a7/ 8% 299,27 299,06¢
Senior notes due 2015 al/ 4% 449,79¢ 449,74¢
Senior notes due 2017 at 9.1 260,86! 260,35:
Senior notes due 2018 a1/ 4% 299,00° 298,89:

Total $1,583,57. $1,775,52!

During 2011, the Company repaid debt that was seichy a multi-level residential building the Compaperated as a rental property,
which the Company sold during the year. As the metdebt was repaid at a discount prior to its dotesl maturity, the Company recognize
gain of $3.6 million on the early extinguishmentsetured debt in 2011.

Following its voluntary termination of the Credéility effective March 31, 2010, the Company eatkinto the LOC Facilities with
various financial institutions to obtain lettersapédit in the ordinary course of operating itsibass. As of November 30, 2011 and 2010,
$63.8 million and $87.5 million, respectively, etters of credit were outstanding under the LOdlIfEas. The LOC Facilities require the
Company to deposit and maintain cash with the mgsfinancial institutions as collateral for itstlt of credit outstanding. As of November
2011 and 2010, the amount of cash maintained ®L@®C Facilities totaled $64.5 million and $88.7lion, respectively, and was included in
restricted cash on the Company’s consolidated balaheets as of those dates. The Company may maiet@se or, if necessary or desirable,
enter into additional or expanded letter of créaliilities, or other similar facility arrangementgth the same or other financial institutions.

The indenture governing the Company’s senior ndtes not contain any financial maintenance coven&ubject to specified
exceptions, the indenture contains certain resteé@ovenants that, among other things, limit tlenany’s ability to incur secured
indebtedness, or engage in sale-leaseback tramssaativolving property or assets above a certaétifipd value. Unlike the Company’s other
senior notes, the terms governing the Company’$ $2ilion Senior Notes contain certain limitatioredated to mergers, consolidations, and
sales of assets.

As of November 30, 2011, the Company was in compgawith the applicable terms of all of its covetsamder the Company’s senior
notes, the indenture, and mortgages and land aisiae to land sellers and other loans. The Cogipaiility to secure future debt financing
may depend in part on its ability to remain in saompliance.

On September 20, 2011, the Company filed the 20Elf Registration with the SEC, registering deld aquity securities that it may
issue from time to time in amounts to be determifféwe 2011 Shelf Registration replaced the Compapseviously effective shelf registration
statement filed with the SEC on October 17, 2008 (2008 Shelf Registration”). The Company hasissiied any securities under the 2011
Shelf Registration, but it intends to offer seniosecured debt securities under the 2011 ShelfsRation in connection with the 2014 Note
Tender Offer and/or the 2015 Note Tender Offers.

On June 30, 2004, the Company issued the $3500Miienior Notes at 99.3% of the principal amourthefnotes in a private placeme
The $350 Million Senior Notes, which were due Auglis, 2011, with interest payable semi-annuallpresented senior unsecured obligations
of the Company and ranked equally in right of pagtweith all of the Company’s existing and futureige unsecured indebtedness. On
December 3, 2004, the Company exchanged all girilvately placed $350 Million Senior Notes for nothat were substantially identical
except that the new $350 Million Senior Notes wegistered under the Securities Act of 1933. THe0#illion Senior Notes were
unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severallythg Guarantor Subsidiaries on a senior unseclasid.b
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On July 30, 2009, the Company purchased $250.0omilh aggregate principal amount of the $350 MiiliSenior Notes pursuant to a
tender offer simultaneous with the issuance off®@5 Million Senior Notes. The total consideratpaid to purchase the notes was
$252.5 million. The Company incurred a loss of $8ilfion in the third quarter of 2009 related te@tbarly redemption of debt due to the ter
offer premium and the unamortized original issugdunt. This loss, which was included in interegemse in the consolidated statements of
operations, was partly offset by a gain of $2.7iorlon the early extinguishment of mortgages amdilcontracts due to land sellers and other
loans.

On August 15, 2011, the Company repaid the remgifiif00.0 million in aggregate principal amountha# $350 Million Senior Notes at
their maturity.

On January 28, 2004, the Company issued $250.@mif 5 3 /4% senior notes due 2014 (the “$250 Million Seniotd$”) at 99.474%
of the principal amount of the notes in a privdEcpment. The $250 Million Senior Notes, which dwe February 1, 2014, with interest
payable semi-annually, represent senior unsecukghtions of the Company and rank equally in righpayment with all of the Company’s
existing and future senior unsecured indebtedides $250 Million Senior Notes may be redeemed,liole at any time or from time to time
in part, at a price equal to 100% of their printig@mount, plus a premium, plus accrued and unpaétest to the applicable redemption date.
On June 16, 2004, the Company exchanged all gfrikately placed $250 Million Senior Notes for nethat are substantially identical except
that the new $250 Million Senior Notes are regestieunder the Securities Act of 1933. The $250 BbfillSenior Notes are unconditionally
guaranteed jointly and severally by the Guarantdrsiliaries on a senior unsecured basis.

On December 15, 2004, pursuant to the shelf registr statement filed with the SEC on November2li)4 (the “2004 Shelf
Registration”), the Company issued $300.0 millié® g / 8 % senior notes due 2015 (the “$300 Millior7 58 % Senior Notes”) at 99.357% of
the principal amount of the notes. The $300 Mill®n/8 % Senior Notes, which are due January 15, 2015, wierest payable serannually,
represent senior unsecured obligations of the Cagnpad rank equally in right of payment with allthé Companys existing and future seni
unsecured indebtedness. The $300 Million 5% Senior Notes may be redeemed, in whole at ang ¢infrom time to time in part, at a price
equal to the greater of (a) 100% of their princgalount and (b) the sum of the present valueseofdmaining scheduled payments discounted
to the date of redemption at a defined rate, plusach case, accrued and unpaid interest to fhlecaple redemption date. The notes are
unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severallythg Guarantor Subsidiaries on a senior unsecwasid.b

On June 2, 2005, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Ragjist, the Company issued $450.0 million of & % senior notes due 2015 (the
“$450 Million Senior Notes”) at 100.614% of the meipal amount of the notes. The $450 Million SemMiates, which are due June 15, 2015,
with interest payable semi-annually, represent@amisecured obligations of the Company and ranlalggin right of payment with all of the
Company'’s existing and future senior unsecuredhtetiness. The $450 Million Senior Notes may beeedsl, in whole at any time or from
time to time in part, at a price equal to the geeaf (a) 100% of their principal amount and (k¥ #um of the present values of the remaining
scheduled payments discounted to the date of retilemgt a defined rate, plus, in each case, acaanddinpaid interest to the applicable
redemption date. The notes are unconditionally aniaed jointly and severally by the Guarantor Sliages on a senior unsecured basis.

On July 30, 2009, pursuant to the 2008 Shelf Reggien, the Company issued the $265 Million SeiNotes at 98.014% of the principal
amount of the notes. The $265 Million Senior Notelsich are due on September 15, 2017, with intgragable semiannually, represent senior
unsecured obligations of the Company and rank ggimatight of payment with all of the Company’sisting and future senior unsecured
indebtedness. The $265 Million Senior Notes mayeldeemed, in whole at any time or from time to timpart, at a price equal to the greater
of (a) 100% of their principal amount and (b) tluensof the present values of the remaining schedpdgthents of principal and interest
discounted to the date of redemption at a defiaég plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid ihterése applicable redemption date. If a
change in control occurs as defined in the instnimgoverning the $265 Million Senior Notes, ther@any would be required to offer to
purchase the $265 Million Senior Notes at 101%hefrtprincipal amount, together with all accrued ampaid interest, if any. The notes are
unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severallythy Guarantor Subsidiaries on a senior unseclasid.iThe Company used substantially all
of the net proceeds from the issuance of the $2#li®NSenior Notes to purchase, pursuant to a #smneous tender offer, $250.0 million in
aggregate principal amount of the $350 Million $emlotes.
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On April 3, 2006, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Regtgin, the Company issued $300.0 million of % % senior notes due 2018 (the
“$300 Million 7 1/4% Senior Notes”) at 99.486% of the principal amaafrthe notes. The $300 Million ¥ 426 Senior Notes, which are due
June 15, 2018, with interest payable semi-annugdiyresent senior unsecured obligations of the @Gmyand rank equally in right of payment
with all of the Company’s existing and future seniasecured indebtedness. The $300 Millioh 4%/ Senior Notes may be redeemed, in
whole at any time or from time to time in partagprice equal to the greater of (a) 100% of theirgipal amount and (b) the sum of the present
values of the remaining scheduled payments of jpéh@nd interest on the notes to be redeemed ulited at a defined rate, plus, in each c
accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable rettlemdate. The notes are unconditionally guarahjemtly and severally by the Guarantor
Subsidiaries on a senior unsecured basis.

Principal payments on senior notes, mortgagesamdidontracts due to land sellers and other loandwe as follows: 2012 —
$25.0 million; 2013 — $0; 2014 — $249.6 million; ZD— $749.1 million; 2016 — $0; and thereafter —5$3 million.

Assets (primarily inventories) having a carryindueaof $62.3 million as of November 30, 2011 ardgled to collateralize mortgages
and land contracts due to land sellers and otlaslo

Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments and contingencies include typical @tlans of homebuilders for the completion of cocttsaand those incurred in the
ordinary course of business.

Warranty. The Company provides a limited warranty on alit®homes. The specific terms and conditions of¢Hamited warranties
vary depending upon the market in which the Compioes business. The Company generally providesietstal warranty of 10 years, a
warranty on electrical, heating, cooling, plumbargl other building systems each varying from twbve years based on geographic market
and state law, and a warranty of one year for atberponents of the home. The Company estimatesotéte that may be incurred under each
limited warranty and records a liability in the amno of such costs at the time the revenue assdoiéth the sale of each home is recognized.
Factors that affect the Company’s warranty liapilitclude the number of homes delivered, histor&oal anticipated rates of warranty claims,
and cost per claim. The Company’s primary assumptie@stimating the amounts it accrues for warraosts is that historical claims
experience is a strong indicator of future claimgegience. The Company periodically assesses thguady of its recorded warranty liabilitic
which are included in accrued expenses and othleitities in the consolidated balance sheets, digsts the amounts as necessary based on it
assessment. The Company’s assessment includesvtbe of its actual warranty costs incurred to tifgrirends and changes in its warranty
claims experience, and considers the Company'stieani®n quality and customer service initiativesl autside events. While the Company
believes the warranty liability reflected in itsmsmlidated balance sheets to be adequate, unatédighanges in the legal environment, local
weather, land or environmental conditions, qualitynaterials or methods used in the constructiomomfies, or customer service practices
could have a significant impact on its actual watyacosts in the future and such amounts couledffom the Company’s estimates.

The changes in the Company’s warranty liability aseollows (in thousands):
Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of ye $ 93,98¢ $135,74¢ $145,36¢
Warranties issue 4,852 5,17: 6,84¢
Payment: (25,029 (44,979 (24,690
Adjustments (6,127 (1,967) 8,224
Balance at end of ye: $ 67,69: $ 93,98t¢ $135,74¢

The Company’s warranty adjustments for the yeaedridovember 30, 2011 include $7.4 million of adjushts that were recorded as
reductions to construction and land costs in thesotidated statements of operations, and mainlyltess from the Company’s assessment of
trends in its overall warranty claims experiencehomes previously delivered. In addition, for tleayended November 30, 2009, the Com
incurred a charge of $5.7 million associated whih tepair of allegedly defective drywall.
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The Company’s overall warranty liability of $67.7lion at November 30, 2011 included $4.8 milliar stimated remaining repair
costs associated with 87 homes that have beerifiddrds containing or suspected of containinggatdy defective drywall manufactured in
China. These homes are located in Florida and prémearily delivered in 2006 and 2007. The Comparoyerall warranty liability of
$94.0 million at November 30, 2010 included $11iBiom for estimated remaining repair costs assetlavith 296 such identified affected
homes, and its overall warranty liability of $135n1lion at November 30, 2009 included $14.4 millifor estimated remaining repair costs
associated with 229 such identified affected horfe.decreases in the liability for estimated repasts associated with identified affected
homes during the years ended November 30, 2012@hai reflected the lower number of identified aféechomes with unresolved repairs at
each date compared to the previous year. Duringebhes ended November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009rsepere resolved on 239, 141 and
zero identified affected homes, respectively, &ed@ompany identified 30, 208 and 229 additionfdciéd homes, respectively. For these
purposes, the Company considers repairs for idedt#ffected homes to be “resolved” when all repane complete and all repair costs are
fully paid. Repairs for identified affected homee aonsidered “unresolved” if repairs are not catghnd/or there are repair costs remaining
to be paid.

The drywall used in the construction of the Compaimpmes is purchased and installed by subcontacitie Companyg subcontracto
obtained drywall material from multiple domestiaddnreign sources through late 2008. In late 2888 Company directed its subcontractors
to obtain only domestically sourced drywall. Then@mny has identified homes that contain or mayaiordllegedly defective drywall
manufactured in China primarily by responding taneowner-initiated warranty claims or customer sgrvjuestions regarding such material
or regarding conditions or items in a home that l@wffected by such material. Additionally, inte@r communities where there had been a
high number of affected homes identified throughwrarranty/customer service process, the Compargcpively undertook community-wide
reviews that identified more affected homes. ThenBany completed all such community-wide reviewthatend of May 2011. The
Company’s customer service personnel or, in sorsaimees, third-party consultants handled theseensaBecause of the testing process
required to determine the origin of drywall matedhtained before December 2008, the source of dilyfar homes that have not been the
subject of a customer service/warranty requesbormgunitywide review is unknown. As a result, the Companyriable to readily identify th
total number of homes that may contain the allegddfective drywall material manufactured in China.

While the Company continues to respond to individuerranty/customer service requests as they adeptae number of additional
affected homes newly identified each quarter héerfaignificantly since the third quarter of 20@0a nominal amount. Based on the
significantly reduced individual warranty/custonservice request rate, the completion of its comtyunide reviews and the domestic
sourcing of drywall material since late 2008, th@mr@any anticipates that it has identified subs#digtall potentially affected homes and will
receive at most only nominal additional claimsutufe periods.

During the years ended November 30, 2011, 201®a08, the Company paid $13.7 million, $25.5 millemmd $1.3 million, respectivel
to repair identified affected homes, and estimétteddditional repair costs with respect to the lyddentified affected homes to be $7.1
million, $22.4 million and $15.7 million, respeatly. Since first identifying affected homes in 2068 Company has identified a total of 467
affected homes and has resolved repairs on 38tbeéthomes through November 30, 2011. As of Noved®e2011, the Company has paid
$40.5 million of the total estimated repair codt$46.3 million associated with the identified affed homes.

In assessing its overall warranty liability, then@many evaluates the costs related to identifieddsoaffected by the allegedly defective
drywall material and other home warranty-relatedhis on a combined basis. While the Company hasd=yes the repair costs related to the
identified affected homes in conjunction with itsagterly assessments of its overall warranty ligbdince the third quarter of 2009, the
Company has experienced favorable trends in itsahetarranty costs incurred with respect to othené warranty-related items. These
favorable trends reflect the Company’s ongoing $oon construction quality and customer service,ragrather things. Based on its
assessments, the Company determined that its bwenaihnty liability at each reporting date wasfmignt with respect to the Company’s then-
estimated remaining repair costs associated withtifled affected homes and its overall warrantigattions on homes delivered. In light of
these assessments, the Company did not incur chigrifs consolidated statements of operationshieryears ended November 30, 2011 or
2010 with respect to repair costs associated Wwigthdentified affected homes. Additionally, basedtee trends in the Company’s actual
warranty costs incurred, the Company’s assessmel1 resulted in the recording of warranty atipents of $7.4 million as reductions to
construction and land costs. The overall warraiatyility has decreased since 2009 in part becatifegayments the Company has made to
resolve repairs on identified affected homes anghirt due to the decrease in the number of honse€timpany has delivered over the past
several years.
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Depending on the number of additional affected roidentified, if any, and the actual costs the Canypincurs to repair identified
affected homes in future periods, including costprbvide affected homeowners with temporary hayidine Company may revise the
estimated amount of its liability with respect listissue, which could result in an increase orefese in the Company'’s overall warranty
liability.

As of November 30, 2011, the Company has been nasmadiefendant in 11 lawsuits relating to thegality defective drywall material,
and it may in the future be subject to other sinlitggation or claims that could cause the Comptmincur significant costs. Given the
preliminary stages of the proceedings, the Comasynot concluded whether the outcome of any cfetlewsuits will be material to its
consolidated financial statements.

The Company intends to seek and is undertakingtsffincluding legal proceedings, to obtain reingament from various sources for
costs it has incurred or expects to incur to ingest and complete repairs and to defend itsdifigation associated with this drywall material.
The Company has not recorded any amounts for paténture recoveries as of November 30, 2011.

Guarantees. In the normal course of its business, the Comfissyes certain representations, warranties ancgtess related to its
home sales and land sales that may be affecteccbguiting Standards Codification Topic No. 460, &@&antees.” Based on historical
evidence, the Company does not believe any of tlegsesentations, warranties or guarantees wouliddaierial to its consolidated financial
statements.

Insurance. The Company has, and requires the majority afutscontractors to maintain, general liability ireswe (including
construction defect and bodily injury coverage) amakers’ compensation insurance. These insuraalieigs protect the Company against a
portion of its risk of loss from claims relatedit® homebuilding activities, subject to certainfsesured retentions, deductibles and other
coverage limits. In Arizona, California, ColoradedaNevada, the Company’s general liability insueatakes the form of a wrap-up policy,
where eligible subcontractors are enrolled as adsipn each project. The Company self-insurestiopaf its overall risk through the use of a
captive insurance subsidiary. The Company recaordsreses and liabilities based on the estimated cegqtiired to cover its self-insured
retention and deductible amounts under its inswamdicies, and on the estimated costs of potedtains and claim adjustment expenses that
are above its coverage limits or that are not ey its policies. These estimated costs are baseth analysis of the Company’s historical
claims and include an estimate of constructionaeflaims incurred but not yet reported. The Comfmastimated liabilities for such items
were $94.9 million at November 30, 2011 and $95illlan at November 30, 2010. These amounts areutfed in accrued expenses and other
liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balanbeets. The Company’s expenses associated witlinseifance totaled $7.2 million in 2011,
$7.4 million in 2010 and $9.8 million in 2009. Tlesxpenses were largely offset by contributionsfeubcontractors participating in the
wrap-up policy.

Performance Bonds and Letters of Credit. The Company is often required to provide to vasiownicipalities and other government
agencies performance bonds and/or letters of credigcure the completion of its projects and/asuipport of obligations to build community
improvements such as roads, sewers, water systaingtiaer utilities, and to support similar devel@rnactivities by certain of its
unconsolidated joint ventures. At November 30, 2@h& Company had $361.6 million of performancedsoand $63.8 million of letters of
credit outstanding. At November 30, 2010, the Camydaad $414.3 million of performance bonds and $&fillion of letters of credit
outstanding. If any such performance bonds orrietté credit are called, the Company would be @ltéd to reimburse the issuer of the
performance bond or letter of credit. The Compaogsthot believe that a material amount of any atyr@utstanding performance bonds or
letters of credit will be called. Performance boddsot have stated expiration dates. Rather, tmepany is released from the performance
bonds as the underlying performance is completkd.ékpiration dates of some letters of credit idsneconnection with community
improvements coincide with the expected completiates of the related projects or obligations. Meers of credit, however, are issued with
an initial term of one year and are typically exted on a year-to-year basis until the related perdace obligation is completed.

Land Option Contracts. In the ordinary course of business, the Compatgreiinto land option contracts and other simit@mtcacts to
procure rights to land parcels for the constructbhomes. At November 30, 2011, the Company htad teposits of $22.6 million, comprised
of $20.9 million of cash deposits and $1.7 millairletters of credit, to purchase land having agregate purchase price of $345.1 million. "
Company’s land option contracts and other simitartacts generally do not contain provisions reggithe Company’s specific performance.
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Leases. The Company leases certain property and equiparetdr noncancelable operating leases. Office angheegnt leases are
typically for terms of three to five years and getlg provide renewal options for terms up to aditidnal five years. In most cases, the
Company expects that, in the normal course of legsineases that expire will be renewed or replagesther leases. The future minimum
rental payments under operating leases, which pifit@nsist of office leases having initial or raming noncancelable lease terms in excess
of one year, are as follows: 2012 — $7.0 millio813 — $6.2 million; 2014 — $4.5 million; 2015 — $2nillion; 2016 — $.2 million; and
thereafter — $0. Rental expense on these opera@sgs was $6.7 million in 2011, $8.5 million intRGand $10.3 million in 2009.

Note 14. Legal Matters

Nevada Development Contract Litigation. On November 4, 2011, the Eighth Judicial Distriou@, Clark County, Nevada set for trial a
consolidated action against KB Nevada, in a catidezhlas Vegas Development Associates, LLC, Essex Real Estate Partners, LLC, et. al. v.
KB HOME Nevada Inc . In 2007, LVDA agreed to purchase from KB Nevagpraximately 83 acres of land located near Las ¥elyavada.
LVDA subsequently assigned its rights to Essex.M&ada and Essex entered into a development agneeehating to certain major
infrastructure improvements. LVDA'’s and Essex’s daimt, initially filed in 2008, alleges that KB Mada breached the development
agreement, and also alleges that KB Nevada frantyleduced them to enter into the purchase angldpment agreements. LVDA'’s and
Essex’s lenders subsequently filed related actioatswere consolidated into the LVDA/Essex maffére consolidated plaintiffs seek
rescission of the agreements or a rescissory measailamages or, in the alternative, the Claimech@ges. KB Nevada denies the allegations,
and believes it has meritorious defenses to thealmated plaintiffs’ claims. While the ultimatetoome is uncertain — the Company believes
it is reasonably possible that the loss in thistenatould range from zero to the amount of ther@él Damages and could be material to its
consolidated financial statements — KB Nevada beBdt will be successful in defending againstglantiffs’ claims and that the plaintiffs
will not be awarded rescission or damages. Theigrieurrently set for September 2012.

Southern California Project Development Case. On December 27, 2011, the jury in a case entKIBAHOME Coastal Inc. et al. adv.
Estancia Coastal , returned a verdict against KB HOME Coastal Iacwholly owned subsidiary, and the Company for $8ilon, excluding
legal fees and interest. The case related to adptidn contract and a construction agreement terivkl8 HOME Coastal Inc. and the plaint
Based on pre-trial analysis, the verdict was npeeted, and KB HOME Coastal Inc. and the Compatenihto file a motion for judgment
notwithstanding the verdict and a motion for a neal, ahead of a possible appeal of what theyelveliwas an incorrect result. While the
ultimate outcome is uncertain, KB HOME Coastal laied the Company believe they will be successfoésolving the matter for an amount
less than the jury’s verdict. The ultimate losstfos matter is estimated to range from $4 millior$12 million, including legal fees and
interest. In accordance with Accounting Standarddifiation Topic No. 450, “Contingencies,” as no@unt in that range appears to be a
better estimate than any other amount, the Comparoyisolidated financial statements at Novembe2@01 included an accrual of $4.0
million for this matter. However, it is reasonalplgssible that the loss could exceed the amounuedawrithin the estimated range described
above.

In addition to the specific proceedings describeolve, the Company is involved in other litigatiordaegulatory proceedings incidental
to its business that are in various proceduralestaghe Company believes that the accruals ité@wded for probable and reasonably
estimable losses with respect to these proceedirgadequate and that, as of November 30, 20WAsinot reasonably possible that an
additional material loss had been incurred in an@amin excess of the estimated amounts alreadygrézed on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. The Company evaluates itgiatfor litigation and regulatory proceedingseaist quarterly and, as appropriate, adjusts
them to reflect (i) the facts and circumstanceswkmito the Company at the time, including informatiegarding negotiations, settlements,
rulings and other relevant events and developméijtthe advice and analyses of counsel; andtfi€ assumptions and judgment of
management. Similar factors and considerationsised in establishing new accruals for proceedisge avhich losses have become probable
and reasonably estimable at the time an evalu&iorade. Based on its experience, the Companyeslighat the amounts that may be clail
or alleged against it in these proceedings areamoéaningful indicator of its potential liabilityhe outcome of any of these proceedings,
including the defense and other litigation-relatedts and expenses the Company may incur, howisvuaherently uncertain and could differ
significantly from the estimate reflected in a tethaccrual, if made. Therefore, it is possiblé tha ultimate outcome of any proceeding, if in
excess of a related accrual or if no accrual hah lmeade, could be material to the Company’s codat@d financial statements.
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Note 15. Income Taxes
The components of income tax benefit (expense)arcbnsolidated statements of operations are lasviol(in thousands):

Federal State Total

2011
Current $ 2,60 $ (200 $ 2,400
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit (expens $ 2,60( $ (200) $  2,40(

2010
Current $ 6,50( $ 50C $ 7,00C
Deferred — — —
Income tax benef $ 6,50( $ 50C $ 7,00(

2009
Current $ 207,90( $ 1,50( $ 209,40(
Deferred — — —
Income tax benef $ 207,90 $ 1,50 $ 209,401

Deferred income taxes result from temporary diffiess in the financial and tax basis of assetsiabdities. Significant components of

the Company’s deferred tax liabilities and assetsaa follows (in thousands):
November 30,

2011 2010

Deferred tax liabilities
Capitalized expenst $ 98,671 $ 106,80(
State taxe 61,55( 56,91t
Other 19C 177
Total $ 16041 $ 163,89

Deferred tax asset

Inventory impairments and land option contract almements $ 219,45 $ 275,64(
2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 NC 412,90: 277,08¢
Warranty, legal and other accru 61,18¢ 103,35¢
Employee benefit 57,69¢ 51,33t
Partnerships and joint ventur 83,69t 49,33¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 13,571 22,83(
Capitalized expenst 6,23: 5,92
Tax credits 151,30( 145,64
Deferred incom 83C 1,21¢
Other 2,51 3,748
Total 1,009,391 936,12
Valuation allowanct (847,82) (771,080
Total 161,56¢ 165,04«
Net deferred tax asse $ 1,157 $ 1,152
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The income tax benefit computed at the statutorigddrStates federal income tax rate and the indaxéenefit provided in the

consolidated statements of operations differ devi@ (in thousands):
Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
Income tax benefit computed at statutory | $ 63,397 $ 26,72¢ $108,91:
Increase (decrease) resulting frc
State taxes, net of federal income tax bet 4,691 4,01( 11,07¢
Reserve and deferred incol (1,167 1,20¢ (11,079
Capitalized expenst (3,589 — —
Basis in joint venture 4,401 13,72¢ (3,336
NOLs reconciliatior 71t (24,749 (36,94))
Recognition of federal tax benef 2,60( 1,621 16,41
Tax credits 5,471 5,38¢ 20<
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (76,747 (21,119 128,81:
Other, ne 2,61¢ 187 (4,66¢)
Income tax benef $ 2,40( $ 7,00( $209,40(

The Company recognized income tax benefits of #lldon in 2011, $7.0 million in 2010 and $209.4lkoin in 2009. The income tax
benefit in 2011 reflected the reversal of a $2.Bioni liability for unrecognized tax benefits duethe status of federal and state tax audits. The
income tax benefit in 2010 reflected the recognitid a $5.4 million federal income tax benefit fram additional carryback of the Company’'s
2009 NOLs to offset earnings the Company geneiiat2604 and 2005, and the reversal of a $1.6 milliability for unrecognized tax benefits
due to the status of federal and state tax auftits.income tax benefit in 2009 resulted primanityni the recognition of a $190.7 million
federal income tax benefit based on the carryb&tikeoCompany’s 2009 NOLSs to offset earnings then@any generated in 2004 and 2005,
and the reversal of a $16.3 million liability fonnecognized federal and state tax benefits duleetstatus of federal and state tax audits. Due to
the effects of its deferred tax asset valuatioovadinces, carrybacks of its NOLs, and changes imitscognized tax benefits, the Company’s
effective tax rates in 2011, 2010 and 2009 aremerningful items as the Company’s income tax ansoard not directly correlated to the
amount of its pretax losses for those periods.

In accordance with ASC 740, the Company evaluédedeferred tax assets quarterly to determinejifstichents to the valuation
allowance are required. ASC 740 requires that conegaassess whether a valuation allowance shoutdthélished based on the consideration
of all available evidence using a “more likely thagt” standard with respect to whether deferredassets will be realized. During 2011, the
Company recorded a valuation allowance of $76.Hanikgainst net deferred tax assets generatedthertoss for the year. During 2010, the
Company recorded a net increase of $21.1 milliotnéovaluation allowance against net deferred spets, reflecting a $26.6 million valuation
allowance recorded against the net deferred taastagenerated from the loss for the year that vaasafly offset by the $5.4 million federal
income tax benefit from the additional carrybackhef Company’s 2009 NOLSs.

During 2009, the Company recognized a net decread£28.8 million in the valuation allowance, refiieg the net impact of a
$67.5 million increase in the valuation allowaneearded during the first nine months of 2009 thas wore than offset by a decrease in the
valuation allowance of $196.3 million, primarily &lto the benefit derived from the carryback oRi#®9 NOLs. The decrease in the valuation
allowance was reflected as a noncash income taafib@h $130.7 million and a noncash charge of $fhiion to accumulated other
comprehensive loss.

The majority of the tax benefits associated wit @ompany’s net deferred tax assets can be cdonedrd for 20 years and applied to
offset future taxable income. The federal NOL cturyards, if not utilized, will begin to expire B030, and the various state NOLs will expire
within the next two to 20 years. In addition, soofithe Company'’s tax credits, if not utilized, watkpire within five to 20 years.

The Company’s net deferred tax assets totaledrillibn at both November 30, 2011 and 2010. Thesdefd tax asset valuation
allowance increased to $847.8 million at Novemtir2®11 from $771.1 million at November 30, 20Hilecting the net impact of the $76.7
million valuation allowance recorded in 2011. Thenpany’s deferred tax assets for which it did redaklish a valuation allowance relate to
amounts that can be realized through future releeofaxisting taxable temporary differences ootlgh carrybacks to the 2007 year. To
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the extent the Company generates sufficient taxablame in the future to fully utilize the tax béiteof the related deferred tax assets, the
Company expects its effective tax rate to decraagbe valuation allowance is reversed.

Gross unrecognized tax benefits are the differehetseen a tax position taken, or expected to kentén a tax return, and the benefit
recognized for accounting purposes. A reconcilimtbthe beginning and ending balances of the ginosscognized tax benefits, excluding
interest and penalties, is as follows (in thousgnds

Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of year $11,30¢ $11,02¢ $18,33:
Additions for tax positions related to prior ye 5 1,72C 4,23(
Reductions for tax positions related to prior ye — (2,189 (270
Reductions related to settlem (264) — —
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitati (2,47¢) — (1,277)
Reductions due to resolution of federal and statkts (6,679 (25%) (9,997
Balance at end of ye: $ 1,89¢ $11,30¢ $11,02¢

The Company recognizes accrued interest and pesadtiated to unrecognized tax benefits in its alidisted financial statements as a
component of the provision for income taxes. Adloember 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, there were dl®mi$.9 million and $1.3 million,
respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits tha¢dognized would affect the Company’s annual eiffedax rate. The Company'’s total accrued
interest and penalties related to unrecognizednirectax benefits was $.9 million at November 30,2284d $3.5 million at November 30, 20
The Company’s liabilities for unrecognized tax bigseat November 30, 2011 and 2010 are includeatorued expenses and other liabilities in
its consolidated balance sheets.

Included in the balance of gross unrecognized taefits at November 30, 2011 and 2010 are taxiposibf $1.0 million and
$7.9 million, respectively, for which the ultimadeductibility is highly certain but there is un@enty about the timing of such deductibility.
Because of the impact of deferred tax accountititggrahan interest and penalties, the disallowari¢be shorter deductibility period would r
affect the annual effective tax rate, but wouldedexate the payment of cash to a tax authorityntealier period.

As of November 30, 2011, the Company’s gross umeieed tax benefits (including interest and peasjttotaled $2.8 million. The
Company anticipates that these gross unrecognézelenefits will decrease by an amount ranging f$dn® million to $1.5 million during the
12 months from this reporting date due to varidatesfilings associated with the resolution of ddial audit.

The fiscal years ending after 2005 remain operdeifal examination and fiscal years after 2004 neim@en to examination by various
state taxing jurisdictions.

The benefits of the Company’s NOLSs, built-in losaes tax credits would be reduced or potentiailpielated if the Company
experienced an “ownership change” under Section B82ed on the Company'’s analysis performed awéhber 30, 2011, the Company
does not believe that it has experienced an owipectlange as defined by Section 382, and, therefioeeNOLSs, built-in losses and tax credits
the Company has generated should not be subjacBeztion 382 limitation as of this reporting date.

Note 16. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Sock. On January 22, 2009, the Company adopted a Régitesement between the Company and Mellon Investovi€es
LLC, as rights agent, dated as of that date (tl®92Rights Agreement”), and declared a dividenttitistion of one preferred share purchase
right for each outstanding share of common stoekwas payable to stockholders of record as otlige of business on March 5, 2009.
Subiject to the terms, provisions and conditionthef2009 Rights Agreement, if these rights becoxeecgsable, each right would initially
represent the right to purchase from the Compab§Qth of a share of its Series A Participating Clative Preferred Stock for a purchase
price of $85.00 (the “Purchase Price”). If issuegich fractional share of preferred stock would geghyegive a stockholder approximately the
same dividend, voting and liquidation rights asgloee share of the Company’s common stock. Howevier, to exercise, a right does not
give its holder any rights as a stockholder, inzigd
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without limitation any dividend, voting or liquidah rights. The rights will not be exercisable uttie earlier of (i) 10 calendar days after a
public announcement by the Company that a persgnoup has become an Acquiring Person (as definddnthe 2009 Rights Agreement)
and (ii) 10 business days after the commencementefider or exchange offer by a person or groupdh consummation of the offer the
person or group would beneficially own 4.9% or mof¢he Company’s outstanding common stock.

Until these rights become exercisable (the “Disttiiin Date”), common stock certificates will evidenthe rights and may contain a
notation to that effect. Any transfer of shareshaf Company’s common stock prior to the Distribatidate will constitute a transfer of the
associated rights. After the Distribution Date, tiglts may be transferred other than in conneatiith the transfer of the underlying shares of
the Company’s common stock. If there is an Acqgifterson on the Distribution Date or a person ougtecomes an Acquiring Person after
the Distribution Date, each holder of a right, ottien rights that are or were beneficially owngdh Acquiring Person, which will be void,
will thereafter have the right to receive upon eig of a right and payment of the Purchase Pttieg ,number of shares of the Company’s
common stock having a market value of two timesRhechase Price. After the later of the Distribatidate and the time the Company publ
announces that an Acquiring Person has become theclfompany’s board of directors may exchangeitfes, other than rights that are or
were beneficially owned by an Acquiring Person,aithivill be void, in whole or in part, at an exchangtio of one share of common stock per
right, subject to adjustment.

At any time prior to the later of the Distributi@ate and the time the Company publicly announcaisah Acquiring Person becomes
such, the Company’s board of directors may reddeof the then-outstanding rights in whole, but imopart, at a price of $0.001 per right,
subject to adjustment (the “Redemption Price”). Tédemption will be effective immediately upon theard of directors’ action, unless the
action provides that such redemption will be effecat a subsequent time or upon the occurrencemoccurrence of one or more specified
events, in which case the redemption will be effiecin accordance with the provisions of the actioomediately upon the effectiveness of the
redemption of the rights, the right to exerciserights will terminate and the only right of theltéers of rights will be to receive the
Redemption Price, with interest thereon. The riggdsed pursuant to the 2009 Rights Agreementexpire on the earliest of (a) the close of
business on March 5, 2019, (b) the time at whiehriphts are redeemed, (c) the time at which thietsiare exchanged, (d) the time at which
the Company’s board of directors determines thatated provision in the Company’s Restated Ceetié of Incorporation is no longer
necessary, and (e) the close of business on #talfiy of a taxable year of the Company to whieh@oempany’s board of directors determines
that no tax benefits may be carried forward. At@mempany’s annual meeting of stockholders on Ahr2009, the Company'’s stockholders
approved the 2009 Rights Agreement.

Common Stock. As of November 30, 2011, the Company was authdriaeepurchase four million shares of its commimcls under a
boardapproved share repurchase program. The Compamotigpurchase any of its common stock under tligram in 2011, 2010 or 20(
The Company has not repurchased common sharesaptitsua common stock repurchase plan for thegeasral years and any resumption of
such stock repurchases will be at the discretiah@Company’s board of directors.

During 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company’s boawtirettors declared four quarterly dividends of ®@er share of common stock
that were also paid during those years.

Treasury Stock. The Company did not acquire any shares of its comstock in 2011. The Company acquired $.4 milbbits common
stock in 2010 and $.6 million in 2009, which werepously issued shares delivered to the Compargniyyloyees to satisfy their withholding
tax obligations on the vesting of restricted stawkards or forfeitures of previous restricted stawlards. Treasury stock is recorded at cost.
Differences between the cost of treasury stockthedeissuance proceeds are recorded to paid-itatahese transactions are not considered
repurchases under the share repurchase program.

Note 17. Employee Benefit and Stock Plans

Most of the Company’s employees are eligible tdipgate in the KB Home 401(k) Savings Plan (th81¢&) Plan”) under which
contributions by employees are partially matchedigyCompany. The aggregate cost of the 401(k) eléme Company was $2.8 million in
2011, $3.2 million in 2010 and $3.2 million in 200%e assets of the 401(k) Plan are held by a-hértly trustee. The 401(k) plan participants
may direct the investment of their
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funds among one or more of the several fund optiffesed by the 401(k) Plan. A fund consisting leé Company’s common stock is one of
the investment choices available to participanssoANovember 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, approximdt#, 5% and 6%, respectively, of the
401(k) Plan’s net assets were invested in the Gamdisting of the Company’s common stock.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholderscheh April 1, 2010, the Company’s stockholders appd the KB Home 2010
Equity Incentive Plan (the “2010 Plan”), authorziamong other things, the issuance of up to 30R@shares of the Company’s common
stock for grants of stock-based awards to employemsemployee directors and consultants of the Compaiig. pool of shares includes all
the shares that were available for grant as oflApi2010 under the Company’s 2001 Stock Incerfiilam, under which no new awards may be
made. Accordingly, as of April 1, 2010, the 201@rPbecame the Company’s only active equity comgemsplan. Under the 2010 Plan,
grants of stock options and other similar awardsice the 2010 Plan’s share capacity on a 1-forsishand grants of restricted stock and other
similar “full value” awards reduce the 2010 Plasfegre capacity on a 1.78-for-1 basis. In additsoiject to the 2010 Plan’s terms and
conditions, a stock-based award may also be gramtedr the 2010 Plan to replace an outstandingcagrainted under another Company plan
(subject to the terms of such other plan) with substantially identical to those of the awardhbeeplaced.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholderscheh April 7, 2011, the Company’s stockholders appd an amendment to the KB
Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan Amendtfjeio increase the number of shares of the Comjgsacgmmon stock that may be
issued under the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Phaan additional 4,000,000 shares. The Plan Amemdnvas filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpreended February 28, 2011.

The Company’s 2010 Plan provides that stock optipagormance stock, restricted stock and stoctsunay be awarded to any
employee of the Company for periods of up to 10y€Bhe 2010 Plan also enables the Company to gasiitbonuses, SARs and other stock-
based awards. In addition to awards outstandinguing 2010 Plan, the Company has awards outs@guoditer its Amended and Restated
1999 Incentive Plan (the “1999 Plan”), which prasdor generally the same types of awards as thé Pan. The Company also has awards
outstanding under its 1988 Employee Stock Planitarfélerformance-Based Incentive Plan for Senior &d@ment, each of which provides for
generally the same types of awards as the 2010 Blastock option awards granted under these plams terms of up to 15 years.

Sock Options. Stock option transactions are summarized as fallow
Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Options outstanding at beginning of year 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢ 5711,70. $ 27.3¢ 7,847,40: $ 30.11
Granted 1,716,001 6.3¢ 3,572,23 18.71 1,403,14. 15.4¢
Exercisec — — (28,28)) 13.0C — —
Cancellec (354,21) 21.4i (457,049 22.0¢ (3,538,84) 28.6¢
Options outstanding at end of ye 10,160,39 $ 21.2i 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢ 5,711,70. $ 27.3¢
Options exercisable at end of y: 7,142,56 $ 26.4: 6,146,600 $ 28.7: 4,046,022 $ 31.0¢
Options available for grant at end of yi 2,477,21! 21,70 1,714,65I
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The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiskiring the year ended November 30, 2010 was $libm There were no stock optiol
exercised during the years ended November 30, 20d22009. The aggregate intrinsic value of stodloap outstanding was $1.7 million,
$.3 million and $.1 million at November 30, 201012 and 2009, respectively. Stock options exertésiafid no intrinsic value at November
30, 2011. The intrinsic value of stock options eig@ble was less than $.1 million at November 8@,02and $.1 million at November 30, 20
The intrinsic value of a stock option is the amaoyivhich the market value of the underlying stegkeeds the price of the option. In 2009, in
connection with the settlement of certain stockbolderivative litigation, the Company’s former aina&n and chief executive officer
relinquished 3,011,452 stock options to the Compary/those stock options were cancelled.

On August 13, 2010, the Company consummated araegehoffer (the “August 2010 Exchange Offer”) parsito which eligible
employees of the Company had the opportunity thhamge their outstanding cash-settled SARs gramedabober 2, 2008 and January 22,
2009 for non-qualified options to purchase shafége@Company’s common stock granted under the Za0.

On November 9, 2010, the Company consummated asgepxchange offer (the “November 2010 ExchanderQfpursuant to which
eligible employees of the Company had the oppadfuniexchange their outstanding cash-settled Sg@®sted on July 12, 2007 and
October 4, 2007 for non-qualified options to pusshahares of the Company’s common stock granteeruhd 2010 Plan.

Pursuant to both the August 2010 Exchange Offerth@dNovember 2010 Exchange Offer, each stock ogfianted in exchange for a
SAR had an exercise price equal to the SAR’s egengiice and the same number of underlying sheessing schedule and expiration date as
each such SAR. The August 2010 Exchange Offerlamdbvember 2010 Exchange Offer did not include-pricing or any other changes
impacting the value to the employees. The Companglucted the August 2010 Exchange Offer and Nove2®#0 Exchange Offer in an
effort to reduce the overall degree of variabilitthe expense recorded for employee equity-basatbensation by replacing the SARs, which
are accounted for as liability awards, with stopkians, which are accounted for as equity awards.

Pursuant to the August 2010 Exchange Offer, 19bd¢igemployees returned a total of 1,116,030 SAR&¢ Company, and those SARs
were cancelled on August 13, 2010 in exchangedmesponding grants of stock options to 18 of theregloyees to purchase an aggregate of
1,073,737 shares of the Company’s common stock@&8® per share and one grant of stock options¢éoemnployee to purchase 42,293 shares
of the Company’s common stock at $11.25 per share.

Pursuant to the November 2010 Exchange Offer, éligéble employees returned a total of 925,705 SARhe Company, and those
SARs were cancelled on November 9, 2010 in exchéorgerresponding grants of stock options to thesployees to purchase an aggregate
of 732,170 shares of the Company’s common sto®28&110 per share and grants of stock options tersefithose employees to purchase an
aggregate of 193,535 shares of the Company’s constoak at $36.19 per share.

The stock options granted pursuant to the Augu$0 ZExchange Offer and the November 2010 Exchanggr @fe included in the stock
options granted total in the above table.

On October 6, 2011, the Company’s president anef exiecutive officer was granted an award of penforce-based stock options to
purchase an aggregate of 365,000 shares of the &grispcommon stock at the purchase price of $6e3%pare. The performanbased stoc
options shall vest and become exercisable if thegamy’s president and chief executive officer doatsexperience a termination of service
prior to the applicable dates described in hisqrernce option agreement, and if the performaneg ge set forth in that agreement, has been
satisfied. The number of performance-based stotikmpthat ultimately vests depends on the achievgmf one of the following three
performance metrics: positive cumulative operatimgggin; relative operating margin; and customeis&attion, as set forth in the agreement.

In accordance with ASC 718, the Company used thekBScholes option-pricing model to estimate thengdate fair value per performance-
based stock option of $2.54.

On October 7, 2010, the Company’s president anef exiecutive officer was granted an award of penforce-based stock options to
purchase an aggregate of 260,000 shares of the &grispcommon stock at the purchase price of $1fped&hare. The performance-based
stock options shall vest and become exercisaltheiCompany’s president and chief executive offibmes not experience a termination of
service prior to the applicable dates described
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in his performance option agreement, and if théoperance goal, as set forth in that agreementpbas satisfied. The number of performance-
based stock options that ultimately vests dependb@achievement of one of the following thredfg@anance metrics: positive cumulative
operating margin; relative operating margin; arldtiee customer satisfaction, as set forth in theeament. In accordance with ASC 718, the
Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing méalektimate the grant-date fair value per perforcaeabased stock option of $4.59.

Stock options outstanding and stock options exabtésat November 30, 2011 are as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Remaining
Contractual Contractual
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Pric Options Price Life Options Price Life
$ 6.32 to $10.5 1,699,99: $ 6.3¢ 9.8 13,99¢ $ 947
$10.55 to $14.9 2,057,88. 12.0¢ 7.6 1,070,46: 12.6¢4
$14.97 to $20.0 2,220,511 17.6¢ 7.3 1,876,10: 18.0¢
$20.09 to $33.9 2,035,78! 27.3¢ 6.1 2,035,78! 27.3¢
$33.93 to $69.6 2,146,22. 39.8¢ 6.4 2,146,22. 39.8¢
$ 6.32 t0 $69.6 10,160,39 $21.2i 7.3 7,142 ,56! $ 26.4: 6.5

The weighted average fair value of stock optioratgd in 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $2.56, $2.81 arid $respectively. The fair value
of each stock option grant is estimated on the diggant using the Black-Scholes option-pricingdalowith the following assumptions:
Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rate 9% T% 1.9%
Expected volatility facto 65.6% 61.7% 64.3%
Expected dividend yiel 3.9% 2.2% 1.6%
Expected tern 5 year: 3 year 4 year:

The risk-free interest rate assumption is deterchiveessed on observed interest rates appropriatedaexpected term of the Company’s
stock options. The expected volatility factor iséad on a combination of the historical volatilifythe Company’s common stock and the
implied volatility of publicly traded options ongfCompany’s stock. The expected dividend yield mggion is based on the Compasyiistory
of dividend payouts. The expected term of emplateek options is estimated using historical data.

The Company’s stock-based compensation expengeddtastock option grants was $5.9 million in 20%3.8 million in 2010 and
$2.6 million in 2009. As of November 30, 2011, #heras $5.7 million of total unrecognized stock-liasempensation expense related to
unvested stock option awards. This expense is ¢éxgé¢c be recognized over a weighted average pefiad years.

The Company records proceeds from the exercismok ®ptions as additions to common stock and paithpital. As there were no
stock option exercises in 2011, the Company redlimetax deduction. A tax shortfall of $1.0 million2011, $2.8 million in 2010 and $4.1
million in 2009 was reflected in paid-in capitabifn the cancellation of stock awards. In 2011 ar@b2€he consolidated statement of cash
flows reflected no excess tax benefit associatel thie exercise of stock options since Decemb20@5, in accordance with the cash flow
classification requirements of ASC 718. In 201@, ¢onsolidated statement of cash flows reflect6dvillion of excess tax benefit associated
with the exercise of stock options.

Other Sock-Based Awards. From time to time, the Company grants restriciethmon stock to various employees as a compensation
benefit. During the restriction periods, the empley are entitled to vote and receive dividendsuch shares. The restrictions imposed with
respect to the shares granted lapse over periatises or eight years if certain conditions are.met
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Restricted stock transactions are summarized bsns]
Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

per Share per Share

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at beginning of year 402,47" $ 15.0¢ 445,83: $ 15.4¢
Granted — — 51,02 12.5¢
Vested (10,930 13.4¢ —
Cancellec (52,639 15.4¢ (94,37)) 15.3¢
Outstanding at end of ye 338,91: $ 15.0¢ 402,47 $ 15.0¢

On July 12, 2007, the Company awarded 54,000 slodurestricted common stock that was subject tcagket condition (“Performance
Shares”) to its president and chief executive effgubject to the terms of the 1999 Plan, the gessiand chief executive officerPerformanc
Stock Agreement dated July 12, 2007 and his EmpémgrAgreement dated February 28, 2007. Dependintge@ompany’s total shareholder
return over the three-year period ending on Nover8be2009 relative to a group of peer companiesy 0 150% of the Performance Shares
would vest and become unrestricted. In accordariteASC 718, the Company used a Monte Carlo sinariahodel to estimate the grathéte
fair value of the Performance Shares. The totaltgdate fair value of $2.0 million was recognizegothe requisite service period. On
January 21, 2010, the management development anpessation committee of the Company’s board ofcttrs certified the Company’s
relative total shareholder return over the perfaorogaperiod associated with the Performance Shaddetermined that the vesting restrictions
lapsed with respect to 48,492 Performance Shafestiete on that date.

In 2009 and 2008, the Company granted phantom shanerious employees. In 2008, the Company aigotgd SARS to various
employees. Both phantom shares and SARs are aetbfantas liabilities in the Company’s consolidafieéncial statements because such
awards provide for settlement in cash. Each pharstueme represents the right to receive a cash p#ysaeal to the closing price of the
Companys common stock on the applicable vesting date. 5&dR represents a right to receive a cash paynuerat ¢o the positive differenc
if any, between the grant price and the marketevafua share of the Compasycommon stock on the date of exercise. The phastares ve:
in full at the end of three years, while the SARshin equal annual installments over three yéessf November 30, 2011, there were 5,556
phantom shares and 29,939 SARs outstanding, cothpa68,762 phantom shares and 37,517 SARs odtstaas of November 30, 2010 :
926,705 phantom shares and 2,292,537 SARs outataadiof November 30, 2009. The year-over-yearedser in the number of outstanding
SARs in 2010 from 2009 reflects the impact of thegst 2010 Exchange Offer and the November 2010&hge Offer.

The Company recognized total compensation expeide.® million in 2011, $.7 million in 2010 and $8million in 2009 related to
restricted common stock, the Performance Sharesitpin shares and SARs.

Grantor Sock Ownership Trust. On August 27, 1999, the Company established a@ratock ownership trust (the “Trust”) into which
certain shares repurchased in 2000 and 1999 vaersférred. The Trust, administered by a tipiadty trustee, holds and distributes the shar
common stock acquired to support certain emplogeepensation and employee benefit obligations ofbmpany under its existing stock
option, the 401(k) Plan and other employee bepédits. The existence of the Trust has no impatheramount of benefits or compensation
that is paid under these plans.

For financial reporting purposes, the Trust is otidated with the Company, and therefore any dintiransactions between the
Company and the Trust are eliminated. Acquiredeshheld by the Trust remain valued at the markiee @t the date of purchase and are
shown as a reduction to stockholders’ equity indbesolidated balance sheets. The difference bettheeTrust share value and the market
value on the date shares are released from thé iSrngluded in paid-in capital. Common stock higldhe Trust is not considered outstanding
in the computations of earnings (loss) per shahne. Trust held 10,884,151 and 11,082,723 sharesmifion stock at November 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The trustee votes shares hetdebTrust in accordance with voting directioranfreligible employees, as specified in a
agreement with the trustee.
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Note 18. Postretirement Benefits

The Company has a supplemental non-qualified, Wddmetirement plan, the KB Home Retirement Pléfiectve as of July 11, 2002,
pursuant to which the Company pays supplementaipetbenefits to certain employees upon retirermardonnection with the plan, the
Company has purchased cost recovery life insurandbe lives of certain employees. Insurance cotgrassociated with the plan are held |
trust, established as part of the plan to impleraedtcarry out the provisions of the plan andnaiice the benefits offered under the plan. The
trust is the owner and beneficiary of such consgrathe amount of the insurance coverage is designpbvide sufficient revenues to cover all
costs of the plan if assumptions made as to emoyterm, mortality experience, policy earnings atiter factors are realized. The cash
surrender value of these insurance contracts whg $dillion at November 30, 2011 and $41.4 milletrNovember 30, 2010.

The Company also has an unfunded death benefit flarkKB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, implemertedNovember 1, 2001, for
certain key management employees. In connectiamtivé plan, the Company has purchased cost rectifeemsurance on the lives of certain
employees. Insurance contracts associated witplameare held by a trust, established as parteoptan to implement and carry out the
provisions of the plan and to finance the benefitsred under the plan. The trust is the ownerlagrkficiary of such contracts. The amount of
the coverage is designed to provide sufficientmeres to cover all costs of the plan if assumptioasle as to employment term, mortality
experience, policy earnings and other factors eazed. The cash surrender value of these insaremutracts was $13.7 million at
November 30, 2011 and $13.6 million at November281,0.

The net periodic benefit cost of the Company’s misement benefit plans for the year ended Nover8be2011 was $5.5 million,
which included service costs of $1.2 million, irgstrcosts of $2.3 million, amortization of unreciagd loss of $.6 million and amortization of
prior service costs of $1.5 million, partly offdst other income of $.1 million. The net periodinbét cost of these plans for the year ended
November 30, 2010 was $5.5 million, which includedvice costs of $1.2 million, interest costs oP$#aillion, amortization of unrecogniz:
loss of $.3 million, amortization of prior servicests of $1.6 million and other costs of $.2 milli¢-or the year ended November 30, 2009, the
net periodic benefit cost of these plans was $5lom which included service costs of $1.1 miliicinterest costs of $2.4 million, amortizat
of prior service costs of $1.5 million and a chao§&.8 million due to plan settlements, partlyseff by other income of $.2 million. In 2009, in
connection with the settlement of certain stockbolderivative litigation, the Company paid $22.2lion to its former chairman and chief
executive officer with respect to supplemental umafed retirement plan balances. The liabilitieatesl to the postretirement benefit plans were
$53.1 million at November 30, 2011 and $44.1 millad November 30, 2010, and are included in accexpenses and other liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets. For the years endegihMieer 30, 2011 and 2010, the discount rates usdtd plans were 4.4% and 5.2%,
respectively.

Benefit payments under the Company’s postretirerhenéfit plans are expected to be paid as foll@9%2 — $.3 million; 2013 — $1.0
million; 2014 — $1.5 million; 2015 — $1.6 millior2016 — $2.4 million; and for the five years endemvsmber 30, 2021 — $16.6 million in
the aggregate.
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Note 19. Supplemental Disclosure to Consolidategtatements of Cash Flows

The following are supplemental disclosures to thesolidated statements of cash flows (in thousands)
Years Ended November 30

2011 2010 2009
Summary of cash and cash equivalents at the ettt gfear:
Homebuilding $ 415,05 $ 904,40 $1,174,71!
Financial service 3,024 4,02¢ 3,24¢
Total $ 418,07 $ 908,43( $1,177,96.
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: $  48,03¢ $ 71,64 $ 55,89.
Income taxes pai 33t 807 7,14t
Income taxes refunde 212 196,86¢ 242,41¢
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activit
Increase in inventories in connection with consatiioh of
joint ventures $ — $  72,30( $ 97,55(
Increase in secured debt in connection with codatitin of joint venture — — 133,05:
Increase in accounts payable, accrued expensestiagdiabilities in connection with
consolidation of joint venture — 38,86: —
Stock appreciation rights exchanged for stock ol — 2,34¢ —
Reclassification from inventory to operating prdjes — — 72,54¢
Reclassification from accounts payable to investsi@nunconsolidated joint ventur — — 50,62¢
Cost of inventories acquired through seller finag — 55,24« 16,24(
Increase (decrease) in consolidated inventorieswoed 8,35¢ (41,626 (45,340
Acquired property securing note receiva 40,00( — —

Note 20.  Quarterly Results (unaudited)

The following tables present consolidated quartergults for the Company for the years ended Nowr80, 2011 and 2010 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

First Second Third Fourth
2011
Revenue: $ 196,94 $ 271,73 $ 367,31¢ $ 479,87.
Gross profit 25,27¢ 20,57( 63,57¢ 72,941
Pretax income (los¢ (114,126 (68,809 (9,649 11,41
Net income (loss (114,526 (68,504 (9,649 13,91
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per st $ (1.49) $ (.89 $ (.13 $ .18
2010
Revenue: $ 263,97 $ 374,05 $ 501,00 $ 450,96
Gross profit 36,54¢ 66,211 88,43¢ 87,39
Pretax income (los¢ (54,504 (30,609 (6,697) 15,44
Net income (loss (54,709 (30,709 (1,397 17,44
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per st $ (.70 $ (.40) $ (.02 $ .23

Included in gross profit in the first, second, thand fourth quarters of 2011 were pretax, nhongasimtory impairment charges of
$1.0 million, $20.1 million, $.3 million and $1.3ilion, respectively, and pretax, noncash chargedand option contract abandonments of
$.8 million, $.5 million, $.8 million and $1.0 miitin, respectively.
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Included in gross profit in the first, third andufth quarters of 2010 were pretax, noncash invgntopairment charges of $6.8 million,
$1.4 million and $1.6 million, respectively, an&fax, noncash charges for land option contract@dranents of $6.5 million, $2.0 million and
$1.6 million, respectively. There were no pretarceash inventory impairment and land option contedetindonment charges in the second
quarter of 2010.

The pretax loss in the first and second quarte20afl included a loss on loan guaranty of $22.8aniland $14.6 million, respectively.
The pretax income in the fourth quarter of 2011uded a gain on loan guaranty of $6.6 million. Phetax loss in the first quarter of 2011 also
included a joint venture impairment charge of $58illion.

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently. Therefore, theo$yper share amounts for the
quarters may not agree with per share amounthéoyear.

Note 21. Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company’s obligations to pay principal, premjuifhany, and interest under its senior notes aanteed on a joint and several basis
by the Guarantor Subsidiaries. The guaranteesufiranfd unconditional and the Guarantor Subsidéagiee 100% owned by the Company. The
Company has determined that separate, full finhstaédements of the Guarantor Subsidiaries woutdbeanaterial to investors and,
accordingly, supplemental financial information fbe Guarantor Subsidiaries is presented.

The supplemental financial information for the pes presented below reflects the relevant subgdiaf the Company considered to be
Guarantor Subsidiaries as of and for the respeptvimds then ended. Accordingly, information fay geriod presented does not reflect
subsequent changes, if any, in those subsidiafitedCompany considered to be Guarantor Subsadiari

100



Table of Contents

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

Homebuilding:
Revenue:!
Construction and land cos
Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on loan guaran
Operating los:
Interest incom
Interest expens
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu
Homebuilding pretax los
Financial services pretax incor
Total pretax los:
Income tax benef
Equity in net loss of subsidiari
Net loss

Revenue!

Homebuilding:
Revenue:
Construction and land cos
Selling, general and administrative exper
Operating income (los:
Interest incom
Interest expens
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu
Homebuilding pretax los
Financial services pretax incor
Total pretax los:
Income tax benefi
Equity in net loss of subsidiari
Net loss

(In Thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 201

Non-
KB Home Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ — $ 745,96! $ 569,90: $ — $ 1,315,86!
$ — $ 745,96! $ 559,59 $ = $ 1,305,56:
— (638,807 (491,187 — (1,129,98)
(52,784 (93,28¢) (101,819 = (247,886
— (30,765 — — (30,765
(52,782 (16,89() (33,400 = (103,079
71E 36 12C — 871
51,957 (69,309 (31,85)) = (49,202
— (55,83)) (8) — (55,839
(112) (141,99, (65,140 = (207,246
— — 26,07¢ — 26,07¢
(112) (141,99, (39,062) — (181,16¢)
— 1,90( 50C — 2,40(
(178,65¢) — — 178,65t —
$(178,769 $ (140,099 $ (3856) $ 178,65 $ (178,760

Year Ended November 30, 201
Non-
KB Home Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ — $ 429,91° $1,160,07! $ — $ 1,589,99
$ — $ 429,91 $1,151,84i $ — $1,581,76.
— (360,45() (947,83%) — (1,308,28)
(68,149 (48,237 (173,139 - (289,52()
(68,149 21,23¢ 30,87( — (16,045
1,77C 30 29¢ — 2,09¢
20,35: (41,686 (46,974 — (68,307
(18€) (6,077) — (6,257)
(46,026) (20,60¢) (21,87) — (88,517
— — 12,14 — 12,14
(46,026) (20,60¢) (9,739 — (76,36¢)
4,20( 1,90( 90C — 7,00(C
(27,547 — — 27,54. —
$ (69,36 $ (18,709 $ (8,839 $ 2754: $ (69,369
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Year Ended November 30, 200

KB Home Guarantor Gugl?anntor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Revenues $ — $ 1,608,53. $ 216,31 $ —  $1,824,85
Homebuilding:
Revenue! $ — $1,608,53: $ 207,88: $ — $1,816,41!
Construction and land cos — (1,548,67) (201,23) — (1,749,91)
Selling, general and administrative exper (71,18)) (198,96 (32,879 — (303,02
Operating los! (71,18 (139,109 (26,230 — (236,52()
Interest incom: 5,96¢ 887 662 — 7,51¢
Interest expens 31,44: (74,94¢) (8,259 — (51,769
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu — (22,840 (26,779 — (49,615
Homebuilding pretax los (33,779 (236,009) (60,60) — (330,38))
Financial services pretax incor — — 19,19¢ — 19,19¢
Total pretax los: (33,779 (236,009) (41,407 — (311,189
Income tax benef 22,70( 158,80( 27,90( — 209,40(
Equity in net loss of subsidiari (90,710 — — 90,71( —
Net loss $(101,78) $ (77,209 $ (13,509 $ 90,71 $ (101,789
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Receivable:
Inventories
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Other asset

Financial service
Investments in subsidiari

Total asset

Liabilities and stockholde’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
liabilities
Mortgages and notes payal

Financial service
Intercompany
Stockholder’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Receivable:
Inventories
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Other asset

Financial service
Investments in subsidiaris

Total asset

Liabilities and stockholde’ equity
Homebuilding:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

liabilities
Mortgages and notes payal

Financial service
Intercompany
Stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

(In Thousands)

November 30, 2011

Consolidating

Non-
KB Home Guarantor Guarantor
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ 340,95 $ 32,87¢ $ 41,217 $ — $ 415,05(
64,47" 6 — — 64,48
801 29,25( 36,12¢ — 66,17¢
— 1,256,46! 475,16: — 1,731,62!
— 113,92: 14,00¢ — 127,92¢
67,05¢ 73C 7,31¢ — 75,10«
473,29:. 1,433,25: 573,82¢ — 2,480,36!
— — 32,17: — 32,17:
34,23t — (34,239
$ 507,52 $1,433,25! $ 605,99¢ $ (34,23 $2,512,54.
$ 121,57. $ 181,83 $ 175418 $ — $ 478,82
1,533,47 45,92¢ 4,16¢ — 1,583,57.
1,655,04! 227,76( 179,58: — 2,062,39.
— — 7,494 — 7,49¢
(1,590,179 1,205,49: 384,68t — —
442 65’ — 34,23t (34,239 442 65
$ 507,52 $1,433,25; $ 605,99 $ (34,23)  $2,512,54
November 30, 201(
Consolidating
Non-
KB Home Guarantor Guarantor
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ 770,60: $ 3,61¢ $ 130,17¢ $ — $ 904,40:
88,71« — 26,76: — 115,47
4,20¢ 6,271 97,57 — 108,04¢
— 774,10: 922,61¢ — 1,696,722
— 37,007 68,57¢ — 105,58:
68,16¢ 72,80¢ 9,10¢ — 150,07¢
931,68t¢ 893,80: 1,254,81. — 3,080,30!
— — 29,44: — 29,44:
36,27¢ — (36,279
$ 967,96 $ 893,80 $1,284,25 $ (36,279 $3,109,74!
$ 124,60¢ $ 150,26( $ 424,85: $ — $ 699,72
1,632,36. 112,36¢ 30,79¢ — 1,775,52!
1,756,97. 262,62¢ 455,65: — 2,475,25.
— — 2,62( — 2,62(
(1,420,88) 631,17¢ 789,70t — —
631,87¢ — 36,27¢ (36,279 631,87¢
$ 967,96 $ 893,80 $1,284,25 $ (36,279 $3,109,74!
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2011
Consolidating

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss $(178,76¢
) $(140,09¢) $ (38,567 $ 178,65¢ $(178,76%)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash bye
operating activities
Equity in (income) loss/gain on wind down of

unconsolidated joint ventur — 55,83 (29,27¢) — 36,55
Loss on loan guaran — 30,76¢ — — 30,76¢
Gain on sale of operating prope — (8,825 — — (8,825
Inventory impairments and land option contr
abandonment — 21,51 4,28( — 25,79:
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable: 3,40¢ (9,726 4,102 — (2,220
Inventories — (40,979 28,62¢ — (12,345
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
liabilities (3,03%) (247,29) (3,220) — (253,54
Other, ne 9,18¢ 4,27 1,58¢ — 15,05
Net cash used by operating activit (169,21) (334,52¢) (22,467) 178,65¢ (347,54%)
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu — (77,090 9,83( — (67,260
Proceeds from sale of operating propt — 80,60( — — 80,60(
Sales (purchases) of property and equipment (200) (202) 16C — (242)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activi (200 3,30¢ 9,99( — 13,09¢
Cash flows from financing activitie
Change in restricted ca 24,23¢ 26,757 — — 50,99¢
Repayment of senior subordinated nc (100,000 — — — (100,000
Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedo lan
sellers and other loal 3,391 (87,94) (4,917 — (89,46))
Issuance of common stock under employee stock | 1,79¢ — — — 1,79¢
Payments of cash dividen (19,240 — — — (19,240
Intercompany (170,42Y 411,30¢ (62,228 (178,65¢) —
Net cash provided (used) by financing activi (260,23)) 350,12! (67,145 (178,656 (155,909
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (429,64¢) 18,907 (79,61 — (490,35¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 770,60: 13,96¢ 123,85¢ — 908,43(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 340,95 $ 32,87¢ $ 44,24 $ = $ 418,07-
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Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net ¢
provided (used) by operating activiti
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated joint
ventures
Inventory impairments and land option contre
abandonment
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable:
Inventories
Accounts payable, accrued expenses
other liabilities
Other, ne
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Purchases of property and equipment,
Net cash used by investing activit
Cash flows from financing activitie
Change in restricted ca
Payments on mortgages and land contracts due to
land sellers and other loa
Issuance of common stock under employee s
plans
Excess tax benefit associated with exercise oks
options
Payments of cash dividen
Repurchases of common stc
Intercompany
Net cash provided (used) by financing activi
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Year Ended November 30,

201

Consolidating

Non-
KB Home Guarantor Guaro;ntor
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$ (69,369 $ (18,709 $ (8,839 $ 27,54 $ (69,369
— 18€ (95€) — (772)
— 1,98( 17,94¢ — 19,92¢
187,54 3,557 20,21¢ — 211,31¢
— (99,216 (30,11¢) — (129,33))
(16,979 (65,87¢) (116,35)) — (199,20%)
(8,467 1,60¢ 40,32¢ — 33,47
92,74( (176,47) (77,775 27 54: (133,969
— (517) (15,15 — (15,669
(229) (70) (121) — (420)
(229) (587) (15,279 — (16,089
25,57¢ = (26,767 = (1,18%)
— (81,047 (20,119 — (101,15))
1,851 — — — 1,851
58: — — — 58:
(19,229 - = = (19,229
(350) — — — (350)
(325,469 217, 24( 135,77: (27,547 —
(317,03() 136,19¢ 88,89t (27,547) (119,479
(224,519 (40,859 (4,159 — (269,53)
995,12: 44,47¢ 138,36: — 1,177,96.
$ 770,60: $ 3,61¢ $ 134,20t $ — $ 908,43(
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Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net ¢
provided (used) by operating activiti
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu
Inventory impairments and land option contr
abandonment
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable:
Inventories
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities
Other, ne
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Sales (purchases) of property and equipment
Net cash used by investing activit
Cash flows from financing activitie
Change in restricted ca
Proceeds from issuance of senior n
Payment of senior notes issuance ¢
Repayment of senior and senior subordinated r
Payments on mortgages and land contracts d
land sellers and other loa
Issuance of common stock under employee <
plans
Payments of cash dividen
Repurchases of common stc
Intercompany
Net cash provided (used) by financing activi
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Note 22. Subsequent Event

Year Ended November 30,

200

Consolidating

Non-
KB Home Guarantor Guaro;ntor

Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
$(101,789) $ (77,209 $ (13,502 $ 90,71( $ (101,78)
— 22,84( 12,76( — 35,60(
— 153,29 14,85¢ — 168,14¢
26,85 33,21( (24,39¢) — 35,66
— 216,55 216,52: — 433,07!
(47,289 (83,316 (122,020 — (252,62()
22,31 1,571 7,941 — 31,82t
(99,907 266,94! 92,15¢ 90,71( 349,91:
= (14,51)) (5,405) = (19,929
(142) (1,497 264 — (1,379
(142) (16,019 (5,147 — (21,297
1,112 — — — 1,112
259,73 — — — 259,73
(4,299 — — — (4,299
(453,10!) — — — (453,10!)
- (78,987 - - (78,987
3,074 — — — 3,074
(19,097 - = = (19,097
(61€) — — — (61€)
321,29 (140,046 (90,54 (90,710 —
108,10¢ (219,029 (90,547 (90,71() (292,17))
8,06¢ 31,90: (3,529 — 36,44:
987,05 25,067 129,39 — 1,141,51
$ 995,12. $ 56,96¢ $ 125,87( $ — $1,177,96.

On January 19, 2012, the Company announced the eaoement of cash tender offers for up to $250 anilln aggregate principal
amount of its 5%2% senior notes due 2014 and & itss % senior notes due 2015 and 6%% senior notes dife Z@e tender offers are being
made pursuant to an Offer to Purchase dated Jat9aB012 and a related Letter of Transmittal, Wwiget forth a more detailed description of
the tender offers. Upon the terms and subjecteatnditions described in the Offer to Purchase ] #tter of Transmittal and any amendments
or supplements to the foregoing, the Company isrioffy to purchase for cash up to the applicableiarm Tender Amounts for the 2014 N
Tender Offer, and the 2015 Note Tender Offers. Chmpany reserves the right to increase or waileeir both of the Maximum Tender
Amounts subject to compliance with applicable l1alwese tender offers will expire at 11:59 p.m., Nk City time, on February 15, 2012,
unless extended or earlier terminated. The Compamtyligation to accept for purchase and to payémh series validly tendered in the
applicable tender offer is subject to the satisfacor waiver of a number of conditions, includitgcompletion of a proposed offer and sale of
unsecured senior debt securities on terms reasprati$factory to the Company. Additional infornoattiabout the tender offers is set forth in
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated danti9, 2012.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of KB Home as of November 30, 2011 at,24nhd the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgrsty, and cash flows for each of the three géarthe period ended November 30, 2011.
These financial statements are the responsibifitieo Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isXpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of KB
Home at November 30, 2011 and 2010, and the caladeti results of its operations and its cash flimwvgach of the three years in the period
ended November 30, 2011, in conformity with U.Sheyally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), KB Home's
internal control over financial reporting as of Nowber 30, 2011, based on criteria establishedt@mrial Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission and our report datedalky 27, 2012 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon.
M ¥ LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 27, 2012
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Iltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and praesda ensure that information we are requireddolase in the reports we file or
submit under the Securities and Exchange Act ofti93ecorded, processed, summarized and repoitbihwhe time periods specified in the
SEC'’s rules and forms, and accumulated and comratgddo management, including the President andf @&xiecutive Officer (the “Principal
Executive Officer”) and Executive Vice Presidenti@hief Financial Officer (the “Principal Financi@fficer”), as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Undesthgervision and with the participation of seniomagement, including our Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officere evaluated our disclosure controls and procedarsesuch term is defined under Rule 13a-
15(e) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAt®834. Based on this evaluation, our Principeddutive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls pratedures were effective as of November 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(@ Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinancidReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities and Exchakgeof 1934. Under the supervision and with theipgation of senior management,
including our Principal Executive Officer and Piipeal Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectigsa of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the frameworklimternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadribe
Treadway Commission. Based on the evaluation uth@d¢framework and applicable SEC rules, our mamage concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective d\mvember 30, 2011.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered puaiticounting firm that audited our consolidateaficial statements included in this
annual report, has issued its report on the effendss of our internal control over financial reépay as of November 30, 2011.

(b) Report of Independent Registered Public AccountiRigm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited KB Home’s internal control ovegfinial reporting as of November 30, 2011, basecriberia established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Conemibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@sion (the COSO criteria). KB
Home’s management is responsible for maintainifigcéfe internal control over financial reportirapd for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting incledlin the accompanying Management’s Annual Repothternal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an @piron the company’s internal control over finahcéporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
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A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ftain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, KB Home maintained, in all mateniabpects, effective internal control over finahoégporting as of November 30, 2011,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of KB Home as of Noeer®d, 2011 and 2010, and the related consoliddtgédments of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efttiree years in the period ended November 30, a@dilour report dated January 27, 2012

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
M ¥ LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 27, 2012

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm

There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting during the quarter endexv&mber 30, 2011 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Item9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

tem 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item for executoféicers is set forth under “Executive Officerstbé Registrantin Part |. Except as s
forth below, the other information called for bystitem is incorporated by reference to the “Cogp@iGovernance and Board Matters” and the
“Proposal 1: Election of Directors” sections of ®nmoxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting ofcBhmlders (the “2012 Proxy Statement”
which will be filed with the SEC not later than M&r29, 2012 (120 days after the end of our fisealry.

Ethics Policy

We have adopted an Ethics Policy for our directofficers (including our principal executive offiggrincipal financial officer and
principal accounting officer) and employees. Thiei&t Policy is available on our website at httpyvéistor.kbhome.com. Stockholders may
request a free copy of the Ethics Policy from:

KB Home

Attention: Investor Relations
10990 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, California 90024
(310) 231-4000
investorrelations@kbhome.com

Within the time period required by the SEC andNlesv York Stock Exchange, we will post on our websit http://investor.kbhome.com
any amendment to our Ethics Policy and any waipelieable to our principal executive officer, pripal financial officer or principal
accounting officer, or persons performing similandtions, and our other executive officers or doex

Corporate Governance Principles

We have adopted Corporate Governance Principleishveie available on our website at http://invegtdnome.com. Stockholders may
request a free copy of the Corporate Governanceiplées from the address, phone number and emaibad set forth above under “Ethics
Policy.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the “Corporate Governance armtdBMlatters” and the “Executive
Compensation” sections of the 2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the “Ownership of KB Home Sdmsi section of the 2012 Proxy
Statement, except for the information requiredtbyn 201(d) of Regulation S-K, which is provideddvel
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The following table presents information as of NoNxer 30, 2011 with respect to shares of our comstack that may be issued under
our existing compensation plans:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of common
Number of shares remaining
common shares to available for future
be issued upon issuance under equit
exercise of
outstanding options

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options

compensation plans
(excluding common

warrants and rights -
9 shares reflected in

warrants and

rights column(a))
Plan category @ (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholc 10,160,39 $ 21.2i 2,477,21
Equity compensation plans not approvec
stockholder: — — —(2)
Total 10,160,39 $ 21.25 2,477,21!

(1) Represents our current compensation plan fonon-employee directors that provides for grafitdederred common stock units or stock
options. These stock units and options are destiibthe “Director Compensation” section of our 2(roxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein. Although we may purchase shafreur common stock on the open market to satiisfypayment of these stock u
and options, to date, all of them have been seittledsh. Further, under the non-employee directorsent compensation plan, our non-
employee directors cannot receive shares of ountamstock in satisfaction of their stock units ptions unless and until approved by

our stockholders. Therefore, we consider the nopleyee directors compensation plans as having adadle capacity to issue shares of
our common stock

ltem 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the “Corporate Governance araddBlatters” and the “Other
Matters” sections of our 2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the “Independent Auditor FeesSarvices” section of our 2012
Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(&) 1.Financial Statements
Reference is made to the index set forth on page @3s Annual Report on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedule

Financial statement schedules have been omittealibedhey are not applicable or the required indtion is provided in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amenfiled] as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Reporform 8-K dated
April 7, 2009, is incorporated by reference her

3.2 By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 2fil@d, as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Répo Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended February 28, 2007, is incaied by reference here

4.1 Rights Agreement between the Company and Melloadtor Services LLC, as rights agent, dated Jar2@r2009, filed
as an exhibit to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K/A dated January 28, 2009, is incorporated byresfee hereir

4.2 Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating 3/ 4% Senior Notes due 2014 among the Company, theaBtas ant
Sun Trust Bank, Atlanta, each dated January 284,208d as exhibits to the Company’s Registratgiatement No. 333-
114761 on Form-4, are incorporated by reference her

4.3 Second Supplemental Indenture relating to 6%/Senior Notes due 2011 among the Company, theaBteas and Sun
Trust Bank, Atlanta, dated June 30, 2004, filedm&xhibit to the Company’s Registration StatenNmt333-119228 on
Form £-4, is incorporated by reference here

4.4 Third Supplemental Indenture relating to the Cony’'s Senior Notes by and between the Company, theaBtoas
named therein, the Subsidiary Guarantor nameditharel SunTrust Bank, dated as of May 1, 2006d file an exhibit to
the Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated May 3, 2006, is incorporated by referersxeim.

4.5 Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to the CamjgaSenior Notes by and between the Company, ther&tors
named therein and U.S. Bank National Associatiated as of November 9, 2006, filed as an exhibihéoCompany’s
Current Report on Forn-K dated November 13, 2006, is incorporated by ezfee hereir

4.6 Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 208iating to the Company’s Senior Notes by anavbeh the

Company, the Guarantors, and the Trustee, filehasxhibit to the Company’s Current Report on F8ri dated
August 22, 2007, is incorporated by reference he

4.7 Specimen of 3/ 4% Senior Notes due 2014, filed as an exhibit toGbenpan’s Registration Statement No. 114761
on Form &4, is incorporated by reference here

4.8 Specimen of 17/ 8% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated
December 15, 2004, is incorporated by referenceitne

4.9 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ derates establishing the terms of thé 5% Senior Notes due 2015, fil
as an exhibit to the Compée's Current Report on Forn-K dated December 15, 2004, is incorporated by eefex hereir
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Exhibit

Number

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

4.17

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8

10.9

Description

Specimen of ¢1/ 4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbepan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated
June 2, 2005, is incorporated by reference he

Form of officer’ certificates and guarant( certificates establishing the terms of th1/ 4% Senior Notes due 2015, fils
as an exhibit to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K dated June 2, 2005, is incorporated by referémcein.

Specimen of 6 4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 27, 2005, is incorporated by reference he

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ darates establishing the terms of the 64 % Senior Notes due 2015, filed
as an exhibit to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K dated June 27, 2005, is incorporated by referéecein.

Specimen of 2 4% Senior Notes due 2018, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 3, 2006, is incorporated by reference her

Form of officer’ certificates and guarant( certificates establishing the terms of th1/ 4% Senior Notes due 2018, fils
as an exhibit to the Compé's Current Report on Forn-K dated April 3, 20086, is incorporated by refereheeein.

Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, filegnasxhibit to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K dated July
30, 2009, is incorporated by reference her

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ derates establishing the terms of the 9.100% SeNimtes due 2017, filed
as an exhibit to the Compée's Current Report on Forn-K dated July 30, 2009, is incorporated by referdrein.

Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Compimsdlan, effective as of July 11, 1985, filedassexhibit to the
Compan’s 2007 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive DefeCompensation Plan for amounts earned or vested aftel
January 1, 2005, effective January 1, 2009, fikdmexhibit to the Company’s 2008 Annual ReporForm 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended atateel on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibiheoGompany’s
2008 Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Directors’ DefdrCompensation Plan established effective aalpf2¥, 1989,
filed as an exhibit to the Compé's 2007 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Performanc-Based Incentive Plan for Senior Management, as deteand restated on October 2, 2008, file
an exhibit to the Compa’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home Penfmmc-Based Incentive Plan for Senior Management, fiedn
exhibit to the Compar’'s 1995 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estated on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhilithiéoCompan’'s
2008 Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Directors’ Legacy Program, as amended Jyriual 999, filed as an exhibit to the Company’'88 &nnual
Report on Form 1-K, is incorporated by reference here

Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home @ation and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as Trustee, datedfa
August 27, 1999, filed as an exhibit to the CompaiP99 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporalgdeference
herein.
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Exhibit
Number

10.10*

10.11*1
10.12*1
10.13*

10.14*1
10.15*1
10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

Description

Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive Pean@ended and restated on October 2, 2008, filad aghibit tc
the Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Com|'s Amended and Restated 1999 Incentive F
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coty's Amended and Restated 1999 Incentive F

KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estated on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhilthéoCompan’s
2008 Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Com|'s 2001 Stock Incentive Pla
Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under the Camy’s 2001 Stock Incentive Pla

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwéspect to deferrals prior to January 1, 200fecafe March 1,
2001, filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s 2001 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwéspect to deferrals on and after January 1,,28@&ctive
January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the Com{z208 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as andeautle restated effective January 1, 2009, filedrasxhibit to the
Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an exhibithe Company’s 2001 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OnnPeffective as of January 1, 2009, filed as»dmilst to the
Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restafectigé January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to@menpan’s 2008
Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datebr&ary 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to the Compargurrent Repo!
on Form K dated March 6, 2007, is incorporated by referdmain.

Amendment to the Employment Agreement of JeffreM&zger, dated December 24, 2008, filed as an éxbithe
Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Employnfareement between the Company and Jeffrey T. Metaied as
of February 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to thenPany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 872 is incorporated
by reference hereil

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendeatiR@stated 1999 Incentive Plan for stock optiomigta Jeffrey T.
Mezger, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s QuértReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Aa@ds 2007, is
incorporated by reference here

Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certaiv&ance Payments, adopted July 10, 2008, filech &xhibit to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated July 15, 2008, is incorporated by referdmaein.

KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an éxtulthe Compan’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarte
ended August 31, 2008, is incorporated by referdecein.

Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfitatt,as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Reporform 8-K
dated October 8, 2008, is incorporated by referéecein.
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10.29*

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

10.38*

10.39*

10.40

10.41*

10.42*1
12.1t
217
23t
31.1%

31.2%

Description

KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisgfiled as Attachment C to the Comp’s Proxy Statement ¢
Schedule 14A for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stod#ars, is incorporated by reference her

Amendmento Trust Agreement by and between KB Home and Wdah®ank, N.A., dated August 24, 2009, filed as
exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Foi®rQ for the quarter ended August 31, 2009, is ipomated by
reference hereir

Amended and Restated KB Home Non-Employee Dire@@orspensation Plan, effective as of July 9, 20i&d fas an
exhibit to the Compar's 2009 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an éxtio the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 2, 2010
is incorporated by reference here

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibithio the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarte
ended February 28, 2010, is incorporated by reterérrein

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the K&é 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibithe
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated July 20, 2010, is incorporated by referdmaein.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement undedBeHome 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibitho the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated July 20, 2010, is incorporated by referdmain.

Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award &grent, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Curfeeport on Form
8-K dated October 13, 2010, is incorporated by refegeherein

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to JeffreMezger,
filed as an exhibit to the Compe’'s 2010 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

Amendment to the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Pfdad as an exhibit to the Comp¢'s Quarterly Report on For
1C-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2011, is paa@ted by reference here

Executive Severance Benefit Decisions, filed aexnbit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Foi®aQ for the quarter
ended February 28, 2011, is incorporated by reteréerein

Consensual agreement effective June 10, 2011,d8eah exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly ReporEorm 10-Q for the
quarter ended August 31, 2011, is incorporatecebgrence hereir

Form of 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance Casfard Agreement, filed as an exhibit to the Comy’s Current
Report on Form -K dated October 12, 2011, is incorporated by refeseherein

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to JeffreMezger.
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg

Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President arfuef Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to SentB02 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive ViceeBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home fuant to Section 3(
of the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit

Number

32.1%

32.2%

101

Description

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President antdef Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to 18ULC. Section 1350, .
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicedBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home &uant to 18 U.S.C
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@iGeoSarban-Oxley Act of 2002

The following materials from KB Home’s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 20drinatted in
eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL)C@nsolidated Statements of Operations, (i) Codsatdid Balance
Sheets, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Stockheldequity, (iv) Consolidated Statements of CastmiE, and (v) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Pursuant to 86d of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Fd@sExhibit 101 hereto
are deemed not filed or part of a registrationestesnt or prospectus for purposes of Sections 12 af the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purpds®sction 18 of the Securities and Exchange A&984, as amended,
and otherwise are not subject to liability undersh sections

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagein which executive officers are eligible totgapate.

T Document filed with this Form -K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

KB Home
By: /s/ JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminsk
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Date: January 26, 20:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ JEFFREY T. MEZGER Director, President and January 26, 2012
Jeffrey T. Mezger Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/ JEFF J. KAMINSKI Executive Vice President and January 26, 2012
Jeff J. Kaminski Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
/s/ WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER Senior Vice President ar January 26, 201
William R. Hollinger Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ STEPHEN F. BOLLENBACH Chairman of the Board and Direci January 26, 201
Stephen F. Bollenbac
/s/ BARBARA T. ALEXANDER Director January 26, 201
Barbara T. Alexande
/s/ TIMOTHY W. FINCHEM Director January 26, 2012
Timothy W. Finchen
/s/ KENNETH M. JASTROW, I Director January 26, 2012
Kenneth M. Jastrow, |
/s/ ROBERT L. JOHNSON Director January 26, 2012
Robert L. Johnso
/s/ MELISSA LORA Director January 26, 2012
Melissa Lore
/s/ MICHAEL G. MCCAFFERY Director January 26, 2012
Michael G. McCaffer
/'s/ LESLIE MOONVES Director January 26, 2012
Leslie Moonve:
/sl LUIS G. NOGALES Director January 26, 2012
Luis G. Nogale:
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Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

LIST OF EXHIBITS FILED

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amentiled] as an exhibit to the Compé's Current Report o
Form &K dated April 7, 2009, is incorporated by refereheeein.

By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 206 &k an exhibit to the Compi's Quarterly Repoil
on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2007, is paated by reference here

Rights Agreement between the Company and Melloedtor Services LLC, as rights agent, dated
January 22, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the Comifsa@urrent Report on Form 8-K/A dated January 28,
2009, is incorporated by reference her

Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating 3/ 4% Senior Notes due 2014 among the Company
Guarantors and Sun Trust Bank, Atlanta, each diadary 28, 2004, filed as exhibits to the Company
Registration Statement No. -114761 on Form -4, are incorporated by reference her

Second Supplemental Indenture relating t© 6%/Senior Notes due 2011 among the Company, the
Guarantors and Sun Trust Bank, Atlanta, dated 30n2004, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s
Registration Statement No. 119228 on Form -4, is incorporated by reference here

Third Supplemental Indenture relating to the Cony’'s Senior Notes by and between the Company
Guarantors named therein, the Subsidiary Guarawatmed therein and SunTrust Bank, dated as of May 1,
2006, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s CuriRaport on Form 8-K dated May 3, 2006, is incorpedat
by reference hereil

Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to the Camy’s Senior Notes by and between the Company
Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank Nationabdaton, dated as of November 9, 2006, filed as an
exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8ated November 13, 2006, is incorporated by
reference hereir

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 208iating to the Compa’s Senior Notes by ar
between the Company, the Guarantors, and the Bt as an exhibit to the CompasyCurrent Repo
on Form K dated August 22, 2007, is incorporated by refeedmerein

Specimen of 3 4% Senior Notes due 2014, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Registration Statement
No. 33:-114761 on Form-4, is incorporated by reference here

Specimen of {7/ 8% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit to@benpan’s Current Report o
Form &K dated December 15, 2004, is incorporated by eefez herein

Form of officer’ certificates and guarantc certificates establishing the terms of th7/ 8% Senior Note
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s €urReport on Form 8-K dated December 15, 2004, is
incorporated by reference here

Specimen of 6 4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit to@Gbenpany’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated June 2, 2005, is incorporated by referéecein.

Form of officer’ certificates and guarantc certificates establishing the terms of th/ 4% Senior Note
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s €urReport on Form 8-K dated June 2, 2005, is
incorporated by reference here

Specimen of 6 4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit to@Gbenpany’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated June 27, 2005, is incorporated by referéecein.

Sequentia

Page

Number
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413 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ derates establishing the terms of the 64% Senior Notes
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s €urReport on Form 8-K dated June 27, 2005, is
incorporated by reference here

4.14 Specimen of "1/ 4% Senior Notes due 2018, filed as an exhibit toGbenpan’s Current Report on Forn-
K dated April 3, 2006, is incorporated by refereheeein.

4.15 Form of officer’ certificates and guarant( certificates establishing the terms of th1/ 4% Senior Note:
due 2018, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s €urReport on Form 8-K dated April 3, 2006, is
incorporated by reference here

4.16 Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, file@inasxhibit to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-
K dated July 30, 2009, is incorporated by referdmaein.
4.17 Form of officer’ certificates and guarant( certificates establishing the terms of the 9.10@i& Notes

due 2017, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s €urReport on Form 8-K dated July 30, 2009, is
incorporated by reference here

10.1* Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Compimsdlan, effective as of July 11, 1985, filedaas
exhibit to the Compar’'s 2007 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.2* Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive BrefeCompensation Plan for amounts earne
vested on or after January 1, 2005, effective JanLia2009, filed as an exhibit to the Company’'§&0
Annual Report on Form K, is incorporated by reference here

10.3* KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended atateel on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibihéo t
Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.4* Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Directors’ DefedrCompensation Plan established effective as of
July 27, 1989, filed as an exhibit to the Compar3087 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporatgd b
reference hereir

10.5* KB Home Performanc-Based Incentive Plan for Senior Management, as deteand restated on Octobe
2008, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 dairReport on Form 10-K, is incorporated by refeeen
herein.

10.6* Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home Penfamce-Based Incentive Plan for Senior

Management, filed as an exhibit to the Company%518nnual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated by
reference hereir

10.7* KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended esidted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhiliii¢o
Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.8 KB Home Directors’ Legacy Program, as amended Jgrial 999, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s
1998 Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

10.9 Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home &@ation and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as Trustee,
dated as of August 27, 1999, filed as an exhibiheoCompany’s 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

10.10° Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive Plan#nded and restated on October 2, 2008, filed as
an exhibit to the Compa’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here
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Sequentia
Exhibit Page
Number Description Number
10.11*t E?rm of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement unttexr Company’s Amended and Restated 1999 Incentive
an.

10.12*% Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coiy's Amended and Restated 1999 Incentive F
10.13* KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estdted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhili¢o

Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here
10.14*% Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Com|'s 2001 Stock Incentive Pla
10.15*% Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under the Camy’s 2001 Stock Incentive Pla
10.16* KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwitspect to deferrals prior to January 1, 2005,

effective March 1, 2001, filed as an exhibit to @@mpany’s 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

10.17* KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwéspect to deferrals on and after January 1,
effective January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibitt® €Company’s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

10.18* KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as andeawtle restated effective January 1, 2009, filedras
exhibit to the Compar's 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.19* KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an exhibithe Company’s 2001 Annual Report on Form 1GsK,
incorporated by reference here

10.20* Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OngnPeffective as of January 1, 2009, filed asdribst

to the Compar’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.21* KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restaftectieé January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to
Compan’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.22* Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datelré&ary 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to the Company
Current Report on Forr-K dated March 6, 2007, is incorporated by referdmerein.

10.23* Amendment to the Employment Agreement of JeffreiM&zger, dated December 24, 2008, filed as an é@xhib
to the Compar’s 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.24* Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Employnfemeement between the Company and Jeffre
Mezger dated as of February 28, 2007, filed asxaibi to the Company’s Current Report on Form gldted
July 18, 2007, is incorporated by reference hel

10.25* Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendatiR@stated 1999 Incentive Plan for stock optiomigra
to Jeffrey T. Mezger, filed as an exhibit to then@any’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the geraginded
August 31, 2007, is incorporated by reference he

10.26* Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certaiv&ance Payments, adopted July 10, 2008, filech:
exhibit to the Compar’'s Current Report on Forn-K dated July 15, 2008, is incorporated by referemaein.
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10.28*
10.29*

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

10.38*

10.39*

10.40

10.41*

10.42*1

Description

KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an éxtulithe Company’s Quarterly Report on FormQ®er
the quarter ended August 31, 2008, is incorporbyeceference hereil

Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfitatt,as an exhibit to the CompasyCurrent Report ¢
Form &K dated October 8, 2008, is incorporated by refegdrerein

KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisgfiled as Attachment C to the Comp’s Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2009 Annual Megati Stockholders, is incorporated by referenaeihe

Amendment to Trust Agreement by and between KB HanteWachovia Bank, N.A., dated August
2009, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Quayt&eport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Augast
2009, is incorporated by reference her

Amended and Restated KB Home Non-Employee Dire@orapensation Plan, effective as of July 9, 2009,
filed as an exhibit to the Compé s 2009 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an dxtio the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K dated
April 2, 2010, is incorporated by reference her

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibithio the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q
for the quarter ended February 28, 2010, is incared by reference here

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the K&te 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K dated July 20, 2010, is incorporated by referdmaein.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement undeBeHome 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an
exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8afed July 20, 2010, is incorporated by reference
herein.

Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award Agrent, filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Current
Report on Form-K dated October 13, 2010, is incorporated by refegeherein

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to Jeffre
T. Mezger, filed as an exhibit to the Company’'s@®hnual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated by
reference hereir

Amendment to the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Pfded as an exhibit to the Compé s Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2011, is pa@ted by reference here

Executive Severance Benefit Decisions, filed aexdmibit to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q
for the quarter ended February 28, 2011, is incared by reference here

Consensual agreement effective June 10, 2011,d8ezh exhibit to the CompasyQuarterly Report on Fol
10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2011, is incaysal by reference here

Form of 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance Casiard Agreement, filed as an exhibit to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated October 12, 2011, is incorporated by refeedherein

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to Jeffre
T. Mezger.
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Exhibit

Number

12.1t
217
23t
31.1%

31.2%

32.1%

32.2%

101

Description

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Char
Subsidiaries of the Registral
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President artuef Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicegBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Hor
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President arfue® Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Se8érof the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicegBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adoptedudntgo Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

The following materials from KB Hon's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended November !
2011, formatted in eXtensible Business Reportingduege (XBRL): (i) Consolidated Statements of
Operations, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets,@idhsolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity,

(iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, andNftes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Patsua
to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive@Biles on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed
part of a registration statement or prospectuptimposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securitiesofct
1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purpds®sction 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act o
1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subjéabtlity under those section

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent in which executive officers are eligiblgtuticipate.
t Document filed with this Form 10-K.
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Exhibit 10.1:

KB HOME
AMENDED AND RESTATED 1999 INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Stock Option Agreement (this “Agreement”) iade on (the “Grant Date”) between KB Home, a Delaware ooation
(the “Company”), and (“Optionee”). Capitalized terms used in this Agregrnand not defined herein have the respective
meanings given them in the KB Home Amended andd®ss$t1999 Incentive Plan (the “Plan”).

AGREEMENT

1. Grant . Subject to the terms of the Plan and this AgreertbatCompany hereby grants to Optionee an optioption”) to purchase
from the Company an aggregate of ] shares of common stock, $1.00 par value per sbtee Company (“Common Stock”) at the
purchase price of $[ ] per share. The Option is intended to be a Nonlfer Stock Option. The Option may be exercisat the shares
of Common Stock subject to the Option (the “Opt&irares”) may be purchased, only as provided uhigAgreement. A copy of the
prospectus describing the Plan is included herewitd available upon request, and is made a pegbhe

2. Option Vesting and Exercise The Option may be exercised in accordance witHdhewing vesting schedule if Optionee is
employed by the Company or its Subsidiaries orréspective dates indicated below:

On or After Shares Subject to Purchase
[ ] 33 1/3% of Optior
[ ] an additiona 33 1/3% of Optior
[ ] an additiona 33 1/3% of Optior

To exercise any portion of the Option that haseasthe Company must receive both written noticexefrcise specifying the number of
Option Shares to be purchased and payment foutheurchase price of such Option Shares plus timeesponding amount of any taxes the
Company is required to withhold in connection watich exercise. The purchase price for such OptiameS and any corresponding tax
withholding amounts may be paid in, or in any comaltion of, cash, cash equivalents or shares of Gumtock that are not subject to any
pledge, other security interest or other applicabstriction under the Plan. Such Option Sharekbeiissued, in whole shares only, by or on
behalf of the Company as soon as practicable uppompany'’s or its agent’s receipt of the fullghase price for such Option Shares and all
corresponding tax withholding amounts.

Except as provided in Section 3 below with respe@ptionee’s Retirement and subject to Sectiorldve, Optionee will immediately
forfeit all rights, title and interests in and taygportion of the Option that has not vested onddie Optionee’s employment with the Company
is terminated.

3. Accelerated Option Vesting Notwithstanding Section 2 above, the entire Optjcanted hereunder will vest and become immediately
exercisable upon a Change of Ownership of the Cagnpaly if the successor entity does not assum@htéon or substitute an equivalent
right for the Option, or upon Optionee’s RetireméRetirement” means severance from employment thiehCompany or its Subsidiaries for
any reason other than a leave of absence, termmgti cause, death or disability, at such timéhassum of Optionee’s age and years of
service with the Company or |




Subsidiaries equals at least 65 or more, providatd®ptionee is then at least 55 years of age Cidmpany will have the sole right to
determine whether Optionee’s severance from emptoymonstitutes a Retirement.

4. Option Termination . The Option will cease to be exercisable and wifliexand terminate to the extent not exercised uperearlier
of (i) the close of business on the tenth annivgre&the Grant Date and (ii) the dates set foeloty in this Section 4.

(@) Employment Termination Other Than For Cause or Retiement . If Optionee’s employment with the Company or its
Subsidiaries is terminated for any reason othar fbacause or Retirement (in each case, as detethily the Company),
the date that is 90 calendar days after the dasedf terminatior

(b)  Employment Termination for Cause. If Optionee’s employment with the Company or itbSidiaries is terminated for
cause (as determined by the Company), the datéstbatalendar days after the date of such termoinz

(c) Death.Inthe event of Optionee’s death (i) while Optioimeemployed by the Company or its Subsidiariéswithin 90
days of the date Optionee’s employment with the Gamy or its Subsidiaries is terminated for any oceasther than for
cause or Retirement (in each case, as determindtellyompany) or (iii) in the event of Optioneedsirement (as
determined by the Company) prior to the date sgh fia clause (i) of the first sentence of this tBet4, the first anniversary
of the date of deatl

5. No Stockholder Rights. Optionee, and any Permitted Transferee (as defin€ection 12 hereof), will not be deemed to belaér of
or possess any stockholder rights with respechyoQption Shares prior to the issuance of suchddfihares upon exercise of the Option as
provided in this Agreement.

6. Additional Restrictions . The Company may impose such restrictions, conditarlimitations as it determines appropriate ahéo
timing and manner of any resales or other trangfeasiy Option Shares, including (a) restrictionsler an insider trading policy, (b) stock
ownership requirements, (c) restrictions desigoetditay and/or coordinate the timing and mannesatés of Options Shares following a pul
offering of the Company’s Common Stock and (d)rémguired use of a specified brokerage firm for stggales or other transfers.

7. Adjustments. In the event of any merger, reorganization, codstilbn, recapitalization, stock dividend or otheemt described in
Section 13(a) of the Plan, such adjustment wilirzgle to the number, type and purchase price diimn Shares, and to the terms and
conditions hereof, as and to the extent the Coremitetermines to be appropriate (in its sole distre

8. California Law . This Agreement will be construed, administered anforced in accordance with the laws of the Statealifornia.
This Agreement and the Option will be subject t&cigsion by the Company if an executed originah@af Agreement is not received by the
Company within 90 days of its transmittal to Op#en

9. Conformity to Securities Laws. Optionee acknowledges that the Plan and this Ageeéare intended to conform to the extent
necessary with all provisions of the Securities #fc1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), ar@Slecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and any and all regulations and rulesydgated in each case thereunder by the Securite&achange

2



Commission. Notwithstanding anything herein toc¢batrary, the Plan will be administered, and théi@pShares will be issued, in such a
manner as to conform to the requirements and ltiaita of such laws, rules and regulations. To ttterg permitted by applicable law, the Plan
and this Agreement will be deemed amended to ttenerecessary to conform to such laws, rules agdlations. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Optionee agrees thiat po any sale of Option Shares, Optionee wilifygdhe Company in order to enable it to
take any steps required by the Securities Act imeation with such sale and further agrees thatrlsle will not complete any such sale until
he or she has been advised by the Company thatssejh have been taken.

10. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreementuadérstanding of the parties with respect to thgesti matter
of this Agreement, and supersedes all prior andecoporaneous oral and written agreements and uadédisgs relating to such subject ma
OPTIONEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES TO BE BOUND TO, ANTHAT THE OPTION IS GRANTED SUBJECT TO, ALL OF
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PLAN, INCLUDING ANYTERMS, RULES OR DETERMINATIONS MADE BY THE
COMMITTEE PURSUANT TO ITS ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITYUNDER THE PLAN, AND THAT IN THE EVENT OF ANY
CONFLICT BETWEEN THIS AGREEMENT AND THE PLAN, THELIRAN WILL PREVAIL.

11. NonTransferability . The Option may not be transferred (in whole orantpexcept by will or the laws of descent andribistion
and except by gift or a domestic relations ordentanbers of Optionee’s family or to trusts or otbetities whose beneficiaries or beneficial
owners are Optionee or members of Optionee’s fa(edgh, a “Permitted Transferee”). During Optiosdiéétime, unless the Option is
transferred to a Permitted Transferee in accorduaiiitethis Section 11, only Optionee may exercise ®ption as provided in this Agreement.
Subiject to such conditions and procedures as thep@oy may require, a Permitted Transferee may eseetise Option during Optionee’s
lifetime.

12. No Obligation. Neither the execution and delivery hereof nor trenting of the Option will constitute or be evideraf any
agreement or understanding, express or impliedh@part of the Company or any of its Subsidiatgesmploy or continue the employment of
Optionee for any period or in any capacity.

13. Notice. Any notice given hereunder to the Company will bdrassed to the Company, attention Senior Viceidets Human
Resources, and any notice given hereunder to Cgetiaiill be addressed to Optionee at his or heresddas shown on the records of the
Company.

14. Section 409A Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plarttos Agreement, the Plan and this Agreement wilifterpreted in
accordance with, and incorporate the terms anditons required by, Section 409A of the Code (tbgetwith any Department of Treasury
regulations and other interpretive guidance isgshedeunder, including, without limitation, any suegulations or other guidance that may be
issued after the date hereof). The Committee nmaiys idiscretion, adopt such amendments to the tanis Agreement or adopt such other
policies and procedures (including amendmentscigsliand procedures with retroactive effect), ke tany other actions, as the Committee
determines are necessary or appropriate to comigiythae requirements of Section 409A of the Code.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, by its duly authed officer, and Optionee have executed this Agesd as of the day and
year first above writter

KB HOME

By:

OPTIONEE:

By:



Exhibit 10.1:

KB HOME
AMENDED AND RESTATED 1999 INCENTIVE PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT

This Restricted Stock Agreement (this “Agreemeigt’nade on (the “Award Date”) between KB Home, a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), and (“Participant”). Capitalized terms used in this Agment and not defined herein have the
respective meanings given them in the KB Home Aredrehd Restated 1999 Incentive Plan (the “Plan”).

AGREEMENT

1. Award . Subject to the terms of the Plan and this AgreentkatCompany hereby awards to Participant an ggtgeof [ ]
shares of common stock, $1.00 par value per shatke Company (the “Award”Except as provided in this Agreement, the sharewimor
stock subject to the Award (the “Award Shares”)raatrbe transferred in any manner. A copy of thespeatus describing the Plan is included
herewith, and available upon request, and is mauetahereof.

2. Lapse of Transferability Restrictions (Vesting 6 Award) .

(@  Annual Installment Lapse . The transferability restrictions imposed by thisrégment and the Plan on the Award Sh
will lapse, and the Award Shares will become fraedgleable, in three equal annual installments cenuing on the first
anniversary of the Award Datprovided, that the Committee may determine to allow the fienability restrictions to lapse
with respect to all Award Shares on the first asrsary of the Award Date if the Committee has distaédd conditions for
such lapse related to the performance of the Coynpanf one or more of its divisions or uni

(b)  Change of Ownership. Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to Sec8delow, all transferability restrictions impo:
on the Award Shares will immediately lapse, andAteard Shares will become freely tradeable, up@hange of
Ownership of the Compan

3. Forfeiture of Award Shares. Participant will immediately forfeit all rights,tleé and interests in and to all Award Shares that a
subject to transferability restrictions on the dageticipant’s employment with the Company is teratéd. In such event, Participant will
promptly execute any assignments or endorsemette &ompany may require to transfer beneficial eship of such Award Shares to the
Company or to a designee of the Company (as detethbly the Company in its sole discretion).

4. Delivery of Award Shares. The Company will deliver to Participant as soomessonably practicable stock certificate(s) représeg
those Award Shares as to which transferabilityriet&ins have lapsed in accordance with Sectiobh@a. No stock certificate will be deliver
to Participant unless and until Participant hasl paithe Company the amount of any taxes the Cognjgarequired to withhold in connection
with such lapse of such restrictions. At Participadiscretion, Participant may direct the Compémwithhold Award Shares otherwise
deliverable to Participant to satisfy any withhalglitax liability that may arise upon the lapserahsferability restrictions as provided under
Agreement




5. Dividends. Cash dividends or other distributions paid on areispect of shares of common stock of the Complaaiyatre not restricte
and are freely tradeable (“Unrestricted Sharesl)lvé equally and contemporaneously paid on oegpect of any Award Shares that are
subject to transferability restrictions under tAgreement. In addition, any stock or other non-adistributions issued on or in respect of
Unrestricted Shares will be equally and contempeaoasly issued on or in respect of such Award Shareswill be held in escrow and will be
subject to the transferability restrictions andddure conditions imposed under this Agreemenfwrard Shares.

6. Additional Restrictions . The Company may impose such restrictions, conditmriimitations as it determines appropriate ahéo
timing and manner of any resales or other trangfeasiy Award Shares as to which transferabilitnietions have lapsed in accordance with
Section 2 above, including (a) restrictions undeiraider trading policy, (b) stock ownership requients and (c) the required use of a
specified brokerage firm for such resales or otfersfers.

7. Adjustments. In the event of any merger, reorganization, codstilbn, recapitalization, stock dividend or otheemt described in
Section 13(a) of the Plan,, such adjustment wiliizgle to the number and type of the Award Sharesiathe terms and conditions hereof, as
and to the extent the Committee determines to peogpiate (in its sole discretion).

8. California Law . This Agreement will be construed, administered anfbrced in accordance with the laws of the Stateadifornia.
This Agreement and the Award will be subject taigsion by the Company if an executed originahig Agreement is not received by the
Company within 90 days of its transmittal to Papimt.

9. Conformity to Securities Laws. Participant acknowledges that the Plan and thig&ment are intended to conform to the extent
necessary with all provisions of the Securities #fct1933, as amended, and the Securities ExchangefA934, as amended, and any and all
regulations and rules promulgated in each caseuheer by the Securities and Exchange Commissiotwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, the Plan will be administered, and theafdvShares will be issued, in such a manner asrtfioom to the requirements and limitations
of such laws, rules and regulations. To the expentitted by applicable law, the Plan and this Agnent will be deemed amended to the
extent necessary to conform to such laws, rulesequlations.

10. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreementuadérstanding of the parties with respect to thgesti matter
of this Agreement, and supersedes all prior andecoporaneous oral and written agreements and uaddisgs relating to such subject ma
PARTICIPANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES TO BE BOUND TAND THAT THE AWARD IS MADE SUBJECT TO, ALL OF
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PLAN, INCLUDING ANYTERMS, RULES OR DETERMINATIONS MADE BY THE
COMMITTEE PURSUANT TO ITS ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITYUNDER THE PLAN, AND THAT IN THE EVENT OF ANY
CONFLICT BETWEEN THIS AGREEMENT AND THE PLAN, THEIRAN WILL PREVAIL.

11. NonTransferability . The Award may not be transferred (in whole or intjpexcept by will or the laws of descent and disttion
and except by gift or a domestic relations orden@nbers of Participant’s family or to trusts dnertentities whose beneficiaries or beneficial
owners are Participant or members of Participdatisly.

12. No Obligation. Neither the execution and delivery hereof nor gseiance of the Award will constitute or be evideoicany
agreement or understanding, express or impliedh@part of the Company or any of its Subsidiatgesmploy or continue the employment of
Participant for any period or in any capacity.



13. Notice. Any notice given hereunder to the Company will ddrassed to the Company, attention Senior Viceiddes Human
Resources, and any notice given hereunder to Ranticwill be addressed to Participant at his araugress as shown on the records of the
Company.

14. Section 409A Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plarttos Agreement, the Plan and this Agreement wilifterpreted in
accordance with, and incorporate the terms anditons required by, Section 409A of the Code (tbgetwith any Department of Treasury
regulations and other interpretive guidance issbeceunder, including without limitation any su@gulations or other guidance that may be
issued after the date hereof). The Committee nmaiys idiscretion, adopt such amendments to the tanis Agreement or adopt such other
policies and procedures (including amendmentscigaliand procedures with retroactive effect), ke tany other actions, as the Committee
determines are necessary or appropriate to comighytiae requirements of Section 409A of the Code.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and Participantehduly executed and delivered this Agreement dsetlate first above
written.

KB HOME

By:
PARTICIPANT:

By:



Exhibit 10.1¢

KB HOME
2001 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This agreement dated the [ ] day of [ ]
WITNESSETH:

1. Pursuant to the provisions of the KB HOME 20@dc8 Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), KB HOME (the “Cany”) on the date set forth
above has granted to ] (the “Optionee”), an option (the “Option”) to pivase from the Company an aggregate of ]
shares of Common Stock, $1.00 par value, of thegaom (“Common Stock”), at the purchase price of $ | per share, the Option to be
exercisable as hereinafter provided. A copy offtespectus describing the Plan is attached heretoreade a part hereof.

2. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Rlahaction taken pursuant to the Plan, both of whiay modify the terms hereof, the
shares may be purchased in accordance with trenioll) schedule. If the Optionee is employed byGoenpany or its subsidiaries on the date
indicated:

On or After Shares Subject to Purchas
[ ] 33 1/3% of Gran
[ ] an additiona 33 1/3% of Gran
[ ] an additiona 33 1/3% of Gran

Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon (i) a Chang®uwfership of the Company (as defined in the Ptarf)i) upon the Optione's Retirement
(as hereinafter defined), the entire Option gramieeunder shall vest and become immediately esadte.

Any exercise of the Option shall be made by givimg Company written notice of exercise specifyimg number of shares to be purchased.
The notice of exercise shall be accompanied byeetudthe Company of cash, or its equivalent, shares of the Company stock owned by
the Optionee (which are not the subject of any gdear other security interest), or of a combinatibthe foregoing, provided that the
combined value of all such cash and cash equiveabemd the fair market value of any such stock sddeed to the Company, valued as of the
date of such tender, is equal to the full purchagee of said shares plus the related amount otaxgs required to be withheld by the Comg
in connection with such exercise, to the extenhsuithholding taxes are then ascertainable. Ifaimount of such taxes is not ascertainable at
the time of the notice of exercise, such amounil Sleatendered by the Optionee to the Company as a8 the same shall become ascertait
and shall be communicated to the Optionee by thapg2oy.

“Retirement” shall mean severance from employmatit thhe Company or its Subsidiaries for any reasttver than a leave of absence,
termination for cause, death or disability at stiete as the sum of the Optionee’s age and yeassrofce with the Company or its Subsidiaries
equals at least sixty-five (65) or more, providedttOptionee is then at least fifty-five (55) yeafsge. Whether Optionee’s severance from
employment with the Company results from disabitittermination for cause shall be determined gdiglthe Company in its discretic



3. Without limiting the generality of paragraph dréof, it is understood and agreed that the Opgisubject to the following conditions:

(a) the Option shall in any event cease to be ésarte and shall expire and terminate to the extehexercised on the earlier of
(1) the close of business on | 1; (2) 90 calendar days after the termination &f @ptionee’s employment with the Company or its
subsidiaries for any reason other than for causeétermined by the Company) or Retirement; (3)tkite specified in subparagraph (a)(1) of
this paragraph 3 in the event of Optionee’s Retietmor (4) five (5) calendar days after the ddt®ptionee’s termination of employment if
Optionee’s employment is terminated for cause ésrdhined by the Company).

(b) the Option shall not be transferred except tamily member” (as such term is defined in thelgable rules of the Securities
and Exchange Commission relating to the RegistieBimtement under which the shares underlying fhteo@s are registered) in accordance
with such procedures as may be established by ¢dhngp@&ny from time to time, or by will or the lawsaédscent and distribution and, during the
lifetime of the Optionee, shall be exercised onhtliie Optionee, unless the Option has transfeoed‘family member” as contemplated
herein. No transfer to a “family member” as contéatgrl herein shall be effective unless Optionee@piionee’s designated transferee(s)
complies with all procedures established by the @amy from time to time for effecting such transfacluding signing an agreement to that
effect; and

(c) neither the Optionee nor any legal represergategatee, or distributee of the Optionee shaliiemed to be a holder of or
possess any stockholder rights with respect toshayes subject to the Option prior to the issuaficeich shares upon exercise of the Option.

Notwithstanding subparagraph (a) of this paragrapthe event of the death of the Optionee (i) while Optionee is employed by 1

Company or its Subsidiaries, (ii) on or before @9slafter the Optionee’s employment with the Conggarits Subsidiaries ceases for any
reason other than cause (as determined by the GompaOptionee’s Retirement, or (iii) in the evefitOptionee$ Retirement prior to the d:
set forth in subparagraph (a)(1) of this paragrémén in each such event the Option herein withteate on the earlier of (i) one year from the
date of death or (ii) the date specified in subgeaph (a)(1) of this paragraph 3.

4. Neither the execution and delivery hereof nerdhanting of the Option shall constitute or bedewice of any agreement or
understanding, express or implied, on the parthef@ompany or any of its subsidiaries to emplogamtinue the employment of the Optionee
for any period.

5. In the event of any merger, reorganization, obdation, recapitalization, stock dividend, or etlthange in corporate structure
affecting the Common Stock of the Company, suchstdjent shall be made in the number and optiore mfiche shares subject to the Option
as may be determined to be appropriate by the Ctreni

6. The Optionee agrees that prior to any saleetttares purchased pursuant to the Option, the@eiwill notify the Company in ord
to enable it to take any steps required by the ige=IAct of 1933 in connection with such sale &mndher agrees that he will not complete any
such sale until he has been advised by the Conbatbyguch steps have been taken.

7. This Option grant is made subject to all oftérens and conditions of the Plan, a copy of whichvailable to the Optionee upon
request, including any terms, rules, or determimatimade by the Committee (as defined in the Pfanguant to its administrative authority
under the Plan and such further terms as are ghtifothe Plan that are applicable to awards tnader, including without
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limitation provisions on adjustment of awards, namsferability, satisfaction of tax requirementsl @ompliance with other laws. Capitalized
terms used in this Agreement and not defined hdraitre the meaning set forth in the Plan.

8. The Company may impose such restrictions, cimmditor limitations as it determines appropriatécethe timing and manner of any
resales by the Optionee or other subsequent tranzfethe Optionee of any shares of common staaleis as a result of the exercise of this
Option, including without limitation (a) restrictis under an insider trading policy, (b) restrictialesigned to delay and/or coordinate the
timing and manner of sales by Optionee and othgowipolders following a public offering of the Compy’s common stock and (c) restrictic
as to the use of a specified brokerage firm fohgesales or other transfers.

9. Any notice given hereunder to the Company dimkhddressed to the Company, attention SeniorRfiesident, Human Resources, .
any notice given hereunder to the Optionee shafiduressed to him at his address as shown ondbedseof the Company.

10. The Optionee agrees to be bound by the terchs@mditions hereof and of the Plan; and, in thenéwof any conflict in terms between
this Agreement and the terms of the Plan, the tefrtise Plan shall prevail.

11. This Agreement shall be construed, administaretienforced in accordance with the laws of tla¢eStf California. This Agreement
and the grant of Options evidenced hereby shadllbgect to rescission by the Company if an execatignal of this Agreement is not
received by the Company within 90 days of its traml to the Optionee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, by its duly authed officer, and the Optionee have executed tigiedment as of the day and
year first above writter

KB HOME

By:
OPTIONEE:

By:



Exhibit 10.1!

KB HOME
2001 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
STOCK RESTRICTION AGREEMENT

THIS STOCK RESTRICTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement¥ made as of ] (herein the “Effective Date”) by and

between KB HOME, a Delaware corporation (the “Comgaand [ ] (the “Participant”).
RECITALS
By action of the Management Development and ComgtersCommittee (the “Committee”) taken on | ] (the “Committee

Action”), the Company desires to award the Paréiotpshares of restricted common stock of the Compazar value $1.00 per share (“Stock”)
under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”).

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the provisions contained irs thgreement and with reference to the foregoingtRle¢cthe Company and the
Participant agree as follows:

1. Award. As of the Effective Date, the Company shall issuthe Participant | ] shares of Stock (the “Award”), subject to
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreetyidre Plan, and the Committee Action. The cedififs) representing shares of Stock granted
pursuant to the Award shall not be delivered toRhgicipant until the lapse of the restrictionstiansferability in accordance with Paragraphs
2, 4 and 5 of this Agreement. Prior to such lafise certificate(s) shall be held by the Compangsorow pursuant to Section 7(d) of the Plan
along with a stock power duly endorsed in blankh®y Participant.

2. Lapse of RestrictionsThe restrictions imposed by this Agreement amdRlan with respect to the shares covered by thiard shall
lapse on the business day next following the thirdiversary of the Effective Date. Subject to theeptions set forth in section 4 below, the
restrictions imposed by this Agreement shall lapdslg if Participant continues to be employed by @ampany on the third anniversary of the
Effective Date.

3. Parties Obligations. Following the lapse of restrictions, the Compahgll deliver to the Participant as soon as prabtecertificate(s
representing those shares as to which restrictiame lapsed in accordance with Paragraphs 2, 4aw the case may be.

4. Termination of EmploymentExcept as set forth in Paragraph 5 below, uponitation of the Participant's employment with the
Company by the Company for “Cause” (as determinethé Company) or by the Participant without “Gdeelason” (as determined by the
Company), the Participant’s right, title and intrim those shares granted pursuant to the Awatal ahich the restrictions shall not have
lapsed at the time of such termination of employnséiall immediately terminate. The Participant kfmthwith execute such further
assignments or endorsements as the Company mayerégeffect the transfer of beneficial ownerstughose shares granted pursuant to the
Award back to the KB HOME Grantor Stock Trust (theust”), if the shares were issued to Participaumt of the Trust and the Trust continues
to exist at such time, or otherwise back to the @amy. Notwithstanding the other provisions of tBextion 4, upon the termination of the
Participan’s




employment with the Company by reason of the Hp#it’'s Retirement (as hereinafter defined); tretrietions set forth herein and Section 7
of the Plan shall lapse immediately upon such teation of employment. “Retirement” shall mean samee from employment with the
Company for any reason other than a leave of akséerenination for cause (as determined by the Gmypdeath or disability at such time as
the sum of the Participant’s age and years of semith the Company equals at least sifkty- (65) or more, provided that the employee &n
at least fifty-five (55) years of age. Whether ganee from employment results from the disabilityarticipant results from disability or
termination for cause shall be determined solelyhigyCompany in its discretion.

5. Lapse of Restrictions Upon Change of Ownershiptwithstanding any provision of Paragraph 2, duliject to Paragraph 4, all of the
restrictions set forth herein and in Section 7hef Plan on the shares of Stock granted under therdshall lapse upon a Change of
Ownership, as defined under the Plan.

6. Dividends. Cash dividends or other distributions paid oinaespect of any shares of Stock subject to thawvghall be paid directly
to Participant at the same time any such dividemalistributions are paid to holders of sharestotthat are not restricted and are freely
tradeable (“Other Holders”). Any stock or other raash distributions issued on or in respect of strgres of Stock subject to the Award shall
be issued at the same time any such distributimgsaued to Other Holders, but shall be held anag and shall be subject to the same
restrictions as the shares of Stock subject t&thard.

7. Tax Withholding Election At Participant’s discretion, he may direct then@p@any to withhold shares of Stock otherwise detibér
upon the lapse of restrictions on the Award tos§atiny withholding tax liability that may ariseapsuch lapse of restrictions, provided that
such Stock withholding complies with Section 16gbjhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenaledithe rules promulgated thereunder.

8. Adjustments The number of shares granted pursuant to the dglazall be adjusted by the Board, whose deternainatall be
conclusive, to reflect any stock split, stock desmdl, reorganization, recapitalization, merger, otidation, combination or exchange of shares
or similar event.

The Committee shall make any adjustments or maditias, and its determination thereof shall be ke, in the lapse of restrictions
set forth in Section 2 or Section 5 to give effiecthe intent of the Plan and the Committee Actiononnection with any event affecting the
Award, including without limitation, any reorgantizm, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, affg of additional shares of common stock
or other change in the Company’s shareholders’tgdnyi means other than earnings, or any similanewo such adjustment shall be made if
it would reduce the benefits otherwise accruinthtoParticipant under this Award.

9. No Assignment This Agreement may not be assigned by the Ppatitiby operation of law or otherwise. Notwithstiaugg this
Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inurnéobenefit of the personal representatives, hleigaitees, successors and assigns of the
Company and the Participant.

10. Governing Law This Agreement and the legal relations betweerptrties shall be governed by and construed iordaace with th
laws of the State of California.

11. Conflict in Terms In the event there shall be a conflict in terragaeen this Agreement, the Plan, and/or the Coraenftction, the
terms of the Plan shall prevail.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Particigeave duly executed and delivered this Agreemenf & date first above
written.

KB HOME

By:

PARTICIPANT:

By:



Exhibit 10.4:

KB HOME
2010 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Stock Option Agreement (“Agreement”) is maaeQctober 6, 2011 (“Award Date”) by and between H&ne, a Delaware
corporation (“Company”), and Jeffrey T. Mezger (lHer”). Capitalized terms used in this Agreemerd aot defined herein have the
respective meanings given to them in the KB HomE2Bquity Incentive Plan (“Plan”).

AGREEMENT

1. Subject to the terms of the Plan and this Agexdnthe Company hereby grants to Holder an ogtioption”) to purchase from the
Company an aggregate of 365,000 shares of Comnuak,S81.00 par value per share, of the Companheapurchase price of $6.32 per sh
the Option to be exercisable as hereinafter prakidecopy of the Plan is attached hereto and/awvilable upon request, and is made a part
hereof.

2. The Option shall vest and be exercisable if Hottbes not experience a Termination of Servicar poi any of the applicable dates
described in this Section 2 and if, and only i€ gerformance goal, as set forth in this Sectidm®,been satisfied.

The performance goal with respect to the Optioril flrathat the Management Development and Compiems@bmmittee of the
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee”) littermined that one of the following three perfoncemetrics has been achieved as of
KB Home’s November 30 fiscal year end in any of 204013, and 2014 (each, a “measurement date”):

€)) Positive Cumulative Operating Margilthe Company has achieved in any one performaaded(as described in this
subsection (a)) positive cumulative operating nrarg@iumulative operating margin shall be calculatedhe sum of the
Company’s consolidated total operating income @vperformance period, excluding the impact of inggnand joint
venture impairments and land option contract abamgmts, divided by the Company’s consolidated tate¢nue over the
same performance period. The first performanceogeshall be from December 1, 2011 through Nover3Be2012. The
second performance period shall be from Decemb2011 through November 30, 2013. The third perforoegperiod shall
be from December 1, 2011 through November 30, 20téd.performance goal for the Award will be saédfin full under
this Agreement if and upon the Committee’s deteatiim of the achievement in any performance peofdtie Positive
Cumulative Operating Margin performance metric esctibed in this subsection (.

(b) Relative Operating MarginThe Company’s cumulative operating margin ovpedormance period is greater than the 50th
percentile relative to the cumulative operating giraof the companies included in the global industassification standard
homebuilding sub-industry index on the Award Date;luding companies that produce manufacturedefapricated
homes, companies in bankruptcy, companies thabtbuild homes, and compani



()

that do not have shares of stock that trade onianad securities exchange registered with the Beéesiand Exchange
Commission (or a successor federal agency) (eatthcampany, a “GICS Index Comparator Company”)edasmn most
recent data available for such GICS Index Compakatmpanies as of the Company’s November 30 figeal end that
encompasses four fiscal quarters (with respedtdditst performance period), eight fiscal quar{grigh respect to the secc
performance period) or twelve fiscal quarters (wéhpect to the third performance period), as #se enay be for each such
GICS Index Comparator Company. If any GICS Indexnarator Company after the Award Date merges,qsieed or is
involved in a business combination transactiontiedsurviving company is a GICS Index Comparatam@any, data for
the surviving company shall be included in evahgthe achievement of this performance metricnif &ICS Index
Comparator Company after the Award Date mergeadsiired or is involved in a business combinatiangaction that
results in any such case in a surviving companyishaot a GICS Index Comparator Company, or if 84¢S Index
Comparator Company is involved in a “going privatighsaction, files for bankruptcy or about whictialis no longer
publicly available, data for any such GICS Indexr@arator Company (A) to the extent available artberpassing one or
more full fiscal quarterly periods for any such GlGdex Comparator Company shall be included inuatig the
achievement of this performance metric with respethe particular performance period in which dipplicable event
occurs, so long as there is data available fazagtione such full fiscal quarterly period endinthin twelve months of the
end of such performance period; and (B) shall monluded in evaluating the achievement of thisggenance metric for
the performance period or periods (as the caselr@pfollowing the performance period in which tippkcable event
occurs; provided that in no event will data for @ugh GICS Index Comparator Company that was imcitid evaluating th
achievement of this performance metric in any pperformance period be retroactively removed wétspect to evaluating
the achievement of this performance metric witlpees to any such prior measurement period. Thepagnce goal for the
Award will be satisfied in full under this Agreenmteéhand upon the Committee’s determination of éichievement in any
one performance period of the Relative Operatingditaperformance metric described in this subsedi); or

Customer Satisfactic: Based on the most recently release-measurement date results of a third party sungpf any
one of the measurement dates, the Company’s owraiage (mean) customer satisfaction rating feintlrkets in which
the Company has active operations and which areredvby the survey is at or above 90%; providetlitmo such survey i
available at any applicable measurement datejtémsmay be measured by objective data underlyirsgoener satisfaction,
as determined by the Committee in its sole disaneflhe performance goal for the Award will be sf#id in full under this
Agreement if and upon the Committee’s determinatibtihe achievement as of any one applicable measemt date of the
Customer Satisfaction performance metric describéklis subsection (c
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All determinations with respect to the achievenwthe foregoing performance metrics shall be madthe Committee no
later than ninety days after each measurement date.

If any of the three foregoing performance metricdetermined by the Committee to have been achiatvg first
measurement date, one-third of the Option will westhe date of determination and the remainingttvials will vest in
equal installments on the second and third anréviers of the Award Date subject to Holder not eipeing a Termination
of Service prior to any such vesting dates. If nohthe three foregoing performance metrics is meitged by the Committe
to have been achieved at the first measurementlolatat least one is determined by the Commitideatze been achieved at
the second measurement date, two-thirds of theo@ptill vest on the date of determination and #®aining one-third will
vest on the third anniversary of the Award Datejesciito Holder not experiencing a Termination ofv&e prior to any such
vesting dates. If none of the three foregoing penfmce metrics is determined by the Committee te ieeen achieved at 1
first or at the second measurement dates, buast tee is determined by the Committee to have bekieved at the third
measurement date, the Option will then vest indalthe date of determination subject to Holderexgeriencing a
Termination of Service prior to such date. If nafi¢he three foregoing performance metrics is deileed by the Committee
to have been achieved by the third measurement @atg to one half of the Option will vest if atth the date that the
Committee determines that the Relative OperatinggMaat the third measurement date is within asti€8% of its
applicable performance metric goal (as the goabive the 5@ percentile; 60% of that goal is etuabove the 30
percentile); and (ii) up to one-half of the Optiwill vest if and on the date the Committee deteesithat Customer
Satisfaction at the third measurement date is wighieast 60% of its applicable performance mefoal as described abo»
in each case of (i) and (ii) subject to Holder experiencing a Termination of Service prior to thied measurement date ¢
in accordance with the following table (with perfance between 60% and 100% of achievement inteégublimearly):

Range of Performance Optior

Performance Metric Achievement Vesting
Actual % of Performance Goal Achieved % of Eligible Award
60% -70% 25%-44%
70%-80% 44%-63%
80%-90% 63%-81%
90%-100% 81% to 100%

If none of the three performance metrics as desdrib this Section 2 have been achieved (whethiedlior at an applicable
qualifying 60% threshold level at the third measoeat date), notwithstanding any other provisiothi Agreement
(including without limitation Section 3 below), ti@ption shall not vest or become exercisable andétshall immediately
forfeit all rights, title and interests in and tayaportion of the Option.

3. Without limiting the generality of Section 1 afegit is understood and agreed that the Opticuligect to the following additional
terms and conditions and to the terms and conditafrthe Plan:



(a) 100% of the Option will vest and become immealjaexercisable, and the performance goal in 8e@iabove shall be deemed
satisfied in full, upon Holder’s Retirement. “Retinent” means severance from employment with thefg@amy and its Affiliates for any reason
other than a leave of absence, termination foresadisath or disability, at such time as the sutdafler's age and years of service with the
Company and its Affiliates equals at least 65 oranprovided that Holder is then at least 55 yeaege. The Company shall have the sole
right to determine whether Holder’s severance feonployment constitutes a Retirement.

(b) The Committee, in its discretion, may deempldormance goal in Section 2 above to be satisfi@accelerate the vesting of
the balance, or some lesser portion of the balafdbe unvested Option at any time, subject tdith&ations on acceleration of vesting set
forth in the Plan. If and to the extent so accedztathe applicable balance of the Option shall asf the date or upon the occurrence of the
condition specified by the Committee.

(c) The Option, to the extent vested, shall in angnt cease to be exercisable and shall expir¢eaminate to the extent not
exercised on the earlier of (1) the close of bussran October 6, 2021; (2) ninety calendar days &folder's Termination of Service for any
reason other than for cause (as determined by ah&p@ny) or Retirement; (3) the date specified tmssation (c)(1) of this Section 3 in the
event of Holder's Retirement, or (4) five calendays after the date of Holder’'s Termination of $vf for cause (as determined by the
Company). Notwithstanding the foregoing, in thergva the death or disability of Holder, the perfance goal in Section 2 shall be deemed
satisfied in full, Holder shall be credited witheoadditional year of service vesting, and the Opfto the extent vested based on Holder’s
service and the additional credited year of servesting at the time of Holder’s disability or degwvill terminate on the earlier of (x) one year
from the date of disability or death or (y) thealapecified in subsection(c)(1) of this Section 3.

(d) The Option may not be sold, pledged, assigmachasferred in any manner other than as permiiyetthe Plan.

(e) Holder shall have none of the rights of a shmdéter of the Company with respect to shares of @omStock subject to the
Option unless and until Holder becomes the recanden of such shares following exercise of the Qptioaccordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

4. Any exercise of the vested Option shall be madgiving the Company written or electronic notafeexercise specifying the number
of shares to be purchased. The notice of exerbek e accompanied by any additional documentsired under the Plan and by full paym
of the purchase price and any applicable withhgldaxes. Payment may be made by (a) cash or cti®cthares of Common Stock owned by
Holder (which are not the subject of any pledgetber security interest) having a Fair Market Valag defined in the Plan) on the date of
delivery equal to the aggregate payment require(t;)adelivery of a written or electronic noticeattHolder has placed a market sell order with
a broker with respect to shares then issuable egertise of the Option, and that the broker has bi&ected to pay a sufficient portion of the
net proceeds of the sale to the Company in satisfaof the aggregate payment required (so longegsnent of such net proceeds is then made
to the Company upon settlement of such sale); geslithat Holder may elect to have the Company withkhares otherwise issuable upon
exercise of the Option in satisfaction of any aggihle tax withholding obligation.
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5. Neither the execution and delivery hereof nerdhanting of the Option shall confer upon Holdey éght to be employed or engaged
in any capacity by the Company or any Affiliate torcontinue in such employment or engagementhalt siterfere with or restrict in any way
the rights of the Company and any Affiliate, whigghts are hereby expressly reserved, to dischdajeéer at any time.

6. The Option is subject to all of the terms andditions of the Plan, including without limitatioany terms, rules, or determinations
made by the Committee pursuant to its authorityeutide Plan and Plan provisions on adjustment airdsy non-transferability, satisfaction of
tax requirements and compliance with other laws.

7. The Company may impose such restrictions, camditor limitations as it determines appropriatécathe timing and manner of any
resales by Holder or other subsequent transfeksdbger of any shares of Common Stock issued to éfcdd a result of the exercise of this
Option, including without limitation (a) restrictis under an insider trading or other Company policyrestrictions designed to delay and/or
coordinate the timing and manner of sales by Hcodaher others following a public offering of the Caoamy’s stock, (c) stock ownership or
holding requirements and (d) restrictions as toutbe of a specified brokerage firm for such resatesther transfers.

8. Any notice given hereunder to the Company dtmbddressed to the Company at its corporate hagtégg attention Senior Vice
President, Human Resources, and any notice givesuhéer to Holder shall be addressed to Holdemédé#'s address as shown on the reci
of the Company.

9. Holder agrees to be bound by the terms and tiondiof this Agreement and of the Plan and thahéevent of any conflict in terms
between this Agreement and the terms of the Phenterms of the Plan shall prevail.

10. This Agreement will be construed, administeard enforced in accordance with the laws of théeSthCalifornia. This Agreement
and the grant of the Option evidenced hereby &easlubject to rescission by the Company if an ebeelcariginal of this Agreement is not
received by the Company within four weeks of theatavDate.

11. The Option is intended to be exempt from tlpiirements of Section 409A of the Code, and thises&ment shall be interpreted in a
manner consistent with such intent. Notwithstandingthing to the contrary in the Plan or in thiségment, Holder agrees that Holder sha
solely responsible for the satisfaction of all ®xaterest and penalties that may be imposed dadror for Holder’'s account in connection
with the Option (including without limitation angxes, interest and penalties under Section 409%) naither the Company nor its Affiliates
shall have any obligation to reimburse, indemnifptherwise hold Holder harmless from any or alsofh taxes, interest or penalties.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, by its duly authed officer, and Holder have executed this Agrestnas of the day and year

first above written.

KB HOME

By: /S/ THOMAS F. NORTON
Thomas F. Nortol
Senior Vice President, Human Resour

HOLDER:

By: /S/ JEFFREY T. MEZGER
Jeffrey T. Mezge

Date: 1(-27-2011



EXHIBIT 12.1

KB HOME
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(In Thousands, Except Ratios)

Years Ended November 30,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Earnings
Loss from continuing operations before income t: $(181,16%) $(76,36%) $(311,18,) $(967,93)) $(1,460,771)
Add:
Interest incurret 112,03 122,23( 119,60: 156,40:. 199,55(
Amortization of premiums and discounts relatedebt 2,15( 2,14¢ 1,58¢ 2,062 2,47¢
Portion of rent expense considered to be inte 3,515 4,65¢ 7,507 16,50: 28,46¢
Amortization of previously capitalized intere 79,33t 95,23¢ 138,17¢ 129,90: 171,49¢
Distribution of earnings from unconsolidated joint
ventures, net of equity in income (lo! 45,25¢ 19,63¢ 43,26: 157,39: 171,57¢
Deduct:
Interest capitalize (62,837) (53,927 (67,839 (143,430 (186,56()
Income (loss) as adjust $ (1,709 $113,62( $ (68,88)) $(649,10¢1) $(1,073,76)
Fixed charges
Interest incurret $ 112,03 $122,23( $ 119,60: $ 156,40: $ 199,55(
Amortization of premiums and discounts relatedebt 2,15( 2,14¢ 1,58¢ 2,062 2,47¢
Portion of rent expense considered to be inte 3,51 4,65¢ 7,507 16,50: 28,46¢

$117,70: $129,03° $ 128,69! $174,96° $ 230,49
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg — — — — —
Coverage deficiency (i $(119,40)  $(15,41)  $(197,58) $(824,07)  $(1,304,25)

The ratios of earnings to fixed charges are contpbatea consolidated basis excluding our Frenchodtiitued operations for the year ended
November 30, 200"

(@) Earnings for the years ended November 30, 28010, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were insufficient toecdixed charges for the periods by
$119.4 million, $15.4 million, $197.6 million, $824million and $1.30 billion, respectivel



EXHIBIT 21
KB HOME AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
The following subsidiaries* of KB Home were inclutin the November 30, 2011 consolidated finandeiesnents:

Percentage ¢

Voting
Securities
Owned by
the
Registrant
ora
Subsidiary of
the
Name of Company/Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Famation Registrant
Arizona
KB HOME Phoenix Inc 10C
KB HOME Sales— Phoenix Inc 10C
KB HOME Sales— Tucson Inc 10C
KB HOME Tucson Inc 10C
California
KB HOME Coastal Inc 10C
KB HOME Greater Los Angeles In 10C
KB HOME Insurance Agency In 10C
KB HOME Sacramento Inc 10C
KB HOME South Bay Inc 10C
Colorado
KB HOME Colorado Inc 10C
Delaware
KB HOME Charlotte Inc 10C
KB HOME DelMarVa LLC 10C
KB HOME Florida LLC 10C
KB HOME Fort Myers LLC 10C
KB HOME Gold Coast LLC 10C
KB HOME Gulf Coast Inc 10C
KB HOME Jacksonville LLC 10C
KB HOME Maryland LLC 10C
KB HOME North Carolina Inc 10C
KB HOME Orlando LLC 10C
KB HOME Raleigl-Durham Inc. 10C
KB HOME South Carolina Inc 10C
KB HOME Tampa LLC 10C
KB HOME Treasure Coast LL 10C
KB HOME Virginia Inc. 10C
KB HOME Wisconsin LLC 10C
KB Urban Inc. 10C
Florida
KB HOME Title Services Inc 10C
Illinois

KB HOME Mortgage Compan 10C



Percentage c

Voting
Securities
Owned by
the
Registrant
ora
Subsidiary of
the
Name of Company/Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Famation Registrant
Nevada
KB HOME Las Vegas Inc 10C
KB HOME Nevada Inc 10C
KB HOME Reno Inc 10C
Texas
KB HOME Lone Star Inc 10C
KBSA Inc. 10C

* Certain subsidiaries have been omitted from tkts Tihese subsidiaries, when considered in theeggtg as a single subsidiary, do
constitute a significant subsidiary as defined ieRl-02(w) of Regulation -X.



EXHIBIT 23

KB HOME AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifoHewing Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-154432) of KB Home

(2) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-129273) pertaining to the KB Home 1988 Employeestlan, the KB Home 19¢
Stock Incentive Plan, the KB Home Performance-Bdseentive Plan for Senior Management, the KB Hawoa-Employee
Directors Stock Plan, the KB Home 401(k) SavingmPthe KB Home 1999 Incentive Plan, the KB Hom@128tock Incentive
Plan, certain stock grants and the resale of cestaéres by officers of the Compa

(3) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-168179) pertaining to the KB Home 401(k) SavingmPhnc
(4) Reqgistration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:--168181) pertaining to the KB Home 2010 Equity IneenPlan;

of our reports dated January 27, 2012 with resjgettte consolidated financial statements of KB Hparl the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting of KB Home, included iriginnual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended &lmber 30, 2011.

é-m-ct 4 LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 27, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey T. Mezger, certify tha
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of KB Home;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or angttate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduies tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financial reéjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atarece with generally accepted accounting princjj

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigsslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period covgrehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid's internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significdain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Dated January 23, 2012

/s/ JEFFREY T. MEZGEI
Jeffrey T. Mezge
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeff J. Kaminski, certify tha

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of KB Home;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or en#ttate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this

report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduies tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reéjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atarece with generally accepted accounting princjj

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigsslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period covgrehis report based on
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the regid's internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significdain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Dated January 23, 2012

/s JEFF J. KAMINSK]|
Jeff J. Kaminsk
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB Homeg(ttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended Nober 30, 2011 (the
“Report”), I, Jeffrey T. Mezger, President and Glideecutive Officer of the Company, certify, puratito 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of
operations of the Compan

Dated January 23, 20: /s| JEFFREY T. MEZGI
Jeffrey T. Mezger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB Homeg(ttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended Nober 30, 2011 (the
“Report”), I, Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive Vice Pi@gsnt and Chief Financial Officer of the Compangrtify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section
1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of tHeaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of myviealge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of
operations of the Compan

Dated January 23, 20: /s/ JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer



